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XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
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No Par Value
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY None None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act:
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e08&turities Act.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Yes No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act.
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONMN YesO No
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @ filed all reports required to be filed by Seuti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4L88ring the preceding 12 months (or for such mort
period that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to such fiegirements for the past 90 days.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONMN Yes No O

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant dsnstted electronically and posted on its corpok&eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rueof0
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months ¢oistich shorter period that the registrant wasireduo submit and post such files).

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONMN Yes No O

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i oontained herein, and will not be containedhi lbest of registrant’s knowledge, in definitivexr or
information statements incorporated by referendeart Ill of this Form 10-K or in any amendmenthics Form 10-KI[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa8ge the definitions of “large accelerated filer,
“accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting compariy’'Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONMN
Large accelerated fileX] Accelerated filerd

Non-accelerated fileild Smaller reporting companO
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
Large accelerated filedl Accelerated filerd

Non-accelerated fileix] Smaller reporting companO
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether each registrantsisedl company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the)Adtes 0  No

State the aggregate market value of the votingnamevoting common equity held by non-affiliatesmgmuted by reference to the price at which the comeguity was last sold, or the average bid and
asked price of such common equity, as of the lasiness day of each registrant's most recently ¢eteg second fiscal quarter:

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM $6,078,967,225 as of June 30, 2!

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY $0 as of June 30, 20:

The number of shares outstanding of each regi&reommon stock as of February 14, 2014
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This combined Form 10-K is separately filed by Pinacle West and APS. Each registrant is filing on & own behalf all of the
information contained in this Form 10-K that relates to such registrant and, where required, its subdiaries. Except as stated in the

preceding sentence, neither registrant is filing aninformation that does not relate to such registrat, and therefore makes no

representation as to any such information. The irdrmation required with respect to each company iset forth within the applicable
items. Item 8 of this report includes Consolidatedrinancial Statements of Pinnacle West and Consokided Financial Statements of
APS. Item 8 also includes Notes to Pinnacle Westonsolidated Financial Statements, the majority ofvhich also relates to APS, and
Supplemental Notes, which only relate to APS’s Con$idated Financial Statements.
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GLOSSARY OF NAMES AND TECHNICAL TERMS

AC Alternating Curren

ACC Arizona Corporation Commissic

ADEQ Arizona Department of Environmental Qual

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Construct

ANPP Arizona Nuclear Power Project, also known as Paode

APS Arizona Public Service Company, a subsidiary of@oenpany

APSES APS Energy Services Company, Inc., a subsidiath@Company sold on August 19, 2(

Base Fuel Rat The portion of AP’s retail base rates attributable to fuel and pigetigoower cost

BHP Billiton BHP Billiton New Mexico Coal, Inc

BNCC BHP Navajo Coal Compar

Cholla Cholla Power Plar

DC Direct Curren

DOE United States Department of Enel

DOI United States Department of the Intel

DSMAC Demand side management adjustment ch

El Dorado El Dorado Investment Company, a subsidiary of then@any

El Pasc El Paso Electric Compar

EPA United States Environmental Protection Age

FERC United States Federal Energy Regulatory Commis

Four Corner: Four Corners Power Pla

GWh Gigawat-hour, one billion watts per ho

kv Kilovolt, one thousand voli

kWh Kilowatt-hour, one thousand watts per hi

LFCR Lost Fixed Cost Recovery Mechanit

MMBtu One million British Thermal Unit

MW Megawatt, one million watt

MWh Megawat-hour, one million watts per ho

Native Load Retail and wholesale sales supplied under traditioos-based rate regulatic

Navajo Plan Navajo Generating Static

NRC United States Nuclear Regulatory Commiss

NTEC Navajo Transitional Energy Company, LI

OcCl Other comprehensive incor

Palo Verde Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station or PVN

Pinnacle Wes Pinnacle West Capital Corporation (any use of theds” Company” “we,” and“our” refer to Pinnacle Wes

PSA Power supply adjustor approved by the ACC to prevat recovery or refund of variations in actuadlfand
purchased power costs compared with the Base Fate

RES Arizona Renewable Energy Standard and T:

Salt River Project or SR Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Rowistrict

SCE Southern California Edison Compa

SunCor SunCor Development Compa

TCA Transmission cost adjust

VIE Variable interest entit

West Phoeni: West Phoenix Power Pla
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statemeatsel on current expectations. These forward-lgpgiatements are often
identified by words such as “estimate,” “predictyiay,” “believe,” “plan,” “expect,” “require,” “inend,” “assumeand similar words. Becau
actual results may differ materially from expecaias, we caution readers not to place undue reliandbese statements. A number of factors
could cause future results to differ materiallynfirbistorical results, or from outcomes currentlpested or sought by Pinnacle West or APS.
In addition to the Risk Factors described in Itefnahd in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Agel of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” these factors include,dratnot limited to:

. our ability to manage capital expenditures and at@ns and maintenance costs while maintainingéity and customer service
levels;

. variations in demand for electricity, including #godue to weather, the general economy, custondesades growth (or decline), and
effects of energy conservation measures and disétbgeneration;

. power plant and transmission system performanceataijes;

. competition in retail and wholesale power markets;

. regulatory and judicial decisions, developments pnodeedings;

. new legislation or regulation, including those tiglg to environmental requirements, nuclear pladrations and potential deregulation
of retail electric markets;

. fuel and water supply availability;

. our ability to achieve timely and adequate rat®@vecy of our costs, including returns on debt agdity capital;

. our ability to meet renewable energy and energgieffcy mandates and recover related costs;

. risks inherent in the operation of nuclear faa@htiincluding spent fuel disposal uncertainty;

. current and future economic conditions in Arizopasticularly in real estate markets;

. the cost of debt and equity capital and the ahiititgccess capital markets when required,;

. environmental and other concerns surrounding doad-heneration;

. volatile fuel and purchased power costs;

. the investment performance of the assets of oueaudecommissioning trust, pension, and otherptistment benefit plans and the
resulting impact on future funding requirements;

. the liquidity of wholesale power markets and the akderivative contracts in our business;

. potential shortfalls in insurance coverage;

. new accounting requirements or new interpretatafrexisting requirements;

. generation, transmission and distribution faciéityd system conditions and operating costs;

. the ability to meet the anticipated future needafdditional baseload generation and associatedrtiasion facilities in our region;

. the willingness or ability of our counterpartiesyer plant participants and power plant land ownerseet contractual or other
obligations or extend the rights for continued poplant operations;

. technological developments affecting the electraustry; and

. restrictions on dividends or other provisions im oredit agreements and ACC orders.

These and other factors are discussed in the Ristofs described in Item 1A of this report, whielhders should review carefully
before placing any reliance on our financial staets or disclosures. Neither Pinnacle West nor Afs8imes any obligation to update these
statements, even if our internal estimates chasgeept as required by law.

2
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Pinnacle West

Pinnacle West is a holding company that conducséniess through its subsidiaries. We derive essnéll of our revenues and
earnings from our wholly-owned subsidiary, APS. SAR a vertically-integrated electric utility thatovides either retail or wholesale electric
service to most of the State of Arizona, with thajon exceptions of about one-half of the Phoenitropmlitan area, the Tucson metropolitan
area and Mohave County in northwestern Arizona.

Pinnacle West's other operating subsidiary is Etddlo. Additional information related to this buesis is provided later in this report.

Our reportable business segment is our regulasadrigity segment, which consists of traditionajukated retail and wholesale

electricity businesses (primarily electric serviceNative Load customers) and related activitiesl iacludes electricity generation,
transmission and distribution.

BUSINESS OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

APS currently provides electric service to apprcadiaty 1.2 million customers. We own or lease 6,884 of regulated generation
capacity and we hold a mix of both long-term anarsterm purchased power agreements for additicapacity, including a variety of
agreements for the purchase of renewable energyind2013, no single purchaser or user of enecgpanted for more than 1.1% of our
electric revenues.
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The following map shows APS'’s retail service temit including the locations of its generating fiieis and principal transmission

lines.
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Energy Sources and Resource Planning

To serve its customers, APS obtains power throtggharrious generation stations and through purchpswer agreements. Resource
planning is an important function necessary to rdetona’s future energy needs. APS'’s sourcesefgy by type during 2013 were as
follows:

Gas, Oil &
D .

Purchased
Power
21.9%

Muclear
27.3%

Generation Facilities

APS has ownership interests in or leases the oaelear, gas, oil and solar generating facilitiesalibed below. For additional
information regarding these facilities, see Item 2.

Coal-Fueled Generating Facilities

Four Corners— Four Corners is a 5-unit coal-fired power plargdted in the northwestern corner of New Mexicd?Sfoperates the
plant and owns 100% of Four Corners Units 1, 2Zadd 63% of Four Corners Units 4 and 5 following acquisition of SCE’s interest in
Units 4 and 5 described below. As of DecembeBQ3, APS retired Units 1, 2 and 3. APS has d éottitlement from Four Corners of 970
MW.

On November 8, 2010, APS and SCE entered into st asirchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agn¢grpeoviding for the
purchase by APS of SCE's 48% interest in each dfshand 5 of Four Corners, allowing APS to acg|i89 MW from SCE. On
December 30, 2013, APS and SCE closed this transacthe final purchase price for SCE’s intereasvapproximately $182 million, subject
to certain minor post-closing adjustments.

In connection with APS’s most recent retail rateecaith the ACC, the ACC reserved the right toeewvthe prudence of the Four
Corners transaction for cost recovery purposes tip@elosing of the transaction. On December BQ32APS filed an application with the
ACC to request rate adjustments prior to its nextegal rate case related to APS’s acquisition d&'S@terest in Four Corners. If approved,
these would result in an average bill impact taderstial customers of approximately 2%. APS cammetict the outcome of this request.

5
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Concurrently with the closing of the SCE transattBHP Billiton, the parent company of BNCC, theksupplier and operator of the
mine that serves Four Corners, transferred its ostryg of BNCC to NTEC, a company formed by the Nawdation to own the mine and
develop other energy projects. BHP Billiton wi#t betained by NTEC under contract as the mine merend operator until July 2016. Also
occurring concurrently with the closing, the Fowr@ers’ co-owners executed a long-term agreemerthéosupply of coal to Four Corners
from July 2016, when the current coal supply agr@rexpires, through 2031 (the “2016 Coal Supplyekgent”). El Paso, a 7% owner in
Units 4 and 5 of Four Corners, did not sign the@Gbal Supply Agreement. Under the 2016 Coal Supgfreement, APS has agreed to
assume the 7% shortfall obligation. When APS wdtely acquires a right to EPE’s interest in Fourr@es, by agreement or operation of law,
NTEC will have an option to purchase the intereihiw a certain timeframe pursuant to an optiomgged by APS to NTEC. The 2016 Ci
Supply Agreement contains alternate pricing terongHe 7% shortfall obligations in the event NTEG2d not exercise its option.

The Four Corners plant site is leased from the MaMation and is also subject to an easement ftanfaéderal government. APS, on
behalf of the Four Corners participants, negotiat®@éndments to an existing facility lease withNaajo Nation which extends the Four
Corners leasehold interest from 2016 to 2041. Né&eajo Nation approved these amendments in Mar&h.20he effectiveness of the
amendments also requires the approval of the D&dpas a related federal rights-of-way grant, witehFour Corners participants are
pursuing. A federal environmental review is undeywvas part of the DOI review process. APS wilbalsquire a Prevention of Significant
Deterioration (“PSD”) permit from EPA to installleetive catalytic reduction (“SCR”) control techongly at Four Corners, as described below
under “Environmental Matters — EPA EnvironmentagRlation.” APS cannot predict whether these feldgparovals will be granted, and if
so on a timely basis, or whether any conditions tey be attached to them will be acceptable td-the Corners owners.

Cholla— Cholla is a 4-unit coal-fired power plant locatachortheastern Arizona. APS operates the pladtaavns 100% of Cholla
Units 1, 2 and 3. PacifiCorp owns Cholla Unit AdaPS operates that unit for PacifiCorp. APS#éstal entitlement from Cholla of 647
MW. APS purchases all of Cholla’s coal requirersdntm a coal supplier that mines all of the caader long-term leases of coal reserves
with the federal and state governments and prizatgholders. The Cholla coal contract runs thro2@?4. In addition, APS has a long-term
coal transportation contract.

Navajo Generating Station- The Navajo Plant is a 3-unit coal-fired powenplecated in northern Arizona. Salt River Project
operates the plant and APS owns a 14% interesauajd Units 1, 2 and 3. APS has a total entitlenfrem the Navajo Plant of 315 MW. The
Navajo Plar’s coal requirements are purchased from a suppiibriong-term leases from the Navajo Nation aralttopi Tribe. The Navajo
Plant is under contract with its coal supplier tlgh 2019, with extension rights through 2026. Nawajo Plant site is leased from the Navajo
Nation and is also subject to an easement fronfettheral government. The current lease expire®19:

These coal-fueled plants face uncertainties, irotythose related to existing and potential legiistaand regulation, that could
significantly impact their economics and operatio8ge “Environmental Matters” below and “ManagetiseDiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — @i and Capital Expenditures” in Item 7 for dey@mhents impacting these coal-fueled
facilities. See Note 11 for information regardiiBS’s coal mine reclamation obligations.

6
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Nuclear

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating StationRalo Verde is a 3-unit nuclear power plant locateproximately 50 miles west of Phoenix,
Arizona. APS operates the plant and owns 29.1%atd Verde Units 1 and 3 and approximately 17%mf &. In addition, APS leases
approximately 12.1% of Unit 2, resulting in a 29.&8&mbined ownership and leasehold interest inuhidt APS has a total entittement from
Palo Verde of 1,146 MW.

Palo Verde Leases 4/ 1986, APS entered into agreements with threarsé@ lessor trust entities in order to sell aadéeback
approximately 42% of its share of Palo Verde Urdin@ certain common facilities. In accordance whthVIE accounting guidance, APS
consolidates the lessor trust entities for finan@porting purposes, and eliminates lease accogifitir these transactions. The agreements
expire at the end of 2015 and contain options newethe leases or to purchase the property fonfaiket value at the end of the lease terms.
APS was required to give notice to the respectegsdr trusts between December 31, 2010 and Dece&hp2012 if it wished to retain the
leased assets (without specifying whether it wqguitthase the leased assets or extend the leages)morthe leased assets to the lessor trust:
On December 31, 2012, APS gave notice to the régpdessor trusts informing them it will retairetteased assets. APS must give notice to
the respective lessor trusts by June 30, 2014yiragithem which of the purchase or lease renewtibop it will exercise. We are currently
analyzing these options. See Note 19 for additioriarmation regarding the Palo Verde Unit 2 deleseback transactions.

Palo Verde Operating Licenses Operation of each of the three Palo Verde Uritgiires an operating license from the NRC. The
NRC issued full power operating licenses for Uniih June 1985, Unit 2 in April 1986 and Unit 3 imWember 1987, and issued renev
operating licenses for each of the three unitspnil/2011, which extended the licenses for Unit2 And 3 to June 2045, April 2046 and
November 2047, respective

Palo Verde Fuel Cycle Fhe Palo Verde participants are continually ideinig their future nuclear fuel resource needs and
negotiating arrangements to fill those needs. fliekcycle for Palo Verde is comprised of the fallng stages:

. mining and milling of uranium ore to produce uranigoncentrates;
. conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium Heséftle;

. enrichment of uranium hexafluoride;

. fabrication of fuel assemblies;

. utilization of fuel assemblies in reactors; and

. storage and disposal of spent nuclear fuel.

The Palo Verde participants have contracted fofd00Palo Verde’s requirements for uranium conaaats through 2017, 90% of its
requirements in 2018 and 45% of its requiremen&0it8-2020. The participants have also contrafctedll of Palo Verde’s conversion
services through 2016, 95% of its requirementih722018 and 45% of its requirements in 2019-2@H&f Palo Verdes enrichment service
through 2020; and all of Palo Verde’s fuel assenfiéyication services through 2016.

Spent Nuclear Fuel and Waste Disposalhe Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (“NWPA”) reqpd the DOE to accept, transport,
and dispose of spent nuclear fuel and high levetevgenerated
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by the nation’s nuclear power plants by 1998. DDK¥E’s obligations are reflected in a contract fasfdsal of Spent Nuclear Fuel and/or High
Level Radioactive Waste (the “Standard Contracithwach nuclear power plant. The DOE failed tgibeccepting spent nuclear fuel by
1998. APS is directly and indirectly involved ieveral legal proceedings related to DOE’s failareneet its statutory and contractual
obligations regarding acceptance of spent nucleglrand high level waste.

APS Lawsuit for Breach of Standard Contraetin December 2003, APS, acting on behalf of itaelfl the participant owners of Palo
Verde, filed a lawsuit against DOE in the U.S. Gair~ederal Claims for damages incurred due to B®Eeach of the Standard Contract.
The Court of Federal Claims ruled in favor of AR%l@he Palo Verde participants in October 2010amdrded $30.2 million in damages to
APS and the Palo Verde participants for costs imeclthrough December 2006.

On December 19, 2012, APS, acting on behalf offitsed the participant owners of Palo Verde, filedecond breach of contract
lawsuit against the DOE. This lawsuit seeks tovec damages incurred due to DOE’s failure to acPapo Verde’s spent nuclear fuel for the
period beginning January 1, 2007 through June @012 That lawsuit is presently pending in the CofiFederal Claims.

The One-Mill Fee— In 2011, the National Association of Regulatorylity Commissioners and the Nuclear Energy Insgitu
challenged DOE’s 2010 determination of the adequdi¢lie one tenth of a cent per kWh fee (the “onkkfae”) paid by the nation’s
commercial nuclear power plant owners pursuartiéo individual obligations under the Standard Cactt This fee is recovered by APS in
retail rates. In June 2012, the U.S. Court of Agtpéor the District of Columbia Circuit (the “D.Circuit”) held that DOE failed to conduct a
sufficient fee analysis in making the 2010 deteation. The D.C. Circuit remanded the 2010 deteatindm to the Secretary of the DOE
(“Secretary”) with instructions to conduct a newe fedequacy determination within six months. Inrkaty 2013, upon completion of DOE’s
revised one-mill fee adequacy determination, the. @ircuit reopened the proceedings. On NovemBeR@13, the D.C. Circuit ordered the
Secretary to notify Congress of his intent to sagpeollecting annual fees for nuclear waste disjiosen nuclear power plant operators, as he
is required to do pursuant to the NWPA and the [@iecuit's order. On January 3, 2014, the Secyetatified Congress of his intention to
suspend collection of the one-mill fee, subjedCtmgress’ disapproval.

DOE'’s Construction Authorization Application for &t@ Mountain— The DOE had planned to meet its NWPA and Standardr&ct
disposal obligations by designing, licensing, cangtng, and operating a permanent geologic repgsit Yucca Mountain, Nevada. In
June 2008, the DOE submitted its Yucca Mountairstraction authorization application to the NRC, muMarch 2010, the DOE filed a
motion to dismiss with prejudice the Yucca Mounte@amstruction authorization application. Sevem&dliested parties have also intervened in
the NRC proceeding. Additionally, a number of iet#ed parties filed a variety of lawsuits in diffiet jurisdictions around the country
challenging the DOE’s authority to withdraw the ¥adviountain construction authorization applicaton NRC’s cessation of its review of
the Yucca Mountain construction authorization aggilon. The cases have been consolidated intonatier at the D.C. Circuit. In
August 2013, the D.C. Circuit ordered the NRC turee its review of the application with availabppeopriated funds.

Waste Confidence- On June 8, 2012, the D.C. Circuit issued its slenion a challenge by several states and envirotahgroups of
the NRC'’s rulemaking regarding temporary storag# an
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permanent disposal of high level nuclear wastesaht nuclear fuel. The petitioners had challetpedNRC’s 2010 update to the agency’s
Waste Confidence Decision and temporary storage(fWaste Confidence Decision”).

The D.C. Circuit found that the agency’s 2010 Wa&sbafidence Decision update constituted a majoer@daction, which, consistent
with the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA™equires either an environmental impact stateraeatfinding of no significant impact
from the agency'’s actions. The D.C. Circuit fouhdt the NRC's evaluation of the environmentalgiflom spent nuclear fuel was deficient,
and therefore remanded the 2010 Waste ConfidencisiDe update for further action consistent withRWE

On September 6, 2012, the NRC Commissioners issulictive to the NRC staff to proceed directlyhndevelopment of a generic
environmental impact statement to support an updataste Confidence Decision. The NRC Commissioaks directed the staff to establish
a schedule to publish a final rule and environmantpact study within 24 months of September 6,20l September 2013, the NRC issued
its draft environmental impact statement to supportipdated Waste Confidence Decision. In Octab&B, the NRC began a series of
nationwide public meetings to receive stakeholdput on the draft environmental impact statemditite NRC’s meeting schedule was
completed in December 2013. The NRC Commissiomave instructed the staff to issue the final genenvironmental impact statement and
rule by no later than September 2014. Untimelpltg®on by the NRC of the remand from the D.C. Gitcould have an adverse impact on
certain NRC licensing actions. Currently, Palodédoes not have any licensing actions pending th@éiNRC.

Palo Verde has sufficient capacity at its on-sitdependent spent fuel storage installation (“ISF&i'store all of the nuclear fuel that
will be irradiated during the initial operatingdicse period, which ends in December 2027. AdditipnPalo Verde has sufficient capacity at
its on-site ISFSI to store a portion of the fuelttivill be irradiated during the period of extendgxération, which ends in November 2047. If
uncertainties regarding the United States govertisiehligation to accept and store spent fuel arefavorably resolved, APS will evaluate
alternative storage solutions that may obviatentieed to expand the ISFSI to accommodate all ofuiblethat will be irradiated during the
period of extended operation.

Nuclear Decommissioning Costs APS currently relies on an external sinking fumechanism to meet the NRC financial assurance
requirements for decommissioning its interestsato®/erde Units 1, 2 and 3. The decommissionirgicof Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3 are
currently included in APS’s ACC jurisdictional rateDecommissioning costs are recoverable througinabypassable system benefits charge
(paid by all retail customers taking service frdra APS system). See Note 20 for additional infaimnaabout APSS nuclear decommissioni
trusts.

Palo Verde Liability and Insurance Matters See “Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station — Blarcinsurance” in Note 11 for a
discussion of the insurance maintained by the Falde participants, including APS, for Palo Verde.

Impact of Earthquake and Tsunami in Japan on Nudigeergy Industry— On March 11, 2011, an earthquake measuring 9tben
Richter Scale occurred off the coast of Japan ngusiseries of seven tsunamis. As a result, tkaghima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station
experienced damage.
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Following the earthquake and tsunamis, the NRChésteed a task force to conduct a systematic anttiodécal review of NRC
processes and regulations to determine whethexgbiecy should make additional improvements teeigsilatory system. On March 12, 2012,
the NRC issued the first regulatory requirementeban the recommendations of the Near Term TadeFdVith respect to Palo Verde, the
NRC issued two orders requiring safety enhancenregerding: (1) mitigation strategies to respaméxtreme natural events resulting in
loss of power at plants; and (2) enhancement aftdpel pool instrumentation.

The NRC has issued a series of interim staff guidatocuments regarding implementation of theseiregents. Due to the
developing nature of these requirements, we camealict the ultimate financial or operational imfsagn Palo Verde or APS; however, the
NRC has directed nuclear power plants to implerttenfirst tier recommendations of the N's Near Term Task Force. In response to these
recommendations, Palo Verde expects to spend aippeitedy $100 million for capital enhancements te pant over the next several years
(APS’s share is 29.1%).

Natural Gas and Oil Fueled Generating Facilities

APS has six natural gas power plants located throuArizona, consisting of Redhawk, located nesdoR/erde; Ocatillo, located in
Tempe (discussed below); Sundance, located in @galiWest Phoenix, located in southwest Phoenigu&a, located north of Tucson; and
Yucca, located near Yuma. Several of the unitduatica run on either gas or oil. APS has one dif-@ower plant, Douglas, located in the
town of Douglas, Arizona. APS owns and operates e these plants with the exception of one olly@mombustion turbine unit and one oil
and gas steam unit at Yucca that are operated I3yald owned by the Imperial Irrigation District P8 has a total entitlement from these
plants of 3,179 MW. Gas for these plants is finalhchedged up to three years in advance of pugidigaand the gas is generally purchasec
month prior to delivery. APS has long-term gassportation agreements with three different comgmrsome of which are effective through
2024. Fuel oil is acquired under short-term puselsadelivered primarily to West Phoenix, whers tistributed to APS’s other oil power
plants by truck.

Ocaotillo is a 330 MW 4-unit gas plant. In earlyl2Q APS announced a roughly $600-$700 million grioje modernize the plant,
which will involve retiring two older 110 MW steaomits, adding five 102 MW combustion turbines anaintaining two existing 55 MW
combustion turbines. In total, this will increabe capacity of the site by 290 MW, to 620 MW, withmpletion targeted for summer 2018.

Solar Facilities

To date, APS has begun operation of 118 MW oftytiicale solar through its AZ Sun Program, discdigsdow. These facilities are
owned by APS and are located in multiple locatidmeughout Arizona.

Additionally, APS owns and operates more than ferhall solar systems around the state. Togetlegrithve the capacity to produce
approximately 4 MW of renewable energy. This flelesolar systems includes a 3 MW facility locatedhe Prescott Airport and 1 MW of
small solar in various locations across Arizon@Sfhas also developed solar photovoltaic distribateergy systems installed as part of the
Community Power Project in Flagstaff, Arizona. T®emmunity Power Project, approved by the ACC onilAlp 2010, is a pilot program
through which APS owns, operates and receives grigygn approximately 1 MW of solar photovoltaic tlisuted energy systems located
within a certain test area in Flagstaff, Arizorgdditionally, APS owns 14 MW of
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solar photovoltaic systems installed across Arizitmaugh the ACC-approved Schools and Governmesgram.

Purchased Power Contracts

In addition to its own available generating capadtPS purchases electricity under various arrareggs; including long-term
contracts and purchases through short-term matdatispplement its owned or leased generation addehigs energy requirements. A portion
of APS’s purchased power expense is netted against whokgas on the Consolidated Statements of Incd®ee Note 17.) APS continue
assesses its need for additional capacity resotwa@ssure system reliability.

Purchased Power Capacity APS’s purchased power capacity under long-termracts, including its renewable energy portfolio, is
summarized in the table below. All capacity valaesbased on net capacity unless otherwise noted.

Type Dates Available Capacity (MW)
Purchase Agreement ( Yearround through December 20 9C
Purchase Agreement ( Yearround through June 14, 20 6C
Exchange Agreement ( May 15 to September 15 annually through 2 48(
Tolling Agreemen Yearround through May 201 514
Tolling Agreemen Summer seasons through October 2 56(
Day-Ahead Call Option Agreeme Summer seasons through September : 50C
Day-Ahead Call Option Agreeme Summer seasons through summer 2 15C
Demand Response Agreement Summer seasons through 2( 25
Renewable Energy ( Various 62¢

(a) The capacity under this agreement varies by mavith,a maximum capacity of 90 MW in each of 2018l 2014.

(b) Up to 60 MW of capacity is available; however, gmount of electricity available to APS under thgseement is based in

large part on customer demand and is adjusted dynua
(c) This is a seasonal capacity exchange agreement whitch APS receives electricity during the summeak season (from

May 15 to September 15) and APS returns a like ainailelectricity during the winter season (fromt@aer 15 to
February 15).

(d) The capacity under this agreement may be incréasedI\W increments in each of 2014, 2015 and 2016 ¥ MW
increments in years 2017 through 2024, up to a mawxi of 50 MW.

(e) Renewable energy purchased power agreements amheesin detail below under “Current and Futures®eces —
Renewable Energy Standard — Renewable Energy Rortfo
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Current and Future Resources

Current Demand and Reserve Margin

Electric power demand is generally seasonal. imoka, demand for power peaks during the hot sunmugrths. APS’s 2013 peak
one-hour demand on its electric system was recasdelily 8, 2013 at 6,927 MW, compared to the 28844k of 7,207 MW recorded on
August 8, 2012. APS’s reserve margin at the tifmbi® 2013 peak demand, calculated using systethderving capacity, was 27%.
Excluding certain contractual rights to call on iéiddal capacity on short notice, which APS may usthe event of unusual weather or
unplanned outages, the 2013 reserve margin was 5. anticipates the reserve margin for 2014 véllapproximately 34% or 24%
excluding contractual rights to call on additionapacity. APS expects that our reserve marginsdedrease over the next three years and thi
additional conventional resources will be needediiad 2017.

Future Resources and Resource Plan

Under the ACC'’s resource planning rule, APS wid toy April 1 of each even year its resource planghe next fifteen-year period.
The rule requires the ACC to issue an order witlagknowledgment of APS’s resource plan within apipnately ten months following its
submittal. The ACC'’s acknowledgment of APS’s raseiplan will consider factors such as the totat @f electric energy services, demand
management, analysis of suppligle options, system reliability and risk managem&PS will be filing its next resource plan by @i, 2014

Renewable Energy Standard

In 2006, the ACC adopted the RES. Under the REEStre utilities that are regulated by the ACC nsigpply an increasing
percentage of their retail electric energy salemfeligible renewable resources, including solangwbiomass, biogas and geothermal
technologies. The renewable energy requiremeh6ib of retail electric sales in 2014 and increasesially until it reaches 15% in 2025. In
APS’s 2009 retail rate case settlement agreemieat’2009 Settlement Agreement”), APS committedawehl,700 GWh of new renewable
resources in service by year-end 2015 in additiatst2008 renewable resource commitments. Tab@gether, APS commitment is estimatt
to be approximately 12% of retail sales, by yeat-2015, which is more than double the RES targ&g6for that year. A component of the
RES is focused on stimulating development of disted energy systems (generally speaking, smdk-seaewable technologies that are
located on customerproperties, such as rooftop solar systems). Adaglyl under the RES, an increasing percentagbkaifrequirement mu
be supplied from distributed energy resources.s @stributed energy requirement is 30% of the aV&ES requirement of 4.5% in 2014. ~
following table summarizes the RES requirementddash (not including the additional commitment reqdiby the 2009 Settlement
Agreement) and its timing:

2014 2015 2020 2025
RES as a % of retail electric sa 4.5% 5% 10% 15%
Percent of RES to be supplied from distributed gyer

resource: 30% 30% 30% 30%

12




Table of Contents

Renewable Energy PortfolioTo date, APS has a diverse portfolio of existing pfanned renewable resources totaling 1175 MW,
including solar, wind, geothermal, biomass and &8gOf this portfolio, 1074 MW are currently inevption and 101 MW are under contract
for development or are under construction. Renésvadsources in operation include 137 MW of faigiitowned by APS, 629 MW of long-
term purchased power agreements, and an estim@8elll3/ of customer-sited, third-party owned disttixlienergy resources.

APS’s strategy to achieve its RES requirementsides executing purchased power contracts for neilitiiss, ongoing development
of distributed energy resources and procuremenewf facilities to be owned by APS. APS is develgpmwned solar resources through the
AZ Sun Program. Under this program to date, ARBnases its investment commitment will be approxieia$695 million. See Note 3 for
additional details about the AZ Sun Program, inicigdhe related cost recovery.

The following table summarizes APS’s renewable gneources currently in operation and under devetag. Agreements for the
development and completion of future resourcesabgect to various conditions, including successtiithg, permitting and interconnection of
the projects to the electric grid.

13
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Actual/
Target Net Net Capacity
Commercial Capacity Planned/Under
Operation Term In Operation Development
Location Date (Years) (MW AC) (MW AC)
APS Owned
Solar:
AZ Sun Program
Paloma Gila Bend, AZ 2011 17
Cotton Cente Gila Bend, AZ 2011 17
Hyder Phase Hyder, AZ 2011 11
Hyder Phase Hyder, AZ 2012 5
Chino Valley Chino Valley, AZ 2012 19
Hyder I Hyder, AZ 2013 14
Foothills Yuma, AZ 2013 35
Gila Bend Gila Bend, AZ 2014 32
Subtotal AZ Sun Program (a) 11¢ 32
Multiple Facilities AZ Various 4
Distributed Energy
APS Owned (b) AZ Various 15
Total APS Owned 137 32
Purchased Power Agreement
Solar:
Solana Gila Bend, AZ 2013 30 25C
RE Ajo Ajo, AZ 2011 25 5
SunEAZ1 Prescott, AZ 2011 30 1C
Saddle Mountait Tonopah, AZ 2012 30 15
Badger Tonopah, AZ 2013 30 15
Gillespie Maricopa County, AZ 2013 30 15
wind:
Aragonne Mesi Santa Rosa, NM 2006 20 9C
High Lonesome Mountainair, NM 2009 30 10C
Perrin Ranch Wini Williams, AZ 2012 25 99
Geothermal:
Salton Se: Imperial County, CA 2006 23 1C
Biomass:
Snowflake Snowflake, AZ 2008 15 14
Biogas:
Glendale Landfill Glendale, AZ 2010 20 3
NW Regional Landfill Surprise, AZ 2012 20 3
Total Purchased Power Agreement 62¢ 0
Distributed Energy
Solar(c)
Third-party Ownec AZ Various 27t 69
Agreement ] Bagdad, AZ 2011 25 15
Agreement 2 AZ 2011-2012 20-21 18
Total Distributed Energy 30¢ 68
Total Renewable Portfolio 107¢ 101

(a) Under the AZ Sun Program, an additional 20 MW hesnbapproved to be contracted, but is not includdide table above
since it is not yet under contract. Another 30 N8/possible under AZ Sun, but has not yet beencsgiok.

(b) Includes Flagstaff Community Power Project and Ae8ool and Government Program.

(c) Distributed generation is produced in DC and isvested to AC for reporting purposes.
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Demand Side Management

In December 2009, Arizona regulators placed areesed focus on energy efficiency and other demigiedhsanagement programs to
encourage customers to conserve energy, while tivcagng utilities to aid in these efforts that intiately reduce the demand for energy. The
ACC initiated its Energy Efficiency rulemaking, Wwia proposed Energy Efficiency Standard (‘EE&"22% cumulative annual energy savil
by 2020. This standard was adopted and becamaie€en January 1, 2011. This ambitious standalidikely impact Arizona’s future
energy resource needs. (See Note 3 for energyesftiy and other demand side management obligatisudting from the 2009 Settlement
Agreement).

Government Awards

Through the American Recovery and ReinvestmenofA2009 (“ARRA”) and other DOE initiatives, the Ferdl government made a
number of programs available for utilities to deyetenewable resources, improve reliability anédigrgobs. APS continues its work on a $3
million non-ARRA award for a high penetration phadtiaic generation study related to the Communiawer Project in Flagstaff, Arizona.
This award will conclude during 2015 and is conéingupon APS meeting certain project milestoneduding DOE-established budget
parameters.

Competitive Environment and Regulatory Oversight
Retail

The ACC regulates APS'’s retail electric rates aadssuance of securities. The ACC must also agpany significant transfer or
encumbrance of APS’s property used to providelrelactric service and approve or receive prioifiwattion of certain transactions between
Pinnacle West, APS and their respective affiliates.

APS is subject to varying degrees of competitiemfrother investoowned electric and gas utilities in Arizona (sustSauthwest G
Corporation), as well as cooperatives, municipaitelectrical districts and similar types of gaveental or non-profit organizations. In
addition, some customers, particularly industriad é&arge commercial customers, may own and opegeateration facilities to meet some or all
of their own energy requirements. This practickésoming more popular with customers installingpaving installed products such as roo
solar panels to meet or supplement their energgisiee

On April 14, 2010, the ACC issued a decision hajdimat solar vendors that install and operate dafilities for non-profit schools
and governments pursuant to a specific type ofraohthat calculates payments based on the eneogyged are not “public service
corporations” under the Arizona Constitution, angl therefore not regulated by the ACC. A secontten& pending with the ACC to
determine whether that ruling should extend torgolaviders who serve a broader customer base uhdesame business model. Use of such
products by customers within our territory woulduk in an increasing level of competition. AP$mat predict when, and the extent to wh
additional electric service providers will enterrerenter APS’s service territory.

In 1999, the ACC approved rules for the introductid retail electric competition in Arizona. Agsesult, as of January 1, 2001, all of
APS’s retail customers were eligible to choosera#tte energy suppliers. Although some very limitetdil competition existed in APS’s
service territory in
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1999 and 2000, there are currently no active retailpetitors offering unbundled energy or othelitytservices to APS’s customers. In 2000,
the Arizona Superior Court found that the rulesenierpart unconstitutional and in other respectawful, the latter finding being primarily on
procedural grounds, and invalidated all ACC orderthorizing competitive electric services providersperate in Arizona. In 2004, the
Arizona Court of Appeals invalidated some, butalbof the rules and upheld the invalidation of thders authorizing competitive electric
service providers. In 2005, the Arizona SupremarCadeclined to review the Court of Appeals’ deaisi

In 2008, the ACC directed the ACC staff to inveatggwhether such retail competition was in the igubterest and what legal
impediments remain to competition in light of theutt of Appeals’ decision referenced above. TheCAstaff's report on the results of its
investigation was issued on August 12, 2010. Epent stated that additional analysis, discussimhsiaudy of all aspects of the issue are
required in order to perform a proper evaluativhile the report did not make any specific recomdagions other than to conduct more
workshops, the report did state that the curremflrelectric competition rules are incomplete amdeed of modification.

On May 9, 2013, the ACC voted to re-examine thdifaton of a deregulated retail electric marketArizona. The ACC
subsequently opened a docket for this matter atelved comments from a number of interested paotiethe considerations involved in
establishing retail electric deregulation in thetst One of these considerations is whether vaudgpects of a deregulated market, including
setting utility rates on a “market” basis, woulddmnsistent with the requirements of the Arizona&ibution. On September 11, 2013, after
receiving legal advice from the ACC staff, the A€ated 4-1 to close the current docket and awadlitAtizona Constitutional authority before
any further examination of this matter. The motamproved by the ACC also included opening one aremew dockets in the future to
explore options to offer more rate choices to qusts and innovative changes within the existind-observice regulatory model that could
include elements of competition. The ACC openeéwa docket on November 4, 2013 to explore technoéba@dvances and innovative
changes within the electric utility industry. WeHops in this docket are expected to be held id201

Wholesale

FERC regulates rates for wholesale power salesrandmission services. (See Note 3 for informategarding APS’s transmission
rates.) During 2013, approximately 5.4% of APS&ctic operating revenues resulted from such satelsservices. APS’s wholesale activity
primarily consists of managing fuel and purchasadqr supplies to serve retail customer energy rements. APS also sells, in the whole:
market, its generation output that is not neededRS’s Native Load and, in doing so, competes wftter utilities, power marketers and
independent power producers. Additionally, subjecpecified parameters, APS hedges both eldgtaaid fuels. The majority of these
activities are undertaken to mitigate risk in APgdstfolio.
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Environmental Matters
Climate Change

Legislative Initiatives. There have been no recent attempts by Congresssl@gislation that would regulate greenhouse gas
(“GHG") emissions, and it is unclear if and whee L3 Congress will consider a climate change bill tHa event climate change legislat
ultimately passes, the actual economic and op@@ltimpact of such legislation on APS depends wargety of factors, none of which can be
fully known until a law is enacted and the spesiiié the resulting program are established. Thesgers include the terms of the legislation
with regard to allowed GHG emissions; the cosetiuce emissions; in the event a cap-and-trade qarogr established, whether any permittec
emissions allowances will be allocated to sourceraiprs free of cost or auctioned (and, if socitt of those allowances in the marketplace)
and whether offsets and other measures to modbatmosts of compliance will be available; andhia event of a carbon tax, the amount of
the tax per pound of carbon dioxide (“GO ") equéerdlemitted.

In addition to federal legislative initiatives, &easpecific initiatives may also impact our busmegVhile Arizona has no pending
legislation and no proposed agency rule regulaBatfss in Arizona, the California legislature enactd®i32 and SB 1368 in 2006 to address
GHG emissions. In October 2011, the California Ré@sources Board approved final regulations thabéshed a state-wide cap on GHG
emissions beginning on January 1, 2013 and edtablia GHG allowance trading program under that @ first phase of the program,
which applies to, among other entities, importdrslectricity, commenced on January 1, 2013. Unldemprogram, entities selling electricity
into California, including APS, must hold carbotoalances to cover GHG emissions associated witttradiy sales into California from
outside the state. APS is authorized to recovectst of these carbon allowances through the PSA.

We continue to monitor Arizona regulatory activstignd other state legislative developments to whaled the extent to which they
may affect our business, including our sales ihtitnpacted states or the ability of our out-ofesfgower plant participants to continue their
participation in certain coal-fired power plants. particular, SCE, a prior participant in Four @ers, indicated that SB 1368 may prohibit it
from making emission control expenditures at ttphnd, as a result, SCE sold its entire 48%a@stén each of Units 4 and 5 of Four Corr
to APS on December 30, 2013. (See “Energy SoweddResource Planning — Generation Facilities —-€aealed Generating Facilities —
Four Corners” above for details of the sale of SORterest in Four Corners to APS.)

Regulatory Initiatives. In 2009, EPA determined that GHG emissions enelapgblic health and welfare. This determinaticasw
made in response to a 2007 United States Supremne ting that GHGs fit within the Clean Air Actlsroad definition of “air pollutant” and,
as a result, EPA has the authority to regulate @#tissions of new motor vehicles under the CleanMir As a result of this “endangerment
finding,” EPA determined that the Clean Air Act uéigd new regulatory requirements for new and niedifmajor GHG emitting sources,
including power plants. EPA issued a rule underGtean Air Act, known as the “tailoring rule,” abtishing new GHG emissions thresholds
that determine when sources, including power pJantsst obtain air operating permits or New Souregi&v permits. “New Source Review,”
or “NSR,” is a pre-construction permitting programder the Clean Air Act that requires analysisafuytion controls prior to building a new
stationary source or making major modificationamoexisting stationary source. The tailoring hiéeame applicable to power plants in
January 2011. Several groups filed lawsuits chglleg EPA’s endangerment finding and the tailonnlg, but the D.C. Circuit upheld these
rules. Petitioners asked
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the United States Supreme Court to reverse aladrgd the appeals court’s decision upholding EPBHG rules. On October 15, 2013, the
Supreme Court granted these petitions limitingghestion it would review to whether EPA permissitdgtermined that its regulation of GHG
emissions from new motor vehicles triggered peingttequirements under the Clean Air Act for stiaéicy sources that emit such gasses,
including power plants. The Court is expectedssue its decision in the case no later than mid201

APS does not expect that any resulting Supremet@eaision or the tailoring rule will have a sigoént impact on its current
operations. The rule will require APS to consiter impact of GHG emissions as part of its trad@idNSR analysis for new sources and
modifications to existing plants.

On June 25, 2013, President Obama unveiled hisafdirAction Plan addressing his plans to reduce @hiGsions in the United
States. While the plan identifies a wide rangstrdtegies for cutting GHG emissions, most impdrtaiAPS and the electric utility industry is
the implementation of carbon pollution standardsnfew, modified, and existing fossil-fired electgenerating units. Concurrent with the
President’s speech, the White House issued a RreasitiMemorandum directing EPA to use its exis@ughorities under the Clean Air Act to
develop GHG emission standards for new, modified, existing power plants. The Presidential Memduan directs EPA to propose GHG
emission standards for modified and existing uoytdune 1, 2014 and to finalize them by June 1520the memorandum further directed
EPA to reissue proposed standards of performanasefs power plants by September 20, 2013 and #difiethem in a timely fashion.

Consistent with President Obama’s June 2013 du@ctiursuant to its authority under the Clean Adt And its endangerment finding,
on September 20, 2013, EPA issued a proposedwhleh would establish New Source Performance StalsddNSPS”) for new fossil-fired
power plants. Once finalized, APS does not exphettthe GHG NSPS will have any material impacitsrcurrent operations. EPA indicated
in its proposal that the rule will not apply to nifietl or reconstructed electric generating unithjol are to be addressed in a subsequent
rulemaking. We cannot currently predict the shafpany final rules or standards for existing fodsgd power plants or assess how they migh
potentially impact the company. APS will contirteemonitor these standards as they are developed.

Company Response to Climate Change Initiative$Ve have undertaken a number of initiatives tar@sklemission concerns,
including renewable energy procurement and devedopppromotion of programs and rates that promogegy conservation, renewable
energy use, and energy efficiency. (See “Energy&s and Resource Planning — Current and FutuseuRees” above for details of these
plans and initiatives.) APS currently has a diggrertfolio of renewable resources, including sokind, geothermal, biogas, and biomass, an
we expect the percentage of renewable energy inesource portfolio to increase over the cominggea

APS prepares an inventory of GHG emissions frorisrations. This inventory is reported to EPAemitie EPA GHG Reporting
Program and is voluntarily communicated to the jouibl Pinnacle West's annual Corporate Responsititeport, which is available on our
website (www.pinnaclewest.coin The report provides information related to @@mpany and its approach to sustainability and/dskplace
and environmental performance. The informatiofPemacle West's website, including the Corporatsasibility Report, is not
incorporated by reference into this report.
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EPA Environmental Regulation

Regional Haze Rules.In 1999, EPA announced regional haze rules toaedisibility impairment in national parks and défrness
areas. The rules require states (or, for sounegdd on tribal land, EPA) to determine what gallucontrol technologies constitute the Best
Available Retrofit Technology (“BART") for certaialder major stationary sources, including fossikdi power plants. EPA subsequently
issued the Clean Air Visibility Rule, which provilguidelines on how to perform a BART analysis.

The Four Corners and Navajo Plant participantsgaitions to comply with EPA’s final BART determiiats (and Cholla’s
obligations to comply with ADEQ’s and EPA’s detemaiions), coupled with the financial impact of putal future climate change legislation,
other environmental regulations, and other businessiderations, could jeopardize the economiciligalof these plants or the ability of
individual participants to continue their partidipa in these plants.

Cholla. In 2007, ADEQ required APS to perform a BART aniyer Cholla pursuant to the Clean Air VisibiliBule. APS
completed the BART analysis for Cholla and subrditte BART recommendations to ADEQ in early 200%e recommendations include the
installation of certain pollution control equipmehait APS believes constitutes BART. ADEQ reviewdts's recommendations and
submitted its proposed BART State Implementati@nRtSIP”) for Cholla and other sources in Arizanaarly 2011.

On December 2, 2011, EPA provided notice of a psefdaonsent decree to address a lawsuit filedrwreber of environmental non-
governmental organizations, which alleged that E&led to promulgate Federal Implementation PldR$Rs”) for states that have not yet
submitted all or part of the required regional h8#es. In accordance with the consent decree,emember 5, 2012, EPA issued a final BART
rule applicable to Cholla. EPA approved ADEQ’s BRBmissions limits for sulfur dioxide (“S® ") andhéssions of particulate matter
(“PM"), but added a S@ removal efficiency requirarhof 95%. In addition, EPA disapproved ADEQ’'sBRdeterminations for oxides of
nitrogen (“NOx ") and promulgated a FIP establishingew, more stringent “bubbled” NO emission ggiplicable to the two BART-eligible
Cholla units owned by APS and the other BART-elwgibnit owned by PacifiCorp. In order to complytiwihis new rate, APS will be required
to install SCR control technology on all threelod Cholla units. APS’s total costs for these masttbustion NQ  controls would be
approximately $200 million. This amount is notlirded in our current estimates for environmentgitedexpenditures in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations — Capital Expenditures” @amit7. Under the FIP, APS has five
years from December 2012 to complete installatioth® equipment and achieve the BART emission IfonitNO .

APS believes that EPA’s final rule as it applie€twlla is unsupported and that EPA had no basidisapproving Arizona’s SIP and
promulgating a FIP that is inconsistent with thetess considered BART determinations under theoreglihaze program. Accordingly, on
February 1, 2013, APS filed a Petition for Revidwthe final BART rule in the United States CourtAgipeals for the Ninth Circuit. We expi
briefing in the case to be completed in Februari420

Four Corners. On August 6, 2012, EPA issued its final BARTatatination for Four Corners. The rule included teonpliance
options. On December 30, 2013, APS notified EP# the Four Corners participants selected the BARSrnative, which required APS to
retire Four Corners Units 1-3 by January 1, 201dliastall and operate SCR control technology ortd.Ji
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and 5 by July 31, 2018. Consistent with this ali¢ive, APS retired Four Corners Units 1-3 on Ddoen80, 2013. APS’s 63% share of the
costs for these controls is estimated to be apprataly $350 million. Approximately half of thesests are included in the capital expenditure
estimates in “Management’s Discussion and AnalgsiEinancial Condition and Results of OperationsGapital Expenditures” in Item 7
because APS expects to incur that portion of ttetsaturing the 2014 through 2016 timeframe. FordPhissions, EPA is requiring Units 4
and 5 to meet an emission limit of 0.015 Ib/MMBtwaa 20% opacity limit, both of which are achiewatiirough operation of the existing
baghouses. Although unrelated to BART, the finARE rule also imposes a 20% opacity limitation entain fugitive dust emissions from
Four Corners’ coal and material handling operations

On October 22, 2012, WildEarth Guardians filed ttipa for review in the United States Court of Aggis for the Ninth Circuit
alleging that EPA violated the Endangered Speceg&ASA") when it promulgated the final Four Cora@ART FIP. The court granted
APS’s motion for leave to intervene as a defendattie case. A decision is expected before theofi2®14. We cannot currently predict the
outcome of this case or whether such outcome waileha material adverse impact on our financialtmosiresults of operations, or cash flows.

Navajo Plant. On January 18, 2013, EPA issued a proposed BaRTfor the Navajo Plant, which would require aikttion of SCR
technology in order to achieve a new, more stringéant-wide NO, emission limit. Under the proplosiae Navajo Plant participants would
have up to five years after EPA issues its fina¢dainations to achieve compliance with the BARGuieements. APS'’s total costs for post-
combustion NG, controls could be up to approxinya$200 million. The majority of these costs ar¢ included in the capital expenditure
estimates described in “Management’s Discussionfaradysis of Financial Condition and Results of @tions — Capital Expenditures” in
Item 7 because APS expects to incur such costsarsyfollowing 2016. EPA’s proposal also includas‘Alternative to BART,” which would
provide the Navajo Plant with additional time tetall the SCR technology. Under this “better tB&RT” alternative, the Navajo Plant
participants would be required to install SCR teatbgy on one unit per year in each of 2021, 2028,2023. In response to EPA’s request fo
comments on other options that could set longee firames for installing pollution controls if theaiajo Plant can achieve additional emissior
reductions, on July 26, 2013, a group of stakehs|dacluding SRP, the operating agent for the afdant, submitted to EPA two suggested
alternatives to BART, which would achieve great€ Nemission reductions than EPA’s proposed BARE.ruf the rule is finalized as
proposed, depending on which alternate operatiagas® the Navajo Plant participants ultimatelyesglthe required N@ emission
reductions could be achieved by either closingafrtee three 750 MW units at the plant or curtgjlenergy production across all three units,
such that the emission reductions are commenswititeéhe closure of approximately one of the Naviant units. On September 25, 2013,
EPA issued a supplemental BART proposal proposirdgtermine that these alternatives are “better BrSRT” because NQ emissions that
would be achieved thereunder would result in greai@sonable progress toward the national vigjtgjgal than EPA’s proposed BART
determination.

Mercury and other Hazardous Air Pollutants.On December 16, 2011, EPA issued the final Mgremd Air Toxics Standards
(“MATS"), which established maximum achievable aohtechnology (“MACT") standards to regulate enoss of mercury and other
hazardous air pollutants from fossil-fired poweark. Generally, plants will have three yearsrafte effective date of the rule to achieve
compliance. In the case of Cholla, APS will havetal of four years after the MATS’ effective datecomply with the new MACT standards,
because on September 24, 2012, the permitting atytigpanted APS’s request for a one-year comphkathate extension. Similarly, SRP
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will have until April 16, 2016 to comply with MAT&t the Navajo Plant, as a result of a one-yeamneiia granted by EPA and the Navajo
Nation EPA on January 27, 20!

The MATS will require APS to install additional pation control equipment. APS has installed certz#ithe equipment necessary to
meet the anticipated standards. APS estimateshthabst for the remaining equipment necessanydet these standards is approximately
$120 million for Cholla Units 2 and 3. These caats not included in the capital expenditure essidescribed in “Management’s Discussior
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations — Capital Expenditures” in Item 7. &titional equipment is needed for Four
Corners Units 4 and 5 to comply with these rul8BRP, the operating agent for the Navajo Plantjlisgaluating compliance options under-
rules.

Cooling Water Intake Structures.EPA issued its proposed cooling water intakecstines rule on April 20, 2011, which provides
national standards applicable to certain coolintpwamtake structures at existing power plants @thér facilities pursuant to Section 316(b) of
the Clean Water Act. The proposed standards teaded to protect fish and other aguatic organisynsinimizing impingement mortality
(the capture of aquatic wildlife on intake struessior against screens) and entrainment mortalfieyqapture of fish or shellfish in water flow
entering and passing through intake structures)mihimize impingement mortality, the proposed muteuld require facilities, such as Four
Corners and the Navajo Plant, to either demonstinateimpingement mortality at their cooling waitgiakes does not exceed a specified rate c
reduce the flow at those structures to less thgpeaified velocity, and to take certain protectiveasures with respect to impinged fish. To
minimize entrainment mortality, the proposed rutad also require these facilities to conduct auttiured site-specific analysi determine
what site-specific controls, if any, should be rieggl Additional studies and a peer review proaefisalso be required at these facilities.

As proposed, existing facilities subject to theerwlould have to comply with the impingement motyalequirements as soon as
possible, but in no event later than eight yeaes dfie effective date of the rule, and would himveomply with the entrainment requirement
soon as possible under a schedule of complianablested by the permitting authority. APS is peritng analyses to determine the costs of
compliance with the proposed rule. EPA will issiie final standards upon completion of its ongd#®A consultations with the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service and National Marine Fisheries Seevand is working to finalize the standards byiAp014.

Coal Combustion Waste.On June 21, 2010, EPA released its proposedatigu$ governing the handling and disposal of coal
combustion residuals (“CCRs"), such as fly ashlaoilom ash. APS currently disposes of CCRs inpastis and dry storage areas at Cholla
and Four Corners, and also sells a portion ofytagh for beneficial reuse as a constituent ircoete production. EPA proposes regulating
CCRs as either non-hazardous waste under Subtilietiie Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RRG or hazardous waste under
Subtitle C of RCRA and requested comments on tiifgerent alternatives. The hazardous waste pralpesuld phase out the use of ash
ponds for disposal of CCRs. The other two proposalsld regulate CCRs as non-hazardous waste anasinperformance standards for ash
disposal. One of these proposals would requirefiting or closure of currently unlined ash pondsile the other proposal would not require
the installation of liners or pond closures. ER¥S Inot yet indicated a preference for any of ther@dtives.

In April 2012, a coalition of environmental groufiled suit to compel EPA to finalize its propose@R rule. Soon thereafter, coal
recyclers filed similar lawsuits against EPA, whighre consolidated with the environmental grodaa/suits. On January 29, 2014, the pal
in the CCR
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deadline litigation filed a consent decree with tbert obligating EPA to make a final decision bgd@mber 2014 whether or not to adopt the
Subtitle D option for CCR. The consent decree dmtdoreclose EPA from adopting the Subtitle Gamt We cannot currently predict the
timing or content of EP/A final rule or whether this action will have a eré&l adverse impact on our financial positionutessof operations, «
cash flows.

Effluent Limitation Guidelines. On April 19, 2013, EPA proposed revised efflu@nitation guidelines establishing technology-
based wastewater discharge limitations for fogssidfelectric generating units. EPA’s proposaécffnumerous options (four of which are
“preferred alternatives’that target metals and other pollutants in wastemgiteams originating from fly ash and bottom faahdling activities
scrubber activities, and non-chemical metal cleamiastes operations. The preferred alternativiéardiith respect to the scope of
requirements that would be applicable to existiisgliarges of pollutants found in wastestreams geéeemrat existing power plants. All four
alternatives would establish a “zero dischargeuefit limit for all pollutants in fly ash transpasiater. However, requirements governing
bottom ash transport water differ depending on tviaiternative EPA ultimately chooses and could eaingm effluent limits based on Best
Available Technology Economically Achievable to faalischarge” effluent limits. Depending on whalkernative EPA finalizes, Four
Corners may be required to change equipment aniipeg practices affecting boilers and ash handdiygfems, as well as change its waste
disposal techniques. We cannot currently pretietshape of EPA’s final rule or whether this actioh have a material adverse impact on our
financial position, results of operations, or celvs. EPA is currently subject to a consent deaeadline to finalize the revised guidelines b
May 2014, although it is in negotiations to obtamextension of time.

Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standarddn March 2008, EPA adopted new, more stringentteigiur ozone standards, kno
as national ambient air quality standards (“NAAQSH) January 2010, EPA proposed to adopt even stargent eight-hour ozone NAAQS.
However, the following year, President Obama dettdewithdraw EPA’s revised ozone standards uwtihpletion of the next review. EPA
had a March 2013 deadline to complete its reviethef2008 ozone NAAQS, but failed to meet it. Altigh EPA has not announced a time
for its review, it may release new proposed stasfglar the second half of 2014. As ozone standaedeme more stringent, our fossil
generation units may come under increasing pressusgluce emissions of nitrogen oxides and velatiibanic compounds and/or to generate
emission offsets for new projects or facility expi@ms located in 0zone nonattainment areas. Attitme, APS is unable to predict the timing
of the final standards or what impact the adoptibthese standards may have on its financial mositiesults of operations, or cash flows.

New Source Review On April 6, 2009, APS received a request from EP#8ar Section 114 of the Clean Air Act seeking dethi
information regarding projects at and operationBair Corners. This request is part of an enfosr@rnitiative that EPA has undertaken
under the Clean Air Act. EPA has taken the pasititat many utilities have made certain physicalmerational changes at their plants that
should have triggered additional regulatory requigats under the NSR provisions of the Clean Air. A@ther electric utilities have received
and responded to similar Section 114 requestsseweral of them have been the subject of noticefotdtion and lawsuits by EPA. APS
responded to EPA’s request in August 2009 andriently unable to predict any resulting actions A may take, including any potential
litigation.

Clean Air Act Citizen Lawsuit On October 4, 2011, Earthjustice, on behalf @Es& environmental non-governmental
organizations, filed a lawsuit in the United Stdbastrict Court for the District of New
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Mexico against APS and the other Four Cornersqpatnts alleging violations of the NSR provisiorishe Clean Air Act. Subsequent to
filing its original complaint, on January 6, 20EArthjustice filed an amended complaint addingwsafior violations of the Clean Air Act's
NSPS program. Among other things, the environngidntiffs seek to have the court enjoin openasiat Four Corners until APS applies
and obtains any required NSR permits and compligsttve NSPS. The plaintiffs further request tbart to order the payment of civil
penalties, including a beneficial mitigation praje©n April 2, 2012, APS and the other Four Cosrarticipants filed motions to dismiss. ~
case is being held in abeyance while the partiels genegotiate a settlement. On March 30, 20@8nyoint motion of the parties, the court
issued an order deeming the motions to dismissiwathin without prejudice during pendency of the stAy such time as the stay is lifted, A
and the other Four Corners participants may rei@skeeir motions to dismiss. We are unable tordgtee a range of potential losses that are
reasonably possible of occurring.

Superfund-Related MattersThe Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act (“Superfund”) establishes
liability for the cleanup of hazardous substancemél contaminating the soil, water or air. Tho$®wyenerated, transported or disposed of
hazardous substances at a contaminated site argyghase who are potentially responsible partieR@s”). PRPs may be strictly, and often
are jointly and severally, liable for clean-up. September 3, 2003, EPA advised APS that EPA cersi#iPS to be a PRP in the Motorola 52
nd Street Superfund Site, Operable Unit 3 (“OU3"Pimoenix, Arizona. APS has facilities that are waitihis Superfund site. APS and
Pinnacle West have agreed with EPA to perform teitwestigative activities of the APS facilitiesthin OU3. In addition, on September 23,
2009, APS agreed with EPA and one other PRP tawalily assist with the funding and managemenhefdite-wide groundwater remedial
investigation and feasibility study work plan. Wstimate that our costs related to this investigatind study will be approximately $2
million. We anticipate incurring additional expétades in the future, but because the overall itigation is not complete and ultimate
remediation requirements are not yet finalizedhatpresent time expenditures related to this mattenot be reasonably estimated.

On August 6, 2013, the Roosevelt Irrigation Digt(fRID") filed a lawsuit in Arizona District Couragainst APS and 24 other
defendants, alleging that RID’s groundwater welisevcontaminated by the release of hazardous swestérom facilities owned or operated
by the defendants. The lawsuit also alleges thrater Superfund laws, the defendants are jointtiysmverally liable to RID. The allegations
against APS arise out of APS’s current and fornvemership of facilities in and around OU3. We anabie to determine a range of potential
losses that are reasonably possible of occurring.

Manufactured Gas Plant Sites.Certain properties which APS now owns or whiclieygreviously owned by it or its corporate
predecessors were at one time sites of, or sitexi@ded with, manufactured gas plants. APS isgp&ction to voluntarily remediate these
sites. APS does not expect these matters to hematexial adverse effect on its financial positimsults of operations or cash flows.
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Navajo Nation Environmental Issues

Four Corners and the Navajo Plant are located ®iN#vajo Reservation and are held under easememtted by the federal
government, as well as leases from the Navajo Nattee “Energy Sources and Resource Planning —er@iwon Facilities — Coal-Fueled
Generating Facilities” above for additional infortioa regarding these plants.

In July 1995, the Navajo Nation enacted the Nagton Air Pollution Prevention and Control ActetNavajo Nation Safe Drinking
Water Act, and the Navajo Nation Pesticide Actlgalvely, the “Navajo Acts”). The Navajo Acts jpart to give the Navajo Nation
Environmental Protection Agency authority to progaie regulations covering air quality, drinking @ratand pesticide activities, including
those activities that occur at Four Corners and\iéreajo Plant. On October 17, 1995, the Four Qarparticipants and the Navajo Plant
participants each filed a lawsuit in the DistriciuCt of the Navajo Nation, Window Rock District,atlenging the applicability of the Navajo
Acts as to Four Corners and the Navajo Plant. Odwrt has stayed these proceedings pursuant tuaseby the parties, and the parties are
seeking to negotiate a settlement.

In April 2000, the Navajo Nation Council approvaukoating permit regulations under the Navajo NafiarPollution Prevention and
Control Act. APS believes the Navajo Nation exeekits authority when it adopted the operating pieragulations. On July 12, 2000, the
Four Corners participants and the Navajo Planigipaints each filed a petition with the Navajo Sarpe Court for review of these regulations.
Those proceedings have been stayed, pending tlensmtt negotiations mentioned above. APS canmoéntly predict the outcome of this
matter.

On May 18, 2005, APS, Salt River Project, as therating agent for the Navajo Plant, and the NaXgtion executed a Voluntary
Compliance Agreement to resolve their disputesroigg the Navajo Nation Air Pollution Preventionda@ontrol Act. As a result of this
agreement, APS sought, and the courts grantedjs$iahof the pending litigation in the Navajo NatiSupreme Court and the Navajo Nation
District Court, to the extent the claims relatette Clean Air Act. The agreement does not addresssolve any dispute relating to other
Navajo Acts. APS cannot currently predict the oate of this mattel

Water Supply

Assured supplies of water are important for AP®sagating plants. At the present time, APS haguate water to meet its needs.
However, the Four Corners region, in which Fourr@os is located, has been experiencing droughtitonsl that may affect the water supply
for the plants if adequate moisture is not receinettie watershed that supplies the area. APS8riruing to work with area stakeholders to
implement agreements to minimize the effect, if,ayfuture operations of the plant. The effecthef drought cannot be fully assessed at thi:
time, and APS cannot predict the ultimate outcafremy, of the drought or whether the drought \ailversely affect the amount of power
available, or the price thereof, from Four Corners.

Conflicting claims to limited amounts of water letsouthwestern United States have resulted in raus@ourt actions, which, in
addition to future supply conditions, have the pttd to impact APS’s operations.

San Juan River Adjudication.Both groundwater and surface water in areas impbtteAPS’s operations have been the subject of
inquiries, claims, and legal proceedings, whicH wijuire
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a number of years to resolve. APS is one of a murabparties in a proceeding, filed March 13, 19%&ore the Eleventh Judicial District
Court in New Mexico to adjudicate rights to a stnesystem from which water for Four Corners is dailiv An agreement reached with the
Navajo Nation in 1985, however, provides that iiIF€orners loses a portion of its rights in thauddjation, the Navajo Nation will provid

for an agreed upon cost, sufficient water fronaltscation to offset the loss. In addition, APQiparty to a water contract that allows the
company to secure water for Four Corners in theteoka water shortage and is a party to a shoghgeng agreement, which provides for the
apportionment of water supplies to Four Cornetthéevent of a water shortage in the San Juan Biasin.

Gila River Adjudication. A summons served on APS in early 1986 requiredialér claimants in the Lower Gila River Watershed i
Arizona to assert any claims to water on or befiareuary 20, 1987, in an action pending in Arizonpe®ior Court. Palo Verde is located
within the geographic area subject to the summa@S’s rights and the rights of the other Palo \égpdrticipants to the use of groundwater
and effluent at Palo Verde are potentially at issuhis action. As operating agent of Palo Verdles filed claims that dispute the court’s
jurisdiction over the Palo Verde participe’ groundwater rights and their contractual riglit®ffluent relating to Palo Verde. Alternatively,
APS seeks confirmation of such rights. Severa#ll®§'s other power plants are also located withengbographic area subject to the
summons. APS’s claims dispute the court’s jurisoiicover APS’s groundwater rights with respectitese plants. Alternatively, APS seeks
confirmation of such rights. In November 1999, #&rezona Supreme Court issued a decision confirntiivag certain groundwater rights may
available to the federal government and Indiaresibin addition, in September 2000, the Arizonpr&me Court issued a decision affirming
the lower court’s criteria for resolving groundwatéaims. Litigation on both of these issues hastioued in the trial court. In
December 2005, APS and other parties filed a patitiith the Arizona Supreme Court requesting iotrtory review of a September 2005
trial court order regarding procedures for deteingjrwhether groundwater pumping is affecting swefa@ter rights. The Arizona Supreme
Court denied the petition in May 2007, and thd t@urt is now proceeding with implementation af 2005 order. No trial date concerning
APS’s water rights claims has been set in thisenatt

Little Colorado River Adjudication. APS has filed claims to water in the Little Ca@ldo River Watershed in Arizona in an action
pending in the Apache County, Arizona, Superior i§omhich was originally filed on September 5, 198%PS’s groundwater resource utilized
at Cholla is within the geographic area subje¢htadjudication and, therefore, is potentialljsatie in the case. APS'’s claims dispute the
court’s jurisdiction over its groundwater rightalternatively, APS seeks confirmation of such righOther claims have been identified as
ready for litigation in motions filed with the cdurNo trial date concerning APS’s water rightsros has been set in this matter.

Although the above matters remain subject to furévaluation, APS does not expect that the desttiibgation will have a material
adverse impact on its financial position, resufteferations, or cash flows.

BUSINESS OF OTHER SUBSIDIARIES
Our other operating subsidiary, El Dorado, is nqtexted to contribute in any material way to ouufa financial performance, nor
will it require any material amounts of capital otlee next three years. We continue to focus arcote utility business and streamlining the
Company.
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El Dorado

El Dorado owns minority interests in several enagjated investments and Arizona community-basedwes. El Dorado’s short-
term goal is to prudently realize the value ofitssting investments. As of December 31, 201 @iado had total assets of $15 million.

SunCor

In February 2012, our other first-tier subsidig@ynCor, filed for protection under the United SéaBankruptcy Code to complete an
orderly liquidation of its business. On March 2813, the bankruptcy plan submitted to the coudtagreed to by SunCor and its creditors
“Joint Plan”) became effective. The Joint Planvistes for the full release of Pinnacle West andaiffgiates from any and all claims related to
SunCor, SunCor’s subsidiaries, and their respeetitates. SunCor and its subsidiaries are inrheeps of being formally dissolved.

OTHER INFORMATION

Pinnacle West, APS and El Dorado are all incorgatat the State of Arizona. Additional informatifor each of these companies is
provided below:

Approximate
Number of
Principal Executive Office Year of Employees at
Address Incorporation December 31, 201
Pinnacle West 400 North Fifth Street 1985 81
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
APS 400 North Fifth Street 1920 6,35-
P.O. Box 53999
Phoenix, AZ 8507-3999
El Dorado 400 North Fifth Street 1983 —
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
Total 6,43:

The APS number includes employees at jointly-owgederating facilities (approximately 2,865 empla)der which APS serves as
the generating facility manager. Approximatelydl;, APS employees are union employees. APS enitetied threeyear collective bargainir
agreement with union employees in the fossil gai@raenergy delivery and customer service busiaesas that expires in April 2014. The
Company is currently engaged in discussions wifbrurepresentatives to enter into an extensioh@turrent agreement. In January 2013,
the Palo Verde security officers voted to changir ttollective bargaining representative from tlee8ity, Police and Fire Professionals of
America to the United Security Professionals of Aicee(“USPA”), and the National Labor Relations Board certifiegl thsults. The Compa
is currently engaged in negotiations with the USRAr the terms of a new collective bargaining agesst.
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WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION

We use our websitewyww.pinnaclewest.conas a channel of distribution for material Comparfgimation. The following filings are
available free of charge on our website as soagrasonably practicable after they are electroniddéid with, or furnished to, the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”): Annual Report$orm 10K, definitive proxy statements for our annual shatder meetings, Quartel
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8Kall amendments to those reports. Our boarccaminittee charters, Code of Ethics
for Financial Executives, Code of Ethics and BusinBractices and other corporate governance infanmia also available on the Pinnacle
West website. Pinnacle West will post any amendaenthe Code of Ethics for Financial Executived &ode of Ethics and Business
Practices, and any waivers that are required didmosed by the rules of either the SEC or the Nevk Stock Exchange, on its website. The
information on Pinnacle West's website is not ipmrated by reference into this report.

You can request a copy of these documents, exgjugkhibits, by contacting Pinnacle West at theofelhg address: Pinnacle West
Capital Corporation, Office of the Corporate SeangtMail Station 8602, P.O. Box 53999, Phoenixzéna 85072-3999 (telephone 602-250-
4400).
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
In addition to the factors affecting specific buesa operations identified in the description obtheperations contained elsewhere in
this report, set forth below are risks and uncatigs that could affect our financial results. &Bd otherwise indicated or the context otherwise
requires, the following risks and uncertaintieslgpp Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries, includiiRSS.

REGULATORY RISKS

Our financial condition depends upon APS’s abilitp recover costs in a timely manner from custom#rsough regulated rates and
otherwise execute its business strategy.

APS is subject to comprehensive regulation by sd\federal, state and local regulatory agenciesdigaificantly influence its
business, liquidity, results of operations andligity to fully recover costs from utility customgein a timely manner. The ACC regulates
APS'’s retail electric rates and FERC regulatessridewholesale power sales and transmission svi¢ he profitability of APS is affected by
the rates it may charge and the timeliness of retog costs incurred through its rates. Consedyemir financial condition and results of
operations are dependent upon the satisfactorjutesoof any APS rate proceedings and ancillarytera which may come before the ACC
and FERC. Arizona, like certain other states,&hatatute that allows the ACC to reopen prior dessand modify final orders under certain
circumstances. The ACC must also approve ARS&uance of securities and any transfer of ABBeauty used to provide retail electric serv
and must approve or receive prior notification eftain transactions between us, APS and our raspeaftiliates. Decisions made by the At
or FERC could have a material adverse impact orfioancial condition, results of operations or céskws.
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AP€S's ability to conduct its business operations andoéd fines and penalties depends upon compliancthviéderal, state or local statutes,
regulations and ACC requirements, and obtaining anthintaining certain regulatory permits, approvasnd certificates.

APS must comply in good faith with all applicabtatstes, regulations, rules, tariffs, and orderag#ncies that regulate APS’s
business, including FERC, NRC, EPA, the ACC antesiad local governmental agencies. These ageragette many aspects of APS’s
utility operations, including safety and performanemissions, siting and construction of facilitiesstomer service and the rates that APS ca
charge retail and wholesale customers. Failuoetoply can subject APS to, among other things sfamed penalties. For example, under the
Energy Policy Act of 2005, FERC can impose penslfigo to one million dollars per day per violatido) failure to comply with mandatory
electric reliability standards. APS is also reqdito have numerous permits, approvals and cetiéficfrom these agencies. APS believes the
necessary permits, approvals and certificates haga obtained for its existing operations and ARf$’s business is conducted in accordance
with applicable laws in all material respects. Hwer, changes in regulations or the impositioneaf or revised laws or regulations could h
an adverse impact on our results of operations.aWelso unable to predict the impact on our lassirand operating results from pending or
future regulatory activities of any of these agenci

The operation of APS’s nuclear power plant expose® substantial regulatory oversight and potentiasignificant liabilities and capital
expenditures.

The NRC has broad authority under federal law tpdse safety-related, security-related and othen$img requirements for the
operation of nuclear generation facilities. Eveattauclear facilities of other operators or impagthe industry generally may lead the NRC tc
impose additional requirements and regulationsliomglear generation facilities, including Palorde. As a result of the March 2011
earthquake and tsunamis that caused significanadano the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Pladgipan, various industry organizations
are working to analyze information from the Japasident and develop action plans for U.S. nucleavgr plants. Additionally, the NRC has
been performing its own independent review of thengs at Fukushima Daiichi, including a review lod igency’s processes and regulations i
order to determine whether the agency should prgateladditional regulations and possibly make mumdamental changes to the NRC's
system of regulation. We cannot predict when ¢néfNRC will complete its formal actions as a testiits review. As a result of the
Fukushima event, however, the NRC has directedeauglower plants to implement the first tier recaandations of the NRC’s Near Term
Task Force. In response to these recommendafahs,Verde expects to spend approximately $100amifbr capital enhancements to the
plant over the next several years (APS’s shar8.it%2). We cannot predict whether these amountsneilease or whether additional financial
and/or operational requirements on Palo Verde a8 Aay be imposed.

In the event of noncompliance with its requiremetits NRC has the authority to impose a progrelsimereased inspection regime
that could ultimately result in the shut-down afrat or civil penalties, or both, depending upoa MRC’s assessment of the severity of the
situation, until compliance is achieved. The imsed costs resulting from penalties, a heightemesl bf scrutiny and implementation of plans
to achieve compliance with NRC requirements mayeesbly affect APS’s financial condition, resultsopferations and cash flows.
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APS is subject to numerous environmental laws ardjulations, and changes in, or liabilities underxisting or new laws or regulations m;
increase APS’s cost of operations or impact its imess plans.

APS is, or may become, subject to numerous envieotah laws and regulations affecting many aspefdits present and future
operations, including air emissions, water qualiigcharges of wastewater and streams originatorg fly ash and bottom ash handling
facilities, solid waste, hazardous waste, and coaibustion products, which consist of bottom alshash, and air pollution control wastes.
These laws and regulations can result in increaapial, operating, and other costs, particularihwegard to enforcement efforts focused on
power plant emissions obligations. These lawsragdlations generally require APS to obtain and gigrwith a wide variety of environmen
licenses, permits, and other approvals. If theredelay or failure to obtain any required envinental regulatory approval, or if APS fails to
obtain, maintain, or comply with any such approeglerations at affected facilities could be suspdnat subject to additional expenses. In
addition, failure to comply with applicable envirnantal laws and regulations could result in cigbllity as a result of government
enforcement actions or private claims or crimirahalties. Both public officials and private indiuals may seek to enforce applicable
environmental laws and regulations. APS canndiptéhe outcome (financial or operational) of aslated litigation that may arise.

Environmental Clean UpAPS has been named as a PRP for a Superfund $tteenix, Arizona, and it could be named a PRRén t
future for other environmental clean-up at sitesiified by a regulatory body. APS cannot prediith certainty the amount and timing of all
future expenditures related to environmental matieicause of the difficulty of estimating cleaneagts. There is also uncertainty in
guantifying liabilities under environmental lawsthmpose joint and several liability on all PRPs.

Regional Haze. APS has received final rulemakings imposing neguirements on Four Corners and Cholla and is atlyrawaiting
a final rulemaking from EPA that could impose n@guirements on the Navajo Plant. EPA and ADEQ mijuire these plants to install
pollution control equipment that constitutes BARITIéssen the impacts of emissions on visibilityesunding the plants. The financial impact
of installing and operating the required pollutmntrol equipment could jeopardize the economibilityt of these plants or the ability of
individual participants to continue their partidijpa in these plants.

Mercury and other Hazardous Air Pollutant&PA issued MATS to regulate emissions of mercuy @her hazardous air pollutants
from fossil-fired power plants. The MATS will reige APS to install additional pollution control egment at Cholla and possibly the Navajo
Plant. The financial impact of installing and agtérg such equipment could jeopardize the econemalulity of Cholla.

Coal Ash.EPA released proposed regulations governing thpoda of CCRs, which are generated as a resulimfiig coal and
consist of, among other things, fly ash and botésim. EPA proposed regulating CCRs as either neartaus or hazardous waste. APS
currently disposes of CCRs in ash ponds and dragéoareas at Four Corners and Cholla, and alsoesportion of its fly ash for beneficial
reuse as a constituent in concrete products. A EEgulates CCRs as a hazardous solid waste oepltag APS’s ability to dispose of CCRs
through the use of ash ponds, APS could incur fsagmit costs for CCR disposal and may be unabtmidinue its sale of fly ash for beneficial
reuse.
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Effluent Limitation Guidelines.EPA is expected to finalize revised effluent tmtion guidelines establishing technology-based
wastewater discharge limitations for fossil-firddatric generating units in 2014. EPA has indidateat it expects the revised standards to
target metals and other pollutants in wastewateasts originating from fly ash and bottom ash hiagdhctivities and scrubber-related
operations. APS currently disposes of fly ash eastd bottom ash in ash ponds at Four Cornersndgelsaequired by the rule could
significantly increase ash disposal costs at Farnérs.

New Source ReviewEPA has taken the position that many projects mtegtilities have performed are major modificasahat
trigger New Source Review requirements under tleaCAir Act. The utilities generally have takee fhosition that these projects are routine
maintenance, repair and replacement and did noltiessmissions increases, and thus are not sutgjd¢ew Source Review. In 2009, APS
received and responded to a request from EPA regpptlojects and operations at Four Corners. S¢eswvironmental non-governmental
organizations filed suit against the Four Cornerdigipants for alleged violations of New Sourcevieev and the NSPS programs of the Clean
Air Act. If EPA seeks to impose New Source Revieguirements at Four Corners or any other APS ptarif the citizens groups prevail in
their Clean Air Act lawsuit, capital investmentautsbbe required to install new pollution contrath@ologies. EPA could also seek civil
penalties.

APS cannot assure that existing environmental egiguis will not be revised or that new regulatisesking to protect the
environment will not be adopted or become applieablit. Revised or additional regulations thatutein increased compliance costs or
additional operating restrictions, particularlyhibse costs incurred by APS are not fully recoverfdlom APS’s customers, could have a
material adverse effect on its financial conditimsults of operations or cash flows. Due to curog potential future regulations or legislati
the economics of continuing to own certain resagyrparticularly coal facilities, may deteriorategnanting early retirement of those plants,
which may result in asset impairments. APS woekksecovery in rates for the book value of anyai@ing investments in the plants as well
as other costs related to early retirement, butaBpredict whether it would obtain such recovery.

APS faces physical and operational risks relatecctimate change, and potential financial risks relsimg from climate change litigation anc
legislative and regulatory efforts to limit GHG essions.

Concern over climate change, deemed by many tacheced by rising levels of GHG in the atmospheas, led to significant
legislative and regulatory efforts to limit GO , ih is a major byproduct of the combustion of fbgl, and other GHG emissions.

Financial Risks — Potential Greenhouse Gas ReguiatiEPA is taking action to regulate domestic GHGssions and is expected
issue proposed regulations in mid-2014. Any litiotas on CO, and other GHG emissions resulting ftois regulatory effort could require
substantial additional capital expenditures andatpey costs and could have a material adversedtrgraall fossil-fuel-fired generation
facilities (particularly coal-fired facilities, wbh constitute approximately 30% of APS’s owned kaded generation capacity).

At the state level, the California legislature erddegislation to address GHG emissions and thiéo@aa Air Resources Board
approved regulations that established a cap-an@-fpeogram for
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GHGs. This legislation, regulations and otherestatecific initiatives may affect APS’s businesgluding sales into the impacted states.

Physical and Operational RisksWeather extremes such as drought and high tetupenaariations are common occurrences in the
Southwest desert area, and these are risks that APS comgidine normal course of business in the engingemd construction of its elect
system. Large increases in ambient temperatundd cequire evaluation of certain materials usethiviits system and represent a greater
challenge.

Deregulation or restructuring of the electric indtiy may result in increased competition, which couhave a significant adverse impact «
APS's business and its results of operations.

In 1999, the ACC approved rules for the introductid retail electric competition in Arizona. Rétabmpetition could have a
significant adverse financial impact on APS duariampairment of assets, a loss of retail custoph@nger profit margins or increased costs of
capital. Although some very limited retail compieti existed in APS’s service area in 1999 and 28@e are currently no active retail
competitors offering unbundled energy or otheiitytdervices to APS’s customers. On May 9, 20k8,ACC voted to re-examine the
facilitation of a deregulated retail electric markeArizona. The ACC subsequently opened a doftkethis matter and received comments
from a number of interested parties on the conata®rs involved in establishing retail electric ggulation in the state. One of these
considerations is whether various aspects of agdéated market, including setting utility ratesatmarket” basis, would be consistent with
the requirements of the Arizona Constitution. @pt&mber 11, 2013, after receiving legal advicenftbe ACC staff, the ACC voted 4-1 to
close the current docket and await full Arizona &dutional authority before any further examinatmf this matter. The motion approved by
the ACC also included opening one or more new disakethe future to explore options to offer moméerchoices to customers and innovative
changes within the existing cost-of-service regulamodel that could include elements of competiti©ne of these options could be a
continuation or expansion of APS’s existing AG gkliative Generation) — 1 program, which essentallyws up to 200 MW of cumulative
load to be served via a buy-through arrangemeffit @dmpetitive suppliers of generation. We canmetljzt future regulatory or legislative
action that might result in increased competition.

In 2010, the ACC issued a decision holding thaarseéndors that install and operate solar facdlif@ non-profit schools and
governments pursuant to a specific type of conttaatt calculates payments based on the energy geddare not “public service corporations”
under the Arizona Constitution, and are therefareragulated by the ACC. A second matter is pemehith the ACC to determine whether
that ruling should extend to solar providers whowse broader customer base under the same busieted. The use of such products by
customers within our territory would result in solaeel of competition. APS cannot predict whettiher ACC will deem these vendors “public
service corporations” subject to ACC regulation argén, and the extent to which, additional serpiceviders will enter APS’s service
territory, increasing the level of competition iretmarket.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

APS's results of operations can be adversely affedbgdvarious factors impacting demand for electricity

Weather Conditions.Weather conditions directly influence the deméorckelectricity and affect the price of energy cootities.
Electric power demand is generally a seasonal basinin
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Arizona, demand for power peaks during the hot senmonths, with market prices also peaking attinz. As a result, APS’s overall
operating results fluctuate substantially on aealsbasis. In addition, APS has historically deks power, and consequently earned less
income, when weather conditions are milder. Assalt, unusually mild weather could diminish AB8hancial condition, results of operatic
and cash flows.

Higher temperatures may decrease the snowpackhwatiight result in lowered soil moisture and an éased threat of forest fires.
Forest fires could threaten APS’s communities dadtec transmission lines and facilities. Any dage caused as a result of forest fires coulc
negatively impact APS’s financial condition, resulf operations or cash flows.

Effects of Energy Conservation Measures and Distedd Energy. The ACC has enacted rules regarding energy effogi that
mandate a 22% annual energy savings requireme2®2y. This will likely increase participation byPS customers in energy efficiency and
conservation programs and other demaiaid management efforts, which in turn will impthet demand for electricity. The rules also incla
requirement for the ACC to review and address firerdisincentives, recovery of fixed costs andréeovery of net lost income/revenue that
would result from lower sales due to increasedgnefficiency requirements. To that end, the setdnt agreement in ARSInost recent ret:
rate case (the “2012 Settlement Agreement”) indumlenechanism, the LFCR, to address these matters.

APS must also meet certain distributed energy reqents. A portion of APS’s total renewable eneaguirement must be met with
an increasing percentage of distributed energyuress (generally, small scale renewable technaddgieated on customers’ properties). The
distributed energy requirement was 25% of the dvBS requirement of 3% in 2011 and increasedd ®f the applicable RES requirement
for 2012 and subsequent years. Customer participat distributed energy programs would resuliower demand, since customers would be
meeting some or all of their own energy needs. uRed demand due to these energy efficiency andudistd energy requirements, unless
substantially offset through ratemaking mechanisios|d have a material adverse impact on APS’sfirs condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

Customer and Sales GrowtFRor the three years 2011 through 2013, APS'’s retetomer growth averaged 1.0% per year. We
currently expect annual customer growth to aveedgmut 2.5% for 2014 through 2016 based on our sissar® of modestly improving
economic conditions, both nationally and in Arizorior the three years 2011 through 2013, APS éxpesd annual increases in retail
electricity sales averaging 0.1%, adjusted to alelihe effects of weather variations. We curreasiymate that annual retail electricity sale
kwWh will increase on average by about 1% duringd2itough 2016, including the effects of custormmrservation and energy efficiency and
distributed renewable generation initiatives, budleding the effects of weather variations. Actoastomer and sales growth may differ from
our projections as a result of numerous factorsh s1$ economic conditions, customer growth andeupatferns, and the effects of energy
efficiency and distributed energy programs and irequents. Additionally, recovery of a substangiattion of our fixed costs of providing
service is based upon the volumetric amount ofsaless. If our customer growth rate does not caetio improve as projected, or if it
declines, or if the Arizona economy fails to impepwe may be unable to reach our estimated deneetidnd sales projections, which could
have a negative impact on our financial conditi@sults of operations and cash flows.
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The operation of power generation facilities andatrsmission systems involves risks that could resuiteduced output or unscheduled
outages, which could materially affect APS’s resuiltf operations

The operation of power generation, transmissiondisitlibution facilities involves certain risksciading the risk of breakdown or
failure of equipment, fuel interruption, and perfance below expected levels of output or efficiendpnscheduled outages, including
extensions of scheduled outages due to mechanitales or other complications, occur from timeitoe and are an inherent risk of APS’s
business. Because our transmission facilitiesraeeconnected with those of third parties, therapen of our facilities could be adversely
affected by unexpected or uncontrollable eventsiwow on the larger transmission power grid, dreldperation or failure of our facilities
could adversely affect the operations of othefAPIS’s facilities operate below expectations, esdey during its peak seasons, it may lose
revenue or incur additional expenses, includingaased purchased power expenses. Concerns ow@calsecurity of these assets is also
increasing, which may require us to incur additlarzgital and operating costs to address. Damagertain of our facilities due to vandalism
or other deliberate acts could lead to outagestmradverse effects.

The inability to successfully develop or acquirenggation resources to meet reliability requirementew or evolving standards or
regulations could adversely impact our business.

Potential changes in regulatory standards, impzEfatew and existing laws and regulations, includéngironmental laws and
regulations, and the need to obtain certain regojapprovals create uncertainty surrounding omegation portfolio. The current abundance
of low, stably priced natural gas, together withismnmental and other concerns surrounding coalifjeneration resources, create strategic
guestions related to the appropriate generatiotighorand fuel diversification mix. In additio®PS is required by the ACC to meet certain
energy resource portfolio requirements such ag#f@ and the RES. The development of any generttality is subject to many risks,
including risks related to financing, siting, pettinig, technology, the construction of sufficierdrtsmission capacity to support these facilities
and stresses to generation and transmission resoficon intermittent generation characteristiceeoewable resources. APS’s inability to
adequately develop or acquire the necessary g@nmerasources could have a material adverse imgraour business and results of operati

The lack of access to sufficient supplies of wateuld have a material adverse impact on APS'’s besis and results of operations.

Assured supplies of water are important for AP®sagating plants. Water in the southwestern Uriitiades is limited, and various
parties have made conflicting claims regardingritylet to access and use such limited supply of waB®th groundwater and surface water in
areas important to APS’s generating plants hava bad are the subject of inquiries, claims andllpgaceedings. In addition, the region in
which APS’s power plants are located is prone taudht conditions, which could potentially affecétplants’ water supplies. APS’s inability
to access sufficient supplies of water could haweagerial adverse impact on our business and sestiliperations.
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The ownership and operation of power generation amansmission facilities on Indian lands could refiun uncertainty related to
continued leases, easements and rights-of-way, Witiculd have a significant impact on our business.

Certain APS power plants, including Four Cornensl portions of the transmission lines that carrw@ofrom these plants are located
on Indian lands pursuant to leases, easementser ights-of-way that are effective for specifigatiods. APS is currently unable to predict
the final outcome of pending and future approvalsipplicable governing bodies with respect to reslswf these leases, easements and righi
of-way.

There are inherent risks in the ownership and opéoa of nuclear facilities, such as environmentdigalth, fuel supply, spent fuel disposal,
regulatory and financial risks and the risk of teorist attack.

APS has an ownership interest in and operatesebalbof a group of participants, Palo Verde, whithe largest nuclear electric
generating facility in the United States. Palodéeconstitutes approximately 18% of our owned a@adéd generation capacity. Palo Verde is
subject to environmental, health and financialgjguch as the ability to obtain adequate suppfiesiclear fuel; the ability to dispose of spent
nuclear fuel; the ability to maintain adequate resg for decommissioning; potential liabilitiesshng out of the operation of these facilities;
costs of securing the facilities against possibleotist attacks; and unscheduled outages dueuipragnt and other problems. APS maintains
nuclear decommissioning trust funds and exterraalrénce coverage to minimize its financial exposoreme of these risks; however, it is
possible that damages could exceed the amounsafance coverage. In addition, APS may be requinektr federal law to pay up to $111
million (but not more than $16.4 million per yeaf)liabilities arising out of a nuclear incidentaoering not only at Palo Verde, but at any o
nuclear power plant in the United States. Althoughhave no reason to anticipate a serious nuaieatent at Palo Verde, if an incident did
occur, it could materially and adversely affect cesults of operations and financial conditionmajor incident at a nuclear facility anywhere
in the world could cause the NRC to limit or prdhthe operation or licensing of any domestic naclenit and to promulgate new regulations
that could require significant capital expendituaesl/or increase operating costs.

The use of derivative contracts in the normal coarsf our business could result in financial loss#st negatively impact our results of
operations.

APS'’s operations include managing market risksedléo commodity prices. APS is exposed to theaichpf market fluctuations in
the price and transportation costs of electrigigtural gas and coal to the extent that unhedgsitignus exist. We have established procedure
to manage risks associated with these market fitictos by utilizing various commodity derivativésgluding exchange traded futures and
options and over-the-counter forwards, options, smaps. As part of our overall risk managemenggam, we enter into derivative
transactions to hedge purchases and sales ofieitlgcand fuels. The changes in market value @hstontracts have a high correlation to price
changes in the hedged commodity. To the extehtthramodity markets are illiquid, we may not beeatdl execute our risk management
strategies, which could result in greater unhedmgsitions than we would prefer at a given time finaincial losses that negatively impact our
results of operations.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumeretiain Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”) contains measures @éhat increasing the
transparency and stability of the over-the courde@TC, derivative markets and preventing excesspeculation. The Dodd-Frank Act could
restrict, among
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other things, trading positions in the energy fetumarkets, require different collateral or setdatrpositions, or increase regulatory reporting
over derivative positions. Based on the provisimetuded in the Dodd-Frank Act and the implemeptatf regulations, these changes could,
among other things, impact our ability to hedge radity price and interest rate risk or increasecitgts associated with our hedging
programs.

We are exposed to losses in the event of honpegioceor nonpayment by counterparties. We us&amasmagement process to
assess and monitor the financial exposure of alhtayparties. Despite the fact that the majorfthBS’s trading counterparties are rated as
investment grade by the rating agencies, thertllia possibility that one or more of these comigarcould default, which could result in a
material adverse impact on our earnings for a gpenod.

Changes in technology could create challenges f&?®s existing business.

Research and development activities are ongoiragdess alternative technologies that produce poweduce power consumption
emissions, including clean coal and coal gasificgtienewable technologies including photovoltawdr) cells, customer-sited generation
(solar), energy storage (batteries), and efficigechnologies, and improvements in traditional tetbgies and equipment, such as more
efficient gas turbines. Advances in these, orothehnologies could reduce the cost of power prodo, making APS’s existing generating
facilities less economical. In addition, advanicetechnology and equipment/appliance efficiencyldaeduce the demand for power supply,
which could adversely affect APS’s business.

APS is pursuing and implementing smart grid tecbgials, including advanced transmission and didiobuwsystem technologies, as
well as digital meters enabling two-way communimasi between the utility and its customers. Manthefproducts and processes resulting
from these and other alternative technologies Ima¥eget been widely used or tested on a long-teagish and their use on largeale systems
not as advanced and established as APS’s exigtitgologies and equipment. Widespread installaiwhacceptance of these technologies
could enable the entry of new market participasush as technology companies, into the interfabgden APS and its customers and could
have other unpredictable effects on APS’s business.

We are subject to employee workforce factors thald adversely affect our business and financialnabtion.

Like most companies in the electric utility indystour workforce is aging, with approximately 38%employees eligible to retire by
2017. Although we have undertaken efforts to réemd train new employees, we face increased cttigpefor talent. We are subject to
other employee workforce factors, such as the abiity of qualified personnel, the need to nedetieollective bargaining agreements with
union employees and potential work stoppages. &besther employee workforce factors could negifiimpact our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

We are subject to information security risks andgkis of unauthorized access to our systems .
In the regular course of our business, we handknge of sensitive security, customer and busisgstems information. We are
subject to laws and rules issued by different agsnmoncerning safeguarding and maintaining théidentiality of this information. A securit

breach of our information systems such as thetti@inappropriate release of certain types of imfation, including
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confidential customer, employee, financial or systgperating information, could have a material as@émpact on our financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

We operate in a highly regulated industry that neguthe continued operation of sophisticated imfation technology systems and
network infrastructure. Despite implementatiorsefurity measures, our technology systems are ralltesto disability, failures or
unauthorized access. Our generation, transmissidrdistribution facilities, information technologystems and other infrastructure facilities
and systems and physical assets could be targstebfunauthorized access. Failures or breachas afystems could impact the reliability of
our generation, transmission and distribution systand also subject us to financial harm. If @ehhology systems were to fail or be
breached and if we are unable to recover in a fimaly, we may not be able to fulfill critical busis functions and sensitive confidential data
could be compromised, which could have a matedaéese impact on our financial condition, resuftsperations or cash flows.

The implementation of security measures could msgecosts and have a material adverse impact dimaacial results. These types of
events could also require significant managemeenton and resources, and could adversely affiactaele West's and APS’s reputation with
customers and the public. We obtained cyber imggr#o provide coverage for a portion of the lossesdamages that may result from a
security breach of our information technology sgstebut such insurance may not cover the totaldossamage caused by a breach.

FINANCIAL RISKS

Financial market disruptions or new financial rulesr regulations may increase our financing costs lamit our access to various financial
markets, which may adversely affect our liquiditpé our ability to implement our financial strategy.

Pinnacle West and APS rely on access to creditetads a significant source of liquidity and thpitzd markets for capital
requirements not satisfied by cash flow from ougragions. We believe that we will maintain suffici access to these financial markets.
However, certain market disruptions or rules owufagions may increase our cost of borrowing geferahd/or otherwise adversely affect our
ability to access these financial markets.

In addition, the credit commitments of our lendensler our bank facilities may not be satisfieddasariety of reasons, including periods
of financial distress or liquidity issues affectiagr lenders, which could materially adversely etffbe adequacy of our liquidity sources.

Changes in economic conditions, monetary policgtber factors could result in higher interest ratgdsich would increase interest
expense on our existing variable rate debt anddeht we expect to issue in the future, and thusaedunds available to us for our current
plans. Additionally, an increase in our leveragald adversely affect us by:

. causing a downgrade of our credit ratings;

. increasing the cost of future debt financing arfthamcing;

. increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid emlustry conditions; and

. requiring us to dedicate an increased portion ofcash flow from operations to payments on our dehtch would reduce

funds available to us for operations, future bussngpportunities or other purposes.
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A downgrade of our credit ratings could materialgnd adversely affect our business, financial condit and results of operation:

Our current ratings are set forth in “Liquidity a@dpital Resources — Credit Ratings” in Item 7. ¥8anot be sure that any of our
current ratings will remain in effect for any givpariod of time or that a rating will not be lowdrer withdrawn entirely by a rating agency fif,
in its judgment, circumstances in the future soraatr Any downgrade or withdrawal could adverssfect the market price of Pinnacle
West's and APS securities, limit our access to capital and iasesour borrowing costs, which would diminish doafcial results. We wou
be required to pay a higher interest rate for fifimancings, and our potential pool of investard &unding sources could decrease. In
addition, borrowing costs under our existing créaiiilities depend on our credit ratings. A dowadg would also require us to provide
additional support in the form of letters of crealitcash or other collateral to various counterpart|f our short-term ratings were to be
lowered, it could severely limit access to the caroral paper market. We note that the ratings fratimg agencies are not recommendations
to buy, sell or hold our securities and that eatimg should be evaluated independently of anyratiteng.

Investment performance, changing interest rates aotther economic factors could decrease the valu@of benefit plan assets and nucle
decommissioning trust funds and increase the valoatof our related obligations, resulting in sigrifant additional funding requirements.
We are subject to risks related to the provisioneofiployee healthcare benefits and recent healthca®rm legislation. Any inability to
fully recover these costs in our utility rates waluhegatively impact our financial conditior

We have significant pension plan and other postnsient benefits plan obligations to our employe®ksratirees and legal obligations
to fund nuclear decommissioning trusts for PalodéerWe hold and invest substantial assets in tinests that are designed to provide func
pay for certain of these obligations as they arBeclines in market values of the fixed income aqdity securities held in these trusts may
increase our funding requirements into the relatests. Additionally, the valuation of liabilitieglated to our pension plan and other
postretirement benefit plans are impacted by eodiscrate, which is the interest rate used to distéuture pension and other postretirement
benefit obligations. Declining interest rates @ase the discount rate, increase the valuatiomegpan liabilities and may result in increases ir
pension and other postretirement benefit cost$, castributions, regulatory assets, and charg€db Changes in demographics, including
increased numbers of retirements or changes ieXfectancy and changes in other actuarial assangptinay also increase the funding
requirements of the obligations related to the jmenand other postretirement benefit plans. Theimmim contributions required under these
plans are impacted by federal legislation. IndrepBabilities or otherwise increasing funding végments under these plans, resulting from
adverse changes in legislation or otherwise, coesdlt in significant cash funding obligations thatild have a material impact on our finan
position, results of operations or cash flows.

We recover most of the pension costs and othergiosment benefit costs and all of the nucleaodauissioning costs in our
regulated rates. Any inability to fully recoveetie costs in a timely manner would have a mateeigative impact on our financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

Employee healthcare costs in recent years havénceatto rise. The Patient Protection and Affotdaare Act is expected to result
in additional healthcare cost increases. Costo#met
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effects of the legislation, which may include thstcof compliance and potentially increased cosfsaviding for medical insurance for our
employees, cannot be determined with certaintiiattime. We will continue to monitor healthcaegiklation and its impact on our plans and
costs.

Our cash flow depends on the performance of APS.

We derive essentially all of our revenues and egsfrom our wholly-owned subsidiary, APS. Accogly, our cash flow and our
ability to pay dividends on our common stock iselegent upon the earnings and cash flows of APStauistributions to us. APS is a
separate and distinct legal entity and has no atitig to make distributions to us.

APS’s financing agreements may restrict its abtiitypay dividends, make distributions or othervirsmsfer funds to us. In addition,
an ACC financing order requires APS to maintaimanmon equity ratio of at least 40% and does notwal\PS to pay common dividends if
the payment would reduce its common equity belaat threshold. The common equity ratio, as defingtie ACC order, is total shareholder
equity divided by the sum of total shareholder ggand long-term debt, including current maturitiédong-term debt.

Pinnacle We¢'s ability to meet its debt service obligations abbk adversely affected because its debt secutiestructurally subordinate
to the debt securities and other obligations of sisbsidiaries.

Because Pinnacle West is structured as a holdimgany, all existing and future debt and other litibs of our subsidiaries will be
effectively senior in right of payment to our deleturities. The assets and cash flows of our diatogs will be available, in the first instance,
to service their own debt and other obligationsir &bility to have the benefit of their cash floysayticularly in the case of any insolvency or
financial distress affecting our subsidiaries, vaoartise only through our equity ownership inter@stsur subsidiaries and only after their
creditors have been satisfied.

The market price of our common stock may be vokatil

The market price of our common stock could be slisignificant fluctuations in response to fastsuch as the following, some of
which are beyond our control:

. variations in our quarterly operating results;

. operating results that vary from the expectatidn®@anagement, securities analysts and investors;

. changes in expectations as to our future finampegiormance, including financial estimates by s#iesranalysts and
investors;

. developments generally affecting industries in \Wwhie operate;

. announcements by us or our competitors of sigmificantracts, acquisitions, joint marketing relagibips, joint ventures or
capital commitments;

. announcements by third parties of significant ckon proceedings against us;

. favorable or adverse regulatory or legislative degwaents;

. our dividend policy;

. future sales by the Company of equity or equitkdith securities; and

. general domestic and international economic caorusti
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In addition, the stock market in general has exgpeed volatility that has often been unrelatedhéodperating performance of a
particular company. These broad market fluctuatimay adversely affect the market price of our comistock.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatioand bylaws and of Arizona law make it difficult fehareholders to change the
composition of our board and may discourage takeoaempts.

These provisions, which could preclude our shaddrslfrom receiving a change of control premiurolude the following:

. restrictions on our ability to engage in a widegaiof “business combination” transactions with emerested
shareholder” (generally, any person who owns 10%are of our outstanding voting power or any of afiiliates or
associates) or any affiliate or associate of agr@sted shareholder, unless specific conditionsate

. anti-greenmail provisions of Arizona law and outdwys that prohibit us from purchasing shares ofwaiing stock from
beneficial owners of more than 5% of our outstagdihares unless specified conditions are satisfied;

. the ability of the Board of Directors to increabe size of the Board of Directors and fill vacasada the Board of Directors,
whether resulting from such increase, or from de@$ignation, disqualification or otherwise; and

. the ability of our Board of Directors to issue ddtdial shares of common stock and shares of pesfestock and to determi
the price and, with respect to preferred stockgother terms, including preferences and votingtsgbf those shares without
shareholder approval.

While these provisions have the effect of encounggiersons seeking to acquire control of us to tiggowith our Board of Directors,
they could enable the Board of Directors to himmefrustrate a transaction that some, or a majooitypur shareholders might believe to be in
their best interests and, in that case, may premediscourage attempts to remove and replace iheatdirectors.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Neither Pinnacle West nor APS has received writttmments regarding its periodic or current repfsas the SEC staff that were
issued 180 days or more preceding the end of it8 #i8cal year and that remain unresolved.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Generation Facilities

APS’s portfolio of owned and leased generatinglitas is provided in the table below:

Principal Primary Owned
No. of % Fuels Dispatch Capacity
Name Units Owned (a) Used Type (MW)
Nuclear:

Palo Verde (b) 3 29.1%  Uranium Base Loac 1,14¢
Total Nuclear 1,14¢
Steam:

Four Corners 4, 5 ( 2 63% Coal Base Loac 97C

Cholla 3 Coal Base Loac 647

Navajo (d) 3 14% Coal Base Loac 31t

Ocaotillo 2 Gas Peaking 22(
Total Steam 2,15:
Combined Cycle

Redhawk 2 Gas Load Following 984

West Phoenix 5 Gas Load Following 887
Total Combined Cycle 1,871
Combustion Turbine:

Ocaotillo 2 Gas Peakinc 11C

Saguaro 1, . 2 Gas/Oil Peaking 11C

Saguaro : 1 Gas Peakinc 79

Douglas 1 Qil Peaking 1€

Sundanct 10 Gas Peaking 42(

West Phoeni: 2 Gas Peaking 11C

Yucca l, 2,: 3 Gas/Oil Peaking 93

Yucca 4 1 Qil Peaking 54

Yucca 5, 6 2 Gas Peakinc 96
Total Combustion Turbine 1,08¢
Solar:

Cotton Cente 1 Solar As Available 17

Hyder 1 Solar As Available 1€

Paloma 1 Solar As Available 17

Chino Valley 1 Solar As Available 19

Hyder Il 1 Solar As Available 14

Foothills 1 Solar As Available 35

APS Owned Distributed Ener Solar As Available 15

Multiple facilities Solar As Available 4
Total Solar 137
Total Capacity 6,394

(a) 100% unless otherwise noted.
(b) See “Business of Arizona Public Service Company rerBy Sources and Resource Planning — Generatidlitiea —

Nuclear” in Item 1 for details regarding leased
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interests in Palo Verde. The other participangésSalt River Project (17.49%), SCE (15.8%), El Rd§08%), Public Service
Company of New Mexico (10.2%), Southern CaliforRigblic Power Authority (5.91%), and Los Angeles Brtment of
Water & Power (5.7%). The plant is operated by APS

(c) The other participants are Salt River Project (1,aRtiplic Service Company of New Mexico (13%), Tut&dbectric Power
Company (7%) and El Paso (7%). The plant is opdray APS. As discussed under “Business of AriZémalic Service
Company — Energy Sources and Resource Planning rer&@tion Facilities — Coal-Fueled Generating Faedi— Four
Corners” in Item 1, in December 2013 APS acquir€iE'S 48% interest in Units 4 and 5, and closed £Jhjt2 and 3.

(d) The other participants are Salt River Project (2d), Nevada Power Company (11.3%), the United Stateeernment
(24.3%), Tucson Electric Power Company (7.5%) aosl Angeles Department of Water & Power (21.2%)e Plant is
operated by Salt River Project.

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Company rvitBnmental Matters” in Item 1 with respect to tees having a possible
impact on the operation of certain of APS’s genegafacilities.

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Companyltém 1 for a map detailing the location of APS’ajar power plants and
principal transmission lines.

Transmission and Distribution Facilities

Current Facilities. APS’s transmission facilities consist of approately 5,908 pole miles of overhead lines and apprately 49
miles of underground lines, 5,685 miles of which lxcated in Arizona. APS’s distribution facilgieonsist of approximately 11,399 miles of
overhead lines and approximately 17,758 miles diesground primary cable, all of which are located\iizona. APS shares ownership of
some of its transmission facilities with other canigs. The following table shows APS’s jointly-ahinterests in those transmission
facilities recorded on the Consolidated Balanceeghat December 31, 2013:

Percent Owned

(Weighted-Average)
Morgan — Pinnacle Peak System 64.5%
Palo Verde— Estrella 500kV Syster 50.(%
Round Valley Syster 50.(%
ANPP 500kV Syster 34.2%
Navajo Southern Syste 22.2%
Four Corners Switchyarc 48.1%
Palo Verde— Yuma 500kV Syster 18.(%
Phoenix— Mead Systen 17.1%
Palo Verde— Morgan Systen 90.(%

Expansion. Each year APS prepares and files with the ACéhaykear transmission plan. In APS’s 2014 plan, ARSects it will
develop 275 miles of new lines over the next tesrye One significant project currently under depetent is a new 500kV path that will span
from the Palo Verde hub around the western anchaortedges of the Phoenix metropolitan area angiriate at a bulk substation in the
northeast part of Phoenix. The project consisteaf phases. The first phase,
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Morgan to Pinnacle Peak 500kV, is currently in-g@v The second phase, Delaney to Palo Verde 508kyhder construction. The third and
fourth phases, Delaney to Sun Valley 500kV and Martp Sun Valley 500kV, have been permitted andravarious stages of final design
development. In total, the projects consist ofrdd@ miles of new 500kV lines, with many of thasies constructed with the capability to
string a 230kV line as a second circuit.

APS continues to work with regulators to identifgrtsmission projects necessary to support renevesiglegy facilities. Two such
projects, which are included in ARS2014 transmission plan, are the Delaney to Pafld&/line and the North Gila to Hassayampa liné) bt
which are intended to support the transmissiorenéwable energy to Phoenix and California.

Plant and Transmission Line Leases and Rights-of-Waon Indian Lands

The Navajo Plant and Four Corners are locatedmmh t@ld under leases from the Navajo Nation anal @tsler rights-ofvay from the
federal government. The right-of-way and leasdtierNavajo Plant expire in 2019 and the right-afyvand lease for Four Corners expire in
2016. On March 7, 2011, the Navajo Nation Cousigihed a resolution approving a 25-year extensighe existing Four Corners lease term
and providing Navajo Nation consent to renewahef telated rights-of-way. APS is filing applicats for renewal of these rights-of-way with
the DOI. Before it may approve the Four Corneaséeextension and issue the renewed rights-of-ilvaynited States must complete an
analysis under the federal National Environmentdicly Act, the ESA and related statutes.

Certain portions of the transmission lines thatycpower from several of our power plants are ledain Indian lands pursuant to
rights-of-way that are effective for specified peis. Some of these rights-of-way have expiredaamdenewal applications have not yet been
acted upon by the appropriate Indian tribes orriEldegencies. Other rights expire at various tiimahe future and renewal action by the
applicable tribe or federal agencies will be regdiat that time. In recent negotiations, certéithe affected Indian tribes have required
payments substantially in excess of amounts thatave paid in the past for such rights-of-way. Uhenate cost of renewal of the rights-of-
way for our transmission lines is therefore underta

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Company rvitBnmental Matters” in ltem 1 with regard to perglor threatened litigation
and other disputes.

See Note 3 for ACC and FERC-related matters.

See Note 11 for information regarding environmentatters, Superfund—related matters, matters tetata September 2011 power
outage and a New Mexico tax matter.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF PINNACLE WEST

Pinnacle West's executive officers are electedess bften than annually and may be removed by tlaedBof Directors at any time.
The executive officers, their ages at February2B14, current positions and principal occupatiangtie past five years are as follows:

Name Age Position Period
Donald E. Brandt 59 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive OfficePmnacle West; Chairman of th 2009-Present
Board of APS
President of AP! 201z-Presen
President of Pinnacle We 200¢-Presen
Chief Executive Officer of AP: 200¢-Presen
Chief Operating Officer of Pinnacle We 200¢-2009
President of AP! 200¢-2009
Executive Vice President of Pinnacle West; Chiefaficial Officer of AP 200:-2008
Executive Vice President of AF 200:-2006
Chief Financial Officer of Pinnacle We 2002-2008
Robert S. Bemer 58 Senior Vice President, Site Operations, PVNGS, BS. 201(-Presen
Vice President, Nuclear Operations of A 2007-2010
Denise R. Danner 58 Vice President, Controller and Chief Accountingi€df of Pinnacle West; Chief 2010-Present
Accounting Officer of AP¢
Vice President and Controller of AF 200¢-Presen
Senior Vice President, Controller and Chief AccanOfficer of Allied Waste 2007-2008
Industries, Inc
Patrick Dinkel 50 Vice President, Transmission and Distribution Ofiers of APS 2014-Presen
Vice President, Resource Management of , 2012-2014
Vice President, Power Marketing, Resource PlanamdjAcquisition of AP 2011-2012
Vice President, Power Marketing and Resource Pfanof APS 201(-2011
General Manager, Strategic Planning and Resourgeisition of APS 200¢-2010
Director of Resource Acquisitions and RenewableARS 2007-2009
Randall K. Edingtor 60 Executive Vice President and Chief Nuclear Offit&NGS, of APS 2007-Presen
Senior Vice President and Chief Nuclear OfficeA&XS 2007
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Name Age Position Period
David P. Falck 60 Executive Vice President and General Counsel afi&ile West and AP 200¢-Presen
Secretary of Pinnacle West and A 200¢-2012
Senior Vice Presider- Law of Public Service Enterprise Group i 2007-2009
Daniel T. Froetsche 52 Senior Vice President, Transmission, DistributioiC&stomers of AP. 2014-Presen
Vice President, Energy Delivery of AF 200¢-2014
Jeffrey B. Guldne 48 Senior Vice President, Public Policy of Al 2014-Presen
Senior Vice President, Customers and RegulatichRs 2012-2014
Vice President, Rates and Regulation of / 2007-2012
James R. Hatfiel 56 Executive Vice President of Pinnacle West and , 201z-Presen
Chief Financial Officer of Pinnacle West and A 200¢-Presen
Senior Vice President of Pinnacle West and / 200¢-2012
Treasurer of Pinnacle West and A 200¢-2010
John S. Hatfiel 48 Vice President, Communications of Al 201(-Presen
Director, Corporate Communications of S 2004-2010
Tammy D. McLeoc 52 Vice President, Resource Management of , 2014-Presen
Vice President and Chief Customer Officer of A 2007-2014
Lee R. Nickloy 47 Vice President and Treasurer of Pinnacle West dn# 201(-Presen
Assistant Treasurer and Director Corporate Finafidemeren Corporatiol 200(-2010
Mark A. Schiavon 58 Executive Vice President, Operations of A 201z-Presen
Senior Vice President, Fossil Operations of / 200¢-2012
Senior Vice President of Exelon Generation andiéees of Exelon Powe 2004-2009
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS’ COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pinnacle West's common stock is publicly held emttaded on the New York Stock Exchange. At tlselof business on
February 14, 2014, Pinnacle West's common stockheds of record by approximately 23,053 sharehalder

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS PAID PER SHARE

STOCK SYMBOL: PNW

Dividends
2013 High Low Close Per Share
1st Quarter $ 57.9¢ 51.5( 57.8¢ 0.54¢
2nd Quarter 61.8¢ 51.5¢ 55.47 0.54¢
3 Quartel 60.3: 52.0:¢ 54.7¢ 0.54¢
4% Quarter 58.7( 52.32 52.9: 0.567¢
Dividends
2012 High Low Close Per Share
1st Quarter $ 48.8¢ 46.1°F 47.9(C 0.52¢
2 Quarter 52.3( 45.9¢ 51.7¢ 0.52¢
3 Quartel 54.6¢ 51.1¢ 52.8( 0.52¢
4t Quarter 54.2( 48.7: 50.9¢ 0.54¢

APS’s common stock is wholly-owned by Pinnacle Wt is not listed for trading on any stock excleangs a result, there is no

established public trading market for APS’s comrstorck.

The chart below sets forth the dividends paid oisARommon stock for each of the four quarter2fat3 and 2012.

Common Stock Dividends
(Dollars in Thousands)

Quarter 2013 2012

1st Quarter $ 59,80( $ 57,40(
2nd Quarter 59,90( 47,50(
3 Quartel 59,90( 57,50(
4% Quarter 62,50( 59,80(

The sole holder of APS’s common stock, PinnacletWeentitled to dividends when and as declarecoblegally available funds.

As of December 31, 2013, APS did not have any anthkhg preferred stock.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains information about puirchases of our common stock during the fourthtquaf 2013.

Total Total Number of
Number of Shares Purchased Maximum Number of
Shares Average as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Period (1) per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
October 1- October 31, 201 60,82 $ 57.5¢ — —
November - November 30, 201 — — — —
December 1 — December 31, 2013 — — — —
Total 60,82: $ 57.5¢ — —

(1) Represents shares of common stock withheld by Biandest to satisfy tax withholding obligations agbe vesting of restricte
stock and performance shares.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION — CONSOLIDATED

OPERATING RESULTS

Operating revenues

Income from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations — net of
income taxes (e

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollinghesst:

Net income attributable to common sharehol

COMMON STOCK DATA
Book value per shar- yearend
Earnings per weighted-average common share
outstanding
Continuing operations attributable to common
shareholder- basic
Net income attributable to common shareholders
basic
Continuing operations attributable to common
shareholder— diluted
Net income attributable to common shareholders
diluted
Dividends declared per she
Weightec-average common shares outstan basic
Weightec-average common shares outstane diluted

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Long-term debt less current maturiti
Deferred credits and other
Total liabilities
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(dollars in thousands, except per share amount:

$ 345462 $ 3,301,80. $ 324137 $ 3,189,19° $ 3,153,65
$ 439,96t $ 418,99 $ 355,63: $ 344,85. $ 256,04t
— (5,829 11,30¢ 25,35¢ (183,28,
439,96¢ 413,16 366,94( 370,20¢ 72,76¢
33,89: 31,62: 27,461 20,15¢ 4,43¢
$ 406,07: $ 381,54: $ 339,47 $ 350,05 $ 68,33(
$ 38.01 $ 36.2( $ 34.9¢ % 33.8¢ $ 32.6¢
$ 36¢ $ 354 % 3.01 $ 3.0 $ 2.3¢
$ 36 $ 348 $ 311 $ 328 $ 0.6¢
$ 366 $ 35C $ 29¢ 3 3.0 $ 2.3¢
$ 366 $ 34t S 3.0¢ $ 321 $ 0.67
$ 22 $ 267 $ 21C $ 21C $ 2.1C
109,984,16 109,510,29 109,052,84 106,573,34 101,160,65
110,805,94 110,527,31 109,864,24 107,137,78 101,263,79
$ 13,508,68 $ 13,379,61 $ 13,111,001 $ 12,392,999 $ 12,035,25
$ 161864 $ 108354 $ 1,342,700 $ 1,449,70. $ 1,279,28
2,796,46! 3,199,08! 3,019,05. 3,045,79. 3,496,52.
4,753,11 4,994,69 4,818,67. 4,122,27. 3,831,43
9,168,22 9,277,32 9,180,43: 8,617,77. 8,607,24!
4,340,46! 4,102,28! 3,930,58I 3,775,22i 3,428,00.
$ 13,508,68 $ 13,379,61 $ 13,111,001 $ 12,392,99 $ 12,035,25

(&) Amounts primarily related to SunCor and APSES disiooed operations (see Note 1).
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY — CONSOLIDATED

OPERATING RESULTS
Electric operating revenu
Fuel and purchased power cc
Other operating expenses
Operating income
Other income
Interest expense -ret of allowance for borrowed fun
Net income
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingnest:
Net income attributable to common shareho

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Total equity

Long-term debt less current maturities
Total capitalization

Current liabilities

Deferred credits and other
Total liabilities and equity

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

(dollars in thousands)

3,451,25 $ 3,29348 $ 3,237,24 $ 3,180,80 $ 3,149,50
1,095,70! 994,79( 1,009,46. 1,046,81! 1,178,62
1,733,67 1,693,17 1,673,39. 1,584,95! 1,501,08
621,86! 605,52¢ 554,38 549,03 469,79!
20,79° 16,35¢ 24,97 20,13¢ 13,89
183,80: 194,77 215,58« 213,34¢ 213,25!
458,86 427,11( 363,77 355,82¢ 270,43
33,89: 31,618 27,52¢ 20,168 19,20¢
424,96¢ $ 395,49 $ 336,24¢ $ 335,66. $ 251,22!
13,381,37 $ 13,24254 $ 13,032,23 $ 12,271,87 $ 11,730,50
4,454,87. $ 4,222,448 $ 4,051,400 $ 3,916,03 $ 3,527,67
2,671,46! 3,074,08! 2,894,05: 3,045,79: 3,306,40!
7,126,33! 7,296,57. 6,945,46! 6,961,833 6,834,08!
1,580,84 1,043,08 1,322,71. 1,234,86! 1,070,97
4,674,19. 4,902,88. 4,764,06. 4,075,18. 3,825,44
13,381,37 $ 13,24254 $ 13,032,23 $ 12,271,87 $ 11,730,50
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCU SSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith Pinnacle West's Consolidated Financiat&tents and APS’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and the relat#dd\that appear in Iltem 8 of this report. Foorinfation on factors that may cause our
actual future results to differ from those we cothgseek or anticipate, see “Forward-Looking Staats” at the front of this report and “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A.

OVERVIEW

Pinnacle West owns all of the outstanding commonksof APS. APS is a vertically-integrated electrility that provides either
retail or wholesale electric service to most of skete of Arizona, with the major exceptions of atbane-half of the Phoenix metropolitan area,
the Tucson metropolitan area and Mohave Countpithwestern Arizona. APS accounts for essentallpf our revenues and earnings, and
is expected to continue to do so.

Areas of Business Focus
Operational Performance, Reliability and Recent Bxdopments.

Nuclear. APS operates and is a joint owner of Palo Vertiee March 2011 earthquake and tsunamis in Japditharresulting
accident at Japas'Fukushima Daiichi nuclear power station had ai@ant impact on nuclear power operators worldwidn the aftermath
the accident, the NRC conducted an independenssmssat to consider actions to ensure that its atiguk reflect lessons learned from the
Fukushima events.

Although the NRC has repeatedly affirmed its positihat continued operation of U.S. commercial eacpower plants does not
impose an immediate risk to public health and gatee NRC has proposed enhancements to U.S. carraheuclear power plant equipment
and emergency plans. APS management continuesrtoclsely with the NRC and others in the nuciedustry to ensure that the
enhancements are implemented in an organized, séajuend structured way consistent with their safenefit and significance of the issue
being addressed.

Coal and Related Environmental Matters and Transadbns. APS is a joint owner of three coal-fired powesnik and acts as
operating agent for two of the plants. APS is fmzlion the impacts on its coal fleet that may tésuh increased regulation and potential
legislation concerning GHG emissions. Concern alierate change and other emission-related issoiglsl ©lave a significant impact on our
capital expenditures and operating costs in thm fofrtaxes, emissions allowances or required eqaitrapgrades for these plants. APS is
closely monitoring its long-range capital managenpdans, understanding that any resulting regutagind legislation could impact the
economic viability of certain plants, as well as thillingness or ability of power plant participarid fund any such equipment upgrades.
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Four Corners

Asset Purchase Agreement and Coal Supply MattefSCE, a participant in Four Corners, previoustidated that certain California
legislation prohibited it from making emission caritexpenditures at the plant. On November 8, 285 and SCE entered into the Asset
Purchase Agreement, providing for the purchase Bg Af SCE’s 48% interest in each of Units 4 andl Boar Corners. On December 30,
2013, APS and SCE closed this transaction. Tta finrchase price for the interest was approxinga&B2 million, subject to certain minor
post-closing adjustments.

In connection with APS’s most recent retail rateecaith the ACC, the ACC reserved the right toeewthe prudence of the Four
Corners transaction for cost recovery purposes tip@elosing of the transaction. On December BQ32APS filed an application with the
ACC to request rate adjustments prior to its nextegal rate case related to APS’s acquisition d&'S@terest in Four Corners. If approved,
these would result in an average bill impact toadexgtial customers of approximately 2%. APS cammetlict the outcome of this request.

Concurrently with the closing of the SCE transactiBHP Billiton, the parent company of BNCC, theksupplier and operator of the
mine that serves Four Corners, transferred its ostriye of BNCC to NTEC, a company formed by the Nawdation to own the mine and
develop other energy projects. BHP Billiton wi# betained by NTEC under contract as the mine merewd operator until July 2016. Also
occurring concurrently with the closing, the Four@ers’ co-owners executed the 2016 Coal Supphedmient. El Paso, a 7% owner in Units
4 and 5 of Four Corners, did not sign the 2016 Gagiply Agreement. Under the 2016 Coal Supply Agrent, APS has agreed to assume t
7% shortfall obligation. When APS ultimately aagsi a right to EPE’s interest in Four Corners, ¢seament or operation of law, NTEC will
have an option to purchase the interest withinreatetimeframe pursuant to an option granted bypA®NTEC. The 2016 Coal Supply
Agreement contains alternate pricing terms fora#teshortfall obligations in the event NTEC does ex#rcise its option.

Pollution Control Investments and Shutdown of Unifs 2 and 3. EPA, in its final regional haze rule for Four @ers, required the
Four Corners’ owners to elect one of two emissalternatives to apply to the plant. On December2BA3, APS, on behalf of the co-owners,
notified EPA that they chose the alternative BARMpliance strategy requiring the permanent clostikdnits 1, 2 and 3 by January 1, 2014
and installation and operation of SCR controls oitd)4 and 5 by July 31, 2018. On December 30328PS retired Units 1, 2 and 3.

Lease Extension. APS, on behalf of the Four Corners participanégjotiated amendments to an existing facility lemitie the Navajt
Nation, which extends the Four Corners leaseha&tést from 2016 to 2041. The Navajo Nation appdothese amendments in March 20
The effectiveness of the amendments also requieeagproval of the DOI, as does a related fedghts-of-way grant which the Four Corners
participants are pursuing. A federal environmergaiew is underway as part of the DOI review pesceAPS will also require a PSD permit
from EPA to install SCR control technology at F@arners. APS cannot predict whether these fe@d@adovals will be granted, and if so on a
timely basis, or whether any conditions that maatiaeched to them will be acceptable to the Foun@&ws owners.

Transmission and Delivery. APS is working closely with regulators to identénd plan for transmission needs that continue to
support system reliability, access to markets anéwable energy development. The capital experditiable presented in the “Liquidity and
Capital Resources” section
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below includes new transmission projects through62@long with other transmission costs for upgsaated replacements. APS is also
working to establish and expand smart grid techgiebthroughout its service territory to providadeterm benefits both to APS and its
customers. APS is strategically deploying a varidttechnologies that are intended to allow cusistio better monitor their energy use and
needs, minimize system outage durations, as wéfleasumber of customers that experience outagesiagilitate greater cost savings to APS
through improved reliability and the automatiorceftain distribution functions, including remoteterereading and remote connects and
disconnects.

Renewable Energy The ACC approved the RES in 2006. The renewatdzgy requirement is 4.5% of retail electric sae2014
and increases annually until it reaches 15% in 208%he 2009 Settlement Agreement, APS agreexdeed the RES standards, committin
use APS'’s best efforts to obtain 1,700 GWh of nemewable resources to be in service by year-enfi, 20 hddition to its 2008 renewable
resource commitments. Taken together, APS’s comerit is currently estimated to be approximately I#%PS’s estimated retail energy
sales by year-end 2015, which is more than doliglexisting RES target of 5% for that year. A comgnt of the RES targets development o
distributed energy systems (generally speaking|lssnale renewable technologies that are locatedustomers’ properties).

On July 12, 2013, APS filed its annual RES impletagon plan, covering the 2012B18 timeframe and requesting a 2014 RES bt
of approximately $143 million. In a final ordertdd January 7, 2014, the ACC approved the requéstéget. Also in 2013, the ACC
conducted a hearing to consider APS’s proposastabiish compliance with distributed energy requieets by tracking and recording
distributed energy, rather than acquiring andirgtirenewable energy credits. On February 6, 201ACC established a proceeding to
modify the renewable energy rules so that utiliies establish compliance without using renewabéggy credits.

On July 12, 2013, APS filed an application with &k@C proposing a solution to fix the cost shift bght by the current net metering
rules. In its application, APS requested thatARC cause all new residential customers instaltiag rooftop solar systems to either: (i) take
electric service under APS’s demand-based ECTe&anatl remain eligible for net metering; or (i) @adervice under the customer’s existing
rate as if no distributed energy system was irexdadind receive a bill credit for 100% of the dimited energy system’s output at a market-
based price. APS also proposed that the ACCgréindfather current rates and use of net metedngXisting and immediately pending
distributed energy customers; and (ii) continuagslirect cash incentives for new distributed epéngtallations.

On December 3, 2013, the ACC issued its order o8'&\Ret metering proposal. The ACC instituted aghan future customers w
install rooftop solar panels and directed APS tavjote quarterly reports on the pace of rooftop rsatboption to assist the ACC in considering
further increases. The charge of $0.70 per kilobatame effective on January 1, 2014, and is agtunto collect $4.90 per month from a
typical future rooftop solar customer to help paytheir use of the electricity grid. The new pyliill be in effect until the next APS rate ca

In making its decision, the ACC determined thatdhgent net metering program creates a cost glaiftsing non-solar utility
customers to pay higher rates to cover the costsaiftaining the electrical grid. ACC staff ane #tateS Residential Utility Consumer Offic
among other organizations, also agreed that asbifstexists. The fixed charge does not increaB&’A revenue,
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but instead will modestly reduce the impact of¢bset shift on norsolar customers. The ACC acknowledged that theatewge addresses ol
a portion of the cost shift.

Demand Side Managemenin December 2009, Arizona regulators placed areamed focus on energy efficiency and other demant
side management programs to encourage customeosserve energy, while incentivizing utilities id & these efforts that ultimately reduce
the demand for energy. The ACC initiated an Endifficiency rulemaking, with a proposed EES of 22&tnulative annual energy savings by
2020. The 22% figure represents the cumulativaatoh in future energy usage through 2020 atteblg to energy efficiency initiatives. Tl
ambitious standard became effective on Januar@11.2The ACC issued an order on April 4, 2012 rapipng recovery of approximately $72
million of APS’s energy efficiency and demand sianagement program costs. This amount was reabbgrthe therexisting DSMAC ove
a twelve-month period beginning March 1, 2012. sTdrount did not include $10 million already beiagovered in general retail base rates,
but did include amortization of 2009 costs (appmadely $5 million of the $72 million).

On June 1, 2012, APS filed its 2013 Demand Sidedgament Implementation Plan. In 2013, the starsdamguire APS to achieve
cumulative energy savings equal to 5% of its 2@&t2irenergy sales. Later in 2012, APS filed godeipent to its plan that included a propa
budget for 2013 of $87.6 million.

The ACC Staff recommendation and proposed ordsueid on October 30, 2013, largely recommendedraging the status quo,
although at lower funding levels. ACC Staff recoanded approval of all existing cost-effective egezfficiency and demand response
programs and a budget of $68.9 million going fordvaAPS expects to receive a decision from the AC€&arly 2014.

On June 27, 2013, the ACC voted to open a new dackestigating whether the Electric Energy Effiudy Rules should be modified
or abolished. This spring the ACC will hold a seri# three workshops to investigate methodologgesiuo determine cost effective energy
efficiency programs, cost recovery mechanisms ritices, and potential changes to the Electric Ené&fficiency and Resource Planning
Rules.

Rate Matters. APS needs timely recovery through rates of itstabpnd operating expenditures to maintain itaficial health. APS’
retail rates are regulated by the ACC and its waadkeelectric rates (primarily for transmissiorg eegulated by FERC. On June 1, 2011, APS
filed a rate case with the ACC. APS and otherigaitb the retail rate case subsequently entetedhie 2012 Settlement Agreement detailing
the terms upon which the parties have agreed tie ¢ rate case. See Note 3 for details regagrithie 2012 Settlement Agreement terms and
for information on APS’s FERC rates.

APS has several recovery mechanisms in place thaidge more timely recovery to APS of its fuel arahsmission costs, and costs
associated with the promotion and implementatioitsoiemand side management and renewable endagisefnd customer programs. These
mechanisms are described more fully in Note 3.

As part of APS’s acquisition of SCE’s interest init$ 4 and 5 of Four Corners, APS and SCE agread Wransmission Terminatic
Agreement,” that upon closing of the acquisitidre tompanies would terminate an existing transomsagreement (“Transmission
Agreement”) between the parties that provides trassion capacity on a system (the “Arizona Transiais System”) for SCE to transmit its
portion of the output from Four Corners to CalifiernAPS previously submitted a request to FER&teel to this termination, which resulte
a FERC order denying rate recovery of $40 millioattAPS agreed to pay SCE associated with thenetron. APS and SCE negotiated an
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alternate arrangement under which SCE will assgyti,655 MW capacity rights over the Arizona Traission System to third-parties,
including 300 MW to APS’s marketing and trading gpdor transmission of the additional power recdifrem Four Corners. This
arrangement becomes effective upon FERC approdalvilhremain in effect until the net payments reeel by SCE in connection with the
assignments reach $40 million, at which time thraragement and the Transmission Agreement will teatei. APS believes that FERC will
approve the alternate arrangement as filed bagtibpproved, SCE and APS will again be subjetiteaderms of the Transmission Terminatior
Agreement. APS believes that the original denyaFERC of rate recovery under the Transmission Treation Agreement constitutes the
failure of a condition that relieves APS of itsighkions under that agreement. If APS and SCE weable to determine a resolution through
negotiation, the Transmission Termination Agreenmequires that disputes be resolved through atlwitra APS is unable to predict the
outcome of this matter if it proceeds to arbitratio

On May 9, 2013, the ACC voted to re-examine thdifatton of a deregulated retail electric marketdrizona. The ACC
subsequently opened a docket for this matter atelwved comments from a number of interested paotiethe considerations involved in
establishing retail electric deregulation in thetst One of these considerations is whether vaudgpects of a deregulated market, including
setting utility rates on a “market” basis, woulddmnsistent with the requirements of the Arizona&ibution. On September 11, 2013, after
receiving legal advice from the ACC staff, the A€@ed 4-1 to close the current docket and awaditAtizona Constitutional authority before
any further examination of this matter. The motamproved by the ACC also included opening one aremnew dockets in the future to
explore options to offer more rate choices to qusts and innovative changes within the existind-observice regulatory model that could
include elements of competition. The ACC openeéwa docket on November 4, 2013 to explore technoéba@dvances and innovative
changes within the electric utility industry. WeHops in this docket are expected to be held id201

Financial Strength and Flexibility. Pinnacle West and APS currently have ample bangwapacity under their respective credit
facilities, and may readily access these faciliiesuring adequate liquidity for each company. i@hpxpenditures will be funded with
internally generated cash and external financimipsch may include issuances of long-term debt anddle West common stock.

El Dorado. The operations of EI Dorado, our only other oprgasubsidiary, are not expected to have any rizdtienpact on our
financial results, or to require any material antswf capital, over the next three years.

Key Financial Drivers

In addition to the continuing impact of the mattdescribed above, many factors influence our firmesults and our future financi
outlook, including those listed below. We closeignitor these factors to plan for the Company’sentrneeds, and to adjust our expectations
financial budgets and forecasts appropriately.

Electric Operating Revenues.For the years 2011 through 2013, retail elecai@nues comprised approximately 93% of our total
electric operating revenues. Our electric opegatavenues are affected by customer growth ormkecliariations in weather from period to
period, customer mix, average usage per custonteth@impacts of energy efficiency programs, distiéd energy additions, electricity rates
and tariffs, the recovery of PSA deferrals anddperation of other recovery
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mechanisms. These revenue transactions are affiegtide availability of excess generation or oreergy resources and wholesale market
conditions, including competition, demand and wice

Customer and Sales GrowtHRetail customer growth in APS’s service territam2013 was 1.3% compared with the prior year. For
the three years 2011 through 2013, APS’s customoavth averaged 1.0% per year. We currently expential customer growth to average
about 2.5% for 2014 through 2016 based on our siseeg of modestly improving economic conditionghhationally and in Arizona. Retail
electricity sales in kWh, adjusted to exclude tfieats of weather variations, decreased 0.5% irBZtimpared with the prior year, reflecting
the effects of customer conservation and energgieficy and distributed renewable generation itiités, offset by mildly improving econornr
conditions and customer growth. For the threesg/28i.1 through 2013, APS experienced annual inesgagetail electricity sales averaging
0.1%, adjusted to exclude the effects of weathgatrans. We currently estimate that annual rebattricity sales in kwh will increase on
average about 1% during 2014 through 2016, inctuttie effects of customer conservation and endifgpiency and distributed renewable
generation initiatives, but excluding the effectsveather variations. A failure of the Arizona aomy to improve could further impact these
estimates.

Actual sales growth, excluding weather-relatedataons, may differ from our projections as a restfiliumerous factors, such as
economic conditions, customer growth, usage pattena energy conservation, impacts of energy effi programs and growth in distribu
generation, and responses to retail price changased on past experience, a reasonable rangeiatioa in our kWh sales projection
attributable to such economic factors under notmginess conditions can result in increases oredses in annual net income of up to $10
million.

Weather. In forecasting the retail sales growth numbeovigied above, we assume normal weather patteresl lmashistorical data.
Historically, extreme weather variations have resiiin annual variations in net income in exces$28f million. However, our experience
indicates that the more typical variations frommal weather can result in increases or decreasasimal net income of up to $10 million.

Fuel and Purchased Power Costsiuel and purchased power costs included on ons@inlated Statements of Income are impactec
by our electricity sales volumes, existing contdor purchased power and generation fuel, our pgaat performance, transmission
availability or constraints, prevailing market @ new generating plants being placed in sermicaii market areas, changes in our generatic
resource allocation, our hedging program for mamggiich costs and PSA deferrals and the relatedtiaatmn.

Operations and Maintenance Expense®perations and maintenance expenses are impactdstmmer and sales growth, power
plant operations, maintenance of utility plant [iing generation, transmission, and distributiacilfties), inflation, outages, renewable ent
and demand side management related expenses (@rkidffset by the same amount of operating revgrarebother factors. In the 2009
Settlement Agreement, APS committed to operatierpense reductions from 2010 through 2014, andwete@pproval to defer certain
pension and other postretirement benefit cost as@g incurred in 2011 and 2012, which totaled $#tm as a regulatory asset, until the n
recent general retail rate case decision becareet®f® on July 1, 2012. In July 2012, we beganréizing the regulatory asset over a 36-
month period.

Depreciation and Amortization ExpensesDepreciation and amortization expenses are inepaay net additions to utility plant and
other property (such as new generation, transnmssiad
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distribution facilities), and changes in depreciatand amortization rates. See “Capital Expenelitubelow for information regarding the
planned additions to our facilities. See Notedarding deferral of certain costs pursuant to aicCACder.

Property Taxes. Taxes other than income taxes consist primafilyroperty taxes, which are affected by the vallproperty in-
service and under construction, assessment rafidstax rates. The average property tax rateioAa for APS, which owns essentially all of
our property, was 10.5% of the assessed valuedft8,2.6% for 2012, and 9.0% for 2011. We expeaperty taxes to increase as we add ne
generating units and continue with improvementsexmhnsions to our existing generating units, trassion and distribution facilities. (See
Note 3 for property tax deferrals contained in2042 Settlement Agreemen

Income Taxes Income taxes are affected by the amount of prieterk income, income tax rates, certain deductamtsnon-taxable
items, such as AFUDC. In addition, income taxey alao be affected by the settlement of issues taitihg authorities.

Interest Expense. Interest expense is affected by the amount of olefstanding and the interest rates on that defat Note 6). The
primary factors affecting borrowing levels are ectee to be our capital expenditures, long-term dediurities, equity issuances and internally
generated cash flow. An allowance for borrowedifinsed during construction offsets a portion tdriest expense while capital projects are
under construction. We stop accruing AFUDC onagqat when it is placed in commercial operation.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Pinnacle West's only reportable business segmemirisegulated electricity segment, which consi$tsaditional regulated retail and
wholesale electricity businesses (primarily elecservice to Native Load customers) and relateidiies and includes electricity generation,
transmission and distribution.

Operating Results — 2013 compared with 2012.

Our consolidated net income attributable to comstuareholders for the year ended December 31, 2683406 million, compared
with net income of $382 million for the prior yeaFhe results reflect an increase of approximab2ly million for the regulated electricity
segment, primarily due to increases related tadtel regulatory settlement effective July 1, 2@4€e Note 3); higher retail transmission
revenues; and lower net interest charges due terldebt balances and lower interest rates in thremiiyear period. These positive factors
were partially offset by higher operations and rtexiance expenses; higher fuel and purchased posts, oet of related deferrals; lower retail
sales as a result of changes in customer usagedétaenergy efficiency, customer conservationdietfibuted generation, partially offset by
customer growth; and higher depreciation and azetitin expenses.
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The following table presents net income attribigabl common shareholders by business segment cechpéth the prior year:

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012 Net Change
(dollars in millions)

Regulated Electricity Segmel

Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpeneg: $ 2,35¢ $ 2,29¢ $ 57
Operations and maintenan (92%) (88E) (40
Depreciation and amortizatic (41¢) (404) (12
Taxes other than income tax (164 (159) 5)
Other income (expenses), | 11 6 5
Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowedifuased during

constructior (187) (200) 13
Income taxe: (232 (237) 5
Less income related to noncontrolling intereststéNi®) (34) (32) (2)

Regulated electricity segment net income 40¢ 38¢ 21
All other (3) — (3)
Income from Continuing Operations Attributable tor@mon

Shareholder 40€ 38¢ 18
Loss from Discontinued Operations Attributable mn@non

Shareholders (e — (6) 6
Net Income Attributable to Common Shareholc $ 40€ $ 382 $ 24

€) Includes activities related to SunCor.

Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powgregises Regulated electricity segment operating revenussfleel and
purchased power expenses were $57 million highrethfoyear ended December 31, 2013 compared vetpribr year. The following table
summarizes the major components of this change:
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Impacts of retail regulatory settlement effectiuéyJdL, 2012

Higher demand-side management, renewable energgiauildr
regulatory surcharge

Higher retail transmission revent

Lower retail sales due to changes in customer ugatjerns and related
pricing, partially offset by customer grow

Higher fuel and purchased power costs, net ofedldeferrals and off-
system sale

Miscellaneous items, net

Total

Increase (Decrease

Fuel and
purchased
Operating power
revenues expenses Net change

(dollars in millions)

$ 64 $ 6 $ 58
34 7 27
11 — 11
a7 (4) (13)
74 95 (21)
) ©)] (5)
$ 15¢ $ 101 $ 57

Operations and maintenance Operations and maintenance expenses increasenihdd for the year ended December 31, 2013

compared with the prior year primarily because of:

. An increase of $14 million related to technical lgsis, consulting, advertising and communicatioosts;

. An increase of $13 million related to costs for @ewh-side management, renewable energy and siragatatory programs,
which were largely offset in operating revenues;

. An increase of $9 million related to the closurd-ofir Corners Units 1, 2, and 3, deferred for rapuy recovery in
depreciation;

. An increase of $6 million in energy delivery andstmmer service costs;

. An increase of $6 million in information technologgsts;

. A decrease of $6 million in generation costs pritpaelated to lower fossil generation outage castd lower nuclear

generation costs; and

. A decrease of $2 million related to other miscediauns factors.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expenses were $lmhigher for the year ended December 31,

2013 compared with the prior year, primarily beeaok
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increased plant in service, partially offset by tegulatory deferral of operating expenses assatiatth the closure of Four Corners Units 1
and 3.

Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowed fimused during construction Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowed
funds used during construction, decreased $13amiftor the year ended December 31, 2013 comparedthe prior year, primarily because of
lower debt balances and lower interest rates irctineent year.

Income taxes. Income taxes were $5 million lower for the yeaded December 31, 2013 compared with the prior peararily due
to a lower effective tax rate in the current peripdrtially offset by the effects of higher pretagome in the current year.

Operating Results — 2012 compared with 2011.

Our consolidated net income attributable to comstuareholders for the year ended December 31, 262882 million, compared
with net income of $339 million for the prior yeafFhe results reflect an increase of approxima$&§ million for the regulated electricity
segment, primarily due to increases related tadtel regulatory settlement effective July 1, 2@4€e Note 3); higher retail transmission
revenues, lower depreciation and amortization du#0tyear Palo Verde license extensions receiv@®1d; and lower net interest charges du
to lower debt balances and lower interest ratékarcurrent year.

The $17 million decrease in discontinued operatisgsimarily related to a contribution Pinnacle $8Weade to SunCa’estate as pi
of a negotiated resolution to the bankruptcy (seteN) and absence of the 2011 gain on sale ahwastment in APSES.

The following table presents net income attributetbl common shareholders by business segment cechpéth the prior year:
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Year Ended
December 31
2012 2011 Net Change
(dollars in millions)

Regulated Electricity Segmel

Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpensgs (a $ 2,29¢ % 2,22t $ 71
Operations and maintenance (88E) (909 19
Depreciation and amortizatic (409 (427) 23
Taxes other than income tax (159) (14¢) (11
Other income (expenses), | 6 16 (20
Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowedifuased during

constructior (200) (229 24
Income taxe: (237) (189 (53
Less income related to noncontrolling intereststéNi®) (32 (28) (4)

Regulated electricity segment net income 38¢ 32¢ 59
All other — (1) 1
Income from Continuing Operations Attributable tor@mon

Shareholder 38¢ 32¢ 60
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Attréhle to Common

Shareholders (k (6) 11 17
Net Income Attributable to Common Shareholc $ 38z $ 33¢ $ 43

€)) Includes effects of 2011 settlement of certaingmaission right-of-way costs, which did not affeet mcome, but increased

both electric operating revenues and operationgyaidtenance expenses by $28 million. Costs ettat¢he settlement we
offset by related revenues from SCE, which leasesdlated transmission line from APS.
(b) Includes activities related to APSES and SunCor.

Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powgremses. Regulated electricity segment operating revetegsfuel and
purchased power expenses were $71 million highrethfoyear ended December 31, 2012 compared vetpribr year. The following table
summarizes the major components of this change:
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Increase (Decrease

Fuel and
purchased
Operating power
revenues expenses Net change

(dollars in millions)

Impacts of retail regulatory settlement effectiuéyJdL, 2012 $ 64 $ 1 % 63
Higher retail transmission revent 41 — 41
Lower fuel and purchased power costs, net of reldeferrals and off-

system sale (12) (14) 3
Lower demand-side management, renewable energgianildr

regulatory surcharge ©)] 4 @)
Settlement in 2011 of certain prior-period transias right-of-way

revenues (28) — (28)
Miscellaneous items, net (7) (6) (1)
Total $ 56 $ (15) $ 71

Operations and maintenance.Operations and maintenance expenses decreasexil$iéd for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared with the prior year primarily because of:

. A decrease of $28 million related to settlemer0d.1 of certain transmission right-of-way costsjalitwas offset in
operating revenues;

. A decrease of $22 million related to costs for dedaside management, renewable energy and simdata®ry programs;
. A decrease of $15 million in generation costs, prify related to lower nuclear generation costs;
. An increase of $21 million related to employee bigmests, including approximately $12 million oépsion and other

postretirement costs;

. An increase of $9 million related to higher stocknpensation costs resulting from an improved comséock price and
estimated performance results;

. An increase of $7 million in information technologgsts, primarily related to higher software maiatece; and
. An increase of $9 million due to other miscellaneéactors.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expenses were $fi@mlower for the year ended December 31,

2012 compared with the prior year, primarily du¢hte impacts of Palo Verde operating license extass partially offset by increased plant in
service.
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Taxes other than income taxesTaxes other than income taxes increased $1lomiitir the year ended December 31, 2012 com
with the prior year, primarily because of higheoperty tax rates in the current year.

Other income (expenses), netOther income (expenses), net, decreased $1@mibir the year ended December 31, 2012 compare
with the prior year, primarily because of higheréstment losses of approximately $2 million andeotion-operating expenses of
approximately $8 million in the current year.

Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowed fimused during construction.Interest charges, net of allowance for borrowed
funds used during construction, decreased $24amiftir the year ended December 31, 2012 compareithe prior year, primarily because of
lower debt balances and lower interest rates irctinent year.

Income taxes. Income taxes were $53 million higher for the yeaded December 31, 2012 compared with the priar, ygimarily
due to higher pre-tax income in the current year afower effective tax rate in 2011.

Discontinued Operations

Results from discontinued operations decreased$tlion, primarily due to a contribution Pinnacleéat made to SunCor’s estate as
part of a negotiated resolution to the bankrupsee(Note 1) and absence of a gain related to th@taur investment in APSES in 2011.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview

Pinnacle Wess primary cash needs are for dividends to our slaéders and principal and interest payments orirmebtedness. Tt
level of our common stock dividends and future diévid growth will be dependent on declaration byBuaird of Directors and based on a
number of factors, including our financial conditjgpayout ratio, free cash flow and other factors.

Our primary sources of cash are dividends from AR& external debt and equity issuances. An ACErahuires APS to maintair
common equity ratio of at least 40%. As definethia ACC order, the common equity ratio is totarsiolder equity divided by the sum of
total shareholder equity and long-term debt, iniclgaurrent maturities of long-term debt. At Ded®mn31, 2013, APS’s common equity ratio,
as defined, was 58%. lIts total shareholder equéty approximately $4.3 billion, and total capitatisn was approximately $7.5 billion. Under
this order, APS would be prohibited from payingidends if such payment would reduce its total dhalder equity below approximately $3.0
billion, assuming APS'’s total capitalization rensmthe same. This restriction does not materidfgcaPinnacle West's ability to meet its
ongoing cash needs or ability to pay dividendshtarsholders.

APS’s capital requirements consist primarily ofitalpexpenditures and maturities of long-term debBS funds its capital
requirements with cash from operations and, teftient necessary, external debt financing and yfitsions from Pinnacle West.
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Summary of Cash Flows

The following tables present net cash providedusgd for) operating, investing and financing atitgi for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in midjo

Pinnacle West Consolidated

2013 2012 2011
Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 1,15¢ $ 1,171 $ 1,12¢
Net cash flow used for investing activiti (1,009 (873) (782)
Net cash flow used for financing activiti (161) (30%) (420
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ an s M % (77)
Arizona Public Service Company
2013 2012 2011
Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 1,192 $ 1,17¢ $ 1,12¢
Net cash flow used for investing activiti (1,009 (879 (839)
Net cash flow used for financing activiti (18E) (319 (374)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ — 8 (16) $ (80)

Operating Cash Flows

2013 Compared with 2012 Pinnacle West's consolidated net cash provideddeyating activities was $1,153 million in 2013,
compared to $1,171 million in 2012, a decreasel8frillion in net cash provided. The decreaseimarily related to a $127 million change
in cash collateral posted and $76 million of highension contributions made in 2013 compared t@ Z8pproximately $18 million of which
reflected in capital expenditures). The decreagaitially offset by approximately $167 million ligher cash inflows primarily due to higher
authorized revenue requirements resulting fronrétal regulatory settlement effective July 1, 2@t other changes in working capital.

2012 Compared with 2011 Pinnacle West's consolidated net cash provideddeyating activities was $1,171 million in 2012,
compared to $1,125 million in 2011, an increas®4# million in net cash provided. The increasprimarily related to a $77 million reductis
of cash collateral posted and a decrease of $2idmih cash paid for interest in the current ygrartially offset by a $26 million increase in
property tax payments, a $65 million pension ctwition in 2012 (approximately $12 million of whichreflected in capital expenditures) and
other changes in working capital.

Other. Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined bepefision plan and a non-qualified supplementatsxdenefit retirement
plan for the employees of Pinnacle West and ousigidries. The requirements of the Employee Reiingt Income Security Act of 1974
(“ERISA") require us to contribute a minimum amount to thalifjed plan. We contribute at least the minimumoant required under ERIS
regulations, but no more than the maximum tax-dgolecamount. The minimum required funding takes iconsideration the value of plan
assets and our pension benefit obligations. UBSRIEA, the qualified pension plan was 107% fundedfalanuary 1, 2013 and is estimated t
be approximately 103% funded as of January 1, 20h& assets in the plan are comprised of fixedsme, equity, real estate, and short-term
investments. Future year contribution amountsdagendent on plan asset performance and plan edtassumptions. We made contributi
to our pension plan totaling $141 million in 20885 million in 2012, and zero in 2011. The minimaantributions for the pension plan total
$141 million for the next three years under theergly enacted Moving Ahead
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for Progress inthe 21 Century Act (zero in 20849 million in 2015 and $122 million in 2016). tead, we expect to make voluntary
contributions totaling $300 million for the nextéle years ($175 million in 2014, of which $70 noitliwas already contributed in early 2014,
up to $100 million in 2015, and up to $25 millian2016). With regard to contributions to our otpestretirement benefit plans, we made a
contribution of approximately $14 million in 201823 million in 2012, and $19 million in 2011. Tbentributions to our other postretirement
benefit plans for 2014, 2015 and 2016 are expeotbe approximately $10 million each year.

The $70 million long-term income tax receivabletba Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemb&032,represented the
anticipated refund related to an APS tax accountiethod change approved by the Internal RevenudcggfIRS") in the third quarter of
2009. On July 9, 2013, IRS guidance was releasechvprovided clarification regarding the timingdaamount of this cash receipt. As are
of this guidance, uncertain tax positions decre&&¥dmillion during the third quarter. This degean uncertain tax positions resulted in a
corresponding increase to the total anticipatedngéue from the IRS and an offsetting increadeng-term deferred tax liabilities.
Additionally, as a result of this IRS guidance, thsulting $137 million anticipated refund was asdiified to current income tax receivable.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the IR8ified the examination of tax returns for the gesarded December 31, 2008 anc
2009, and the $137 million anticipated refund weduced by approximately $4 million to reflect theamme of this examination. On
December 17, 2013, the Joint Committee on Taxatpgproved the anticipated refund. Cash relatelisoréfund was received in the first
quarter of 2014.

Investing Cash Flows

2013 Compared with 2012Pinnacle West's consolidated net cash used fasiiivg activities was $1,009 million in 2013, comgzh
to $873 million in 2012, an increase of $136 millim net cash used. The increase in net cashfus@u/esting activities is primarily related
APS’s purchase of SCE's interest in Units 4 and Baur Corners of approximately $209 million, paltj offset by a decrease of
approximately $73 million in other capital expendés.

2012 Compared with 2011 Pinnacle West's consolidated net cash used fasting activities was $873 million in 2012, congxhto
$782 million in 2011, an increase of $91 millionniet cash used. The increase in net cash uséuvisting activities is primarily due to the
absence of $55 million in proceeds from the sal@@fnsurance policies in 2011 and the absenc®6fmillion in proceeds from the sale of
Pinnacle West's investment in APSES in 2011.
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Capital Expenditures. The following table summarizes the estimatedteapipenditures for the next three years:

Capital Expenditures
(dollars in millions)

Estimated for the Year Ended
December 31

2014 2015 2016
APS
Generation
Nuclear Fue $ 80 $ 86 $ 88
Renewable: 11¢€ 7
Environmenta 3C 57 213
Other Generatio 23C 24¢€ 35E
Distribution 25E 374 363
Transmissior 19¢ 21¢ 19€
Other (a) 54 41 48
Total APS $ 96 $ 1,02¢ % 1,267

(&) Primarily information systems and facilities prdgc

Generation capital expenditures are comprised wbws improvements to APS’s existing fossil andleacplants. Examples of the
types of projects included in this category areitinits, upgrades and capital replacements of varnmmwer plant equipment, such as turbines,
boilers and environmental equipment. The estimBitewables expenditures include 20 MW of utilitgle solar projects which were
approved by the ACC in the 2014 RES Implementafilam. We have not included estimated costs foll€sa@ompliance with MATS or
EPA's regional haze rule since we have challengedégional haze rule judicially and are considgonr future options with respect to that
plant if the regional haze rule is upheld. Thetiporof estimated costs through 2016 for instadlatdf pollution control equipment needed to
ensure Four Corners’ compliance with EPA’s regidrae rules have been included in the table ab@e are monitoring the status of other
environmental matters, which, depending on themlfoutcome, could require modification to our plad environmental expenditures.

Distribution and transmission capital expendituaes comprised of infrastructure additions and uggsacapital replacements, and
new customer construction. Examples of the tyfgsajects included in the forecast include povieed, substations, and line extensions to
new residential and commercial developments.

Capital expenditures will be funded with internallgnerated cash and external financings, whichin@yde issuances of long-term
debt and Pinnacle West common stock.

Financing Cash Flows and Liquidity

2013 Compared with 2012 Pinnacle Wess consolidated net cash used for financing aawivas $161 million in 2013, comparec
$305 million of net cash used in 2012, a decre&$4 44
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million in net cash used. The decrease in net naseH for financing activities is primarily due$631 million in lower repayments of lorigkm
debt, largely offset by $340 million in lower issu@s of long-term debt and a $31 million net chang®PS’s commercial paper borrowings,
which is classified as short-term borrowings on@umsolidated Balance Sheets. On December 30, 20frBnercial paper issuances were

used to fund the acquisition of SCE’s 48% ownergtiigrest in each of Units 4 and 5 of Four Corrieeg below).

2012 Compared with 2011 Pinnacle Wess consolidated net cash used for financing aawivas $305 million in 2012, comparec
$420 million in 2011, a decrease of $115 milliomat cash used. The decrease in net cash ustddocing activities is primarily due to an
increase of $92 million in APS’s short-term debtrbwings in 2012. In addition, APS had $56 milliorhigher issuances of long-term debt,
partially offset by $99 million in higher repaymertf long-term debt. Pinnacle West had $100 nmilliolower repayments of long-term debt,
partially offset by $50 million in lower debt issuzes (see below).

Significant Financing Activities. On December 18, 2013, the Pinnacle West BoaRirettors declared a quarterly dividend of
$0.5675 per share of common stock, payable on M&réld14, to shareholders of record on Februagd34. During 2013, Pinnacle West
increased its indicated annual dividend from $éBshare to $2.27 per share. For the year endedriber 31, 2013, Pinnacle West's total
dividends paid per share of common stock were $@e2Ghare, which resulted in dividend payments235 million.

On March 22, 2013, APS issued an additional $10Bomipar amount of its outstanding 4.50% unsecwegior notes that mature on
April 1, 2042. The net proceeds from the sale wiset to repay short-term commercial paper borrgsvand replenish cash used to redeem
certain tax-exempt indebtedness in November 2012.

On May 1, 2013, APS purchased all $32 million & Maricopa County, Arizona Pollution Control Corgibon Pollution Control
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2009 Series C, due 2029May 28, 2013, we remarketed the bonds. Thedsteate for these bonds was set to
new term rate. The new term rate for these bonds,esubject to a mandatory tender, on May 30, 2@&ing this time, the bonds will bear
interest at a rate of 1.75% per annum. These bargdslassified as long-term debt on our Consdid&alance Sheets at December 31, 2013
and were classified as current maturities of lagmgatdebt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets atrBlese31, 2012.

On July 12, 2013, APS purchased all $33 milliothaf Coconino County, Arizona Pollution Control Corgtion Pollution Control
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 1994 Series A, due 2@BJanuary 15, 2014, these bonds were cancelegseTionds were classified as current
maturities of long-term debt on our ConsolidatetbBee Sheets at December 31, 2012.

On October 11, 2013, APS purchased all $32 miltibthe City of Farmington, New Mexico Pollution Gonl Revenue Bonds, 1994
Series C, due 2024. On January 15, 2014, thes#shwere canceled. These bonds were classifiedreent maturities of long-term debt on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 32, 201

On January 10, 2014, APS issued $250 million 0®% Tinsecured senior notes that mature on JanuaB048. The proceeds from
the sale were used to repay commercial paper whdshused to fund the purchase price and costsiatsbavith the acquisition of SCE’s 48%
ownership interest in
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each of Units 4 and 5 of Four Corners and to regtecash used to re-acquire two series of tax-ex@mdpbtedness.

Available Credit Facilities. Pinnacle West and APS maintain committed revolareglit facilities in order to enhance liquidity and
provide credit support for their commercial papegrams.

At December 31, 2013, Pinnacle West's $200 miltoedit facility, which matures in November 2016, ,sn&vailable to refinance
indebtedness of the Company and for other generpbcate purposes, including credit support fo280 million commercial paper program.
Pinnacle West has the option to increase the amaduhe facility up to a maximum of $300 million ap the satisfaction of certain conditions
and with the consent of the lenders. At Decemtie2B813, Pinnacle West had no outstanding borrosvingler its credit facility, no letters of
credit outstanding, and no commercial paper bomgsi

On April 9, 2013, APS refinanced its $500 milli@volving credit facility that would have maturedrebruary 2015, with a new $5
million facility. The new revolving credit facijitmatures in April 2018.

At December 31, 2013, APS had two credit facilitietsling $1 billion, including a $500 million criédacility that was refinanced in
April 2013 (see above) and a $500 million crediiifty that matures in November 2016. APS may éase the amount of each facility up to a
maximum of $700 million upon the satisfaction oftaén conditions and with the consent of the lesdekPS can use these facilities to
refinance indebtedness and for other general catpqurposes. Interest rates are based on APS&r smsecured debt credit ratings.

The facilities described above are available tqsupAPS’s $250 million commercial paper prograor, fank borrowings or for
issuances of letters of credit. At December 3132@PS had no outstanding borrowings or lettersredlit under its revolving credit facilities.
APS had commercial paper borrowings of $153 milkecember 31, 2013.

See “Financial Assurances” in Note 11 for a disimrssf APS’s separate outstanding letters of credit

Other Financing Matters. See Note 3 for information regarding the PSA aped by the ACC.

See Note 3 for information regarding the settlenmeldted to the 2008 retail rate case, which inetudlCC authorization and
requirements of equity infusions into APS.

See Note 17 for information related to the chamgeur margin and collateral accounts.
Debt Provisions

Pinnacle West's and APS’s debt covenants relatéigeo respective bank financing arrangements ghelnaximum debt to
capitalization ratios. Pinnacle West and APS cgmth this covenant. For both Pinnacle West afBAthis covenant requires that the ratio
of consolidated debt to total consolidated cagdion not exceed 65%. At December 31, 2013,dtie was approximately 47% for Pinnacle
West and 45% for APS. Failure to comply with saolienant levels would result in an event of defadlich, generally speaking, would
require the immediate repayment of the debt
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subject to the covenants and could “cross-defatiter debt. See further discussion of “cross-defamovisions below.

Neither Pinnacle West's nor APS’s financing agreet®ieontain “rating triggers” that would resultan acceleration of the required
interest and principal payments in the event afteng downgrade. However, our bank credit agre¢sneantain a pricing grid in which the
interest rates we pay for borrowings thereundedatermined by our current credit ratings.

All of Pinnacle West's loan agreements contain $srdefault” provisions that would result in defawdnd the potential acceleration of
payment under these loan agreements if Pinnaclé WédPS were to default under certain other mategreements. All of APS’s bank
agreements contain “cross-default” provisions thatild result in defaults and the potential acceienaof payment under these bank
agreements if APS were to default under certaipratiaterial agreements. Pinnacle West and AP®tbave a material adverse change
restriction for credit facility borrowings.

See Note 6 for further discussions of liquidity taes.
Credit Ratings

The ratings of securities of Pinnacle West and AP Sf February 14, 2014 are shown below. We adating these credit ratings to
enhance understanding of our cost of short-term@amgiterm capital and our ability to access thekets for liquidity and longerm debt. Th
ratings reflect the respective views of the ratggncies, from which an explanation of the sigaifie of their ratings may be obtained. There
is no assurance that these ratings will continueufiy given period of time. The ratings may bdsed or withdrawn entirely by the rating
agencies if, in their respective judgments, circiamses so warrant. Any downward revision or wigtvelrl may adversely affect the market
price of Pinnacle West's or APS’s securities andésult in an increase in the cost of, or limitegsto, capital. Such revisions may also resul
in substantial additional cash or other collateegluirements related to certain derivative instmigeinsurance policies, natural gas
transportation, fuel supply, and other energy-eslatontracts. At this time, we believe we havédiceht available liquidity resources to
respond to a downward revision to our credit rating

Moody's Standard & Poor’'s Fitch

Pinnacle West

Corporate credit ratin Baal A- BBB+

Commercial pape P-2 A-2 F2

Outlook Stable Stable Stable
APS

Corporate credit ratin A3 A- BBB+

Senior unsecure A3 A- A-

Secured lease obligation bor A3 A- A-

Commercial pape P-2 A-2 F2

Outlook Stable Stable Stable
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

See Note 19 for a discussion of the impacts orfinancial statements of consolidating certain VIEs.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes Pinnacle West's otidated contractual requirements as of Decembg@13 (dollars in millions):

2015 201%
2014 2016 2018 Thereafter Total

Long-term debt payments, including intere

(a)

APS 71C $ 98¢ $ 27C % 3,372 % 5,34(

Pinnacle West 2 127 — — 12¢
Total long-term debt payments, including

interest 712 1,11:% 27C 3,37¢ 5,46¢
Short-term debt payments, including intert

(b) 15z — — — 158
Fuel and purchased power commitments 644 1,22¢ 1,15¢ 8,471 11,49¢
Renewable energy credits | 48 84 84 452 66¢
Purchase obligations ( 85 37 39 24¢€ 407
Coal reclamatiol 1 9 28 17¢C 20¢
Nuclear decommissioning fundit

requirement: 17 19 4 66 10€
Noncontrolling interests (i 20 35 — — 55
Operating lease payments 20 23 9 59 111
Total contractual commitments $ 1,70C $ 2,54¢ % 1,58¢ $ 12,83¢ $ 18,67¢

(a) The long-term debt matures at various dates thr@0gf2 and bears interest principally at fixed rategerest on variable-rate
long-term debt is determined by using average @t&ecember 31, 2013 (see Note 6).

(b) The short-term debt represents commercial papeowargs at APS (see Note 5).

(c) Our fuel and purchased power commitments includehases of coal, electricity, natural gas, reneweblergy, nuclear fuel, a
natural gas transportation (see Notes 3 and 1hgs& amounts include commitments incurred fromigoguSCE'’s interest in
Four Corners.

(d) Contracts to purchase renewable energy creditsrimptance with the RES (see Note 3).

(e) These contractual obligations include commitmeatsépital expenditures and other obligations.

(H Payments to the noncontrolling interests relat¢oPalo Verde Sale Leaseback (see Note 19). Wé=dmmmitted to retain the
assets relating to the noncontrolling interestobey2015, either through lease extensions or bghasing the assets. If we elect
to purchase the assets, the purchase price wilhbed on the fair value of the assets at the eB818. Such value is unknown at
this time and is subject to an appraisal process.
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If we elect to extend the leases, we will be rezplito make annual payments beginning in 2016 ofceqapately $23 million;
however, the length of the lease extensions is ankrat this time as it must be determined througl@praisal process. Due to
these uncertainties, amounts relating to the ndnalling interests beyond 2015 have not been iredlith the table above.

This table excludes $42 million in unrecognized bhaxefits because the timing of the future casfaws is uncertain. This table al
excludes approximately zero, $19 million and $12on in estimated minimum pension contributioms 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively
(see Note 8).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In preparing the financial statements in accordavitie accounting principles generally acceptechia nited States of America
(“GAAP”), management must often make estimatesamsdimptions that affect the reported amounts etsdgbilities, revenues, expenses
and related disclosures at the date of the finhstaédements and during the reporting period. Sohtkose judgments can be subjective and
complex, and actual results could differ from thesémates. We consider the following accountialicges to be our most critical because of
the uncertainties, judgments and complexities efuthderlying accounting standards and operatiorcdvad.

Regulatory Accounting

Regulatory accounting allows for the actions ofutatprs, such as the ACC and FERC, to be refleictedr financial statements.
Their actions may cause us to capitalize costswbatd otherwise be included as an expense indhewt period by unregulated companies.
Regulatory assets represent incurred costs thatlbeen deferred because they are probable of fteoowery in customer rates. Regulatory
liabilities generally represent expected futuretstisat have already been collected from customdiEnagement continually assesses whethe
our regulatory assets are probable of future ragoe considering factors such as applicable regnyaenvironment changes and recent rate
orders to other regulated entities in the samedligtion. This determination reflects the curneolitical and regulatory climate in Arizona and
is subject to change in the future. If future rey of costs ceases to be probable, the assets Wwewvritten off as a charge in current period
earnings. We had $809 million of regulatory asaets $901 million of regulatory liabilities on tl@®nsolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2013.

Included in the balance of regulatory assets aebser 31, 2013 is a regulatory asset of $314 mifars pension and other
postretirement benefits. This regulatory assetsgnts the future recovery of these costs throegti rates as these amounts are charged to
earnings. If these costs are disallowed by the ABIS regulatory asset would be charged to OClrasdlt in lower future earnings.

See Notes 1 and 3 for more information.

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefit Accountig

Changes in our actuarial assumptions used in @dinglour pension and other postretirement beliefitity and expense can have a

significant impact on our earnings and financiadipon. The most relevant actuarial assumptioedslae discount rate used to measure our

liability and net periodic cost, the expected ldagn rate of return on plan assets used to estiestengs on invested funds
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over the long-term, and the assumed healthcardrevst rates. We review these assumptions on mmahbasis and adjust them as necessary

The following chart reflects the sensitivities thathange in certain actuarial assumptions wowe had on the December 31, 2013
reported pension liability on the Consolidated BaSheets and our 2013 reported pension expdteec@nsideration of amounts capitalized
or billed to electric plant participants, on Pinlead/est's Consolidated Statements of Income (dellamillions):

Increase (Decrease

Impact on Impact on
Pension Pension
Actuarial Assumption (a) Liability Expense
Discount rate
Increase 1Y $ (280 % (14)
Decrease 19 337 16
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan asse
Increase 1% — (20
Decrease 19 — 10

(a) Each fluctuation assumes that the other assumpaibthe calculation are held constant while thesatre changed by one
percentage point.

The following chart reflects the sensitivities thathange in certain actuarial assumptions wowe had on the December 31, 2013
reported other postretirement benefit obligatiortt@rConsolidated Balance Sheets and our 2013tezpother postretirement benefit expense

after consideration of amounts capitalized or ilie electric plant participants, on Pinnacle We&tbnsolidated Statements of Income (dollar:
in millions):

Increase (Decrease

Impact on Other Impact on Other
Postretirement Benefit Postretirement
Actuarial Assumption (a) Obligation Benefit Expense
Discount rate
Increase 1Y $ (1200 % (7)
Decrease 19 151
Healthcare cost trend rate (|
Increase 1% 14¢ 13
Decrease 19 (120 (20
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass— pretax:
Increase 1% — 3
Decrease 19 — 3
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(a) Each fluctuation assumes that the other assumpaibthe calculation are held constant while thesatre changed by one
percentage point.
(b) This assumes a 1% change in the initial and ulgrhaglthcare cost trend rate.

See Note 8 for further details about our pensiaha@her postretirement benefit plans.
Fair Value Measurements

We account for derivative instruments, investméetsl in our nuclear decommissioning trust fundtaiarcash equivalents and plan
assets held in our retirement and other benefitspéd fair value on a recurring basis. Fair vadube price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orddrbnsaction between market participants at thesareanent date. We use inputs, or assumptior
that market participants would use, to determiimenfarket value. The significance of a particulgsut determines how the instrument is
classified in a fair value hierarchy. We utilizalwation techniques that maximize the use of olag#evinputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The determination of faiueadometimes requires subjective and complex judgm@ur assessment of the inputs and
the significance of a particular input to fair velmeasurement may affect the valuation of theunstnts and their placement within a fair
value hierarchy. Actual results could differ framr estimates of fair value. See Note 1 for autisibn on accounting policies and Note 14 fol
further fair value measurement discussion.

OTHER ACCOUNTING MATTERS
During 2013, we adopted new accounting guidaneingl to balance sheet offsetting disclosures,diselosures of amounts
reclassified from accumulated OCI. During thetfqgarter of 2014 we are required to adopt new @auidiog guidance related to balance sheet
presentation of certain unrecognized tax benefiise Note 2.
MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS
Market Risks

Our operations include managing market risks rdlédechanges in interest rates, commaodity pricesiavestments held by our
nuclear decommissioning trust fund and benefit plssets.

Interest Rate and Equity Risk

We have exposure to changing interest rates. Qigungferest rates will affect interest paid onighte-rate debt and the market value
of fixed income securities held by our nuclear adegussioning trust fund (see Note 14 and Note 2@)lmnefit plan assets. The nuclear
decommissioning trust fund and benefit plan assists have risks associated with the changing maxat of their equity and other non-fixed
income investments. Nuclear decommissioning amefiteplan costs are recovered in regulated efttmprices.

The tables below present contractual balancesroéansolidated long-term and short-term debt aettiected maturity dates, as well
as the fair value of those instruments on Decer8beP013 and
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2012. The interest rates presented in the taldiesvirepresent the weightederage interest rates as of December 31, 2012GI®i (dollars i

thousands):

Pinnacle West Consolidated

Short-Term Variable-Rate Fixed-Rate
Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest
2013 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2014 0.27% $ 153,12! — 3 — 5.5 $ 540,42
2015 — — 1.02% 157,00( 4.7% 313,42(
2016 — — 0.0€% 43,58( 6.15% 314,00(
2017 — — — — — —
2018 — — — — 1.7%% 32,00(
Years thereafter — — — — 6.12% __ 1,940,15
Total $ 153,12! — % 200,58( $ 3,139,99
Fair value $ 153,12 $ 200,58( $ 3,378,10
Short-Term Variable-Rate Fixed-Rate
Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest
2012 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2013 0.3¢% $ 92,17¢ — 3 — 4906 $ 122,82
2014 — — — — 5.56% 540,42-
2015 — — 1.07% 157,00( 4.7% 313,42(
2016 — — 0.15% 43,58( 6.15% 314,00(
2017 — — — — — —
Years thereafter — — — — 6.21% __ 1,840,15
Total $  9217¢ $ 200,58 $ 3,130,82
Fair value $ 92,17t $ 200,26 $ 3,674,95
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The tables below present contractual balances & #\lBng-term debt at the expected maturity datesyell as the fair value of those
instruments on December 31, 2013 and 2012. Thedsitrates presented in the tables below reprédsemieighted-average interest rates as o
December 31, 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):

APS— Consolidated

Short-Term Variable-Rate Fixed-Rate
Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest
2013 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2014 0.27% $ 153,12! — % = 5.5 $ 540,42
2015 — — 0.05% 32,00( 4.7% 313,42(
2016 — — 0.0€% 43,58( 6.15% 314,00(
2017 — — — — — —
2018 — — — — 1.7%% 32,00(
Years thereafter — — — — 6.12% __ 1,940,15
Total $ 153,12! — % 75,58( $ 3,139,99
Fair value $ 153,12 $ 75,58( $ 3,378,10
Short-Term Variable-Rate Fixed-Rate
Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest
2012 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2013 0.3¢% $ 92,17 — 3 — 4906 $ 122,82
2014 — — — — 5.5¢% 540,42-
2015 — — 0.15% 32,00( 4.7% 313,42(
2016 — — 0.1%% 43,58( 6.15% 314,00(
2017 — — — — — —
Years thereafter — — — — 6.219% __ 1,840,15
Total $ 92,17¢ $ 75,58( $ 3,130,822
Fair value $ 92,17t $ 75,58( $ 3,674,95

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuatioritke commodity price and transportation costsle€tricity and natural gas. Our
risk management committee, consisting of officers key management personnel, oversees companyenatgy risk management activities
to ensure compliance with our stated energy riskagament policies. We manage risks associatedtimgde market fluctuations by utilizing
various commodity instruments that may qualify aswatives, including futures, forwards, optionsiawaps. As part of our risk managemen
program, we use such instruments to hedge purclasksales of electricity and fuels. The changesarket value of such contracts have a
high correlation to price changes in the hedgedmodities.
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The following table shows the net pretax changesank-to-market of our derivative positions in 2Gir&1 2012 (dollars in millions):

2013 2012
Mark-to-market of net positions at beginning of yea $ (122) $ (222)
Recognized in earnings (:

Change in mar-to-market gains (losses) for future period delive (@D} 1
Decrease in regulatory as: 6 37
Recognized in OCI

Change in mar-to-market losses for future period deliveries — (37

Mark-to-market losses realized during the pel 44 99

Change in valuation techniques — —
Mark-to-market of net positions at end of year $ (73 $ (122)

€)) Represents the amounts reflected in income aféceffiect of PSA deferrals.
(b) The changes in mark-to-market recorded in OCI aeegtimarily to changes in forward natural gasgsic

The table below shows the fair value of maturitiésur derivative contracts (dollars in milliong)2ecember 31, 2013 by maturities
and by the type of valuation that is performedatrglate the fair values, classified in their egtiirbased on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. SeeNot'Derivative Accounting” and “Fair Value Measurents,” for more discussion of our
valuation methods.

Total
Years fair
Source of Fair Value 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 thereafter value

Observable prices

provided by other

external source $ 15 $ 6 $ 3 % — $ — $ — $ (24
Prices based on

unobservable inpu (11) (12 (12 (5) 4 (5) (4€)
Total by maturity $ (260 $ (18 $ (19 $ G $ @ $ O $ (73
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The table below shows the impact that hypothepcdak movements of 10% would have on the marketevaf our risk management
assets and liabilities included on Pinnacle WeStasolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@L3Gk? (dollars in millions):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Price Up 10% Price Down 10% Price Up 10% Price Down 10%
Mark-to-market changes reported
Earnings (a
Natural gas $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Regulatory asset (liability) or OCI (|
Electricity 6 (6) 7 @)
Natural gas 26 (26) 25 (25)
Total $ 32 $ 32 $ 32 $ (32

(a) Represents the amounts reflected in income afteefiect of PSA deferrals.

(b) These contracts are economic hedges of our foegtasirchases of natural gas and electricity. Tipact of these
hypothetical price movements would substantialfgetfthe impact that these same price movementthviave on the
physical exposures being hedged. To the exterdarttmunts are eligible for inclusion in the PSA, dmeounts are recorded as
either a regulatory asset or liability.

Credit Risk

We are exposed to losses in the event of non-pediace or non-payment by counterparties. See Nbferla discussion of our credit
valuation adjustment policy.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See “Market and Credit Risks” in Item 7 above faiscussion of quantitative and qualitative disates about market risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repgri{Pinnacle West Capital Corporatic
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdingn

Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Incom2@aB, 2012 and 201

Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Comprarehwrome for 2013, 2012, and 20

Pinnacle West Consolidated Balance Sheets as afrbtser 31, 2013 and 20.

Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Cash Rimw&)13, 2012 and 201

Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Chandgequity for 2013, 2012 and 20:

Notes to Pinnacle We's Consolidated Financial Stateme

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepagytfArizona Public Service Compar
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding

APS Consolidated Statements of Income for 2013220 201

APS Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indon2013, 2012, and 20!

APS Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemb@038,and 201

APS Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for 22082 and 201

APS Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equit23@3, 2012 and 201

Supplemental Notes to Al's Consolidated Financial Stateme

Financial Statement Schedules for 2013, 2012 atd
Pinnacle West Schedule Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income 1@, 2012 and 201
Pinnacle West Schedul~ Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2612048
Pinnacle West Schedule Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for 2013, 2042611
Pinnacle West Schedule- Reserve for Uncollectibles for 2013, 2012 and 2
APS Schedule - Reserve for Uncollectibles for 2013, 2012 and 2

See Note 13 and S-2 for the selected quarterlyilah data (unaudited) required to be presentedisnitem.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
(PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION)

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f), for Pinedest. Management conducted an evaluation oéffieetiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the frameworkiternal Control — Integrated Framework (19923ued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Baseduwrevaluation under the frameworkiiternal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992),0ur management concluded that our internal cowtret financial reporting was effective as of DecemBl, 2013. The effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting@sDecember 31, 2013 has been audited by Delgifeuche LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their repohiieh is included herein and also relates to the @omg’s consolidated financial statements.

February 21, 2014

77




Table of Contents
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Pinnacle West Capital Corporationsahdidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related coasatidtatements of income, comprehensive inconaages in equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih013. Our audits also included the finansiatement schedules listed in the Index at
Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s iaferantrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg&y 2013, based on criteria established il
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission. The
Companys management is responsible for these financi@mstents and financial statement schedules, fortaiaing effective internal contr
over financial reporting, and for its assessmerhefeffectiveness of internal control over finahceporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FinalriReporting. Our responsibility is to expresso@inion on these financial statements
and financial statement schedules and an opinich@Company’s internal control over financial repg based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cortvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exéal respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideace supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaldial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltrrover financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, testing aatliating the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audits also included performing such other pdoices as we considered necessary in the circucestae believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compapard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anltet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. A company’s internatcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheanaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactionse@eded as necessary to permit preparatio
of financial statements in accordance with gengradtepted accounting principles and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@aent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédisonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltaarover financial reporting to future periods ateéject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Pinnacle
West Capital Corporation and subsidiaries as ofeDdrer 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for each o
the three years in the period ended December 31,20 conformity with accounting principles gerbraccepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial staient schedules, when considered in relation tbdlsec consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all matergspects, the information set forth therein. Alaa@ur opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control dirgsincial reporting as of December 31, 2013, basethe criteria established internal

Control — Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtee Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLF
Phoenix, Arizon:

February 21, 201
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sinaoents)

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSE!
Fuel and purchased pow
Operations and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
Taxes other than income tax
Other expenses
Total
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS
Allowance for equity funds used during constructibiote 1)
Other income (Note 1¢
Other expense (Note 18)
Total
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest charge
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constautiiNote 1)
Total
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TABS
INCOME TAXES (Note 4)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Net of income tax expense (benefit) of $—, $(3,848) $7,418 (Note 1)
NET INCOME
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingnessts (Note 19)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER¢
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING — BASIC
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING— DILUTED

EARNINGS PER WEIGHTED — AVERAGE COMMON SHARE
OUTSTANDING
Income from continuing operations attributable ¢oncnon shareholde— basic
Net income attributable to common sharehol— basic
Income from continuing operations attributable é¢oncnon shareholders —
diluted
Net income attributable to common sharehol— diluted

AMOUNTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS
Income from continuing operations, net of
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income attributable to common shareholders

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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Year Ended December 31

2013

2012

2011

3,454,620 $  3,301,80. $  3,241,37
1,095,70! 994,79( 1,009,46.
924,72 884,76 904,28t
415,70 404,33 427,05
164,16° 159,32: 147,40¢
7,99¢ 6,831 6,65¢
2,608,30! 2,450,04' 2,494 87
846,32 851,75 746,50
25,58 22,43¢ 23,707
1,70¢ 1,60€ 3,111
(16,029 (19,847 (10,457)
11,26: 4,200 16,36
201,88t 214,61¢ 241,99
(14,867) (14,977 (18,35%)
187,02° 199,64 223,63
670,55 656,31( 539,23
230,59 237,31 183,60:
439,961 418,99: 355,63
— (5,829) 11,30¢
439,961 413,16 366,94(
33,89: 31,62: 27,46’
406,07: $ 381,54 $ 339,47
109,98« 109,51 109,05:
110,80¢ 110,52 109,86«
36 $ 354 $ 3.01
3.6¢ 3.4¢ 3.11
3.6€ 3.5( 2.9¢
3.6€ 3.45 3.0¢
406,07: $ 387,38( $ 328,11
— (5,839) 11,36:
406,07: $ 381,54. $ 339,47
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
NET INCOME $ 439,96¢ $ 413,16« $ 366,94(
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TA
Derivative instruments
Net unrealized loss, net of tax benefit of $1401,800, and $37,389 (Note 1 (21%) (22,76%) (57,27))
Reclassification of net realized loss, net of tardfit of $17,472, $39,120, and
$46,288 (Note 17 26,74° 59,881 70,90:
Pension and other postretirement benefits actiagy of tax (expense) benefit of
$(6,156), $(651), and $3,935 (Note 9,421 1,031 (6,026)
Total other comprehensive income 35,95t 38,15¢ 7,60¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 475,92: 451,31¢ 374,54t
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nonotimg interests 33,89: 31,62: 27,465
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
SHAREHOLDERS $ 442,02¢ $ 419,69 $ 347,07¢

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Customer and other receivab
Accrued unbilled revenug
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Materials and supplies (at average c
Fossil fuel (at average co:
Deferred income taxes (Note
Income tax receivable (Note
Assets from risk management activities (Note
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory db&wse 3)
Other regulatory assets (Note
Other current assets
Total current assets

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSET!
Assets from risk management activities (Note
Nuclear decommissioning trust (Notes 14 and
Other assets
Total investments and other assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 1, 6 and :
Plant in service and held for future t
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net
Construction work in progre:
Palo Verde sale leaseback, net of accumulated ciepiom of $225,925 and $222,055 (Note
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaif$1 39,703 and $411,5¢
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization o4&057 and $133,950
Total property, plant and equipment

DEFERRED DEBITS
Regulatory assets (Notes 1, 3 ant
Income tax receivable (Note
Other
Total deferred debits

TOTAL ASSETS

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kEments.
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December 31

2013 2012

9,52¢ $ 26,20:
299,90 277,22
96,79¢ 94,84t
(3,209 (3,340
221,68; 218,00
38,02¢ 31,33
91,15: 152,19
135,51° 2,42°
17,16¢ 25,69¢
20,75t 72,69:
76,38¢ 71,25
39,89 37,10:
1,043,60' 1,005,72!
23,81 35,89
642,00 570,62!
60,87 62,60
726,69 669,21(
15,200,46 14,346,36
(5,300,21) (4,929,61)
9,900,24 9,416,75.
581,36 565,71
125,12! 128,99
157,68 162,15
124,55° 122,77
10,888,098 10,396,39
711,71 1,099,90
— 70,38¢
137,68: 137,99'
849,30! 1,308,28
13,508,68 $  13,379,61
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

December 31

2013 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payabl $ 28451t $ 221,31:
Accrued taxes (Note ¢ 130,99¢ 124,93¢
Accrued interes 48,35 49,38(
Common dividends payah 62,52¢ 59,78¢
Shor-term borrowings (Note £ 153,12! 92,17¢
Current maturities of lor-term debt (Note 6 540,42: 122,82¢
Customer deposit 76,10: 79,68¢
Liabilities from risk management activities (Notg) 31,89: 73,74:
Liability for asset retirements (Note 1 32,89¢ —
Regulatory liabilities (Note & 99,27: 88,11¢
Other current liabilities 158,54( 171,57:
Total current liabilities 1,618,64 1,083,54.
LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT MATURITIES (Note 6) 2,796,46! 3,199,08:
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHEI
Deferred income taxes (Note 2,351,88; 2,151,37
Regulatory liabilities (Notes 1, 3 and 801,29 759,20:
Liability for asset retirements (Note 1 313,83: 357,09
Liabilities for pension and other postretirememdifgs (Note 8 513,62¢ 1,058,75!
Liabilities from risk management activities (Notg). 70,31¢ 85,26«
Customer advance 114,48( 109,35!
Coal mine reclamatio 207,45: 118,86
Deferred investment tax cre« 152,36: 99,81¢
Unrecognized tax benefits (Note 42,20¢ 71,13¢
Other 185,65! 183,83!
Total deferred credits and other 4,753,11 4,994,69
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (SEE NOTES
EQUITY (Note 7)
Common stock, no par value; authorized 150,000¢b@0es, issued 110,280,703 at end of 2013
109,837,957 at end of 20: 2,491,55! 2,466,92:
Treasury stock at cost; 98,944 shares at end & 20d 95,192 shares at end of 2012 (4,309 (4,217
Total common stock 2,487,25! 2,462,71.
Retained earnings 1,785,27. 1,624,10;
Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
Pension and other postretirement benefits (No (54,999 (64,41¢)
Derivative instruments (Note 17) (23,05%) (49,597)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (78,059 (114,009
Total shareholders’ equity 4,194,47 3,972,801
Noncontrolling interests (Note 19) 145,99( 129,48:
Total equity 4,340,461 4,102,28!
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 13,508,68 $ 13,379,61

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaStakments.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIE:
Net Income $ 439,96t $ 413,16 $ 366,94
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen by operating activitie:
Gain on sale of ener-related products and services busir — — (10,409
Depreciation and amortization including nuclear 1 492,32: 481,26: 493,78«
Deferred fuel and purchased pov 21,67¢ 71,57 69,16¢
Deferred fuel and purchased power amortiza 31,19 (116,71% (155,15)
Allowance for equity funds used during construct (25,58) (22,436 (23,7079
Deferred income taxe 249,29¢ 187,02 117,95.
Deferred investment tax cret 52,54: 41,57¢ 58,24(
Change in derivative instruments fair va 534 (749 4,064
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Customer and other receivab (44,99) 14,581 40,62¢
Accrued unbilled revenue (1,957 30,39« (21,94%)
Materials, supplies and fossil fu (12,879 (23,049 (23,399
Income tax receivabl (133,099 (4,049 3,98:
Other current asse (17,919 (27,357 (3,079
Accounts payabl 45,41 (96,600 58,34¢
Accrued taxe! 6,05¢ 12,73¢ 8,08t
Other current liabilitie! (7,519 23,86¢ 20,35¢
Change in margin and collateral acco.— asset: 992 2,21¢ 33,34¢
Change in margin and collateral accol.— liabilities 12,35¢ 137,78! 29,73:
Change in lon-term income tax receivab 137,27( (1,756 (3,530
Change in unrecognized tax bene (91,42% (2,589 8,41(
Change in other regulatory liabilitir 64,47 13,53¢ 37,00¢
Change in other lor-term asset (41,757 6,872 (41,727
Change in other long-term liabilities (24,687) 29,80 58,48
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 1,153,30 1,171,12. 1,125,58:
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (1,016,32) (889,55) (884,35()
Contributions in aid of constructic 41,09( 49,87¢ 38,09¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart (14,867 (24,977 (18,35¢)
Proceeds from sale of ene-related products and services busir — — 45,11
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust ¢ 446,02! 417,60: 497,78
Investment in nuclear decommissioning ti (463,27:) (434,85) (513,799
Proceeds from sale of life insurance polic — — 55,44
Other (2,059 (1,099 (1,93))
Net cash flow used for investing activities (1,009,40) (872,999 (782,00
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of lor-term debt 136,30° 476,08: 470,35:
Repayment of lor-term debi (122,829 (654,28¢) (655,169
Shor-term borrowings and paymer— net 60,95( 92,17t (16,600
Dividends paid on common sto (235,24, (225,079 (221,729
Common stock equity issuan 17,31¢ 15,95¢ 15,84
Distributions to noncontrolling interes (17,385 (20,529 (20,210
Other 29¢ 17C (2,66¢)
Net cash flow used for financing activities (160,58) (305,509 (420,18))
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT! (16,67¢) (7,38)) (76,605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,20: 33,58! 110,18¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 9,52t $ 26,20: $ 33,58

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSta&kments.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

COMMON STOCK (Note 7
Balance at beginning of ye $ 2,466,92. $ 2,444.24 $ 2,421,37.
Issuance of common stock 24,63t 22,67¢ 22,87¢
Balance at end of year 2,491 55: 2,466,92: 2,444,24
TREASURY STOCK (Note 7
Balance at beginning of ye (4,21)) (4,717 (2,239
Purchase of treasury sto (9,727 (4,607 (3,720
Reissuance of treasury stock used for stock conapiens 9,63( 5,11 1,242
Balance at end of year (4,309 (4,217 (4,717
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of ye 1,624,10. 1,534,48. 1,423,96:
Net income attributable to common sharehol 406,07- 381,54. 339,47:
Common stock dividends declared ($2.23, $2.67 %00 per share) (244,907 (291,92) (228,95)
Balance at end of year 1,785,27. 1,624,10; 1,534,48:
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
Balance at beginning of ye (114,009 (152,16 (159,76
Other comprehensive income attributable to comniameholders 35,95¢ 38,15¢ 7,604
Balance at end of year (78,057 (114,009 (152,167
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Balance at beginning of ye 129,48: 108,73t 91,89¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 33,89: 31,62: 27,46,
Net capital activities by noncontrolling intere (17,385 (10,87%) (10,630)
Balance at end of year 145,99( 129,48: 108,73t
TOTAL EQUITY $ 4,340,461 $ 4,102,28° $ 3,930,58!
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON

SHAREHOLDERS
Net income attributable to common shareholt $ 406,07: $ 381,54 $ 339,47:
Other comprehensive income 35,95¢ 38,15¢ 7,60¢
Comprehensive income attributable to common shédeho $ 442,02¢ $ 419,69 $ 347,07¢

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Pinnacle West is a holding company that conducsiniess through its subsidiaries, APS and El Doradd,formerly SunCor and
APSES. APS, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is aieatly-integrated electric utility that providegdteer retail or wholesale electric service to
substantially all of the state of Arizona, with timajor exceptions of about one-half of the Phoemétropolitan area, the Tucson metropolitan
area and Mohave County in northwestern ArizonaS ABcounts for essentially all of our revenueseardings, and is expected to continue tc
do so. SunCor was a developer of residential, ceroia and industrial real estate projects andregdly all of these assets were sold in 2009
and 2010. In February 2012, SunCor filed for prtite under the United States Bankruptcy Code topiete an orderly liquidation of its
business. All activities for SunCor are reportediscontinued operations. APSES provided enesfpted projects to commercial and
industrial retail customers in competitive marketthe western United States. APSES was sold 11 20d is reported as discontinued
operations. El Dorado is an investment firm.

Pinnacle West's Consolidated Financial Statememtside the accounts of Pinnacle West and our siaibgd: APS and El Dorado,
and formerly SunCor and APSES. APS’s consolidéitedhcial statements include the accounts of ARScamtain VIESs relating to the Palo
Verde sale leaseback. Intercompany accounts andactions between the consolidated companiesheereeliminated.

We consolidate VIEs for which we are the primarpdfeciary. We determine whether we are the printageficiary of a VIE throuc
a qualitative analysis that identifies which valéimterest holder has the controlling financigenest in the VIE. In performing our primary
beneficiary analysis, we consider all relevantdaotd circumstances, including the design andidesvof the VIE, the terms of the contracts
the VIE has entered into, and which parties pauditgd significantly in the design or redesign &f émtity. We continually evaluate our prim
beneficiary conclusions to determine if changeshascurred which would impact our primary benefigciassessments. We have determined
that APS is the primary beneficiary of certain M#Ssor trusts relating to the Palo Verde sale leade and therefore APS consolidates these
entities (see Note 19).

Our consolidated financial statements reflect dilistments (consisting only of normal recurringustiinents, except as otherwise
disclosed in the notes) that we believe are necgfsathe fair presentation of our financial pasit, results of operations and cash flows for
periods presented.

Certain line items are presented in more detathenConsolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidaggdr®¢nts of Cash Flows than
was presented in the prior years. Other line itaresnore condensed than the previous presentafioa prior year amounts were reclassified
to conform to the current year presentation. Thieskssifications had no impact on total assetseebcash flow provided by operating
activities. The following tables show the impaatshe reclassifications of prior years (previousdported) amounts (dollars in thousands):
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount reported

As Reclassifications tc after reclassification
previously conform to current year to conform to current
Balance Sheet- December 31, 201 reported presentation year presentation
Long-Term Debt less Current Maturiti—
Long-term debt less current maturiti $ 3,160,21' $ 38,86¢ $ 3,199,08!
Long-Term Debt less Current Maturiti—
Palo Verde sale leaseback lessor notes
current maturitie: 38,86¢ (38,869 —
Amount reported after
Reclassifications tc reclassification to
Statement of Cash Flows for the As previously conform to current year conform to current
Year Ended December 31, 2012 reported presentation year presentation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Deferred income taxe $ 228,60 $ (41,579 $ 187,02
Deferred investment tax cret — 41,57¢ 41,57¢
Accrued taxes and income tax receive 8,69: (8,699 —
Income tax receivabl — (4,047) (4,04
Accrued taxe! — 12,73¢ 12,73¢
Amount reported after
Reclassifications tc reclassification to
Statement of Cash Flows for the As previously conform to current year conform to current year
Year Ended December 31, 201 reported presentation presentation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Deferred income taxe $ 176,19 $ (58,24() $ 117,95.
Deferred investment tax cret — 58,24( 58,24(
Accrued taxes and income tax receive 12,06¢ (12,06¢) —
Income tax receivabl — 3,98t 3,98:
Accrued taxe: — 8,08t 8,08t

Accounting Records and Use of Estimates

Our accounting records are maintained in accordaitteGAAP. The preparation of financial statengeint accordance with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assmsfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiahitities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial sta¢ets and reported amounts of revenues and expeuaseg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Regulatory Accounting

APS is regulated by the ACC and FERC. The accowipgriinancial statements reflect the rate-makingigies of these
commissions. As a result, we capitalize certagtsthat would be included as expense in the cupenind by unregulated companies.
Regulatory assets represent incurred costs thatlbeen deferred because they are probable of fteoowery in customer rates. Regulatory
liabilities generally represent expected futuretstisat have already been collected from customers.

Management continually assesses whether our regulassets are probable of future recovery by clenisig factors such as changes
in the applicable regulatory environment and recatg orders applicable to APS or other regulatdities in the same jurisdiction. This
determination reflects the current political anguiatory climate in Arizona and is subject to chaungthe future. If future recovery of costs
ceases to be probable, the assets would be woitt@s a charge in current period earnings.

See Note 3 for additional information.
Electric Revenues

We derive electric revenues primarily from saleglettricity to our regulated Native Load customeRevenues related to the sale of
electricity are generally recorded when serviceiglered or electricity is delivered to customérhe billing of electricity sales to individual
Native Load customers is based on the readingeirf theters, which occurs on a systematic basisitiirout the month. Unbilled revenues
estimated by applying an average revenue/kWh bipmes class to the number of estimated kWhs dedd/éut not billed. Differences
historically between the actual and estimated lgtbilevenues are immaterial. We exclude salestand franchise fees on electric revenues
from both revenue and taxes other than income taxes

Revenues from our Native Load customers and nowatafe instruments are reported on a gross basRionacle West's
Consolidated Statements of Income. In the elattimisiness, some contracts to purchase energyedted against other contracts to sell
energy. This is called a “book-out” and usuallgurs for contracts that have the same terms (gieméind delivery points) and for which
power does not flow. We net these book-outs, whéchuces both revenues and fuel and purchased posts.

For the period January 1, 2010 through June 3@,28l&ctric revenues also include proceeds fordixtension payments for new or
upgraded service in accordance with the 2009 Sstthe Agreement (see Note 3). Effective July 1,2@E a result of the 2012 Settlement
Agreement, these amounts are now recorded as lootidns in aid of construction and are not includedlectric revenues.

Some of our cost recovery mechanisms are altemadivenue programs. For alternative revenue pnogjthat meet specified
accounting criteria, we recognize revenues whespleeific events permitting billing of the additadrevenues have been completed.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts representdest estimate of existing accounts receivablewfilatltimately be uncollectible.
The allowance is calculated by applying estimateitevoff factors to various classes of outstandiecgivables, including accrued utility
revenues. The write-off factors used to estimatpliectible accounts are based upon considerafitoth historical collections experience
and management’s best estimate of future collestmtcess given the existing collections envirortmen
Property, Plant and Equipment

Utility plant is the term we use to describe theibhass property and equipment that supports etesgrivice, consisting primarily of
generation, transmission and distribution fac#itiaVe report utility plant at its original costhieh includes:

. material and labor;

. contractor costs;

. capitalized leases;

. construction overhead costs (where applicable); and
. allowance for funds used during construction.

We expense the costs of plant outages, major nm@inte and routine maintenance as incurred. Weehatired utility plant to
accumulated depreciation. Liabilities associatét the retirement of tangible long-lived assets imcognized at fair value as incurred and
capitalized as part of the related tangible longdiassets. Accretion of the liability due to fassage of time is an operating expense, and th
capitalized cost is depreciated over the usefeldifthe long-lived asset. See Note 12.

APS records a regulatory liability on its regulasssets for the difference between the amounthtimbeen recovered in regulated
rates and the amount calculated in accordanceguittance on accounting for asset retirement oliigat APS believes it can recover in
regulated rates the costs calculated in accordaithehis accounting guidance.

We record depreciation on utility plant on a sthiline basis over the remaining useful life of tetated assets. The approximate
remaining average useful lives of our utility prayeat December 31, 2013 were as follows:

. Fossil plant — 18 years;

. Nuclear plant — 26 years;

. Other generation — 26 years;
. Transmission — 37 years;

. Distribution — 34 years; and
. Other — 7 years.

APS applied for twentyear extensions of its operating licenses for edc¢he three Palo Verde units in December 2008.Apnil 21,
2011, the NRC approved the extensions of the Pald&/licenses. The nuclear plant remaining likes$anto consideration an ACC decision
which authorizes the use of the new Palo Verdeaauglant lives, effective January 1, 2012.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to an ACC order, we defer operating aessed to APS’s acquisition of additional inteseist Units 4 and 5 and the related
closure of Units 1-3 of Four Corners. See NoterJirther discussion. These costs are deferrati@depreciation line of the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

For the years 2011 through 2013, the depreciatitesiranged from a low of 0.45% to a high of 12.08%e weighted-average rate
was 3.00% for 2013, 2.71% for 2012, and 2.98% @dr12

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

AFUDC represents the approximate net compositegsteost of borrowed funds and an allowed retarthe equity funds used for
construction of regulated utility plant. Both thebt and equity components of AFUDC are non-castuas within the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Plant construction costdudicg AFUDC, are recovered in authorized ratesulgh depreciation when completed
projects are placed into commercial operation.

AFUDC was calculated by using a composite rate.®8% for 2013, 8.60% for 2012, and 10.25% for 20AP.S compounds AFUDC
semi-annually and ceases to accrue AFUDC when ratistn work is completed and the property is pthireservice.

Materials and Supplies

APS values materials, supplies and fossil fuel imory using a weighted-average cost method. APt@nmaés, supplies and fossil fuel
inventories are carried at the lower of weightedrage cost or market, unless evidence indicatédhiibaveighted-average cost (even if in
excess of market) will be recovered.

Fair Value Measurements

We account for derivative instruments, investméetsl in our nuclear decommissioning trust, certaish equivalents and plan assets
held in our retirement and other benefit plansaatfalue on a recurring basis. Due to the stz nature of net accounts receivable, accc
payable, and short-term borrowings, the carryirigesof these instruments approximate fair valeair value measurements may also be
applied on a nonrecurring basis to other assetdianitities in certain circumstances such as impants. We also disclose fair value
information for our long-term debt, which is cadiat amortized cost (see Note 6).

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddioasset or paid to transfer a liability (exit pyiin the principal or most advantageous
market which we can access for the asset or fglilian orderly transaction between willing margatticipants on the measurement date.
Inputs to fair value may include observable andhseovable data. We maximize the use of obsenmpids and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

We determine fair market value using observablatsmpuch as actively-quoted prices for identicafrinmments when available. When
actively quoted prices are not available for theniital instruments, we use other observable ingutsh as prices for similar instruments, othe
corroborative market information, or prices prowdsy other external sources. For options, longiteontracts and other contracts for which
observable price data are not available, we usests@d other valuation methods, which may incafmunobservable inputs to determine
fair market value.
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The use of models and other valuation methodsterne fair market value often requires subjectimd complex judgment. Actual
results could differ from the results estimatedtigh application of these methods.

See Note 14 for additional information about fatue measurements.
Derivative Accounting

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuatiotke commodity price and transportation costslettricity, natural gas, coal,
emission allowances and in interest rates. We genaks associated with market volatility by aiilig various physical and financial
instruments including futures, forwards, optiond awaps. As part of our overall risk managemeogfam, we may use derivative instrume
to hedge purchases and sales of electricity ard.fliighe changes in market value of such conttaaie a high correlation to price changes in
the hedged transactions. We also enter into derévanstruments for economic hedging purposesntf@ets that have the same terms
(quantities, delivery points and delivery periodsyl for which power does not flow are netted, whigdiuces both revenues and fuel and
purchased power expenses in our Consolidated Staterof Income, but does not impact our finanaieddition, net income or cash flows.

We account for our derivative contracts in accooganith derivatives and hedging guidance, whicluires all derivatives not
qualifying for a scope exception to be measurddiatalue on the balance sheet as either asséitsbdities. Transactions with counterparties
that have master netting arrangements are repoeteoin the balance sheet. See Note 17 for additinformation about our derivative
instruments.

Loss Contingencies and Environmental Liabilities

Pinnacle West and APS are involved in certain legal environmental matters that arise in the nogoatse of business. Contingent
losses and environmental liabilities are recordedmit is determined that it is probable that & loas occurred and the amount of the loss cal
be reasonably estimated. When a range of the pl@hzss exists and no amount within the rangehisteer estimate than any other amount,
Pinnacle West and APS record a loss contingenttyeaninimum amount in the range. Unless otherwgggired by GAAP, legal fees are
expensed as incurred.

Retirement Plans and Other Benefits

Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined beaafitaccount balance pension plan for the emplogeemnacle West and its
subsidiaries. We also sponsor an other postretintfenefit plan for the employees of Pinnacle Vdestour subsidiaries that provides
medical and life insurance benefits to retired eppes. Pension and other postretirement bengférese are determined by actuarial
valuations, based on assumptions that are evalaateahlly. See Note 8 for additional informatiangension and other postretirement
benefits.
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Nuclear Fuel

APS amortizes nuclear fuel by using the unit-ofgurction method. The unit-of-production methodasdd on actual physical usage.
APS divides the cost of the fuel by the estimataahiper of thermal units it expects to produce wlitht fuel. APS then multiplies that rate by
the number of thermal units produced within thereoir period. This calculation determines the aurperiod nuclear fuel expense.

APS also charges nuclear fuel expense for theiimtgiorage and permanent disposal of spent nuftiehr The DOE is responsible
the permanent disposal of spent nuclear fuel aadyels APS $0.001 per kWh of nuclear generatiore Nggte 11 for information on spent
nuclear fuel disposal costs.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset andityaépproach prescribed by guidance relating tmaating for income taxes. We
file our federal income tax return on a consoliddtasis, and we file our state income tax retuma oonsolidated or unitary basis. In
accordance with our intercompany tax sharing agesgnfiederal and state income taxes are allocateddh firsttier subsidiary as though ez
first-tier subsidiary filed a separate income taturn. Any difference between that method andtiresolidated (and unitary) income tax
liability is attributed to the parent company. Tiheome tax accounts reflect the tax and interssv@ated with management’s estimate of the
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater t@¥b likely of being realized upon settlement fdkalown and measurable tax exposures (see
Note 4).

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with an@ining maturity of three months or less at actjoisito be cash equivalents.

The following table summarizes supplemental Pirm&¢est cash flow information for each of the laseé years (dollars in
thousands):

Years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011

Cash paid during the period fc

Income taxes, net of refun $ 18,537 $ 2,54: % 10,32«

Interest, net of amounts capitaliz 184,01( 200,92: 217,78¢
Significant nor-cash investing and financing activiti

Accrued capital expenditur: $ 33,18 $ 26,20¢ $ 27,24¢

Dividends declared but not pe 62,52¢ 59,78¢

Liabilities assumed relating to acquisition of SE&ur Corners’ interest (see

Note 3) 145,60¢ — —
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Intangible Assets

We have no goodwill recorded and have separatsbiatied other intangible assets, primarily APSfsastre, on Pinnacle West's
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The intangible aasetsmortized over their finite useful lives. Amimation expense was $53 million in 2013,
$50 million in 2012, and $47 million in 2011. Hs#ted amortization expense on existing intangibfe over the next five years is $47
million in 2014, $38 million in 2015, $29 milliomi2016, $19 million in 2017, and $7 million in 2018t December 31, 2013, the weighted-
average remaining amortization period for intargjdbsets was 6 years.

Investments

El Dorado accounts for its investments using eitherequity method (if significant influence) oetbost method (if less than 20%
ownership).

Our investments in the nuclear decommissioning fiured are accounted for in accordance with guidamt accounting for certain
investments in debt and equity securities. See liét@nd Note 20 for more information on these ihvesits.

Business Segments

Pinnacle West's reportable business segment isegulated electricity segment, which consists adlitional regulated retail and
wholesale electricity businesses (primarily eledtyiservice to Native Load customers) and relaetil/ities and includes electricity generati
transmission and distribution. All other segmernivittes are insignificant.

2. New Accounting Standards

During 2013, we adopted, on a retrospective basis, guidance relating to balance sheet offsettisgasures. The new guidance
requires enhanced disclosures regarding an endibjlgy to offset certain instruments on the bakasheet and how offsetting impacts the
balance sheet. The adoption of this guidancetessin expanded disclosures relating to our dexigahstruments (see Note 17), but did not
impact our financial statement results.

During 2013, we also adopted, on a prospectiveshasiwv guidance relating to reporting amounts ssdfi@d from accumulated other
comprehensive income. This guidance requires nselodures relating to accumulated other compreatemscome and how reclassifications
from accumulated other comprehensive income impacincome. As a result of adopting this new goa#a we have included a new footnote
disclosure to provide the information required by hew standard (see Notes 21 and S-4). The adapitihis guidance did not impact our
financial statement results.

In July 2013, new guidance was issued which witlegally require entities to present unrecognizedenefits as a reduction to any
available deferred tax asset for a net operatigg, la similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryfonvafhe intent of this guidance is to eliminate
diversity in practice in the presentation of certanrecognized tax benefits. The new guidancéesteve for us during the first quarter of
2014, and is permitted to be adopted using eithospective or retrospective application. Cutgente do not present unrecognized tax
benefits as a reduction to deferred tax assetfoawsgirds on the balance sheet. As a result, tbptawh of this new guidance
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will impact our balance sheet presentation; howewerdo not expect these presentation changesntabarial to our balance sheet. The
adoption of this new guidance will not impact oesults of operations or cash flows.

3. Regulatory Matters
Retail Rate Case Filing with the Arizona Corporation Commission

On June 1, 2011, APS filed an application with AI&C for a net retail base rate increase of $95/bami APS requested that the
increase become effective July 1, 2012. The raquesld have increased the average retail custdnitidry approximately 6.6%. On
January 6, 2012, APS and other parties to the geregail rate case entered into the 2012 Settlérgreement detailing the terms upon whick
the parties agreed to settle the rate case. Onl8a%012, the ACC approved the 2012 Settlemenéément without material modifications.

Settlement Agreement

The 2012 Settlement Agreement provides for a zet@hange in base rates, consisting of: (1) afnehbase rate increase of $116.3
million; (2) a fuel-related base rate decreasel®3$1 million (to be implemented by a change inBlase Fuel Rate from $0.03757 to $0.0320

per kWh; and (3) the transfer of cost recoverycintain renewable energy projects from the REShsuige to base rates in an estimated an
of $36.8 million.

APS also agreed not to file its next general ratedefore May 31, 2015, and not to request thaieixt general retail rate increase be
effective prior to July 1, 2016. The 2012 Settlain&greement allows APS to request a change toaise rates during the stayt period in thi
event of an extraordinary event that, in the ACGdgment, requires base rate relief in order tdqmtathe public interest. Nor is APS
precluded from seeking rate relief, or any othetypi the 2012 Settlement Agreement precluded fpetitioning the ACC to examine the
reasonableness of APS’s rates, in the event offisignt regulatory developments that materially aopthe financial results expected under the
terms of the 2012 Settlement Agreement.

Other key provisions of the 2012 Settlement Agreanreclude the following:

. An authorized return on common equity of 10.0%;

. A capital structure comprised of 46.1% debt an@%3common equity;

. A test year ended December 31, 2010, adjustecttoda plant that is in service as of March 31, 2012

. Deferral for future recovery or refund of propetdyxes above or below a specified 2010 test yeat aused by changes to
the Arizona property tax rate as follows:
. D((ajferral of 25% in 2012, 50% in 2013 and 75% fot£2@nd subsequent years if Arizona property teesratcrease

an

. Deferral of 100% in all years if Arizona properéxtrates decrease;
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. A procedure to allow APS to request rate adjustspribr to its next general rate case related t8'ARcquisition of
additional interests in Units 4 and 5 and the eglaflosure of Units 1-3 of Four Corners (APS masliéling under this
provision on December 30, 2013, which would resufin average bill impact to residential custonoérapproximately 2% i
approved as requested);

. Implementation of a “Lost Fixed Cost Recovery” ratechanism to support energy efficiency and distet renewable
generation;
. Modifications to the Environmental Improvement Sunae to allow for the recovery of carrying costsdapital

expenditures associated with government-mandateidoemental controls, subject to an existing cgraskWh cap on cost
recovery that could produce up to approximatelyriiion in revenues annually;

. Modifications to the PSA, including the eliminatiohthe 90/10 sharing provision;

. A limitation on the use of the RES surcharge amdDSMAC to recoup capital expenditures not requineder the terms of
the 2009 Settlement Agreement discussed below;

. Allowing a negative credit that existed in the P@#e to continue until February 2013, rather theimdp reset on the
anticipated July 1, 2012 rate effective date;

. Modification of the TCA to streamline the processfuture transmission-related rate changes; and

. Implementation of various changes to rate schedirekiding the adoption of an experimental “buystigh” rate that could
allow certain large commercial and industrial castes to select alternative sources of generatidre teupplied by APS.

The 2012 Settlement Agreement was approved by @€ 8n May 15, 2012, with new rates effective ory yl2012. This
accomplished a goal set by the parties to the 3@®ement Agreement to process subsequent rage wdhin twelve months of sufficiency
findings from the ACC staff, which generally occwithin 30 days after the filing of a rate case.

2008 General Retail Rate Case On-Going Impacts
On December 30, 2009, the ACC issued an order gjpgyrohe 2009 Settlement Agreement entered int&B$ and twenty-one other

parties. The 2009 Settlement Agreement contairtaineon-going requirements, commitments and aightions that will survive the 2012
Settlement Agreement, including the following:

. A commitment from APS to reduce average annualaijmeral expenses by at least $30 million from 28%0ugh 2014;

. Authorization and requirements of equity infusiam® APS of $700 million during the period begingidune 1, 2009
through December 31, 2014 and compliance with vario
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financial conditions, including the maintenanceagfrescribed capital structure (APS was able ta these conditions
without the need for additional equity infusionytied the $253 million infused into APS in the setguarter of 2010); and

. Renewable energy programs that require APS to ekppaiise of renewable energy through 2015, asasedillow for
concurrent recovery of renewable energy expenses.

Cost Recovery Mechanisms
APS has received regulatory decisions that allawrfore timely recovery of certain costs throughftiilowing recovery mechanism

Renewable Energy Standard In 2006, the ACC approved the RES. Under the ReRtric utilities that are regulated by the ACC
must supply an increasing percentage of theirlrel@actric energy sales from eligible renewabl®weses, including solar, wind, biomass,
biogas and geothermal technologies. In order hieae these requirements, the ACC allows APS tludeca RES surcharge as part of
customer bills to recover the approved amountsi$eron renewable energy projects. Each year ARSjisred to file a five-year
implementation plan with the ACC and seek appréwafunding the upcoming year's RES budget.

On July 12, 2013, APS filed its annual RES impletagon plan, covering the 2012B18 timeframe and requesting a 2014 RES bt
of approximately $143 million. In a final ordertdd January 7, 2014, the ACC approved the requéstéget. Also in 2013, the ACC
conducted a hearing to consider APS’s proposattabéish compliance with distributed energy requieats by tracking and recording
distributed energy, rather than acquiring andirggirenewable energy credits. On February 6, 288 1ACC established a proceeding to
modify the renewable energy rules so that utilies establish compliance without using renewahégy credits.

On July 12, 2013, APS filed an application with &k@C proposing a solution to fix the cost shift bght by the current net metering
rules. In its application, APS requested thatAR&C cause all new residential customers instaltiagy rooftop solar systems to either: (i) take
electric service under APS’s demand-based ECTe&aatl remain eligible for net metering; or (ii)@adervice under the customer’s existing
rate as if no distributed energy system was irexdadind receive a bill credit for 100% of the dimited energy system’s output at a market-
based price. APS also proposed that the ACCgréindfather current rates and use of net metedngXisting and immediately pending
distributed energy customers; and (ii) continuagslirect cash incentives for new distributed epéngtallations.

On December 3, 2013, the ACC issued its order o8'&Ret metering proposal. The ACC instituted aghan future customers w
install rooftop solar panels and directed APS twvjote quarterly reports on the pace of rooftop isatboption to assist the ACC in considering
further increases. The charge of $0.70 per kiloatiame effective on January 1, 2014, and is etgdrta collect $4.90 per month from a
typical future rooftop solar customer to help paytheir use of the electricity grid. The new pwligill be in effect until the next APS rate ca

In making its decision, the ACC determined thatdhgent net metering program creates a cost sfaifising non-solar utility
customers to pay higher rates to cover the costsanftaining the
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electrical grid. ACC professional staff and thatss Residential Utility Consumer Office, amonfgetorganizations, also agreed that a cost
shift exists. The fixed charge does not increas8’AlRevenue, but instead will modestly reduce thedct of the cost shift on non-solar
customers. The ACC acknowledged that the new cheddeesses only a portion of the cost shift.

Demand Side Management Adjustor ChargeThe ACC Electric Energy Efficiency Standards liegdPS to submit a Demand Side
Management Implementation Plan for review by anuatayal of the ACC.

On June 1, 2011, APS filed its 2012 Demand Sideddament Implementation Plan consistent with the A@&Iectric Energy
Efficiency Rules, which became effective Januargdl,1. The 2012 requirement under such standarfds cumulative energy efficiency
savings of 3% of APS retail sales for the priorryebhis energy savings requirement is slightlyhleigthan the goal established by the 2009
Settlement Agreement (2.75% of total energy resmsufor the same two-year period). The ACC issuedrder on April 4, 2012, approving
recovery of approximately $72 million of APS’s eggefficiency and demand side management prograts.cd his amount was recovered by
the then existing DSMAC over a twelve-month petiegjinning March 1, 2012. This amount does nouithe!$10 million already being
recovered in general retail base rates, but dasda amortization of 2009 costs (approximatelyn$lion of the $72 million).

On June 1, 2012, APS filed its 2013 Demand Sidedgament Implementation Plan. In 2013, the stasdamguire APS to achieve
cumulative energy savings equal to 5% of its 2@&t2irenergy sales. Later in 2012, APS filed godaipent to its plan that included a propa
budget for 2013 of $87.6 million.

The ACC Staff recommendation and proposed ordsueid on October 30, 2013, largely recommendedragng the status quo,
although at lower funding levels. ACC Staff recoemded approval of all existing cost-effective egegtjiciency and demand response
programs and a budget of $68.9 million going fordvaAPS expects to receive a decision from the AC€&arly 2014.

On June 27, 2013, the ACC voted to open a new dackestigating whether the Electric Energy Effiaty Rules should be modified
or abolished. This spring the ACC will hold a serof three workshops to investigate methodolagses! to determine cost effective energy
efficiency programs, cost recovery mechanisms ritices, and potential changes to the Electric Ené&fficiency and Resource Planning
Rules.

PSA Mechanism and BalanceThe PSA provides for the adjustment of retail rateeflect variations in retail fuel and purchased
power costs. The PSA is subject to specified patara and procedures, including the following:

. APS records deferrals for recovery or refund toaktent actual retail fuel and purchased powerscesty from the Base
Fuel Rate;
. an adjustment to the PSA rate is made annually Eabluary ' (unless otherwise approved by the A&td)goes into

effect automatically unless suspended by the ACC,;

. the PSA uses a forward-looking estimate of fuel pmethased power costs to set the annual PSAwahteh is reconciled to
actual costs experienced for each PSA Year (Feputrough January 31) (see the following bulleing);
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. the PSA rate includes (a) a “Forward Componentdanwhich APS recovers or refunds differences betwexpected fuel
and purchased power costs for the upcoming calgredarand those embedded in the Base Fuel Rata;“fistorical
Component,” under which differences between adtigdland purchased power costs and those recotten@ayh the
combination of the Base Fuel Rate and the Forwamgbnent are recovered during the next PSA Year{@na “Transition
Component,” under which APS may seek mid-year Pissges due to large variances between actual fidgbarchased
power costs and the combination of the Base Fuid &ad the Forward Component; and

. the PSA rate may not be increased or decreasedthraneb0.004 per kWh in a year without permissibthe ACC.

The following table shows the changes in the detefuel and purchased power regulatory asset fb8 20d 2012 (dollars in
millions):

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 73 % 28
Deferred fuel and purchased power c« current perioc (22) (72)
Amounts (charged) credited to customers (31) 117
Ending balance $ 21 $ 73

The PSA rate for the PSA year beginning Februa014 is $0.001557 per kWh, as compared to $0.0Dpa2 kWh for the prior
year. This represents a $0.000228 per kWh increesethe 2013 PSA charge. This new rate is caegrof a forward component
$0.001277 per kwWh and a historical component dd@280 per kWh. Any uncollected (overcollectededmls during the 2014 PSA year \
be included in the calculation of the PSA ratetfar PSA year beginning February 1, 2015.

Transmission Rates, Transmission Cost Adjustor &ther Transmission Matters In July 2008, FERC approved an Open Access
Transmission Tariff for APS to move from fixed rat® a formula rate-setting methodology in ordemtwre accurately reflect and recover the
costs that APS incurs in providing transmissiowises. A large portion of the rate represents ghsufor transmission services to serve APS's
retail customers (“Retail Transmission Chargesii) order to recover the Retail Transmission Char§&S was previously required to file an
application with, and obtain approval from, the A@Ceflect changes in Retail Transmission Chatlgemugh the TCA. Under the terms of
2012 Settlement Agreement (discussed above), haowavedjustment to rates to recover the Retaihdmassion Charges will be made
annually each June 1 and will go into effect autiically unless suspended by the ACC.

The formula rate is updated each year effective Juon the basis of APS’s actual cost of servisalisclosed in APS’s FERC Form 1
report for the previous fiscal year. Items to pdated include actual capital expenditures madmapared with previous projections,
transmission revenue credits and other items. ré&salution of proposed adjustments can resultgniicant volatility in the revenues to be
collected. APS reviews the proposed formula riitegfamounts with the ACC staff. Any items or asjiments which are not agreed to by /
and the ACC staff can remain in dispute until
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settled or litigated at FERC. Settlement or liteghresolution of disputed issues could requirexdanded period of time and could have a
significant effect on the Retail Transmission Cleabgcause any adjustment, though applied prospégctinay be calculated to account for
previously over- or under-collected amounts.

Effective June 1, 2012, APS’s annual wholesalestrassion rates for all users of its transmissistesy increased by approximately
$16 million for the twelve-month period beginningné 1, 2012 in accordance with the FERC-approveddta.

Effective June 1, 2013, APS’s annual wholesalestrassion rates for all users of its transmissiastesy increased by approximately
$26 million for the twelve-month period beginningné 1, 2013 in accordance with the FERC-approveddta. Pursuant to the 2012
Settlement Agreement (discussed above), an adjnstm@PS'’s retail rates to recover FERC-approvaddmission charges went into effect
automatically on June 1, 2013.

Lost Fixed Cost Recovery MechanismThe LFCR mechanism permits APS to recover onfian-the-fact basis a portion of its fixed
costs that would otherwise have been collected Bg A the kWh sales lost due to APS energy effagigarograms and to distributed
generation such as rooftop solar arrays. The foasds recoverable by the LFCR mechanism wereledial in the 2012 Settlement
Agreement and amount to approximately 3.1 centsgmdential kWh lost and 2.3 cents per non-regidekWh lost. The kWh'’s lost from
energy efficiency are based on a third-party evadnaf APS’s energy efficiency programs. Distitibd generation sales losses are determine
from the metered output from the distributed geti@naunits or if metering is unavailable, througitepted estimating techniques.

APS filed its first LFCR adjustment on January 2813 and will file for a LFCR adjustment every Januthereafter. On February
2013, the ACC approved a LFCR adjustment of $5lliamj representing a pro-rated amount for 2012eithe 2012 Settlement Agreement
went into effect on July 1, 2012. APS filed itslaCannual LFCR adjustment on January 15, 2014 gsting a LFCR adjustment of $25.3
million, effective March 1, 2014. APS anticipatbeat the ACC will consider whether to approve APISXCR adjustment prior to the end of
March 2014.

Deregulation

On May 9, 2013, the ACC voted to re-examine thdifaton of a deregulated retail electric marketArizona. The ACC
subsequently opened a docket for this matter azelved comments from a number of interested paotiethe considerations involved in
establishing retail electric deregulation in thetest One of these considerations is whether vaidspects of a deregulated market, including
setting utility rates on a “market” basis, woulddmnsistent with the requirements of the Arizona&ibution. On September 11, 2013, after
receiving legal advice from the ACC staff, the A€@ted 4-1 to close the current docket and awadlitGohstitutional authority before any
further examination of this matter. The motion rgyed by the ACC also included opening one or nmene dockets in the future to explore
options to offer more rate choices to customersimnolvative changes within the existing cost-ofvgss regulatory model that could include
elements of competition. The ACC opened a new eloek November 4, 2013 to explore technologicahades and innovative changes wi
the electric utility industry. Workshops in thisaket are expected to be held in 2014.
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Four Corners

On December 30, 2013, APS purchased SCE’s 48% ahipanterest in each of Units 4 and 5 of Four @osn As a result of this
purchase, APS now owns 63% of Units 4 and 5. A&Sdhtotal entittement from Four Corners of 970 MWe final purchase price for the
interest was approximately $182 million. APS acegdiassets and assumed certain of SCE’s decommiiggiand mine reclamation
obligations. We have recognized plantsirvice, net of accumulated depreciation, of $3illiom, which includes an acquisition adjustmen
$255 million. In addition, we have recognizedabliity of $34 million for the decommissioning ofditions, $93 million for the mine
reclamation obligations, $18 million of other vartoliabilities, and $11 million of construction vikan progress relating to this purchase. Tl
amounts are subject to revision during the measeméperiod, not to exceed one year, to the extditianal information is obtained about the
facts and circumstances that existed as of theigitiqn date. While we expect the ACC to apprdwe tecovery of the acquisition adjustment,
should recovery be disallowed, it will be reclaigsiffrom plant-inservice to goodwill, subject to impairment testinthe decommissioning a
mine reclamation obligations were recognized at flag value. Because APS’s rates are regulad®§ expects to recover the costs of the
acquired plant assets, including a return on itestment based on its cost of capital. APS bedighis return is consistent with what a market
participant would consider to be fair value in AB®&gulatory environment. Accordingly, APS beligtiee cost of the plant assets approxir
their fair value.

The 2012 Settlement Agreement includes a proceduaiow APS to request rate adjustments priotsméxt general rate case rela
to APS’s acquisition of additional interests in t$nd and 5 and the related closure of Units 1-Bafr Corners. APS made its filing under this
provision on December 30, 2013. This includes mafdor future recovery of all non-fuel operatingst for the acquired SCE interest in Four
Corners, net of the non-fuel operating costs saviegulting from the closure of Four Corners Uhi3. The 2012 Settlement Agreement also
provides for deferral for future recovery of allrenovered costs incurred in connection with thewle of Four Corners Units3.- The deferre
balance related to the acquisition of SCE'’s inteiret/nits 4 and 5 and the closure of Four Corémis 1-3 was $37 million as of
December 31, 2013.

As part of APS’s acquisition of SCE’s interest init$ 4 and 5 of Four Corners, APS and SCE agread Wransmission Terminatic
Agreement,” that upon closing of the acquisitidre tompanies would terminate an existing transomsagreement (“Transmission
Agreement”) between the parties that provides trassion capacity on a system (the “Arizona Transiais System”) for SCE to transmit its
portion of the output from Four Corners to CalifiernAPS previously submitted a request to FER&teel to this termination, which resulte
a FERC order denying rate recovery of $40 millioattAPS agreed to pay SCE associated with thenatron. APS and SCE negotiated an
alternate arrangement under which SCE will assgyti,655 MW capacity rights over the Arizona Traission System to third-parties,
including 300 MW to APS’s marketing and trading gpdor transmission of the additional power recdifrem Four Corners. This
arrangement becomes effective upon FERC approdalvilhremain in effect until the net payments reeel by SCE in connection with the
assignments reach $40 million, at which time thraragement and the Transmission Agreement will teatei. APS believes that FERC will
approve the alternate arrangement as filed bagtibpproved, SCE and APS will again be subjetiiéaderms of the Transmission Terminatior
Agreement. As we previously disclosed, APS bebebat the original denial by FERC of rate recowanger the Transmission Termination
Agreement constitutes the failure of a conditioat tielieves APS of its obligations under that agreet. If APS and SCE were unable to
determine a resolution through negotiation, then$naission Termination Agreement requires that despbe resolved through arbitration.
APS is unable to predict the outcome of this mattéiproceeds to arbitration.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The detail of regulatory assets is as follows @slin millions):

Remaining
Amortization December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Period Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Pension and other postretirement benefits @ $ — $ 314 $ — $ 78C
Income taxe— AFUDC equity 204z 4 10t 4 92
Deferred fuel and purchased power — mark-to-mar
(Note 17) 201¢ 5 29 19 21
Transmission vegetation managem 201¢ 9 14 9 23
Coal reclamatiol 203¢ 8 18 8 24
Palo Verde VIEs (Note 1¢ 204¢ — 41 — 38
Deferred compensatic 203¢ — 34 — 34
Deferred fuel and purchased power (b) 201¢ 21 — 73 —
Tax expense of Medicare subs 2023 2 15 2 17
Loss on reacquired de 203¢ 1 17 2 18
Income taxe— investment tax credit basis adjustm 2043 1 39 1 26
Pension and other postretirement benefits def 201t 8 4 8 13
Four Corners cost defert 2022 — 37 — —
Lost fixed cost recover 201¢ 25 — 7 —
Transmission cost adjust 201t 8 2 10 —
Retired power plant cos 202(C 3 18 — —
Other Various 2 25 1 14
Total regulatory assets (d) $ 97 $ 71z $ 144 $ 1,10(
(a) This asset represents the future recovery of ufudeted pension and other postretirement benefigatibns through retail
rates. If these costs are disallowed by the AG(S,regulatory asset would be charged to OCI asdlrén lower future
revenues. See Note 8 for further discussion.

(b) See “Cost Recovery Mechanisms” discussion above.

(c) Subject to a carrying charge.

(d) There are no regulatory assets for which the ACCaflawed recovery of costs, but not allowed arrehy exclusion from

rate base. FERC rates are set using a formulasadescribed in “Transmission Rates and Transomis3ost Adjustor.”
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The detail of regulatory liabilities is as follodollars in millions):

Remaining
Amortization December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Period Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Removal costs @ $ 28 $ 30 % 27 $ 321
Asset retirement obligatior (a) — 26€ — 25€
Renewable energy standard 201t 33 15 43 —
Income taxe— change in rate 204z — 74 — 66
Spent nuclear fue 2047 6 36 10 36
Deferred gains on utility proper 201¢ 2 1C 2 12
Income taxe— deferred investment tax cre: 204z 3 79 2 52
Demand side management 201¢ 27 — 4 —
Other Various o 18 — 16
Total regulatory liabilities $ 99 3 801 $ 88 $ 75¢
€) In accordance with regulatory accounting guida®d®$ accrues for removal costs for its regulatedtassven if there is no
legal obligation for removal (see Note 12).
(b) See “Cost Recovery Mechanisms” discussion above.

4, Income Taxes

Certain assets and liabilities are reported diffdyefor income tax purposes than they are forriial statement purposes. The tax
effect of these differences is recorded as defdeeels. We calculate deferred taxes using cuyremécted income tax rates.

APS has recorded regulatory assets and regulaatnijities related to income taxes on its Balanbees in accordance with
accounting guidance for regulated operations. rébelatory assets are for certain temporary diffees, primarily the allowance for equity
funds used during construction and pension and gih&tretirement benefits. The regulatory lialgtprimarily relate to deferred taxes
resulting from investment tax credits (“ITC”") arftetchange in income tax rates.

In accordance with regulatory requirements, APSda€ deferred and are amortized over the lifb@fé¢lated property with such
amortization applied as a credit to reduce curirdme tax expense in the statement of income.

The $70 million long-term income tax receivabletba Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemb&032, represented the
anticipated refund related to an APS tax accountiethod change approved by the IRS in the thirdtquaf 2009. On July 9, 2013, IRS
guidance was released which provided clarificategarding the timing and amount of this cash race#ys a result of this guidance, uncertain
tax positions decreased $67 million during thedtlgjuarter. This decrease in uncertain tax postresulted in a corresponding increase to the
total anticipated refund due from the IRS and dsetfing increase in long-term deferred tax lidi@§. Additionally, as a result of this IRS
guidance, the resulting $137 million anticipatefiinel was reclassified to current income tax redegiva
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, the IR8ified the examination of tax returns for the gearded December 31, 2008 anc
2009, and the $137 million anticipated refund weduced by approximately $4 million to reflect theamme of this examination. On
December 17, 2013, the Joint Committee on Taxatpgproved the anticipated refund. Cash relatelisoréfund was received in the first
quarter of 2014.

On September 13, 2013, the U.S. Treasury Departratz@sed final income tax regulations on the didln@nd capitalization of
expenditures related to tangible property. Thesa fegulations apply to tax years beginning oafter January 1, 2014. Several of the
provisions within the regulations will require & @ccounting method change to be filed with the,IRSulting in a cumulative effect
adjustment. To account for the adoption of theggilations, plant-related long-term deferred takilities decreased by $84 million, with the
offsetting decrease to current deferred incomeassets. Prior to the issuance of these regulatibiss$84 million would have been repaid ¢
20 years through lower tax depreciation deductions.

Net income associated with the Palo Verde salebsak VIES is not subject to tax (see Note 19).aAssult, there is no income tax
expense associated with the VIEs recorded on timsdidated Statements of Income.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of theadbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excluditerest and penalties, at the
beginning and end of the year that are includeatarued taxes and unrecognized tax benefits (daliahousands):

2013 2012 2011

Total unrecognized tax benefits, January 1 $ 133,42: $ 136,00 $ 127,59}
Additions for tax positions of the current y¢ 3,51¢ 5,167 10,91t
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 13,15¢ — —
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 1

Changes in judgmel (108,099 (7,729 (1,55

Settlements with taxing authoriti — (129

Lapses of applicable statute of limitations — (21) (82€)
Total unrecognized tax benefits, December 31 $ 41,99 $ 133,42. $ 136,00!

Included in the balances of unrecognized tax benafiDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were appadely $10 million, $10
million and $8 million, respectively, of tax positis that, if recognized, would decrease our effedtx rate.

As of the balance sheet date, the tax year endedrblger 31, 2010 and all subsequent tax years resnhjact to examination by the
IRS. With a few exceptions, we are no longer sttlfie state income tax examinations by tax auttesrfior years before 2010.

We reflect interest and penalties, if any, on uageized tax benefits in the Consolidated Statemafliscome as income tax expen:
The amount of interest recognized in the Consaddidiat
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Statements of Income related to unrecognized tarfiie was a pre-tax benefit of $4 million for 20&3pre-tax expense of $4 million for 2012,
and a pre-tax expense of $3 million for 2011.

The total amount of accrued liabilities for intare=cognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheedseko unrecognized tax benefits
was less than $1 million as of December 31, 2013, rfillion as of December 31, 2012 and $9 millisrodDecember 31, 2011. To the extent
that matters are settled favorably, this amountccoeverse and decrease our effective tax rateditidaally, as of December 31, 2013, we h
recognized $5 million of interest income to be reeé on the overpayment of income taxes for ceraijustments that we have filed, or will
file, with the IRS.

The components of income tax expense are as folldelkars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Current:

Federal $ (81,784 $ (3,499 $ (310

State 10,53: 8,39t 15,14(
Total current (71,24)) 4,907 14,83(
Deferred:

Federal 279,97: 200,32: 159,56¢

State 21,86¢ 28,28( 16,62¢
Total deferred 301,83t 228,60. 176,19.
Total income tax expense 230,59: 233,50: 191,02.
Less: income tax expense (benefit) on discontiropedations — (3,819 7,41¢
Income tax expense — continuing operations $ 230,59. $ 237,31 $ 183,60«
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The following chart compares pretax income fromttwring operations at the 35% federal income téx ta income tax expense —
continuing operations (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Federal income tax expense at 35% statutory $ 234,69! $ 229,70¢ $ 188,73:
Increases (reductions) in tax expense resulting f
State income tax net of federal income tax bel 21,38: 23,81¢ 19,59¢
Credits and favorable adjustments related to years resolved in
current yea (3,356 — —
Medicare Subsidy P&«D 823 48: 823
Allowance for equity funds used during constructisee Note 1 (6,997) (6,15¢) (6,88))
Palo Verde VIE noncontrolling interest (see Notg (11,867) (11,065 (9,636
Other (4,099 52¢ (9,029
Income tax expense — continuing operations $ 230,59. $ 237,31 $ 183,60«

The following table shows the net deferred incomeliability recognized on the Consolidated BalaBteets (dollars in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Current asset $ 91,15 $ 152,19:
Long-term liability (2,351,88) (2,151,37)
Deferred income taxes — net $ (2,260,73) $  (1,999,18)

On February 17, 2011, Arizona enacted legislatidfB(2001) that included a four-year phase-in agpooate income tax rate
reductions beginning in 2014. As a result of theserate reductions, Pinnacle West has reviseththeate applicable to reversing temporary
items in Arizona. In accordance with accountingregulated companies, the benefit of this rateicddn is substantially offset by a regulatory
liability. As of December 31, 2013 APS has recdrdeaegulatory liability of $75 million, with a c&sponding decrease in accumulated
deferred income tax liabilities, to reflect the iagp of this change in tax law.

On April 4, 2013, New Mexico enacted legislationBH641) that included a five-year phasesf corporate income tax rate reductit
beginning in 2014. As a result of these tax rathuctions, Pinnacle West has revised the tax mgilicable to reversing temporary items in
New Mexico. In accordance with accounting for regedl companies, the benefit of this rate redudiaubstantially offset by a regulatc
liability. As of December 31, 2013, APS has reeard regulatory liability of $2
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million, with a corresponding decrease in accunadateferred income tax liabilities, to reflect thaact of this change in tax law.

The components of the net deferred income taxliiglvere as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
DEFERRED TAX ASSET¢
Risk management activitit $ 4492( $ 72,24
Regulatory liabilities
Asset retirement obligation and removal c« 235,95¢ 238,66¢
Unamortized investment tax cred 82,11¢ 53,83}
Other 42,60¢ 33,76¢
Pension and other postretirement liabili 198,64. 408,76«
Renewable energy incentiv 65,43¢ 66,94
Credit and loss carryforwari 133,07( 139,02:
Other 148,49. 68,84«
Total deferred tax assets 951,24, 1,082,08.
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Plan-related (2,903,73) (2,584,16)
Risk management activitit (16,199 (23,940
Regulatory asset
Allowance for equity funds used during construct (43,059 (37,899
Deferred fuel and purchased pov (8,282) (28,859
Deferred fuel and purchased pov— mark-to-market (13,349 (15,79¢)
Pension and other postretirement ben: (129,25() (316,75)
Other (93,207 (68,170
Other (4,916 (5,67¢)
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,211,97) (3,081,269
Deferred income taxes — net $ (2,260,73) $  (1,999,18)

As of December 31, 2013, the deferred tax assetgédlit and loss carryforwards relate to fedeealagal business credits of $131
million which first begin to expire in 2031, anchet federal and state loss carryforwards of $2ienillvhich first begin to expire in 2018.
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5. Lines of Credit and Short-Term Borrowings

The table below presents the consolidated crediiitias and the amounts available and outstandggf December 31, 2013 (dollars
in millions):

Amount Unused Commitment
Credit Facility Expiration Committed Amount (a) Fees
Pinnacle West Revolving Credit Facil November 201t  $ 20C $ 20C 0.175%
APS Revolving Credit Facilit November 201! 50C 347 0.125%
APS Revolving Credit Facility April 2018 50C 50C 0.12%%
Total $ 1,20C $ 1,04

€)) At December 31, 2013, APS had $153 million of arging commercial paper. Accordingly, at such déie total
combined amount available under its two $500 nrilikoedit facilities was $847 million.

Pinnacle West and APS maintain committed revolareglit facilities in order to enhance liquidity apabvide credit support for their
commercial paper programs.

Pinnacle West

At December 31, 2013, the Pinnacle West creditifacwhich terminates in November 2016, was ava#ao refinance indebtedness
of the Company and for other general corporategaesg, including credit support for its $200 millloommercial paper program. Pinnacle
West has the option to increase the amount ofabiitfy up to a maximum of $300 million upon thdistaction of certain conditions and with
the consent of the lenders. At December 31, 2Riiacle West had no outstanding borrowings urtdaredit facility, no letters of credit and
no commercial paper borrowings.

APS

On April 9, 2013, APS refinanced its $500 millia@volving credit facility that would have maturedrebruary 2015, with a new $5
million facility. The new revolving credit facijitmatures in April 2018.

At December 31, 2013, APS had two credit facilitetsling $1 billion, including a $500 million criédacility that was refinanced in
April 2013 (see above) and a $500 million crediflfty that matures in November 2016. APS may éace the amount of each facility up to a
maximum of $700 million upon the satisfaction oftaén conditions and with the consent of the lesdekPS can use these facilities to
refinance indebtedness and for other general catpg@urposes. Interest rates are based on APS&r smsecured debt credit ratings.

APS may increase the amount of each facility up teaximum of $700 million upon the satisfactiorceftain conditions and with the
consent of the lenders. APS will use these féedlito refinance indebtedness and for other gegerpbrate purposes. Interest rates are base
on APS’s senior unsecured debt credit ratings.

The facilities described above are available tgsupAPS’s $250 million commercial paper prograor,fank borrowings or for
issuances of letters of credit. At December 3132@PS had no outstanding borrowings or lettersredlit under its revolving credit facilities.
In addition, APS had commercial paper borrowing$X#3 million at December 31, 2013.
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See “Financial Assurances” in Note 11 for a disussef APS’s separate outstanding letters of credit

The table below presents the consolidated crediiitias and the amounts available and outstandggf December 31, 2012 (dollars
in millions):

Amount Unused Commitment
Credit Facility Expiration Committed Amount (a) Fees
Pinnacle West Revolving Credit Facil November 201t  $ 20C $ 20C 0.225%
APS Revolving Credit Facilit November 201! 50C 40¢ 0.17%%
APS Revolving Credit Facility February 201! 50C 50C 0.2(%
Total $ 1,20C $ 1,10¢

€) At December 31, 2012, APS had $92 million of outdtag commercial paper. Accordingly, at such daéetotal combined
amount available under its two $500 million crdditilities was $908 million.

Pinnacle West and APS maintain committed revolareglit facilities in order to enhance liquidity apabvide credit support for their
commercial paper programs.

Pinnacle West

At December 31, 2012, the Pinnacle West creditifacivhich matures in November 2016, was availableefinance indebtedness of
the Company and for other general corporate pug@seluding credit support for its $200 millionramercial paper program. Pinnacle West
has the option to increase the amount of the facil to a maximum of $300 million upon the sat$ian of certain conditions and with the
consent of the lenders. At December 31, 2012,&RilerWest had no outstanding borrowings underdédicfacility, no letters of credit and no
commercial paper borrowings.

APS

APS may increase the amount of each facility up teaximum of $700 million upon the satisfactiorceftain conditions and with the
consent of the lenders. APS will use these féedlito refinance indebtedness and for other generpbrate purposes. Interest rates are base
on APS’s senior unsecured debt credit ratings.

The facilities described above are available tgsupAPS’s $250 million commercial paper prograor,fank borrowings or for
issuances of letters of credit. At December 312@PS had no outstanding borrowings or lettersredlit under its revolving credit facilities.
In addition, APS had commercial paper borrowing$ million at December 31, 2012.

See “Financial Assurances” in Note 11 for a disussef APS’s separate outstanding letters of credit
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Debt Provisions

Although provisions in APS’s articles of incorpacat and ACC financing orders establish maximum am®uof preferred stock and
debt that APS may issue, APS does not expect athyeeé provisions to limit its ability to meet @apital requirements. On February 6, 2013,
the ACC issued a financing order in which, subjectpecified parameters and procedures, it (a)owedrAPS’s short-term debt authorization
equal to a sum of (i) 7% of APS’s capitalizationddii) $500 million (which is required to be uskd costs relating to purchases of natural ga:
and power), (b) approved an increase in APS’s kemgr debt authorization from $4.2 billion to $5illibn in light of the projected growth of
APS and its customer base and the resulting pegjdatancing needs, and (c) authorized APS to enterderivative financial instruments for
the purpose of managing interest rate risk assatiatth its long- and short-term debt. This finagoorder is set to expire on December 31,
2017.

6. Long-Term Debt and Liquidity Matters

All of Pinnacle West's and APS’s debt is unsecur&te following table presents the components nfterm debt on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets outstanding at Dece®ih@013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Maturity Interest December 31
Dates (a) Rates 2013 2012
APS
Pollution Control Bonds
Variable 202¢-2038 (b) $ 75,58( $ 75,58(
Fixed 2024-2034 1.25%-6.00% 426,12! 490,27!
Total Pollution Control Bonds 501,70! 565,85!
Senior unsecured not 2014-2042 4.50%-8.75% 2,675,00! 2,575,00!
Palo Verde sale leaseback lessor n 2015 8.00% 38,86¢ 65,54°
Unamortized discour (8,732) (9,48¢)
Unamortized premium 5,04 —
Total APS long-term debt 3,211,88 3,196,91
Less current maturities (d) 540,42 122,82!
Total APS long-term debt less current maturities 2,671,46! 3,074,08:
Pinnacle West
Term loan 2015 (c) 125,00( 125,00!
TOTAL LONG -TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT
MATURITIES $ 2,796,461 $ 3,199,08
€) This schedule does not reflect the timing of redéong that may occur prior to maturities.

(b) The weighted-average rate for the variable rateifpoh control bonds was 0.03%-0.06% at Decembe2813 and 0.13%-
0.15% at December 31, 2012.

(c) The weighted-average interest rate was 1.269% eg¢ier 31, 2013 and 1.312% at December 31, 2012.

(d) Current maturities include $215 million of polluti@ontrol bonds expected to be remarketed in 20845800 million in
senior unsecured notes that mature in 2014.
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The following table shows principal payments duePiimacle West's and APS'’s total long-term debtléls in millions):

Consolidated Consolidated
Year Pinnacle West APS
2014 $ 54C $ 54C
2015 47C 34t
2016 35¢ 35¢
2017 — —
2018 32 32
Thereafter 1,94( 1,94(
Total $ 3,34 $ 3,21F

Debt Fair Value

Our long-term debt fair value estimates are basegumted market prices for the same or similardssand are classified within level
2 of the fair value hierarchy. Certain of our difstruments contain third-party credit enhancemand, in accordance with GAAP, we do not
consider the effect of these credit enhancemenénwletermining fair value. The following table megents the estimated fair value of our
long-term debt, including current maturities (dadlan millions):

As of As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Pinnacle Wes $ 12t 3 12t 3 12t 3 12t
APS 3,212 3,45¢ 3,197 3,75(
Total $ 3331 $ 3,57¢ $ 3,32: $ 3,87¢

Credit Facilities and Debt Issuances
APS

On March 22, 2013, APS issued an additional $10Bomipar amount of its outstanding 4.50% unsecww®muior notes that mature on
April 1, 2042. The net proceeds from the sale wse to repay short-term commercial paper borrgsvand replenish cash used to redeem
certain tax-exempt indebtedness in November 2012.

On May 1, 2013, APS purchased all $32 million & Maricopa County, Arizona Pollution Control Coration Pollution Control
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2009 Series C, due 2020May 28, 2013, we remarketed the bonds. Theasteate for these bonds was set to
new term rate. The new term rate for these bonds,esubject to a mandatory tender, on May 30, 2@@ing this time, the bonds will bear
interest at a rate of 1.75% per annum. These bargdslassified as long-term debt on our Consdidl&alance Sheets at December 31, 2013
and were classified as current maturities of laergatdebt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets atrileee31, 2012.
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On July 12, 2013, APS purchased all $33 milliothaf Coconino County, Arizona Pollution Control Corgtion Pollution Control
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 1994 Series A, due 2@BJanuary 15, 2014, these bonds were cancelegseTionds were classified as current
maturities of long-term debt on our ConsolidatetbBee Sheets at December 31, 2012.

On October 11, 2013, APS purchased all $32 miltibthe City of Farmington, New Mexico Pollution Gool Revenue Bonds, 1994
Series C, due 2024. On January 15, 2014, thesishoere canceled. These bonds were classifiedreent maturities of long-term debt on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 32, 201

On January 10, 2014, APS issued $250 million 0®% Tinsecured senior notes that mature on JanuaB048. The proceeds from
the sale were used to repay commercial paper widchused to fund the purchase price and costsias=bavith the acquisition of SCE’s 48%
ownership interest in each of Units 4 and 5 of Rbarners and to replenish cash used to re-acquoreseéries of tax-exempt indebtedness.

See “Lines of Credit and Short-Term Borrowings'Nate 5 and “Financial Assurances” in Note 11 farcdission of APS'’s other
letters of credit.

Debt Provisions

Pinnacle West's and APS’s debt covenants relatélkio respective bank financing arrangements dgelmaximum debt to
capitalization ratios. Pinnacle West and APS comyti this covenant. For both Pinnacle West an&AfRis covenant requires that the ratio
of consolidated debt to total consolidated cagdion not exceed 65%. At December 31, 2013,dtie was approximately 47% for Pinnacle
West and 45% for APS. Failure to comply with saolienant levels would result in an event of defadlich, generally speaking, would
require the immediate repayment of the debt sulbjeitte covenants and could cross-default othet. d&be further discussion of “cross-
default” provisions below.

Neither Pinnacle West's nor APS’s financing agreet®ieontain “rating triggers” that would resultan acceleration of the required
interest and principal payments in the event afteng downgrade. However, our bank credit agre¢sneantain a pricing grid in which the
interest rates we pay for borrowings thereundedatermined by our current credit ratings.

All of Pinnacle West's loan agreements contain $srdefault” provisions that would result in defawdnd the potential acceleration of
payment under these loan agreements if Pinnacle ®WédPS were to default under certain other matejreements. All of APS’s bank
agreements contain cross-default provisions thatidwesult in defaults and the potential acceleratif payment under these bank agreement
if APS were to default under certain other mateagieements. Pinnacle West and APS do not hawexial adverse change restriction for
credit facility borrowings.

An existing ACC order requires APS to maintain enawon equity ratio of at least 40%. As definedhia ACC order, the common
equity ratio is total shareholder equity dividedtbg sum of total shareholder equity and long-tdet, including current maturities of long-
term debt. At December 31, 2013, APS was in caanpk with this common equity ratio requiremens. tétal shareholder equity was
approximately $4.3 billion, and total capitalizatiovas approximately $7.5 billion. APS would behpbited from paying dividends if the
payment would reduce its total shareholder equétpw approximately $3.0 billion, assuming APS’statapitalization remains the
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same. Since APS was in compliance with this comempnty ratio requirement, this restriction does materially affect Pinnacle West's
ability to meet its ongoing capital requirements.

7. Common Stock and Treasury Stock

Our common stock and treasury stock activity dugagh of the three years 2013, 2012 and 201 1falawss (dollars in thousands):

Common Stock Treasury Stock
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance at December 31, 2010 108,820,06 $  2,421,37. (50,410 $ (2,239
Common stock issuant 536,90 22,87t — —
Purchase of treasury stock — — (88,44() (3,720
Reissuance of treasury stock for stock compensation — — 27,68¢ 1,24:
Balance at December 31, 2011 109,356,97 2,444.24 (111,16) (4,715
Common stock issuant 480,98: 22,67¢ — —
Purchase of treasury stock — — (89,629 (4,607)
Reissuance of treasury stock for stock compensation — — 105,59¢ 5,11:
Balance at December 31, 2012 109,837,95 2,466,92. (95,197 (4,21))
Common stock issuant 442,74t 24,63¢ — —
Purchase of treasury stock — — (174,29() (9,727
Reissuance of treasury stock for stock compensation — — 170,53t 9,63(
Balance at December 31, 2013 110,280,70 $ 2,491,55! (98,949 $ (4,309%)
€)) Primarily represents shares of common stock withFreim certain stock awards for tax purposes.

At December 31, 2013, Pinnacle West had 10 milllbares of serial preferred stock authorized witlpaiovalue, none of which was
outstanding, and APS had 15,535,000 shares ofustipes of preferred stock authorized with $2%), 8d $100 par values, none of which
was outstanding.

8. Retirement Plans and Other Benefits

Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined beaafitaccount balance pension plan (The Pinnacle @&gstal Corporation
Retirement Plan) and a non-qualified supplementadss benefit retirement plan for the employedBiomfiacle West and its subsidiaries. All
new employees participate in the account balarexe. pDefined benefit plans specify the amount aofefies a plan participant is to receive
using information about the participant. The pengilan covers nearly all employees. The supplémhemrcess benefit retirement plan covers
officers of the Company and highly compensated eyg#s designated for participation by the BoarBiogctors. Our employees do not
contribute to the plans. Generally, we calculbtelienefits based on age, years of service and pay.
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Pinnacle West also sponsors an other postretirebssmfit plan (Pinnacle West Capital Corporationupr Life and Medical Plan) for
the employees of Pinnacle West and its subsidiafiéss plan provides medical and life insurancedfiés to retired employees. Employees
must retire to become eligible for these retirenmefits, which are based on years of serviceaged For the medical insurance plan, reti
make contributions to cover a portion of the plasts. For the life insurance plan, retirees donmake contributions. We retain the right to
change or eliminate these benefits.

Pinnacle West uses a December 31 measurementattdteear for its pension and other postretiremenebt plans. The market-
related value of our plan assets is their fair @altithe measurement date. See Note 14 for fuiitkenssion of how fair values are determin
Due to subjective and complex judgments, which tayequired in determining fair values, actual itsstould differ from the results
estimated through the application of these methods.

A significant portion of the changes in the actabgiains and losses of our pension and postretiteplans is attributable to APS and
therefore is recoverable in rates. Accordinglgsthchanges are recorded as a regulatory asset.2009 retail rate case settlement, APS
received approval to defer a portion of pension @thér postretirement benefit cost increases ieclim 2011 and 2012. We deferred pension
and other postretirement benefit costs of approtéipa&14 million in 2012 and $11 million in 201Pursuant to an ACC regulatory order, we
began amortizing the regulatory asset over 3 yeagsning in July 2012. We amortized approximag&gymillion during 2013 and $4 million
during 2012.

The following table provides details of the planst periodic benefit costs and the portion of thessts charged to expense (including
administrative costs and excluding amounts capédlias overhead construction, billed to elect@mpparticipants or charged to the regulatory
asset) (dollars in thousands):
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Pension Other Benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Service cost-benefits earned during th

period $ 64,19t $ 63,50: $ 57,60t $ 23597 $ 27,161 $ 21,85¢
Interest cost on benefit obligatir 112,39. 119,58t 124,72 41,53¢ 46,46" 46,80"
Expected return on plan ass (146,33 (140,979 (133,679 (45,717 (45,797 (41,536
Amortization of:

Transition obligatior — — — — 452 452

Prior service cost (credi 1,097 1,14 1,40( (179 (179 a79

Net actuarial los 39,85: 44,25( 25,95¢ 11,31( 20,23: 15,01¢
Net periodic benefit co: $ 71,200 $ 87,50: $ 76,01( $ 3054 $ 48,34! $ 42,41t
Portion of cost charged to exper $ 38,96¢ $ 36,331 $ 2931 $ 18,46¢ $ 19,320 $ 15,20¢

The following table shows the plans’ changes inttérefit obligations and funded status for the y@&x1 3 and 2012 (dollars in
thousands):

Pension Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at January $ 2,850,841 $ 2,699,121 $ 990,41¢ $ 1,047,09.

Service cos 64,19t 63,50: 23,597 27,16

Interest cos 112,39: 119,58t 41,53¢ 46,46

Benefit payment (125,269 (113,63) (26,67%) (26,279

Actuarial (gain) loss (255,639 82,26¢ (138,459 (104,02)

Benefit obligation at December : 2,646,53| 2,850,84! 890,41¢ 990,41¢
Change in Plan Asset:

Fair value of plan assets at Janua 2,079,18: 1,850,55! 684,22: 608,66.

Actual return on plan asse 150,54¢ 259,36: 76,99¢ 83,56

Employer contribution 140,50( 65,00( 14,43¢ 22,70"

Benefit payments (106,106 (95,737) (27,31%) (30,716)

Fair value of plan assets at Decembe 2,264,12. 2,079,18. 748,33¢ 684,22:

Funded Status at December 3 $ (382,409 $ (771,669 $ (142,079 $ (306,19)
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The following table shows the projected benefitigdtion and the accumulated benefit obligationdension plans with an
accumulated obligation in excess of plan asseté Becember 31, 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands

2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 2,646,531 $ 2,850,841
Accumulated benefit obligatic 2,469,88! 2,646,30!
Fair value of plan asse 2,264,12. 2,079,18

The following table shows the amounts recognizethenConsolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemb@03B8,and 2012 (dollars in
thousands):

Pension Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Current liability $ (10,860 $ (19,109 $ — 3 —
Noncurrent liability (371,549 (752,55 (142,079 (306,19)
Net amount recognize $ (382,405) $ (771,665) $ (142,075) $ (306,19-)

The following table shows the details related toumaulated other comprehensive loss as of Decentlhe?03.3 and 2012 (dollars in
thousands):

Pension Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net actuarial los $ 34454 $ 644,23¢ $ 57,81¢ $ 238,86
Prior service cost (credi 2,072 3,16¢ (29€) (47%)
APE's portion recorded as a regulatory a: (265,10 (550,47°) (49,299 (230,02()
Income tax benefit (32,204 (38,307) (2,52§) (2,585
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 49.30: $ 58,63: $ 5,69. $ 5,78:

The following table shows the estimated amountswliiabe amortized from accumulated other compredine loss and regulatory
assets into net periodic benefit cost in 2014 &islin thousands):

Other
Pension Benefits
Net actuarial los $ 8,36: $ —
Prior service cost (credit) 874 (179
Total amounts estimated to be amortized from actated other comprehensive I
and regulatory assets in 20 $ 9,231 § (179
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The following table shows the weighted-average mggions used for both the pension and other bexrigfitietermine benefit
obligations and net periodic benefit costs:

Benefit Obligations Benefit Costs
As of December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2011

Discount rate — pension 4.88% 4.01% 4.01% 4.42% 5.31%
Discount rate- other benefit: 5.1(% 4.2(% 4.2(% 4.5%% 5.4%
Rate of compensation incree 4.00% 4.00% 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.00%
Expected lon-term return on plan asse N/A N/A 7.00% 7.7%% 7.75%
Initial healthcare cost trend re 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.5(% 8.0(%
Ultimate healthcare cost trend r: 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.00% 5.0(% 5.0(%
Number of years to ultimate trend ri 4 4 4 4 4

In selecting the pretax expected long-term ratetfrn on plan assets, we consider past performamt@conomic forecasts for the
types of investments held by the plan. For 20letave assuming a 6.9% long-term rate of returpénsion assets and 7.1% (before tax) for
other benefit assets, which we believe is reasengilibn our asset allocation in relation to hist@rand expected performance.

The assumed healthcare cost trend rates shown &beeea significant effect on the amounts repdidethe healthcare plans. In
selecting our healthcare trend rates, we considstrgerformance and forecasts of healthcare cdstge percentage point change in the
assumed initial and ultimate healthcare cost trates would have the following effects (dollarsniillions):

1% Increase 1% Decrease
Effect on other postretirement benefits expenger abnsideration of amounts capitalized or
billed to electric plant participan $ 13 $ (10
Effect on service and interest cost componentebpariodic other postretirement benefit ¢« 14 (12)
Effect on the accumulated other postretirement fitestdigation 14¢ (220

Plan Assets

The Board of Directors has delegated oversighhefaension and other postretirement benefit plasséts to an Investment
Management Committee (“Committee”). The Commitias adopted investment policy statements (“IPS"jife pension and the other

postretirement benefit plans’ assets.
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The investment strategies for these plans inclutkerieal management of plan assets, and prohibitiagmvestments in Pinnacle West securit

The overall strategy of the pension plan’s IP®iadhieve an adequate level of trust assets reltdithe benefit obligations. To
achieve this objective, the plan’s investment poficovides for mixes of investments including lolegm fixed income assets and return-
generating assets. The target allocation betwetenn-generating and long-term fixed income adsedgfined in the IPS and is a function of
the plan’s funded status. The plan’s funded stistosviewed on at least a monthly basis.

Long-term fixed income assets, also known as lighiledging assets, are designed to offset chaingae benefit obligations due to
changes in interest rates. Long-term fixed incaseets consist primarily of fixed income debt sitesrissued by the U.S. Treasury, other
government agencies, and corporations. Long-tesed income assets may also include interest vaéps, U.S. Treasury futures and other
instruments.

Return-generating assets are intended to providasonable long-term rate of investment return wigiltudent level of volatility.
Return-generating assets are composed of U.Siesjuitternational equities, and alternative inwesits. International equities include
investments in both developed and emerging mark&iternative investments include investments il estate, private equity and various
other strategies. The plan may hold investmentstirn-generating assets by holding securiticmmmon and collective trusts.

Based on the IPS, and given the pension plan’sefdistatus at year-end 2013, the ldegn fixed income assets had a target alloc:
of 58% with a permissible range of 55% to 61% dredreturn-generating assets had a target allocafid@% with a permissible range of 45%
to 39%. The return-generating assets have addlttanget allocations, as a percent of total pksets, of 22% equities in U.S. and other
developed markets, 6% equities in emerging markets,14% in alternative investments. The pensian [°S does not provide for a specific
mix of long-term fixed income assets, but does ekfiee average credit quality of such assets tovestment grade. As of December 31,
2013, long-term fixed income assets represented &3#ial pension plan assets, and return-gengyatisets represented 45% of total pensiol
plan assets.

The asset allocation for other postretirement liepkfn assets is governed by the IPS for thosesplahich provides for an asset
allocation target mix of generally 25% of fixed @me assets and 75% of non-fixed income assets aBlset allocation target mix does not
vary with the plan’s funded status. As of Decen®fer2013, investment in fixed income assets remtesl 38% of the other postretirement
benefit plan total assets, and non-fixed incometasgpresented 62% of the other postretiremerefitgrian’s assets. Fixed income assets art
primarily invested in corporate bonds of investmgratde U.S. issuers, and U.S. Treasuries. NomHixeome assets are primarily invested in
large cap U.S. equities in diverse industries,iatefnational equities in both emerging and devetbmarkets.

See Note 14 for a discussion on the fair valueahidry and how fair value methodologies are appliEde plans invest directly in
fixed income and equity securities, in additionneesting indirectly in fixed income securitiesudy securities and real estate through the use
of common and collective trusts. Equity securitietd directly by the plans are valued using queigtiye market prices from the published
exchange on which the equity security trades, aadlassified as Level 1. Fixed income securigssed by the U.S. Treasury held directly by
the plans are valued using quoted
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active market prices, and are classified as Levetited income securities issued by corporatiamsyicipalities, and other agencies are
primarily valued using quoted inactive market psicer quoted active market prices for similar siti@s; or by utilizing calculations which
incorporate observable inputs such as yield, ngtard credit quality. These instruments are diassas Level 2.

The common and collective trusts, which are simamutual funds, are maintained by banks or imaest companies and hold
certain investments in accordance with a statedfsabjectives (such as tracking the performanciefS&P 500 Index). Common and
collective trusts are valued using the conceptetfasset value (“NAV”), which is a value derivedrfr the quoted active market prices of the
underlying securities. The plardmmon and collective real estate trust is valusdguNAV, which is derived from the appraised valoé the
trust’s underlying real estate assets. As of Ddxr1, 2013, the plans were able to transactrcdmmon and collective trusts at NAV and
accordingly classify these investments as LevdB@cause the trust's shares are offered to a lihgiteup of investors, they are not considered
to be traded in an active market.

The plans’ trustee provides valuation of our plaseds by using pricing services that utilize methogies described to determine fair
market value. We have internal control procedtmesnsure this information is consistent with fafue accounting guidance. These
procedures include assessing valuations usingdapéndent pricing source, verifying that pricing b& supported by actual recent market
transactions, assessing hierarchy classificatimmparing investment returns with benchmarks, ddining and reviewing independent audit
reports on the trustee’s internal operating coatasld valuation processes.
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The fair value of Pinnacle Westpension plan and other postretirement benefit atsets at December 31, 2013, by asset catege
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Other (¢) 2013
Pension Plan:
Assets:;
Cash and cash equivalel $ 504 $ — 3 — $ — 3 504
Fixed Income Securitie:
Corporate — 898,62: — — 898,62:
U.S. Treasun 231,59( — — — 231,591
Other (b) — 84,01 — — 84,01:
Equities:
U.S. Companie 239,03 — — — 239,03t
International Companie 19,42¢ — — — 19,42¢
Common and collective trusi
U.S. Equities — 116,15( — — 116,15(
International Equitie — 367,55 — — 367,55:
Fixed Income 137,52( 137,52
Real estat: — 119,73¢ — — 119,73
Short-term investments and other — 41,06( 8,66((a) 25C 49,97(
Total Pension Plan $ 490,55¢ $ 1,764,65 $ 8,66( $ 25C $ 2,264,122
Other Benefits:
Assets:;
Fixed Income Securitie:
Corporate $ — 3 153,88t $ — 3 — 3 153,88t
U.S. Treasun 98,70« — — — 98,70¢
Other (b) — 27,93¢ — — 27,93¢
Equities:
U.S. Companie 252,18: — — — 252,18:
International Companie 20,89: — — — 20,89:
Common and collective trusi
U.S. Equities — 80,75! — — 80,75
International Equitie — 92,38: — — 92,38:
Real Estatt — 10,76: — — 10,76:
Short-term investments and other — 8,414 — 2,43( 10,84
Total Other Benefits $ 37,77 $ 374,13, % — 3 243 % 748,33!
(a) Represents investments in a partnership that isvegtrivately held portfolio companies.
(b) This category consists primarily of debt securitsssied by municipalities.
(c) Represents plan receivables and payab
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The fair value of Pinnacle Westpension plan and other postretirement benefit atsets at December 31, 2012, by asset catege

as follows (dollars in thousands):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Other (¢) 2012
Pension Plan:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 57¢ $ — 3 — 3 — 57¢
Fixed Income Securitie:
Corporate — 607,74¢ — — 607,74!
U.S. Treasun 232,16: — — — 232,16:
Other (b) — 67,99: — — 67,99:
Equities:
U.S. Companie 531,29: — — — 531,29:
International Companie 43,84¢ — — — 43,84¢
Common and collective trusi
U.S. Equities — 176,69: — — 176,69:
International Equitie — 271,73! — — 271,73!
Real estat — 117,85: — — 117,85:
Short-term investments and other — 26,92: 2,41¢a) (63) 29,27¢
Total Pension Plan $ 807,87¢ $ 126894 $ 2,41¢ $ (63) $ 2,079,18
Other Benefits:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 60 $ — 3 — 3 — 6C
Fixed Income Securitie:
Corporate — 163,30¢ — — 163,30t
U.S. Treasun 112,55¢ — — — 112,55¢
Other (b) — 33,99¢ — — 33,99¢
Equities:
U.S. Companie 205,71« — — — 205,71«
International Companie 14,41 — — — 14,41
Common and collective trusi
U.S. Equities — 60,03¢ — — 60,03¢
International Equitie — 76,96¢ — — 76,96¢
Real Estatt — 9,37¢ — — 9,37¢
Short-term investments and other 40z 6,34( — 1,04¢ 7,78¢
Total Other Benefits $ 333,14t $ 350,02¢ $ — 3 1,04¢ 684,22:
(a) Represents investments in a partnership that isvegtrivately held portfolio companies.
(b) This category consists primarily of debt securitsssied by municipalities.
(c) Represents plan receivables and payab
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The following table shows the changes in fair vdlwreassets that are measured at fair value oouarnieg basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the year endededder 31, 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Short-Term Investments and Other 2013 2012
Beginning balance at Januan $ 241¢ % —
Actual return on assets still held at Decembe (499¢) (66¢)
Purchases, sales, and settlem 6,73¢ 3,081
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 —
Ending balance at December 31 $ 8,66( $ 2,41¢

Contributions

Future year contribution amounts are dependentamasset performance and plan actuarial assunsptidfe made contributions to
our pension plan totaling $141 million in 2013, $68lion in 2012, and zero in 2011. The minimumtidbutions for the pension plan total
$141 million for the next three years under theergly enacted Moving Ahead for Progress in thé!Zlentury Act (zero in 2014, $19 million
in 2015, and $122 million in 2016). Instead, wpeot to make voluntary contributions totaling $30ilion for the next three years ($175
million in 2014, of which $70 million was alreadgrttributed in early 2014, up to $100 million in Z)&nd up to $25 million in 2016). With
regard to contributions to our other postretirentmntefit plans, we made a contribution of approxétya$14 million in 2013, $23 million in
2012, and $19 million in 2011. The contribution®tur other postretirement benefit plans for 2@DB4,5 and 2016 are expected to be
approximately $10 million each year. APS fundsshiare of the contributions. APS’s share of thesjmn plan contribution was $140 million
in 2013, $64 million in 2012, and zero in 2011. SA¥share of the contributions to the other postnetent benefit plan was $14 million in
2013, $22 million in 2012, and $19 million in 2011.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Benefit payments, which reflect estimated futurglayee service, for the next five years and theseding five years thereafter, are
estimated to be as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Pension Other Benefits

2014 $ 129,15¢ $ 28,66¢
2015 143,45: 31,80¢
2016 149,10! 34,93
2017 162,67¢ 37,96¢
2018 169,06 40,97
Years 201-2023 972,82t 245,36¢

Electric plant participants contribute to the abameounts in accordance with their respective ppgtion agreements.
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Employee Savings Plan Benefits

Pinnacle West sponsors a defined contribution ggviplan for eligible employees of Pinnacle West igsidubsidiaries. In 2013, costs
related to APS’s employees represented 99% ofotia¢ dost of this plan. In a defined contributgavings plan, the benefits a participant
receives result from regular contributions partcits make to their own individual account, the Canys matching contributions and earnil
or losses on their investments. Under this plam,Gompany matches a percentage of the participgomtibutions in cash which is then
invested in the same investment mix as participelatst to invest their own future contributionsnricle West recorded expenses for this pla
of approximately $9 million for 2013, $8 millionif@012, and $8 million for 2011.

9. Leases

We lease certain vehicles, land, buildings, equipmaed miscellaneous other items through operatintal agreements with varying
terms, provisions and expiration dates.

Total lease expense recognized in the Consolidaitzgments of Income was $18 million in 2013, $1ion in 2012, and $21
million in 2011. APS'’s lease expense was $15 arilin 2013, $16 million in 2012, and $18 million2011.

Estimated future minimum lease payments for Pirenséest’'s and APS’operating leases, excluding purchased power mgr@s, ar
approximately as follows (dollars in millions):

Pinnacle West

Year Consolidated APS

2014 $ 2C $ 17
2015 17 14
2016 6 5
2017 5 5
2018 4 4
Thereafter 59 59
Total future lease commitments $ 111 $ 104

In 1986, APS entered into agreements with threarség lessor trust entities in order to sell addeback interests in Palo Verde Unif
2 and related common facilities. These lessot gntties have been deemed VIEs for which AP&eésprimary beneficiary. As the primary
beneficiary, APS consolidated these lessor trutiien The above lease disclosures exclude tipadts of these sale leaseback transactior
lease accounting for these agreements is elimingied consolidation. See Note 19 for a discussfoflEs.

10. Jointly-Owned Facilities

APS shares ownership of some of its generatingr@mdmission facilities with other companies. W @sponsible for our share of
operating costs, as well as for providing our owmarficing. Our share of operating expenses antlyyilant costs related to these facilities is
accounted for using proportional consolidation.e Thllowing table shows APS'’s interests in thodetjp-owned facilities recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@1ar&in thousands):
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Construction
Percent Plant in Accumulated Work in
Owned Service Depreciation Progress
Generating facilities
Palo Verde Units 1 and 29.1% $ 1,701,84. $ 1,027,52. $ 22,40(
Palo Verde Unit 2 (a 16.8% 543,97. 338,91 10,09¢
Palo Verde Commo 28.(% (b) 538,81t 219,80: 81,59¢
Palo Verde Sale Leasebe €) 351,05( 225,92! —
Four Corners Units 4, 5 and Common 63.(% 809,94t 608,19: 14,43
Navajo Generating Station Units 1, 2 an 14.(% 270,44¢ 150,50: 2,86¢
Cholla common facilities (c 63.2% (b) 148,29¢ 47,85 7,15¢
Transmission facilities
ANPP 500kV Syster 34.2% (b) 98,14¢ 32,35( 1,09t
Navajo Southern Syste 22.2% (b) 58,70: 16,93’ 51¢
Palo Verde— Yuma 500kVSysterr 18.(% (b) 12,11¢ 4,65¢ 11,78¢
Four Corners Switchyarc 48.1% (b) 33,46( 9,052 18t
Phoenix— Mead Systen 17.1% (b) 39,75¢ 12,14( —
Palo Verde— Estrella 500kVSystem 50.(% (b) 89,57 14,88: 21
Morgan— Pinnacle Peak Syste 64.5% (b) 130,13: 6,651 1,04z
Round Valley Syster 50.(% (b) 48¢ 26¢ —
Palo Verde— Morgan Systen 90.(% (b) — — 36,60
(a) See Note 19.
(b) Weighted-average of interests.
(c) PacifiCorp owns Cholla Unit 4 and APS operatesuthie for PacifiCorp. The common facilities at Clacdre jointly-owned.
(d) See Note 3.
11. Commitments and Contingencies

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

Spent Nuclear Fuel and Waste Disposal

On December 19, 2012, APS, acting on behalf offitse the participant owners of Palo Verde, filetreach of contract lawsuit
against the DOE in the United States Court of Faldeélaims. The lawsuit seeks to recover damagasiiad due to DOE’s breach of the
Standard Contract for failing to accept Palo Vespent nuclear fuel and high level waste from Jania007 through June 30, 2011, as it wa:
required to do pursuant to the terms of the Stah@antract and the NWPA. This lawsuit is curreqtynding in the Court of Federal Claims.

APS currently estimates it will incur $122 milli@ver the current life of Palo Verde for its shaf¢he costs related to the on-site
interim storage of spent nuclear fuel. At Decen8fer2013,
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APS had a regulatory liability of $42 million thapresents amounts recovered in retail rates iassxof amounts spent for gite interim spet
fuel storage.

Nuclear Insurance

Public liability for incidents at nuclear power pta is governed by the Price-Anderson Nuclear Itrdessindemnity Act (“Price-
Anderson Act”), which limits the liability of nucée reactor owners to the amount of insurance avaifrom both commercial sources and an
industry retrospective payment plan. In accordamitle the Price-Anderson Act, the Palo Verde pgrtiats are insured against public liability
for a nuclear incident up to $13.6 billion per ocence. Palo Verde maintains the maximum availabtdear liability insurance in the amount
of $375 million, which is provided by commerciasurance carriers. The remaining balance of $1i8i@rbof liability coverage is provided
through a mandatory industry-wide retrospectivesssient program. If losses at any nuclear povesit pbvered by the program exceed the
accumulated funds, APS could be assessed retrosppotmium adjustments. The maximum assessmemeaetor under the program for
each nuclear incident is approximately $127.3 onillisubject to an annual limit of $19 million pecident, to be periodically adjusted for
inflation. Based on APS’s interest in the thre®R&rde units, APS’s maximum potential retrospeztissessment per incident for all three
units is approximately $111 million, with an annpalyment limitation of approximately $16.4 million.

The Palo Verde participants maintain “all risk"dinding nuclear hazards) insurance for propertyatgarto, and decontamination of,
property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amounafbillion, a substantial portion of which mussf be applied to stabilization and
decontamination. APS has also secured insuraraiasigortions of any increased cost of generaiigourchased power and business
interruption resulting from a sudden and unforesemridental outage of any of the three units. fiteperty damage, decontamination, and
replacement power coverages are provided by NuElegtric Insurance Limited (“NEIL"). Effective Ap 1, 2013, a sublimit of $1.5 billion
for non-nuclear property damage losses site-wideblean imposed on the NEIL property policies. &ffe April 1, 2013, a sublimit of $327.6
million per unit has been imposed on the non-nudtesses covered by the NEIL accidental outagecpppotentially subject to further
limitations. APS is subject to retrospective assemnts under all NEIL policies if NEIL’s lossesany policy year exceed accumulated funds.
The maximum amount APS could incur under the caifkiiiL policies totals approximately $18 millionrfeach retrospective assessment
declared by NEIL’s Board of Directors due to lossesaddition, NEIL policies contain rating triggethat would result in APS providing
approximately $48 million of collateral assurandthim 20 business days of a rating downgrade teinwastment grade. The insurance
coverage discussed in this and the previous pgrhagdsasubject to certain policy conditions, subtsydand exclusions.

Fuel and Purchased Power Commitments and Purchasebligations

APS is party to purchase obligations and varioe$ émnd purchased power contracts with terms expbetween 2014 and 2043 that
include required purchase provisions. APS estigmtiite contract requirements to be approximateh@$w@ion in 2014; $628 million in 2015;
$638 million in 2016; $613 million in 2017; $580lhan in 2018; and $8.7 billion thereafter. Thdael and purchased power commitments
include the amounts incurred from acquiring S€iaterest in Four Corners. However, these amauaisvary significantly pursuant to cert;
provisions in such contracts that permit us to e@se required purchases under certain circumstances
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Of the various fuel and purchased power contraetstibned above, some of those contracts for cqalgunclude take-or-pay
provisions. The current coal contracts with takeay provisions have terms that expire in 2031.

The following table summarizes our estimated cakétor-pay commitments (dollars in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
Coal take-or-pay commitments
(@) $ 152 $ 157 $ 16€ $ 18C $ 178 $  2,53¢
€) Total take-or-pay commitments are approximatelyt&sllion. The total net present value of thesmpotments is

approximately $2.2 billion.

APS spends more to meet its actual fuel requiresridiain the minimum purchase obligations in our taleé-or-pay contracts. The
following table summarizes the actual amounts pased under the coal contracts which include takgagrprovisions for each of the last th
years (dollars in millions

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Total purchases $ 18¢ $ 19¢ $ 191

Renewable Energy Credits

APS has entered into contracts to purchase renevesigrgy credits to comply with the RES. APS et the contract requirements
to be approximately $48 million in 2014; $42 miliin 2015; $42 million in 2016; $42 million in 201%¥42 million in 2018; and $453 million
thereafter. These amounts do not include purchafsesnewable energy credits that are bundled waibrgy. Also, these amounts do not
include purchases of renewable energy creditsatfeafissociated with purchased power contracts.

Coal Mine Reclamation Obligations

APS must reimburse certain coal providers for anwinturred for final and contemporaneous coal méoéamation. We account f
contemporaneous reclamation costs as part of tteo€the delivered coal. We utilize site-spectfindies of costs expected to be incurred in
the future to estimate our final reclamation oltiigga  These studies utilize various assumptionsstonate the future costs. Based on the mo
recent reclamation studies, APS recorded a final kone reclamation obligation of approximately $2illion at December 31, 2013 and
$119 million at December 31, 2012. Under our auromal supply agreements, we expect to make pagmeicertain coal providers for the
final mine reclamation as follows: $1 million i®@24; $1 million in 2015; $8 million in 2016; $14 iffon in 2017; $14 million in 2018; and
$170 million thereafter. Any amendments to cureal supply agreements may change the timingeofélmbursement.
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Superfund

Superfund establishes liability for the cleanufphatardous substances found contaminating thevsatiér or air. Those who
generated, transported or disposed of hazardossasudes at a contaminated site are among thosamteRPs. PRPs may be strictly, and
often are jointly and severally, liable for cleap- On September 3, 2003, EPA advised APS that &Paiders APS to be a PRP in the OU
Phoenix, Arizona. APS has facilities that are waittis Superfund site. APS and Pinnacle West la@veed with EPA to perform certain
investigative activities of the APS facilities withOU3. In addition, on September 23, 2009, AP&eagd with EPA and one other PRP to
voluntarily assist with the funding and managenadrihe site-wide groundwater remedial investigatml feasibility study work plan. We
estimate that our costs related to this investigadind study will be approximately $2 million. \&eticipate incurring additional expenditures
in the future, but because the overall investigatsonot complete and ultimate remediation requéets are not yet finalized, at the present
expenditures related to this matter cannot be redsy estimated.

On August 6, 2013, RID filed a lawsuit in Arizongsbict Court against APS and 24 other defendaiksging that RIDS groundwate
wells were contaminated by the release of hazardolbistances from facilities owned or operated bydifendants. The lawsuit also alleges
that, under Superfund laws, the defendants aréyjand severally liable to RID. The allegatiomgmmst APS arise out of APS’s current and
former ownership of facilities in and around OUB&/e are unable to determine a range of potentiakghat are reasonably possible of
occurring.

Southwest Power Outage

Regulatory. On September 8, 2011 at approximately 3:30 PBQCGkV transmission line running between the Hassggeand North
Gila substations in southwestern Arizona trippetiadservice due to a fault that occurred at acwiard operated by APS. Approximately ten
minutes after the transmission line went off-ligeperation and transmission resources for the Yan®a were lost, resulting in approximately
69,700 APS customers losing service.

Within the same time period that APS’s Yuma custen@est service, a series of transmission and g¢ioerdisruptions occurred
across the systems of several utilities that redutt outages affecting portions of southern Ar&asouthern California and northern Mexico.
A total of approximately 7,900 MW of firm load a@d/ million customers were reported to have be&cedd. Service to all affected APS
customers was restored by 9:15 PM on Septemb8e8ice to customers affected by the wider regionédges was restored by approxima
3:25 AM on September 9.

FERC and the North American Electric ReliabilityrBoration (‘“NERC") conducted a joint inquiry intbe outages and, on May 1,
2012, they issued a report (the “Joint Report”hwiteir analysis and conclusions as to the caus® @vents. The report includes
recommendations to help industry operators presiemtar outages in the future, including increadath sharing and coordination among the
western utilities and entities responsible for beiictric system reliability coordination. Ther@toReport does not address potential reliability
violations or an assessment of responsibility efggarties involved. APS continues to analyze lassirpractices and procedures related to the
September 8 events.

On January 22, 2014, following non-public preliminavestigations, FERC Staff issued a Notice degéd Violations naming six
entities involved in the event, including APS. RERBRtaff
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alleges that each of the named entities violateging numbers of NERC Reliability Standards. ABSlieged to have violated seven
Reliability Standard Requirements. The allegatioigiolations are preliminary determinations byRRE Staff and do not constitute findings
FERC itself that any violations have occurred.

APS intends to work with FERC Staff to resolve thatter. If violations of the Reliability Standaraie ultimately determined to have
occurred, FERC has the legal authority to asspasaible fine of up to $1 million per violation pday that a violation is found to have been in
existence. APS cannot predict the timing or finaner operational impacts that may result from 8taff's Notice of Alleged Violations,
including any payments that may result from a eettint if one is reached, or any claims that mamaée as a result of the outages.

Litigation. On September 6, 2013, a purported consumer ottiss @omplaint was filed in Federal District CourtSan Diego,
California, naming APS and Pinnacle West as defetsdand seeking damages for loss of perishableioxeand sales as a result of
interruption of electrical service. APS and PinaaW/est filed a motion to dismiss, which the cayranted on December 9, 2013. On
January 13, 2014, the plaintiffs appealed the loveerrt’s decision.

Clean Air Act Citizen Lawsuit

On October 4, 2011, Earthjustice, on behalf of smwenvironmental organizations, filed a lawsuithie United States District Court
for the District of New Mexico against APS and tither Four Corners participants alleging violatiofithe NSR provisions of the Clean Air
Act. Subsequent to filing its original Complaint) January 6, 2012, Earthjustice filed a First AdeehComplaint adding claims for violations
of the Clean Air Act's NSPS program. Among othengs, the environmental plaintiffs seek to have@dburt enjoin operations at Four
Corners until APS applies for and obtains any neguNSR permits and complies with the NSPS. Thffs further request the court to
order the payment of civil penalties, includingembficial mitigation project. On April 2, 2012, SRnd the other Four Corners participants
filed motions to dismiss. The case is being heldbeyance while the parties seek to negotiatétlarsent. On March 30, 2013, upon joint
motion of the parties, the court issued an ordendeg the motions to dismiss withdrawn without pdége during pendency of the stay. At
such time as the stay is lifted, APS and the dfoerr Corners participants may reinstate their nmstim dismiss without risk of default. We
unable to determine a range of potential losseasafeareasonably possible of occurring.

Environmental Matters

APS is subject to numerous environmental laws agdlations affecting many aspects of its presedtfature operations, including
air emissions, water quality, wastewater discharg@léd waste, hazardous waste, and CCRs. Thesediad regulations can change from time
to time, imposing new obligations on APS resuliimgncreased capital, operating, and other coAssociated capital expenditures or opera
costs could be material. APS intends to seek egonf any such environmental compliance costsuthincour rates, but cannot predict whe!
it will obtain such recovery. The following prommsand final rules involve material compliance sdstAPS.

Regional Haze RulesAPS has received the final rulemaking imposing nequirements on Four Corners and Cholla andriently
awaiting a final rulemaking from EPA that could iogg new requirements on the Navajo Plant. EPAADIEQ will require these plants to
install pollution control equipment that constitsitbe BART to lessen the impacts of emissions sibiity surrounding the
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plants. Based on EPA's final standards, APS’s 8B%re of the cost of these controls for Four Cartuits 4 and 5 would be approximately
$350 million. APS’s share of costs for upgradeNatajo, based on EPA'’s FIP proposal, could beougpproximately $200 million. APS has
filed a Petition for Review of EPA’s rule as it digg to Cholla, which, if not successful, will récpiinstallation of controls with a cost to APS
of approximately $200 million.

Mercury and Other Hazardous Air Pollutantdn 2011, EPA issued rules establishing maximuhea@ble control technology
standards to regulate emissions of mercury and ddmardous air pollutants from fossil-fired planfsPS estimates that the cost for the
remaining equipment necessary to meet these stémaapproximately $120 million for Cholla Unite8d 3. No additional equipment is
needed for Four Corners Units 4 and 5 to comply wiese rules. SRP, the operating agent for thajddlant, is still evaluating compliance
options under the rules.

Other future environmental rules that could invaiwaterial compliance costs include those relatembtding water intake structures,
coal combustion waste, effluent limitations, ozaagional ambient air quality, GHG emissions, arfteotules or matters involving the Clean
Air Act, Clean Water Act, ESA, the Navajo Natiomdawater supplies for our power plants. The finanmpact of complying with these and
other future environmental rules could jeopardimeeéconomic viability of our coal plants or thelimgness or ability of power plant
participants to fund any required equipment upgsamtecontinue their participation in these planthe economics of continuing to own certain
resources, particularly our coal plants, may detate, warranting early retirement of those plantich may result in asset impairments. APS
would seek recovery in rates for the book valuargf remaining investments in the plants as wetithsr costs related to early retirement, but
cannot predict whether it would obtain such recgver

Regional Haze Rules — Cholla

APS believes that EPA'’s final rule as it applie€twlla is unsupported and that EPA had no basidi§approving Arizona’s SIP and
promulgating a FIP that is inconsistent with thetess considered BART determinations under theorggjihaze program. Accordingly, on
February 1, 2013, APS filed a Petition for Revidvthe final BART rule in the United States CourtAgpeals for the Ninth Circuit. We expi
briefing in the case to be completed on Februarn2014.

New Mexico Tax Matter

On May 23, 2013, the New Mexico Taxation and ReeeDapartment issued a notice of assessment foisewatance surtax, penalty,
and interest totaling approximately $30 millionateld to coal supplied under the coal supply agreefoe Four Corners (the “Assessment”).
APS'’s share of the Assessment is approximatelyn$illibn. For procedural reasons, on behalf of Bogir Corners co-owners, including APS,
the coal supplier made a partial payment of theefsment and immediately filed a refund claim wibpect to that partial payment in
August 2013. The New Mexico Taxation and Revenapddtment denied the refund claim. On DecembeR@83, the coal supplier and AF
on its own behalf and as operating agent for Faunérs, filed a complaint with the New Mexico DistrCourt contesting both the validity of
the Assessment and the refund claim denial. AR8Jes the Assessment and the refund claim dergalvithout merit, but cannot predict the
timing or outcome of this litigation.

128




Table of Contents

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Assurances

APS has entered into various agreements that eetpiters of credit for financial assurance purpos&t December 31, 2013,
approximately $76 million of letters of credit weratstanding to support existing pollution contsohds of a similar amount. The letters of
credit are available to fund the payment of priatgnd interest of such debt obligations. Onéieée letters of credit expires in 2015 and two
expire in 2016. APS has also entered into letitrsedit to support certain equity participantshie Palo Verde sale leaseback transaction:
Note 19 for further details on the Palo Verde $asdseback transactions). These letters of cratliexpire on December 31, 2015, and tote
approximately $32 million at December 31, 2013.didnally, APS has issued letters of credit toysanp collateral obligations under certain
risk management arrangements, including certaiarabgas tolling contracts entered into with thpatties. At December 31, 2013, $55 mill
of such letters of credit were outstanding that @ipire in 2014 and 2015.

We enter into agreements that include indemnificagirovisions relating to liabilities arising froon related to certain of our
agreements. Most significantly, APS has agreegddemnify the equity participants and other pariiethe Palo Verde sale leaseback
transactions with respect to certain tax matt&snerally, a maximum obligation is not explicithated in the indemnification provisions and,
therefore, the overall maximum amount of the olilggaunder such indemnification provisions cannetréasonably estimated. Based on
historical experience and evaluation of the spedaifiemnities, we do not believe that any matéoiss related to such indemnification
provisions is likely.

Pinnacle West has issued parental guarantees egtgt bonds for APS which were not material at Delsen81, 2013.
12. Asset Retirement Obligations

APS has asset retirement obligations for its Paod¥ nuclear facilities and certain other genemati@nsmission and distribution
assets. The Palo Verde asset retirement obligptiamarily relates to final plant decommissioninghis obligation is based on the NRC's
requirements for disposal of radiated propertylanpand agreements APS reached with the ACC ihal flecommissioning of the plant.
During the fourth quarter of 2013, a new decomroisisig study with updated cash flow estimates waspteted for Palo Verde.

The nonnauclear generation asset retirement obligatiomagmily relate to requirements for removing portiafishose plants at the e
of the plant life or lease term. The Four Correral-fired power plant asset retirement obligatielates to final plant decommissioning,
including ash pond closures. In the fourth quanfe2012, a new study related to ash pond closa®s@mpleted which updated the total costs
estimates and related cash flows. In the fourtrtgn of 2013, APS finalized the transaction touli@SCE’s interest in Four Corners. As part
of that transaction, APS assumed SCE’s assetmatimeobligation. Also, APS retired Four Cornerstila-3 on December 30, 2013.
Decommissioning activities began for Units 1-3amdary 2014. An update was made to the timing@iinits 1-3 decommissioning cash out
flows to coincide with the expected decommissiorangvities.

Some of APS’s transmission and distribution assat® asset retirement obligations because thegudject to right of way and
easement agreements that require final removaés@ hgreements have a history of uninterrupteduartbat APS expects to continue. As a
result, APS cannot
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reasonably estimate the fair value of the assieenetnt obligation related to such distribution arahsmission assets.

Additionally, APS has aquifer protection permits $ome of its generation sites that require theure of certain facilities at those
sites.

The following schedule shows the change in ourtasseement obligations for 2013 and 2012 (doliarmillions):

2013 2012
Asset retirement obligations at the beginning afrye $ 357 $ 28C
Changes attributable t
Accretion expens 24 19
Settlement: (12 —
Assumed SC's obligation 34 —
Estimated cash flow revisions (56) 58
Asset retirement obligations at the end of year $ 347 $ 357

Decommissioning activities for Four Corners Uni8 will begin in January 2014; thus, $33 milliontbé total asset retirement
obligation of $347 million at December 31, 2013¢lsssified as a current liability on the balanieed.

In accordance with regulatory accounting, APS aesmemoval costs for its regulated utility asseten if there is no legal obligation
for removal. See detail of regulatory liabilitiesNote 3.

13. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Consolidated quarterly financial information forl30and 2012 is provided in the tables below (dsliarthousands, except per share
amounts). Weather conditions cause significarg@®al fluctuations in our revenues; therefore, Iltegar interim periods do not necessarily
represent results expected for the year.

130




Table of Contents

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2013 Quarter Ended 2013
March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Total
Operating revenue $ 686,65. $ 915,82: $ 1,152,39. $ 699,76: $ 3,454,62
Operations and maintenan 223,25( 229,30( 233,32: 238,85 924,72
Operating incomi 86,92: 259,81 415,68t 83,90( 846,32!
Income taxe: 12,46¢ 77,04 131,91. 9,167 230,59:
Income from continuing operatiol 32,83t 139,59¢ 234,71¢ 32,81 439,96
Net income attributable to common sharehol 24,44 131,20° 226,16: 24,26( 406,07-
Earnings Per Share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
common shareholde— Basic $ 0.2 $ 1.1¢ $ 2.0¢ $ 02z $ 3.6¢
Net income attributable to common sharehol—
Basic 0.2z 1.1¢ 2.0¢ 0.2z 3.6¢
Income from continuing operations attributable to
common shareholde— Diluted 0.2z 1.1¢ 2.04 0.2z 3.6¢€
Net income attributable to common sharehol—
Diluted 0.2z 1.1¢€ 2.04 0.2z 3.6¢€
2012 Quarter Ended 2012
March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Total
Operating revenue $ 620,63. $ 878,57t $ 1,109,47! $ 693,12. $ 3,301,80.
Operations and maintenan 210,66: 216,23¢ 220,72¢ 237,14: 884,76¢
Operating incomi 48,007 254,48 447,97( 101,28¢ 851,75!
Income taxe: (4,645 76,68¢ 147,11¢ 18,157 237,31
Income from continuing operatiol 284 130,93( 252,87 34,90¢ 418,99:
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharetrs| (8,257 122,34! 244.,82; 22,63 381,54.
Earnings Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations attriblgaio
common shareholde— Basic $ (0.0 $ 11z $ 22 % 02 $ 3.5¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehs|
— Basic (0.0¢) 1.1z 2.2¢ 0.21 3.4¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations attribiesto
common shareholde— Diluted (0.0%) 1.12 2.21 0.24 3.5
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharetrsl
— Diluted (0.0¢) 1.11 2.21 0.2C 3.4t
14, Fair Value Measurements

We classify our assets and liabilities that areiedrat fair value within the fair value hierarchyhis hierarchy ranks the quality and
reliability of the inputs used to determine faitues, which are then classified and disclosed mafithree categories. The three levels of the
fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active market identical assets or liabilities that we h#wve ability to access at the
measurement date. Active markets are those inhithemsactions for the asset or liability occusiifficient frequency and volume to
provide information on an ongoing basis. This gatg includes exchange traded equities, exchaagledr derivative instruments,
cash equivalents, and investments in U.S. Treaseayrities.
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Level 2 — Utilizes quoted prices in active markistssimilar assets or liabilities; quoted pricesnarkets that are not active; and
model-derived valuations whose inputs are obseevéich as yield curves). This category includesexchange traded contracts
such as forwards, options, swaps and certain imaggs in fixed income securities. This categosp ahcludes investments in
common and collective trusts and commingled fuhds &are redeemable and valued based on NAV.

Level 3 — Valuation models with significant unobsasle inputs that are supported by little or nokeaactivity. Instruments in this
category include long-dated derivative transactiwhere valuations are unobservable due to theltesfgghe transaction, options, and
transactions in locations where observable mar&tt does not exist. The valuation models we emplitige spot prices, forward
prices, historical market data and other factofetecast future prices.

Assets and liabilities are classified in their gatii based on the lowest level of input that imgigant to the fair value measurement.
Thus, a valuation may be classified in Level 3 eteugh the valuation may include significant irptitat are readily observable. We
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtfirzeuse of unobservable inputs. We rely primariiythe market approach of using prices
and other market information for identical and/omparable assets and liabilities. If market dataot readily available, inputs may reflect our
own assumptions about the inputs market particgpaotuld use. Our assessment of the inputs ansighdicance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement requires judgment and nfagtahe valuation of fair value assets and litibdi as well as their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels. We assess whetheaket is active by obtaining observable broker gapteviewing actual market activity, and
assessing the volume of transactions. We conbitéer quotes observable inputs when the quotading on the broker, we can validate the
guote with market activity, or we can determing tha inputs the broker used to arrive at the qliptéce are observable.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

We apply recurring fair value measurements to gedash equivalents, derivative instruments, inwestts held in our nuclear
decommissioning trust and plan assets held inetirement and other benefit plans. See Note &iofair value discussion of plan assets hel
in our retirement and other benefit plans.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent short-term investmeittisoriginal maturities of three months or leseikthange traded money market
funds that are valued using quoted prices in actigekets.
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Risk Management Activities — Derivative Instruments

Exchange traded commodity contracts are valuedyusiadjusted quoted prices. For non-exchangedreoiemmodity contracts, we
calculate fair value based on the average of theabd offer price, discounted to reflect net présatue. We maintain certain valuation
adjustments for a number of risks associated wighvaluation of future commitments. These inclvaation adjustments for liquidity and
credit risks. The liquidity valuation adjustmeapresents the cost that would be incurred if athatthed positions were closed out or hedged
The credit valuation adjustment represents estithatedit losses on our net exposure to countegsautiiking into account netting agreements
expected default experience for the credit ratintdhe counterparties and the overall diversificatid the portfolio. We maintain credit policies
that management believes minimize overall credi.ri

Certain non-exchange traded commodity contractsateed based on unobservable inputs due to tlgetkenm nature of contracts or
the unique location of the transactions. Our ldaged energy transactions consist of observabletiahs for the near-term portion and
unobservable valuations for the long-term portiofithe transaction. We rely primarily on brokeiotgs to value these instruments. When ou
valuations utilize broker quotes, we perform vasicontrol procedures to ensure the quote has mariaped consistent with fair value
accounting guidance. These controls include aisgp#®e quote for reasonableness by comparisomsigather broker quotes, reviewing
historical price relationships, and assessing mavity. When broker quotes are not availatiie, primary valuation technique used to
calculate the fair value is the extrapolation afifard pricing curves using observable market datarfore liquid delivery points in the same
region and actual transactions at more illiquidwégy points.

Option contracts are primarily valued using a Bf&tdholes option valuation model, which utilizesthobservable and unobservable
inputs such as broker quotes, interest rates doe polatilities.

When the unobservable portion is significant todkerall valuation of the transaction, the entiemsaction is classified as Level 3.
Our classification of instruments as Level 3 isyarily reflective of the long-term nature of oureegy transactions and the use of option
valuation models with significant unobservable itgu

Our energy risk management committee, consistirgffafers and key management personnel, oversaesnaugy risk management
activities to ensure compliance with our statedgneisk management policies. We have a risk abfitmction that is responsible for valuing
our derivative commodity instruments in accordanwié established policies and procedures. Theaiskrol function reports to the chief
financial officer’s organization.

Investments Held in our Nuclear Decommissioning T8

The nuclear decommissioning trust invests in fixebme securities and equity securities. Equityisges are held indirectly through
commingled funds. The commingled funds are vaheskd on the concept of NAV, which is a value prilpaerived from the quoted active
market prices of the underlying equity securiti#ge may transact in these commingled funds on a-senthly basis at the NAV, and
accordingly classify these investments as Level2e commingled funds, which are similar to mufualds, are maintained by a bank and t
investments in accordance with the stated objectiteacking the performance of the S&P 500 Ind8ecause the commingled fund
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shares are offered to a limited group of investibrsy are not considered to be traded in an aotiaket.

Cash equivalents reported within Level 2 repregergstments held in a short-term investment comfathfund, valued using NAV,
which invests in U.S. government fixed income seigs. We may transact in this commingled fundaathaily basis at the NAV.

Fixed income securities issued by the U.S. Treakahy directly by the nuclear decommissioning tarstvalued using quoted active
market prices and are classified as Level 1. Fikedme securities issued by corporations, muniitips, and other agencies, including
mortgage-backed instruments, are valued using dupsetive market prices, quoted active marketgxior similar securities, or by utilizing
calculations which incorporate observable inputhsas yield curves and spreads relative to sudtl gigves. These instruments are classifie
as Level 2. Whenever possible, multiple marketegsiare obtained which enables a cross-check tialidaA primary price source is
identified based on asset type, class, or isssea@irities.

Our trustee provides valuation of our nuclear damigrioning trust assets by using pricing servibas wtilize the valuation
methodologies described to determine fair markkteraWe have internal control procedures desigaeghsure this information is consistent
with fair value accounting guidance. These proceslimclude assessing valuations using an indepépdeimg source, verifying that pricing
can be supported by actual recent market transegtassessing hierarchy classifications, companivestment returns with benchmarks, and
obtaining and reviewing independent audit repontsh@ trustee’s internal operating controls andiatibn processes. See Note 20 for
additional discussion about our nuclear decomniésgptrust.

Fair Value Tables

The following table presents the fair value at Deber 31, 2013 of our assets and liabilities thatraeasured at fair value on a
recurring basis (dollars in millions):
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Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs (a) December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Other 2013
Assets
Risk management activitie— derivative instruments
Commodity Contract $ — 3 9 $ 41 3 (9) (b)s 41
Nuclear decommissioning tru:
U.S. commingled equity func — 272 — — 272
Fixed income securitie:
U.S. Treasun 107 — — — 107
Cash and cash equivalent fur — 11 — 3) () 8
Corporate dek — 88 — — 88
Mortgage-backed securitie — 8t — — 8%
Municipality bonds — 71 — — 71
Other — 11 — — 11
Subtotal nuclear decommissioning trust 107 53¢ — 3 64z
Total $ 107 $ 547 $ 41 3 (12 $ 68
Liabilities
Risk management activitie— derivative instruments
Commodity contracts $ — $ 33 ¢ (90 $ 21(b) $ (102)
€) Primarily consists of heat rate options and otbagitdated electricity contracts.
(b) Represents counterparty netting, margin and codlateSee Note 17.
(c) Represents nuclear decommissioning trust net pgrediourities sales and purchases.
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The following table presents the fair value at Deber 31, 2012 of our assets and liabilities thatraeasured at fair value on a
recurring basis (dollars in millions):

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs (a) December 31,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Other 2012
Assets
Cash equivalent $ 16 $ — 3 — $ — 8 1€
Risk management activitie— derivative instruments
Commaodity Contract — 22 62 (22) (b) 62
Nuclear decommissioning tru:
U.S. commingled equity func — 204 — — 204
Fixed income securitie:
U.S. Treasun 104 — — — 104
Cash and cash equivalent fur 6 13 — (4) (c) 15
Corporate dek — 8C — — 8C
Mortgagebacked securitie — 83 — — 83
Municipality bonds — 74 — — 74
Other — 11 — — 11
Subtotal nuclear decommissioning trust 11C 46% — 4 571
Total $ 12¢ $ 487 $ 62 $ (26) $ 64¢
Liabilities
Risk management activitie— derivative instruments
Commodity contracts $ — 3 96) $ (110 $ 47(b) $ (159
(a) Primarily consists of heat rate options and otbagidated electricity contracts.
(b) Represents counterparty netting, margin and co#lhteSee Note 17.
(c) Represents nuclear decommissioning trust net pgrediourities sales and purchases.

Fair Value Measurements Classified as Level 3

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of our energy derivative cotgriaclude broker quotes that
cannot be validated as an observable input prigndtié to the long-term nature of the quote andooptiodel inputs. Significant changes in
these inputs in isolation would result in signifitig higher or lower fair value measurements. Q@snin our derivative contract fair values,
including changes relating to unobservable inpytsically will not impact net income due to regulat accounting treatment (see Note 3).

Because our forward commodity contracts classidigdlevel 3 are currently in a net purchase positiawould expect price
increases of the underlying commaodity to resulhigreases in the net
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fair value of the related contracts. Conversdlihe price of the underlying commodity decreasles net fair value of the related contracts
would likely decrease.

Our option contracts classified as Level 3 prinyardlate to purchase heat rate options. The sigmif unobservable inputs for these
instruments include electricity prices, gas priaed volatilities. If electricity prices and eldcity price volatilities increase, we would expect
the fair value of these options to increase, atldei§e valuation inputs decrease, we would expeditr value of these options to decrease. If
natural gas prices and natural gas price volatdlitncrease, we would expect the fair value ofetogtions to decrease, and if these inputs
decrease, we would expect the fair value of th@optto increase. The commaodity prices and vdtiasl do not always move in corresponding
directions. The options’ fair values are impadbgdhe net changes of these various inputs.

Other unobservable valuation inputs include cradd liquidity reserves which do not have a maténmgact on our valuations;
however, significant changes in these inputs caidd result in higher or lower fair value measuretae

The following tables provide information regardiogr significant unobservable inputs used to valulersk management derivative
Level 3 instruments at December 31, 2013 and Deeeih 2012:

December 31, 201

Fair Value (millions) Valuation Significant Weighteo-
Commodity Contracts Assets Liabilities Technique Unobservable Input Range Average
Electricity:
Forward Contracts (a) $ 4C 66 Discounted Electricity forward
cash flows price (per MWh) $24.89- $65.04  $ 41.0¢
Option Contracts (b) — 19 Electricity forward
Option mode  price (per MWh) $39.91- $85.41 $ 58.7(
Natural gas forwar
price (per MMbtu) $3.57- $3.80 $ 3.71
Electricity price
volatilities 35%- 94% 5%
Natural gas pric
volatilities 22%- 36% 27%
Natural Gas
Forward Contracts (a) Discounted Natural gas forwar
1 5 cash flows price (per MMbtu) $3.47- $4.31 $ 3.87
Total $ 41 $ 90
(a) Includes swaps and physical and financial contracts
(b) Electricity and natural gas price volatilities @stimated based on historical forward price movameéue to lack of market

quotes for implied volatilities.
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December 31, 201

Fair Value (millions) Valuation Significant Weighteo-
Commodity Contracts Assets Liabilities Technique Unobservable Input Range Average
Electricity:
Forward Contracts (a) Discounted Electricity forward $23.06 -
$ 57 % 82 cash flows price (per MWh) $64.20 $ 43.1¢
Option Contracts Electricity forward $36.66 -
— 27 Option mode price (per MWh) $92.19 $ 60.97
Natural gas forwar
price (per MMbtu) $4.10-$4.25 $ 4.2C
Implied electricity
price volatilities 15%- 66% 3%
Implied natural gas
price volatilities 17%- 36% 23%
Natural Gas
Forward Contracts (a) Discounted Natural gas forwar
5 1 cash flows price (per MMbtu) $3.25-$4.44 % 3.9¢
Total $ 62 $ 11C
(a) Includes swaps and physical and financial contracts

The following table shows the changes in fair vdtueour risk management activities’ assets arlillies that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputgtieryears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (slatlanillions):

Year Ended
December 31
Commodity Contracts 2013 2012
Net derivative balance at beginning of per $ (48) $ (51)
Total net gains (losses) realized/unreali:
Included in earning — 2
Included in OCI — 3
Deferred as a regulatory asset or liabi (20 7
Settlement: 10 (5)
Transfers into Level 3 from Level — 2
Transfers from Level 3 into Level 2 (D) 4
Net derivative balance at end of per $ (49 $ (48
Net unrealized gains included in earnings relateidstruments still held at end
period $ — $ —

Amounts included in earnings are recorded in eitperating revenues or fuel and purchased poweardiipg on the nature of the

underlying contract.

Transfers reflect the fair market value at the beigig of the period and are triggered by a chandke lowest significant input as of

the end of the period. We had no significant Lelvel
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transfers to or from any other hierarchy levelarisfers in or out of Level 3 are typically relatecdur heat rate options and long-dated energy
transactions that extend beyond available quotedgse

Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value

The carrying value of our net accounts receivaitepunts payable and short-term borrowings appraterfair value. Our short-term
borrowings are classified within Level 2 of therfaalue hierarchy. See Note 6 for our long-terrhtdeir values.

15. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents earnings attributableommon shareholders per weighted-average consimane outstanding for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and :

2013 2012 2011
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operations attributable éoncnon
shareholder $ 3.6¢ $ 354 § 3.01
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — (0.06) 0.1C
Earnings per share — basic $ 3.6¢ % 3.4 $ 3.11
Diluted earnings per shar
Income from continuing operations attributable doncnon
shareholder $ 3.66 $ 35C $ 2.9¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — (0.05) 0.1C
Earnings per share — diluted $ 3.6€ $ 3.4 $ 3.0¢

Dilutive stock options and performance shares (Whie contingently issuable) increased average @mrghares outstanding by
approximately 822,000 shares in 2013, 1,017,008esha 2012 and 811,000 shares in 2011. Totabgeecommon shares outstanding for the
purposes of calculating diluted earnings per shene 110,805,943 shares in 2013, 110,527,311 sheg842 and 109,864,243 shares in 2!

For the years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, thereneectemmon stock options that were excluded froencttmputation of diluted
earnings per share as a result of the options’ceseeprices being greater than the average marioet @f the common shares.

16. Stock-Based Compensation

Pinnacle West grants long-term incentive awardeuttie 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2012 Pldan"jhe form of Stock Grants,
Restricted Stock Units and Performance Shares aydgmnant restricted stock, stock units, dividendiegjents, performance share units,
performance cash, incentive and non-qualified stqations, and stock appreciation rights. The 2B, effective May 16, 2012, provides
4,595,500 common shares to be available for gmeligible employees and members of the Board cddddrs. Awards made since 2012 w
issued under the 2012 Plan, and prior awards fre®7 20 2011 were issued under the 2007 Long-Teo®nitive Plan (2007 Plan”).
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Restricted Stock Unit Awards and Stock Grants

Stock grants issued to non-officer members of thar® of Directors in 2013, 2012 and 2011, provittedmembers of the Board of
Directors the option to elect to receive a stoadngror to defer receipt until a later date anererestricted stock units in lieu of the stock
grant. The members of the Board of Directors wleotdo defer may elect to receive payment in eitfteck, or 50% in cash and 50% in sto
The members of the Board of Directors may elecet@ive payments either as of the last businessfdne month following the month in
which they separate from service on the Board oé®ors, or as of a specified date, which mustftes Becember 31 of the year in which the
grant was received. The deferred restricted stmits accrue dividend rights, equal to the amodidivadends the Directors would have
received had they directly owned stock equal tantlmaber of vested restricted stock units from thie @f grant to the date of payment plus
interest compounded quarterly. The dividends atetést are paid, based on the Director’s electioaither stock, or 50% in cash and 50% in
stock.

Restricted stock units have been granted to offieed key employees in each year since 2007. B8&7W through 2009, officers and
key employees elected to receive payment in edhsh or in fully transferable shares of stock,xohange for each restricted stock unit on pre
established valuation dates. From 2010 througt3 26fficers and key employees elected to receiyeneat in either stock, or 50% in cash
50% in stock.

Restricted stock unit awards vest and settle ofeumyear period. In addition, officers and keymoyees accrue dividend rights on
vested restricted stock units, equal to the amofidividends that they would have received had tliegctly owned stock, equal to the number
of vested restricted stock units from the daterafgto the date of payment plus interest compodingkrterly. The dividends and interest for
the 2007 through 2009 awards are paid in cash.diMgends and interest for the 2010 through 2048rds are paid in the same form as the
restricted stock unit payment election. Restrictieitk unit awards are accounted for as a liakavtyard, with compensation cost initially
calculated on the date of grant using the Comparlgsing stock price, and remeasured at each baktmeet date. Compensation expense fol
retirement eligible participants is recognized indliaéely.

In December 2012, the Company granted a retenti@ndaof 50,617 restricted stock units to the Chaimrof the Board, President, ¢
Chief Executive Officer of Pinnacle West. The advauill vest and will be paid in shares of commoockton December 31, 2016, provided
he remains employed with the Company until theingsdate. The award will accrue notional divideedsial to the amount of dividends that
would have been received if the Chairman of therBoRresident and Chief Executive Officer had dlyeawned one share of Pinnacle West
common stock for each restricted stock unit heddhfthe grant date to each dividend payment dabe aivard can be increased up to an
additional 33,745 restricted stock units payablstatk if certain performance requirements are met.

A grant of restricted stock unit awards was madefficers of the company on February 15, 2011, pbyaolely in shares of common
stock upon the officer’s retirement or other sepanaof employment. This award vested 50% on Fatyrd5, 2013. The remaining grant will
vest 25% on February 15, 2014 and 25% on Februgrgd15, provided that the officer remains emplogeduch date. The officers will also
accrue notional dividends equal to the amountafidnds that they would have received if they hiadodly owned one share of Pinnacle Wesi
common stock for each restricted stock unit heddhfthe grant date to each dividend payment daseh Bdditional restricted stock unit
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will proportionally vest on the same remaining ggischedule that applies to the original restdatock unit.

The following table is a summary of granted restdcstock units and stock grants and the weightedage fair value for the three
years ended 2013, 2012 and 2C

2013 2012 2011
Units granted 129,62( 202,27¢ 292,24
Grant date fair value (a $ 55.21 % 49.31 % 41.9¢

€) Weighted-average grant date fair value.

The following table is a summary of the statusesttricted stock units and stock grants, as of Déeei81, 2013 and changes during
the year. This table represents only the stockigroof restricted stock units, per the electionparyment discussed in the paragraph above:

Weighteo-Average

Nonvested share: Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested at January 1, 20 480,75. $ 43.5¢
Granted 129,62( 55.21
Vested 191,98t 40.3:
Forfeited 20,40¢ 45.7(

Nonvested at December 31, 2( 397,97¢ 47 .7¢

The amount of cash required to settle the paynmmntgstricted stock units is (dollars in millions):

Year 2013 2012 2011

2007 Gran $ — 3 — $ 1.C
2008 Gran — 1.¢ 1.6
2009 Gran 3.C 1.7 1.5
2010 Gran 2.3 0.€ 0.6
2011 Gran 2.5 0.7 —
2012 Gran 2.2 — —

Performance Share Awards

Performance share awards have been granted tersffind key employees under the 2012 Plan sinc2&@d under the 2007 Plan
from 2008 to 2011. Performance share awards gohiai performance element criteria that affectribenber of shares received after the end
of a three-year performance period if performarrieréa conditions are met.

The 2013, 2012 and 2011 performance share grdatiaris based 50% upon the percentile rankingrridle West's total
shareholder return at the end of the three-yedomeance period, as compared with the total shddehoeturn of all relevant companies in a
specified utility index and the other 50% is baspdn six non-financial separate performance metridse exact number of shares issued will
vary from 0% to 200% of the target award. Shagegived include dividend rights paid in stock egoghe amount of dividends that they
would have received had they directly owned stock,
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equal to the number of vested performance shavestine date of grant to the date of payment pltes@st compounded quarterly.

Performance share awards are accounted for altyiabwvards, with compensation cost initially cdktied on the date of grant using
the Company’s closing stock price, and remeasuredch balance sheet date. Compensation expenstifement eligible participants is
recognized immediately. Management also evaluhteprobability of meeting the performance criteizach balance sheet date. If
performance criteria are not achieved, no comp@nrsabst is recognized and any previously recoghcmmpensation cost is reversed.

The following table is a summary of the performasbares granted and the weightearage fair value for the three years ended :
2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Units granted (a) 176,33. 185,87¢ 175,07.
Grant date fair value (t $ 55.4t  $ 4740 % 41.7]
€) Reflects the target payout level.
(b) Weighted-average grant date fair value.

The following table is a summary of the status @ffgrmance shares, as of December 31, 2013 angjebaluring the year:

Weighteco-Average

Nonvested shares (¢ Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 347,69( $ 44.6
Granted 176,33: 55.4¢
Increase in performance fac 40,18: 41.71
Vested 200,91! 41.71
Forfeited 18,89 48.11
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 344,39¢ 51.1%
(a) Nonvested shares are reflected at target payoek |&he increase or decrease in the number oéstiezm the target level

the estimated actual payout level is included aititrease for performance factor amounts in tlae free award vests.
Stock Options
The Company has not granted stock options sincé 266 has no stock options outstanding.
The following table summarizes the option activityder prior equity incentive plans for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2013:
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Weighteo-

Average

Exercise
Options Shares Price
Outstanding at January 1,

2013 7,928 3 32.2¢
Exercisec 3,62¢ 32.2¢
Forfeited or expired 4,30( 32.2¢
Outstanding at December

2013 — —

Cash received from options exercised under oulesbased payment arrangements was $0.1 milliondd82$0.5 million for 2012,
and $1.8 million for 2011. The tax benefit reatifer the tax deductions from option exerciseshefshare-based payment arrangements wer
immaterial for all years.

The intrinsic value of options exercised was immiatdor all years.

As of December 31, 2013, there was $17 millionotdltunrecognized compensation cost related to ested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the plaret. cost is expected to be recognized over aheigaverage period of 2.0 years. The
total fair value of shares vested during 2013, 2812 2011 was $20 million, $19 million and $14 raill, respectively.

The compensation cost that has been charged agammstcle West's income for share-based compemsplims was $25 million in
2013, $32 million in 2012, and $23 million in 201The compensation cost that Pinnacle West hasatiapd is immaterial for all years.
Pinnacle West's total income tax benefit recognirettie Consolidated Statements of Income for shased compensation arrangements was
$10 million in 2013, $13 million in 2012, and $9lkoin in 2011. APS’s share of compensation coat thas been charged against income was
$25 million in 2013, $32 million in 2012, and $22lion in 2011.

Pinnacle West's current policy is to issue new ebao satisfy share requirements for stock compiemsplans, and it does not expect
to repurchase any shares except to satisfy tahwliding obligations upon the vesting of restricstolck units and performance shares.

17. Derivative Accounting

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuatinortke commodity price and transportation costsle€tricity, natural gas, coal,
emissions allowances and in interest rates. Weagerisks associated with market volatility byimiilg various physical and financial
derivative instruments, including futures, forwardptions and swaps. As part of our overall risknagement program, we may use derivative
instruments to hedge purchases and sales of elgctaind fuels. Derivative instruments that mestain hedge accounting criteria may be
designated as cash flow hedges and are used tmoliméxposure to cash flow variability on foreeastransactions. The changes in market
value of such instruments have a high correlatioprice changes in the hedged transactions. Vecal®r into derivative instruments for
economic hedging purposes. While we believe tlm@wnic hedges mitigate exposure to fluctuationsoimmodity prices, these instruments
have not been designated as accounting hedgegra€isrthat have the same terms (quantities, dglpeints and
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delivery periods) and for which power does not flare netted, which reduces both revenues and faeparchased power costs in our
Consolidated Statements of Income, but does naaé@tnpur financial condition, net income or cashwio

On June 1, 2012, we elected to discontinue cagshhkdge accounting treatment for the significanjomity of our contracts that had
previously been designated as cash flow hedges didtontinuation is due to changes in PSA reco(®ze Note 3), which now allows for
100% deferral of the unrealized gains and losdasing to these contracts. For those contractswieae dedesignated, all changes in fair va
after May 31, 2012 are no longer recorded throu@h, ®ut are deferred through the PSA. The amopirsgiously recorded in accumulated
OCl relating to these instruments will remain ic@amulated OCI, and will transfer to earnings in $hene period or periods during which the
hedged transaction affects earnings or sooner di@termine it is probable that the forecasted &atisn will not occur. When amounts have
been reclassified from accumulated OCI to earnitigs; will be subject to deferral in accordancehwiite PSA. Cash flow hedge accounting
treatment will continue for a limited number of t@tts that are not subject to PSA recovery.

Our derivative instruments, excluding those qualifyfor a scope exception, are recorded on thenbalaheet as an asset or liability
and are measured at fair value. See Note 14d@caission of fair value measurements. Derivatigguments may qualify for the normal
purchases and normal sales scope exception ifrfigyre physical delivery and the quantities repnéshose transacted in the normal cours
business. Derivative instruments qualifying fog ttormal purchases and sales scope exception@rerded for under the accrual method of
accounting and excluded from our derivative instabtdiscussion and disclosures below.

Hedge effectiveness is the degree to which thevalire instrument contract and the hedged itencareelated and is measured basec
on the relative changes in fair value of the deieainstrument contract and the hedged item dwee.t We assess hedge effectiveness both a
inception and on a continuing basis. These assgsrexclude the time value of certain optionst &eounting hedges that are deemed an
effective hedge, the effective portion of the gainoss on the derivative instrument is reported asmponent of OCI and reclassified into
earnings in the same period during which the hedigadaction affects earnings. We recognize inetirearnings, subject to the PSA, the
gains and losses representing hedge ineffectiveardshe gains and losses on any hedge compaonbitis are excluded from our
effectiveness assessment. As cash flow hedge aitegunas been discontinued for the significantarigj of our contracts, after May 31, 20
effectiveness testing is no longer being perforfioedhese contracts.

Prior to the 2012 Settlement Agreement, for itatetgd operations, APS deferred for future ratattrent approximately 90% of
unrealized gains and losses on certain derivafiuesuant to the PSA mechanism that would otheriéseecognized in income. Due to the
2012 Settlement Agreement, for its regulated opmrat APS now defers for future rate treatment 1@¥%he unrealized gains and losses for
delivery periods after June 30, 2012 on derivatpmesuant to the PSA mechanism that would otherbésecognized in income. Realized
gains and losses on derivatives are deferred iordance with the PSA to the extent the amountsiloee or below the Base Fuel Rate (see
Note 3). Gains and losses from derivatives inftflewing tables represent the amounts reflectedi@ome before the effect of PSA deferri
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As of December 31, 2013, we had the following @rtding gross notional volume of derivatives, whigpresent both purchases and
sales (does not reflect net position):

Commodity Quantity
Power 5,76t GWh
Gas 10€ Bcfs (a)
€) “Bcf” is Billion Cubic Feet.

Gains and Losses from Derivative Instruments

The following table provides information about gaand losses from derivative instruments in desggheash flow accounting
hedging relationships during the years ended DeeeBib, 2013, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
Financial Statement December 31
Commodity Contracts Location 2013 2012 2011
Loss Recognized in OCI on Derivative Instruments OCI — derivative
(Effective Portion’ instruments $ (359 $ (37,669 $ (94,66()
Loss Reclassified from Accumulated OCI into Income Fuel and purchased
(Effective Portion Realized) (i power (b) (44,219 (99,007 (117,189
Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income (Ineffective Rwrt Fuel and purchased
and Amount Excluded from Effectiveness Testi power (b) — 117 (211)

(a) During the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@btl, we had zero, $1.8 million, and zero lossekassified from
accumulated OCI to earnings related to discontirazesth flow hedges.
(b) Amounts are before the effect of PSA deferrals.

During the next twelve months, we estimate thagtdoss of $21 million before income taxes willdeelassified from accumulated
OCI as an offset to the effect of market price geanfor the related hedged transactions. In aeocelwith the PSA, substantially all of these
amounts will be recorded as either a regulatorgtamsliability and have no immediate effect onrgags.
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The following table provides information about gaand losses from derivative instruments not desaghas accounting hedging
instruments during the years ended December 38,2012 and 2011 (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
Financial Statement December 31
Commodity Contracts Location 2013 2012 2011
Net Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Incom Operating revenues ( $ 28¢ $ 10z $ 27)
Net Loss Recognized in  Fuel and purchased pow:
Income (@ (10,449 (2,747) (52,119
Total $ (10,160 $ (2,649 $ (52,140

€) Amounts are before the effect of PSA deferrals.
Derivative Instruments in the Consolidated Balance&sheets

Our derivative transactions are typically executader standardized or customized agreements, viitinde collateral requirements
and, in the event of a default, would allow for tredting of positive and negative exposures aststiaith a single counterparty. Agreements
that allow for the offsetting of positive and ndgatexposures associated with a single counterpaetyonsidered master netting arrangem
Transactions with counterparties that have masting arrangements are offset and reported nét@onsolidated Balance Sheets.
Transactions that do not allow for offsetting objtive and negative positions are reported grosherConsolidated Balance Sheets.

We do not offset a counterparty’s current derivatontracts with the counterparty’s non-currenh@dive contracts, although our
master netting arrangements would allow currentraordcurrent positions to be offset in the everd difault. Additionally, in the event of a
default, our master netting arrangements wouldaftr the offsetting of all transactions executedier the master netting arrangement. Thes
types of transactions may include non-derivativgriments, derivatives qualifying for scope exaapi trade receivables and trade payables
arising from settled positions, and other formsafi-cash collateral (such as letters of credit). Thgpes of transactions are excluded fron
offsetting tables presented below.

The significant majority of our derivative instrunte are not currently designated as hedging ingnisa The Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and December 32, @lude gross liabilities of $5 million of deative instruments designated as hedging
instruments.
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The following tables provide information about fla@ value of our risk management activities repdrbn a gross basis, and the
impacts of offsetting as of December 31, 2013 &P2 These amounts relate to commodity contrawlsage located in the assets and
liabilities from risk management activities linefsomr Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Gross
Recognized Amounts Net Amount

As of December 31, 201: Derivatives Offset Recognized Other Reported on
(dollars in thousands) (a) (b) Derivatives (c) Balance Sheet
Current Asset $ 24,587 $ (7,425 $ 17,16: $ 7 % 17,16¢
Investments and Other

Assets 25,36¢ (1,549 23,81°¢ — 23,81t
Total Asset: 49,95 (8,979 40,97 7 40,98¢
Current Liabilities (50,540 26,16¢ (24,379 (7,51¢) (31,897
Deferred Credits and Oth (72,127 1,80¢ (70,31%) — (70,31%)
Total Liabilities (122,665 27,97¢ (94,689 (7,51¢) (102,20
Total $ (72,717 $ 19,000 $ (53,719 $ (7,510 $ (61,227)

() All of our gross recognized derivative instrumentere subject to master netting arrangements.

(b) Includes cash collateral provided to counterpanife®19,000.

(c) Represents cash collateral and margin that isuipést to offsetting. Amounts relate to non-detiva instruments, derivatives
qualifying for scope exceptions, or collateral amargin posted in excess of the recognized derigatistrument. Includes cash
collateral received from counterparties of $7,5i&) cash margin provided to counterparties of $7.

Gross
Recognized Amounts Net Amount

As of December 31, 201z Derivatives Offset Recognized Other Reported on
(dollars in thousands) (a) (b) Derivatives (c) Balance Sheet
Current Asset $ 42,49 $ a7,79) $ 24,69¢ $ 1,001 $ 25,69¢
Investments and Other

Assets 41,561 (5,672) 35,89: — 35,89
Total Asset: 84,05¢ (23,469 60,58¢ 1,001 61,59(
Current Liabilities (105,329 57,04¢ (48,279 (25,467) (73,74))
Deferred Credits and

Other (100,986 15,72: (85,264) — (85,264)
Total Liabilities (206,31() 72,76¢ (133,54 (25,467) (159,00
Total $ (122,25) $ 4929¢ $ (72,95) $ (24,467 $ (97,419

(a) All of our gross recognized derivative instrumentre subject to master netting arrangements.

(b) Includes cash collateral provided to counterpanife’49,299.

(c) Represents cash collateral relating to non-detigdtistruments or derivatives qualifying for scepeeptions. Includes cash
collateral provided to counterparties of $1,00 eash collateral received from counterparties2%,463. This amount is not
subject to offsetting.
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Credit Risk and Credit Related Contingent Features

We are exposed to losses in the event of nonpesgiacmor nonpayment by counterparties. We havenakagement contracts with
many counterparties, including two counterpart@safhich our exposure represents approximately 82%innacle West's $41 million of risk
management assets as of December 31, 2013. Tgosure relates to long-term traditional wholesaletiacts with counterparties that have
high credit quality. Our risk management proceseases and monitors the financial exposure obaliterparties. Despite the fact that the
great majority of trading counterpartietgbt is rated as investment grade by the crediitgagencies, there is still a possibility that anenore
of these companies could default, resulting in éenn impact on consolidated earnings for a gigenod. Counterparties in the portfolio
consist principally of financial institutions, majenergy companies, municipalities and local disttion companies. We maintain credit
policies that we believe minimize overall credgkrito within acceptable limits. Determination leétcredit quality of our counterparties is
based upon a number of factors, including credihga and our evaluation of their financial coraliti To manage credit risk, we employ
collateral requirements and standardized agreenttemitsillow for the netting of positive and negataxposures associated with a single
counterparty. Valuation adjustments are estaldishpresenting our estimated credit losses oneenati exposure to counterparties.

Certain of our derivative instrument contracts eimtredit-risk-related contingent features inchggiamong other things, investment
grade credit rating provisions, credit-related srdsfault provisions, and adequate assurance progisiddequate assurance provisions allc
counterparty with reasonable grounds for uncegamtlemand additional collateral based on subjeaivents and/or conditions. For those
derivative instruments in a net liability positiomith investment grade credit contingencies, thenterparties could demand additional
collateral if our debt credit rating were to faéllow investment grade (below BBB- for Standard &P®or Fitch or Baa3 for Moody’s).

The following table provides information about al@rivative instruments that have credit-risk-redatentingent features at
December 31, 2013 (dollars in millions):

December 31

2013
Aggregate Fair Value of Derivative Instruments iNet Liability Position $ 122
Cash Collateral Poste 19
Additional Cash Collateral in the Event Credit-RR&lated Contingent Features were Fully
Triggered (& 66
(a) This amount is after counterparty netting and idekithose contracts which qualify for scope exoeptiwhich are excluded

from the derivative details above.

We also have energy related non-derivative instniroentracts with investment grade credit-relatedtingent features which could
also require us to post additional collateral giragimately $180 million if our debt credit ratingere to fall below investment grade.
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18. Other Income and Other Expense

The following table provides detail of other incoared other expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 (dafigrsusands):

2013 2012 2011
Other income
Interest incom $ 1,62¢ % 1,23¢ $ 1,85(
Investment gain— net — — 1,16t
Miscellaneous 75 367 96
Total other income $ 1,70  $ 1,60¢€ $ 3,111
Other expense
Non-operating cost $ (8,207 $ 7,777 $ (7,037)
Investment los— net (3,71)) (2,457 —
Miscellaneous (4,106 (9,612 (3,419
Total other expense $ (16,029 $ (19,849 $ (10,457

19. Palo Verde Sale Leaseback Variable Interest Entite

In 1986, APS entered into agreements with threarseép VIE lessor trusts in order to sell and Idzesek interests in Palo Verde Unit 2
and related common facilities. APS will pay appnoately $49 million per year during 2014 and 20&kted to these leases. The lease
agreements include fixed rate renewal periods whieé APS the ability to utilize the asset for gréficant portion of the assasteconomic life
and therefore provide APS with the power to digattvities of the VIEs that most significantly ingiahe VIES’ economic performance.
Predominately due to the fixed rate renewal pefiddkS has been deemed the primary beneficiaryesfetVIEs and therefore consolidates the
VIEs.

On December 31, 2012, APS notified the lessor &ntties that APS will retain the assets beyontb2y either exercising the fixed
rate lease renewals or by purchasing the asdef?9 elects to purchase the assets, the purchizsewill be based on the fair market value of
the assets at the end of 2015. If APS electsteEnebthe leases, we will be required to make paysieeginning in 2016 of approximately $23
million annually. The length of the lease extensits unknown at this time, as it must be deterththeough an appraisal process. APS must
give notice to the lessor trusts by June 30, 2@i#ymg them which of these two options (leaseengal or purchasing the assets) it will
exercise. The December 31, 2012 notification dm#smpact APS’s consolidation of the VIEs, as Af®8tinues to be deemed the primary
beneficiary of the VIEs.

As a result of consolidation, we eliminate rentexge and recognize depreciation and interest egpegsulting in an increase in net
income for 2013, 2012 and 2011 of $34 million, $3ilion and $28 million, respectively, entirely @itutable to the noncontrolling interests.
Income attributable to Pinnacle West shareholdarsains the same. Consolidation of these VIEsralsalts in changes to our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, but does not impactasdt flows.
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Our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3B, &0l December 31, 2012 include the following an®uoelating to the VIES (in
millions):

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Palo Verde sale leaseback property plant and eqripmet of accumulated
depreciatior $ 12t $ 12¢
Current maturities of lor-term debt 26 27
Long-term debt excluding current maturiti 13 39
Equity-Noncontrolling interest 14¢€ 12¢

Assets of the VIEs are restricted and may onlysesiuo settle the VIES’ debt obligations and foyrpant to the noncontrolling
interest holders. Other than the VIES’ assetsntedamn our consolidated financial statementsgtiditors of the VIEs have no other recourse
to the assets of APS or Pinnacle West, exceptriaioecircumstances, such as a default by APS uthddease.

APS is exposed to losses relating to these VIE®s tipe occurrence of certain events that APS doesarmsider reasonably likely to
occur. Under certain circumstances (for example NRC issuing specified violation orders with espto Palo Verde or the occurrence of
specified nuclear events), APS would be requirethaie specified payments to the VIES’ noncontrgliaguity participants, assume the VIES'
debt, and take title to the leased Palo Verde Rmiterests which, if appropriate, may be requiede written down in value. If such an event
had occurred as of December 31, 2013, APS would baen required to pay the noncontrolling equitfigipants approximately $133 million
and assume $39 million of debt. Since APS conatgglthese VIEs, the debt APS would be requiredsame is already reflected in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For regulatory ratemaking purposes, the leasesnuanto be treated as operating leases and, asil, rge have recorded a regulatory
asset relating to the arrangements.

20. Nuclear Decommissioning Trusts

To fund the costs APS expects to incur to decomiaridBalo Verde, APS established external decomanigsj trusts in accordance
with NRC regulations. Third-party investment masiggare authorized to buy and sell securities faded investment guidelines. The trust
funds are invested in fixed income securities aqdtg securities. APS classifies investments icatiemissioning trust funds as available for
sale. As a result, we record the decommissioningf funds at their fair value on our ConsolidaBatance Sheets. See Note 14 for a
discussion of how fair value is determined anddhssification of the nuclear decommissioning tingestments within the fair value
hierarchy. Because of the ability of APS to recaecommissioning costs in rates and in accorduaiittethe regulatory treatment for
decommissioning trust funds, we have deferredzedland unrealized gains and losses (including-dktam-temporary impairments on
investment securities) in other regulatory lial@kt The following table includes the unrealized gaind bbsses based on the original cost of
the investment and summarizes the fair value of’ &P8clear decommissioning trust fund assets atieee31, 2013 and December 31, 2
(dollars in millions):
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Total Total
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Gains Losses
December 31, 201
Equity securitie: $ 27z $ 12¢ $ —
Fixed income securitie 37¢ 11 (6)
Net payables (a) (3) — —
Total $ 64z $ 14C $ (6)
Total Total
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Gains Losses
December 31, 201
Equity securitie: $ 204 $ 67 $ —
Fixed income securitie 371 24 —
Net payables (a) (4) — —
Total $ 571 $ 91 $ —
€) Net payables relate to pending purchases and cldesurities.

The costs of securities sold are determined omaisés of specific identification. The followingola sets forth approximate gains and
losses and proceeds from the sale of securiti¢bebguclear decommissioning trust funds (dollanittions):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Realized gain $ 6 $ 7% 8
Realized losse (7 (4) (5)
Proceeds from the sale of securities 44¢€ 41€ 49¢

(a) Proceeds are reinvested in the trust.

The fair value of fixed income securities, summediby contractual maturities, at December 31, 2053 follows (dollars in
millions):

Fair Value
Less than one ye: $ 9
1 year-5 years 10¢
5 years 10 years 10¢€
Greater than 10 yea 147
Total $ 37
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21. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table shows the changes in accumdlatber comprehensive loss, including reclassificeadjustments, net of tax, by
component for the year ended December 31, 201&(dah thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 201

Pension and
Other
Derivative Postretirement
Instruments Benefits Total
Beginning balanc $ (49,59, $ (64,416 $ (114,009
OCI (loss) before reclassificatio (213 5,59¢ 5,381
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive los 26,741(a) 3,82i(b) 30,57
Net current period OC 26,53¢ 9,421 35,95¢
Ending balanci $ (23,059 ¢ (54,99 $ (78,059)
(a) These amounts represent realized gains and losdew@included in the computation of fuel and pased power costs and
are subject to the PSA. See Note 17.
(b) These amounts primarily represent amortizationctdaial loss, and are included in the computatibnet periodic pension

cost. See Note 8.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
(ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY)

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f), for ARBanagement conducted an evaluation of the effentise of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the frameworkriternal Control — Integrated Framework (19983ued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basedurevaluation under the frameworkiiternal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992),0ur management concluded that our internal cowtret financial reporting was effective as of DecemBl, 2013. The effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting@sDecember 31, 2013 has been audited by Delgifeuche LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their repohiieh is included herein and also relates to the @amg’s financial statements.

February 21, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of
Arizona Public Service Company
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Arizona Public Service Company andidigny (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdasedl statements of income, comprehensive inconamges in equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece8ih013. Our audits also included the finansiatement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s iaferantrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg&y 2013, based on criteria established il
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission. The
Company’s management is responsible for thesediabstatements and financial statement schedatenéintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessmernhefeffectiveness of internal control over finaheceporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over FimariReporting. Our responsibility is to expressoginion on these financial statements
and financial statement schedule and an opiniath@iCompany'’s internal control over financial repay based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cortvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exéal respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideace supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaldial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltrrover financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, testing aatliating the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audits also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circucestaWe believe that our audits provic
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compapard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anltet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. A company’s internatcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheanaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactionse@eded as necessary to permit preparatio
of financial statements in accordance with gengradtepted accounting principles and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@aent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédisonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of
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unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢bmpany’s assets that could have a materialtaffethe financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateébject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the polideprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Arizona
Public Service Company and subsidiary as of Dece®ibe2013 and 2012, and the results of their dimrsiand their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31,20 conformity with accounting principles gerraccepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial staient schedule, when considered in relation td#séc consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all matergspects, the information set forth therein. Alaa@ur opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control dieancial reporting as of December 31, 2013, basethe criteria established internal

Control — Integrated Framework (1998yued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLF

Phoenix, Arizon:
February 21, 201
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUE! $ 345125 $ 3,293,48' $ 3,237,24.
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Fuel and purchased pow 1,095,70! 994,79( 1,009,46.
Operations and maintenan 897,82: 873,91t 895,91°
Depreciation and amortizatic 415,61: 404,24 426,95¢
Income taxes (Notes 4 an-1) 256,86 256,60( 204,06t
Taxes other than income tax 163,37 158,41. 146,45:
Total 2,829,38! 2,687,96! 2,682,85!
OPERATING INCOME 621,86! 605,52¢ 554,38:
OTHER INCOME (DEDUCTIONS
Income taxes (Notes 4 an-1) 11,76¢ 12,20¢ 11,52«
Allowance for equity funds used during constructibiote 1) 25,58 22,43¢ 23,70%
Other income (Note-3) 3,89¢ 2,86¢ 5,071
Other expense (Note-3) (20,449 (21,150 (15,329
Total 20,79° 16,35¢ 24,97«
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on lon-term debi 188,01: 198,39¢ 218,98:
Interest on sho-term borrowings 6,60¢ 7,13t 10,34¢
Debt discount, premium and expel 4,04¢ 4,21¢ 4,61¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constautiiNote 1) (14,867) (14,979 (18,35
Total 183,80: 194,77 215,58:
NET INCOME 458,86: 427,11( 363,77:
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingehessts (Note 1¢ 33,89: 31,61 27,524
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDEF $ 424,96¢ $ 39549 $ 336,24¢

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kments and Supplemental Notes to Arizona @8lglivice Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
NET INCOME $ 458,86. $ 427,11( $ 363,77:
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TA
Derivative instruments
Net unrealized loss, net of tax benefit of $1401,888, and $37,397 (Note 1 (219 (22,77% (57,267)
Reclassification of net realized loss, net of tardfit of $17,472, $39,119 and $46,298
(Note 17) 26,747 59,88t 70,89:
Pension and other postretirement benefits actinigy of tax (expense) benefit of $(6,003
$408 and $1,910 (Note 9,19( (617) (2,925
Total other comprehensive income 35,72 36,49¢ 10,70¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 494,58 463,60t 374,47
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nonotimg interests 33,89: 31,61 27,52¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHIDER $ 460,69: $ 431,990 $ 346,95

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated Finast&tements and Supplemental Notes to APS'’s Caladeli Financial Statements.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 1, 6 and :
Plant in service and held for future t
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net

Construction work in progre:

Palo Verde sale leaseback, net of accumulated ciepiom of $225,925 and $222,055 (Note
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaif$1 39,703 and $411,5¢
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization 04057 and $133,950

Total property, plant and equipment

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSET!
Nuclear decommissioning trust (Notes 14 and
Assets from risk management activities (Note
Other assets
Total investments and other assets

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Customer and other receivab
Accrued unbilled revenug
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Materials and supplies (at average ¢
Fossil fuel (at average co:
Income tax receivabl
Assets from risk management activities (Note
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory gbsse 3)
Other regulatory assets (Note
Deferred income taxes (Notes 4 ar-1)
Other current assets
Total current assets

DEFERRED DEBITS
Regulatory assets (Notes 1, 3, 4 a-1)
Income tax receivable (Notes 4 ar-1)
Unamortized debt issue co:
Other
Total deferred debits

TOTAL ASSETS

December 31

2013 2012
15,196,59 $ 14,342,550
(5,296,50) (4,925,99)

9,900,09 9,416,51

581,36 565,71
125,12! 128,99
157,53 161,99!
124,55° 122,77
10,888,68 10,395,99
642,00 570,62!
23,81t 35,89
33,70¢ 31,65(
699,53 638,16
3,72" 3,49¢
299,05t 274,81
96,79¢ 94,84t
(3,209 (3,340)
221,68. 218,00
38,02¢ 31,33
135,17¢ 58¢
17,16¢ 25,60¢
20,75t 72,69:
76,38¢ 71,25
— 74,42(
39,15: 37,07
944,72 900,98:
711,71 1,099,901
— 70,78«
21,86( 22,49;
114,86! 114,22;
848,43 1,307,39
13,381,37 $ 13,242,554

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated Finast&tbements and Supplemental Notes to APS'’s Caladeli Financial Statements.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

December 31

2013 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CAPITALIZATION
Common stocl $ 178,16 $ 178,16.
Additional paic-in capital 2,379,69i 2,379,69i
Retained earning 1,804,39 1,624,23
Accumulated other comprehensive (lo:
Pension and other postretirement benefits (No (30,319 (39,509
Derivative instruments (Note 17) (23,059 (49,597)
Total shareholder equity 4,308,88 4,093,00
Noncontrolling interests (Note 19) 145,99( 129,48:
Total equity 4,454,87. 4,222,48.
Long-term debt less current maturities (Note 6) 2,671,46! 3,074,08i
Total capitalization 7,126,33! 7,296,57.
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shor-term borrowings (Note & 153,12! 92,17¢
Current maturities of lor-term debt (Note 6 540,42: 122,82!
Accounts payabl 281,23 215,57
Accrued taxes (Notes 4 an-1) 122,46( 116,70(
Accrued interes 48,13. 49,13t
Common dividends payab 62,50( 59,80(
Customer deposit 76,10: 79,68¢
Deferred income taxe 2,03: —
Liabilities from risk management activities (Notg). 31,89: 73,74
Liabilities for asset retirements (Note 32,89¢ —
Regulatory liabilities (Note & 99,27: 88,11¢
Other current liabilities 130,77: 145,32¢
Total current liabilities 1,580,84 1,043,08
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHEI
Deferred income taxes (Notes 4 ar-1) 2,347,72. 2,133,97
Regulatory liabilities (Notes 1, 3, 4, an-1) 801,29 759,20:
Liability for asset retirements (Note 1 313,83: 357,09
Liabilities for pension and other postretirememdifgs (Note 8 476,01 1,017,55
Liabilities from risk management activities (Notg). 70,31¢ 85,26«
Customer advance 114,48 109,35¢
Coal mine reclamatio 207,45: 118,86
Deferred investment tax cret 152,36: 99,81¢
Unrecognized tax benefits (Notes 4 ar-1) 42,20¢ 70,93:
Other 148,50:. 150,82!
Total deferred credits and other 4,674,19 4,902,88.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (SEE NOTES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 13,381,37 $ 13,242,54

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated Finast&tements and Supplemental Notes to APS'’s Caladeli Financial Statements.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortization including nuclear 1
Deferred fuel and purchased pov
Deferred fuel and purchased power amortiza
Allowance for equity funds used during construct
Deferred income taxe
Deferred investment tax cret
Change in derivative instruments fair va
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Customer and other receivab
Accrued unbilled revenug
Materials, supplies and fossil fu
Income tax receivabl
Other current asse
Accounts payabl
Accrued taxe!
Other current liabilitie:
Change in margin and collateral acco.— asset:
Change in margin and collateral accol.— liabilities
Change in lon-term regulatory liabilitie:
Change in lon-term income tax receivab
Change in unrecognized tax bene
Change in other lor-term asset
Change in other long-term liabilities
Net cash flow provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure
Contributions in aid of constructic
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constt
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust ¢
Investment in nuclear decommissioning ti
Proceeds from sale of life insurance polic
Other
Net cash flow used for investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of lor-term deb
Repayment of lor-term debi
Shor-term borrowings and paymer— net
Dividends paid on common sto
Noncontrolling interests
Net cash flow used for financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fc
Income taxes, net of refun
Interest, net of amounts capitaliz
Significant no-cash investing and financing activitit
Accrued capital expenditur
Dividends declared but not pe

Liabilities assumed related to acquisition of s Four Corner interest

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 458,86 $ 427,110 $ 363,77
492,22 481,16t 493,65:
21,67¢ 71,57: 69,16¢
31,19( (116,71 (155,15)
(25,58:) (22,43¢) (23,707
278,10: 202,15 110,56!
52,54 41,57¢ 58,24(
534 (749) 4,06¢
(46,557) 12,91« 34,91
(1,95)) 30,39t (21,947
(11,87¢) (23,049 (23,399
(134,59() (2,280) 2,86¢
(17,117 (27,74%) (5,479
47,87( (97,39%) 73,36¢
5,76( 7,33( 2,23¢
(9,00%) 6,07( 18,76:
99: 2,21¢ 33,34¢
12,35¢ 137,78 29,73
64,47: 13,53¢ 37,00¢
137,66! (1,756) (3,530)
(91,244 (2,589 9,12t
(46,047) 1,391 (41,78%)
(25,607 34,85¢ 61,99(
1,194,69. 1,175,37 1,127 8L
(1,016,32) (889,55 (878,541
41,09( 49,87¢ 38,00¢
(14,862) (14,977 (18,35¢)
446,02" 417,60: 497,78
(463,27, (434,85)) (513,799
— — 44,18:
(2,067) (1,099 (3,306)
(1,009,40) (872,99)) (833,95()
136,30° 351,08: 295,35
(122,82 (529,281 (430,16¢)
60,95( 92,17 —
(242,10() (222,201 (228,901
(17,38%) (10,529) (10,210
(185,05() (318,75) (373,92f)
22€ (16,379 (80,062
3,49¢ 19,87¢ 99,93;
$ 3,72 $ 3,49¢ $ 19,87¢
$ 752 $ 1,19 $ 25,97
$ 180,75 $ 196,03¢ $ 210,99
$ 33,18 $ 26,20¢ $ 27,24t

$ 62,500 $ 59,80( $

$ 145,60¢ $ — % _

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kments and Supplemental Notes to APS’s Catadeli Financial Statements.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

COMMON STOCK $ 178,16: $ 178,16: $ 178,16:
ADDITIONAL PAID -IN CAPITAL 2,379,691 2,379,691 2,379,691
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of ye 1,624,23 1,510,741 1,403,39I
Net income attributable to common shareho 424,96 395,49° 336,24¢
Dividends on common stoc (244,800 (282,000 (228,900
Other (8) — 1
Balance at end of year 1,804,39: 1,624,23 1,510,741
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
Balance at beginning of ye (89,09 (125,59) (136,299
Other comprehensive income attributable to comniameholder 35,72 36,49¢ 10,70¢
Balance at end of year (53,377) (89,095 (125,59))
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Balance at beginning of ye 129,48: 108,39¢ 91,08¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 33,89: 31,618 27,524
Net capital activities by noncontrolling intere (17,385 (10,529 (10,209
Balance at end of year 145,99( 129,48: 108,39¢
TOTAL EQUITY $ 4,454,87. $ 4,222,48.  $ 4,051,401
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON

SHAREHOLDER
Net income attributable to common shareho $ 424,96¢ $ 395,49° $ 336,24¢
Other comprehensive income 35,72 36,49¢ 10,70/
Total comprehensive income attributable to comnt@reholder $ 460,69. $ 431,990 $ 346,95

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kments and Supplemental Notes to APS’s Caladeli Financial Statements.
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Certain notes to APS’s consolidated financial steets are combined with the notes to Pinnacle Westsolidated financial
statements. Listed below are the consolidatedsrtot®innacle West's consolidated financial stat@sjehe majority of which also relate to
APS'’s consolidated financial statements. In additisted below are the supplemental notes which egeired disclosures for APS and shc
be read in conjunction with Pinnacle West's Cortatid Notes.

APS's
Consolidated Supplemental
Note Note

Reference Reference
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 1 —
New Accounting Standarc Note 2 —
Regulatory Matter Note 3 —
Income Taxe! Note 4 Note -1
Lines of Credit and Shc-Term Borrowings Note 5 —
Long-Term Debt and Liquidity Mattel Note 6 —
Common Stock and Treasury Stc Note 7 —
Retirement Plans and Other Bene Note 8 —
Leases Note 9 —
Jointly-Owned Facilities Note 10 —
Commitments and Contingenci Note 11 —
Asset Retirement Obligatior Note 12 —
Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudit Note 13 Note -2
Fair Value Measuremen Note 14 —
Earnings Per Shal Note 15 —
Stock-Based Compensatic Note 16 —
Derivative Accounting Note 17 —
Other Income and Other Exper Note 18 Note -3
Palo Verde Sale Leaseback Variable Interest Es Note 19 —
Nuclear Decommissioning Trus Note 20 —
Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Note 21 Note -4
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S-1. Income Taxes

APS is included in Pinnacle West's consolidatedreiMrn. However, when Pinnacle West allocatesnme taxes to APS, it is done
based upon APS’s taxable income computed on a-saneé basis, in accordance with the tax sharimgeagent.

Certain assets and liabilities are reported diffdyefor income tax purposes than they are forrial statements purposes. The tax
effect of these differences is recorded as defdmees. We calculate deferred taxes using cuyremécted tax rates.

APS has recorded regulatory assets and regulasdmities related to income taxes on its BalanbeeSs in accordance with
accounting guidance for regulated operations. rébelatory assets are for certain temporary diffees, primarily the allowance for equity
funds used during construction and pension and gih&tretirement benefits. The regulatory lialgtprimarily relate to deferred taxes
resulting from ITCs and the change in income taesa

In accordance with regulatory requirements, APSd &€ deferred and are amortized over the lifb@f¢lated property, with such
amortization applied as a credit to reduce curirgtdme tax expense in the statement of income.

The $71 million long-term income tax receivableA?S’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemh@&032 represented the
anticipated refund related to an APS tax accountiethod change approved by the IRS in the thirdtquaf 2009. On July 9, 2013, IRS
guidance was released which provided clarificategarding the timing and amount of this cash race#ys a result of this guidance, uncertain
tax positions decreased $67 million during thedtlgjuarter. This decrease in uncertain tax postresulted in a corresponding increase to the
total anticipated refund due from the IRS and dsetfing increase in long-term deferred tax lidigii. Additionally, as a result of this IRS
guidance, the $138 million anticipated refund wedassified to current income tax receivable.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the IR8ified the examination of tax returns for the gearded December 31, 2008 anc
2009, and the $138 million anticipated refund weduced by approximately $2 million to reflect theéanme of this examination. On
December 17, 2013, the Joint Committee on Taxatpgproved the anticipated refund. Cash relatelisoréfund was received in the first
quarter of 2014.

On September 13, 2013, the U.S. Treasury Departratrased final income tax regulations on the deoiu@nd capitalization of
expenditures related to tangible property. Thesa fegulations apply to tax years beginning oafter January 1, 2014. Several of the
provisions within the regulations will require & @ccounting method change to be filed with the iBSulting in a cumulative effect
adjustment. To account for the adoption of theggilations plant-related long-term deferred tailies decreased by $84 million, with the
offsetting decrease to current deferred incomeatmets. Prior to the issuance of these regulatioiss$84 million would have been repaid ¢
20 years through lower tax depreciation deductions.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net income associated with the Palo Verde salebsask VIES is not subject to tax (see Note 19).aAssult, there is no income tax
expense associated with the VIEs recorded on AB8rsolidated Statements of Income.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of thegbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excluditerest and penalties, at the
beginning and end of the year that are includegtgrued taxes and unrecognized tax benefits (ddhathousands):

2013 2012 2011

Total unrecognized tax benefits, January 1 $ 133,24: $ 135,82: $ 126,69!
Additions for tax positions of the current ye 3,51¢ 5,16 10,91t
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 13,15¢ — —
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 1

Changes in judgmel (107,919 (7,729 (1,55

Settlements with taxing authoriti — — (129

Lapses of applicable statute of limitations — (21) (110)
Total unrecognized tax benefits, December 31 $ 4199° $ 133,24. $ 135,82

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemafiDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were appatedy$10 million,
$10 million and $8 million, respectively, of taxgtions that, if recognized, would decrease owecative tax rate.

As of the balance sheet date, the tax year endedrbtger 31, 2010 and all subsequent tax years resubjact to examination by the
IRS. With a few exceptions, we are no longer sttlfi@ state income tax examinations by tax autlesrfior years before 2010.

We reflect interest and penalties, if any, on uogeized tax benefits in the Statements of Incomiae@sne tax expense. The amount
of interest recognized in the Statements of Incosieed to unrecognized tax benefits was a prés¢gnefit of $4 million for 2013, a pre-tax
expense of $4 million for 2012 and a pre-tax expesfst3 million for 2011.

The total amount of accrued liabilities for interescognized in the Balance Sheets related to ogrezed tax benefits was less than
$1 million as of December 31, 2013, $13 millionrcdHecember 31, 2012 and $9 million as of Decen®ie2011. To the extent that matters
are settled favorably, this amount could be revees®l decrease our effective tax rate. Additignalé of December 31, 2013, we have
recognized $5 million of interest income to be reed on the overpayment of income taxes for cerajustments that we have filed, or will
file, with the IRS.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The components of APS’s income tax expense arellasvs (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Current:

Federal $ (97,53) $ (11,650 $ 4,63

State 11,98 12,30¢ 19,10¢
Total current (85,54 65¢ 23,73,
Deferred:

Federal 305,38¢ 216,36 154,63:

State 25,25¢ 27,37: 14,17
Total deferred 330,64 243,73 168,80!
Total income tax expense $ 245,09' $ 244,39t $ 192,54.

On the APS Statements of Income, federal and stetene taxes are allocated between operating in@rdether income.

The following chart compares APS'’s pretax incomthat35% federal income tax rate to income tax pgpddollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Federal income tax expense at 35% statutory $ 246,38: $ 235,02 $ 194,71
Increases (reductions) in tax expense resulting f
State income tax net of federal income tax bel 23,97( 25,37¢ 21,13¢
Credits and favorable adjustments related to yéars resolved in
current yea (3,23)) — —
Medicare Subsidy P&«D 822 48: 823
Allowance for equity funds used during constructfsee Note 1 (6,997 (6,15¢) (6,880
Palo Verde VIE noncontrolling interest (see Notg¢ (11,867) (11,065 (9,637
Other (3,999 73C (7,617%)
Income tax expense $ 245,09' $ 244,39t $ 192,54.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table shows the net deferred incomeliability recognized on the APS Balance Sheétdldrs in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Current asset (liability) $ (2,039 $ 74,42(
Long-term liability (2,347,72) (2,133,971
Deferred income taxes — net $ (2,349,75) $  (2,059,55)

On February 17, 2011, Arizona enacted legislatiémB( 2001) that included a four-year phase-in apooate income tax rate
reductions beginning in 2014. As a result of thiaserate reductions, Pinnacle West has reviseththeate applicable to reversing temporary
items in Arizona. In accordance with accountingregulated companies, the benefit of this rateicédn is substantially offset by a regulatory
liability. As of December 31, 2013, APS has reeard regulatory liability of $75 million, with a pesponding decrease in accumulated
deferred income tax liabilities, to reflect the iagp of this change in tax law.

On April 4, 2013, New Mexico enacted legislationBH641) that included a five-year phasesf corporate income tax rate reductit
beginning in 2014. As a result of these tax ratkictions, Pinnacle West has revised the tax pgikcable to reversing temporary items in
New Mexico. In accordance with accounting for dated companies, the benefit of this rate redudssubstantially offset by a regulatc
liability. As of December 31, 2013, APS has reeard regulatory liability of $2 million, with a aesponding decrease in accumulated
deferred income tax liabilities, to reflect the iagp of this change in tax law.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The components of the net deferred income taxlitiglvere as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
DEFERRED TAX ASSET¢
Regulatory liabilities
Asset retirement obligation and removal c« $ 235,95¢ $ 238,66
Unamortized investment tax cred 82,11¢ 53,831
Other 42,60¢ 33,76«
Risk management activitit 44,92( 72,24
Pension and other postretirement liabilit 186,21: 392,48t
Renewable energy incentiv 65,43¢ 66,94
Credit and loss carryforwari 38,18: 52,44
Other 166,78: 111,32
Total deferred tax assets 862,21! 1,021,70:
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Plan-related (2,903,73)) (2,584,16))
Risk management activitit (16,197 (23,940
Regulatory asset
Allowance for equity funds used during construct (43,059 (37,899
Deferred fuel and purchased pov (8,282) (28,859
Deferred fuel and purchased pov— mark-to-market (13,349 (15,796
Pension and other postretirement ben: (129,25() (316,75)
Other (93,209 (68,17()
Other (4,916 (5,679
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,211,97) (3,081,26)
Deferred income taxes — net $ (2,349,75) $ (2,059,55)

As of December 31, 2013, the deferred tax assetsédit and loss carryforwards relate primarilyfederal general business credits
which first begin to expire in 2031.
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S-2. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information for 2013 and 20%2as follows (dollars in thousands):

2013 Quarter Ended, 2013

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31 Total
Operating revenue $ 685,82° $ 915,06! $ 1,151,53! $ 698,82: $ 3,451,25
Operations and maintenan 220,75: 224,95( 222,61° 229,50! 897,82:
Operating incom: 74,86 183,72¢ 284,25 79,02« 621,86!
Net income attributable to common shareho 26,04: 133,94¢ 234,95¢ 30,02« 424,96

2012 Quarter Ended, 2012

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31 Total
Operating revenue $ 620,24¢ $ 877,58 $ 1,108,62: $ 687,03: $ 3,293,48
Operations and maintenan 208,44 213,74¢ 218,40: 233,32( 873,91t
Operating incom: 53,99¢ 176,82: 296,94! 77,76¢ 605,52
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehr (4,109 124,92¢ 247,83: 26,84: 395,49

S-3. Other Income and Other Expense

The following table provides detail of APS’s otliecome and other expense for 2013, 2012 and 20dla(s in thousands):

2013 2012 2011

Other income

Interest incom $ 123¢ $ 31C $ 40€

Investment gain— net — 1,41¢

Miscellaneous 2,662 2,55¢ 3,24
Total other income $ 3,89¢ $ 2,86¢ $ 5,071
Other expense

Nor-operating costs (¢ $ (9,620 $ (8,706 $ (8,810

Asset disposition (4,992) (1,517 (1,357

Miscellaneous (5,830 (10,939 (5,166
Total other expense $ (20,449 $ (21,150 $ (15,32¢)

(a) As defined by FERC, includes below-the-line non+agiag utility income and expense (items excludeanf utility rate
recovery).
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S-4. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table shows the changes in accumdlatber comprehensive loss, including reclassificeadjustments, net of tax, by
component for the year ended December 31, 201&(dah thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 201

Pension and
Other
Derivative Postretirement
Instruments Benefits Total
Beginning balanc $ (49,59, $ (39,509 $ (89,095
OCI (loss) before reclassificatio (2149 5,381 5,17:
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive los: 26,74 (a) 3,80%(b) 30,55(
Net current period OC 26,53 9,19( 35,72
Ending balanc: $ (23,059 $ (30,31) $ (53,379

(&) These amounts represent realized gains and losdem@aincluded in the computation of fuel and pased power costs and are
subject to the PSA. See Note 17.

(b) These amounts primarily represent amortizationctdarial loss, and are included in the computatibnet periodic pension cos
See Note 8.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION HOLDING COMPANY

SCHEDULE | — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands)

Operating revenue
Operating expenses

Operating los!
Other
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Other expense
Total
Interest expense

Income from continuing operatiol
Income tax benefit

Income from continuing operatio— net of income taxe
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — nehobme taxes

Net income attributable to common shareholt

Other comprehensive income — attributable to comsimreholders
Total comprehensive income — attributable to comsiwareholders

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
79¢ $ 6,13: $ 1,03¢
24,93( 12,12t 8,811
(24,137 (5,992) (7,777
420,92( 391,52 335,85¢
(1,999) (2,001) (1,481)
418,92 389,52 334,37
3,22¢ 4,86¢ 8,05:
391,57( 378,66 318,54
(14,502 (7,079) (8,93¢)
406,07 385,74 327,48
_ (4,204) 11,98;
406,07 381,54 339,47
35,95t 38,15¢ 7,60¢
442,02¢ $ 41969 $ 347,07
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION HOLDING COMPANY
SCHEDULE | — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 579¢ % 22,67¢
Accounts receivabl 80,10¢ 92,90¢
Current deferred income tax 93,18¢ 77,77
Income tax receivabl 1,85: 3,35(
Other current assets 24z 25
Total current assets 181,18t 196,73:
Investments and other ass
Investments in subsidiari 4,455,04' 4,223,30
Other assets 13,78¢ 13,83:
Total investments and other assets 4,468,83: 4,237,13.
Total Assets $ 4,650,02. $ 4,433,86!
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 3,27¢ % 5,73t
Accrued taxe! 8,53¢ 8,23¢
Common dividends payah 62,52¢ 59,78¢
Other current liabilities 31,29t 41,00(
Total current liabilities 105,64( 114,76.
Long-term debt less current maturiti 125,00( 125,00(
Deferred credits and oth
Deferred income taxe 4,15¢ 17,39¢
Pension and other postretirement liabili 37,61: 41,19¢
Other 37,15¢ 33,21¢
Total deferred credits and other 78,92 91,81
Common stock equit
Common stocl 2,487,25! 2,462,71.
Accumulated other comprehensive i (78,057 (114,009
Retained earnings 1,785,27. 1,624,10:
Total Pinnacle West Shareholders’ equity 4,194,47 3,972,801
Noncontrolling interests 145,99( 129,48:
Total Equity 4,340,461 4,102,28!
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 4,650,02. $ 4,433,86!

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION HOLDING COMPANY

SCHEDULE | — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitir
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:

Equity in earnings of subsidiari— net
Depreciation and amortizatic

Gain on sale of ener-related busines
Deferred income taxe

Accounts receivabl

Accounts payabl

Accrued taxes and income tax receival— net
Dividends received from subsidiari

Other

Net cash flow provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in subsidiari
Repayments of loans from subsidia
Proceeds from sale of ene-related products and services busir
Advances of loans to subsidiar
Proceeds from sale of life insurance policies
Net cash flow provided by (used for) investing wtigs

Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of lor-term debt
Shor-term borrowings and paymer— net
Dividends paid on common sto
Repayment of lor-term debt
Common stock equity issuan
Other
Net cash flow used for financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 406,07: $ 381,54. $ 339,47
(420,92f) (391,52 (335,85¢)
95 94 97
— — (10,402
(28,80¢) (15,13%) 7,381
21,67 28,76 (24,207)
(2,449) 87¢ (2,677)
1,40: (3,109 7,51z
242,10 222,20 228,90
(15,06%) (4,589 19,27(
204,00 219,12 229,49
(3,400 — —
2,14¢ 99¢ 61,14:
— — 45,11
(2,099 (1,200 (64,970)
— — 9,357
(3,350) (204) 50,64
— 125,00( 175,00
— — (16,600
(235,242 (225,07!) (221,72)
— (125,00() (225,00()
17,31¢ 15,95¢ 15,84:
29¢ 17C (2,667)
(217,62) (208,95() (275,15
(16,887 9,96¢ 4,98¢
22,67¢ 12,71( 7,72t
$ 579t $ 2267¢ $ 12,71(
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE Il — RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLES
(dollars in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged Balance
beginning cost and to other at end of
Description of period expense: accounts Deductions period
Reserve for uncollectible
2013 $ 3,34C % 4,92 $ $ 506( $ 3,20¢
2012 3,74¢ 5,29( 5,69¢ 3,34(
2011 4,70¢ 5,672 6,63 3,74¢
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ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
SCHEDULE Il — RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLES
(dollars in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged Balance
beginning cost and to other at end of
Description of period expense: accounts Deductions period
Reserve for uncollectible
2013 $ 3,34C % 4,92 $ $ 506( $ 3,20¢
2012 3,74¢ 5,29( 5,69¢ 3,34(
2011 4,37¢ 5,751 6,37¢ 3,74¢
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” meansrols and other procedures of a company tleatlesigned to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a companthe reports that it files or submits under theuBigies Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) (15 U.S.C. 78gt seq) is recorded, processed, summarized and repavitdn the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedlimeude, without limitation, controls and proceskidesigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the regbt it files or submits under the Exchange A@dcumulated and communicated to a
companys management, including its principal executive pridcipal financial officers, or persons perforgisimilar functions, as appropri
to allow timely decisions regarding required discice.

Pinnacle West's management, with the participatibRinnacle West's Chief Executive Officer and GHiaancial Officer, have
evaluated the effectiveness of Pinnacle West'dakisce controls and procedures as of December(®3.2Based on that evaluation, Pinnacle
West’'s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finand@fficer have concluded that, as of that date, Rilen&/est’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

APS’s management, with the participation of APStseE Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officéigve evaluated the
effectiveness of APS’s disclosure controls and @doces as of December 31, 2013. Based on thatagiail, APS’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer have concluded thatfhat date, APS’s disclosure controls and pracesiwere effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Reports on Internal ControliQrirancial Reporting

Reference is made to “Management’s Report on lateControl Over Financial Reporting (Pinnacle Wéapital Corporation)” on
page 77 of this report and “Management’s Repotnggrnal Control Over Financial Reporting (ArizoRablic Service Company)n page 15
of this report.

(c) Attestation Reports of the Registered Public ActimgnFirm

Reference is made to “Report of Independent RegdtBublic Accounting Firm” on page 78 of this re@nd ‘Report of Independe
Registered Public Accounting Firm” on page 154hié teport on the internal control over financighorting of Pinnacle West and APS,
respectively.

(d) Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Repartin

No change in Pinnacle West's or APS’s internal mmrdver financial reporting occurred during theckl quarter ended December 31,
2013 that materially affected, or is reasonablgliiko materially affect, Pinnacle West's or AP8&iternal control over financial reporting.

175




Table of Contents

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF PINNACLE WEST

Reference is hereby made to “Information About Board and Corporate Governance,” “Proposal 1 —tieleof Directors” and to
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte” in the Pinnacle West Proxy Statement rejatiinthe Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 21, 2014 (the “Z®&bky Statement”) and to the “Executive Officerdainacle West” section in Part | of this
report.

Pinnacle West has adopted a Code of Ethics fomEinhExecutives that applies to financial exeaesiincluding Pinnacle West's
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officerh@&f Accounting Officer, Controller, Treasurer, aBdneral Counsel, the President and Chie
Operating Officer of APS and other persons desgghas financial executives by the Chair of the A@dimmittee. The Code of Ethics for
Financial Executives is posted on Pinnacle Wesgbsite (www.pinnaclewest.com)Pinnacle West intends to satisfy the requiresiantier
Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding disclosure of ammaedts to, or waivers from, provisions of the Cotl&thics for Financial Executives by
posting such information on Pinnacle West's website

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Reference is hereby made to “Directors’ Compengdti&Report of the Human Resources Committee,” “EBixéve Compensation,”
and “Human Resources Committee Interlocks and émddrticipation” in the 2014 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Reference is hereby made to “Ownership of Pinnétdst Stock” in the 2014 Proxy Statement.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2013 with respect to the 2012 Plan2@®& Plan and the 2002 Long-
Term Incentive Plan (the “2002 Plan”), under whielhr equity securities are outstanding or curreatishorized for issuance.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities remaining
Number of Weighted- available for future
securities to be average issuance under
issued upon exercise price equity
exercise of of outstanding compensation plans
outstanding options, (excluding
options, warrants warrants and securities reflected
and rights rights in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 1,736,75. — 3,538,511
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers — — —
Total 1,736,75. — 3,538,51

(@)

(b)
(©)

This amount includes shares subject to outstanalions, as well as shares subject to outstanddnfpgnance share awards
and restricted stock unit awards at the maximumuarnof shares issuable under such awards. Howpagout of the
performance share awards is contingent on the Coynaching certain levels of performance duririgrae-year
performance period. If the performance criteriath@se awards are not fully satisfied, the awaoipient will receive less
than the maximum number of shares available uddEsetgrants and may receive nothing from thesdagran

The weighted-average exercise price in this coldoes not take performance share awards or reststbek unit awards
into account, as those awards have no exercise. pric

Awards under the 2012 Plan can take the form abopt stock appreciation rights, restricted stgekformance shares,
performance share units, performance cash, st@kgrstock units, dividend equivalents, and ret&tli stock units.
Additional shares cannot be awarded under eitleeP@®2 Plan or the 2007 Plan. However, if an awadgr the 2012 Plan
or an award that was outstanding under either @& Plan or the 2007 Plan on or after Decembe@11] is forfeited,
terminated or cancelled or expires, the sharessuty such award, to the extent of the forfeitteemination, cancellation or
expiration, may be added back to the shares al@ifabissuance under the 2012 Plan.

Equity Compensation Plans Approved By Security Holdrs

Amounts in column (@) in the table above includareh subject to awards outstanding under thred¢yecminpensation plans that were
previously approved by our shareholders: (a) 0@22Plan, which was approved by our shareholderara2002 annual meeting of
shareholders and under which no new stock awargsbmgranted; (b) the 2007 Plan, which was apprdweadur shareholders at our 2007
annual meeting of shareholders and under whichemostock awards may be granted; and (c) the 2042, Rlhich was approved by our
shareholders at our 2012 annual meeting of shadetwl See
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Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated FinancialeSteints for additional information regarding thelsmg.
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by SecurityHolders

The Company does not have any equity compensalims pnder which shares can be issued that havgeeotapproved by the
shareholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Reference is hereby made to “Information About Board and Corporate Governance” and “Related Faggsactions” in the 2014
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT
FEES AND SERVICES

Pinnacle West

Reference is hereby made to “Accounting and Auditfatters — Audit Fees and — Pre-Approval Policiesthe 2014 Proxy
Statement.

APS

The following fees were paid to APS’s independegistered public accountants, Deloitte & Touche L idP the last two fiscal years:

Type of Service 2012 2013
Audit Fees (1. $ 1,659,08° $ 1,859,27!
Audit-Related Fees (¢ 174,31( 189,99(
Tax Fees (3 — 28,00(
(1) The aggregate fees billed for services renderethioaudit of annual financial statements and deraw of financial
statements included in Reports on Form 10-Q.
(2) The aggregate fees billed for assurance serviegsith reasonably related to the performance cditlié or review of the

financial statements that are not included in A&@its reported above, which primarily consist esffor employee benefit
plan audits performed in 2013 and 2012.
) The aggregate fees billed primarily related todampliance and tax planning.

Pinnacle West's Audit Committee pre-approves eadlit gervice and non-audit service to be providg@BS's registered public
accounting firm. The Audit Committee has delegdtethe Chair of the Audit Committee the authotdypre-approve audit and non-audit
services to be performed by the independent pabliountants if the services are not expected tongcose than $50,000. The Chair must
report any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Cattem at its next scheduled meeting. All of thevees performed by Deloitte & Touche
LLP for APS in 2013 were pre-approved by the A@bimmittee or the Chair of the Audit Committee cetesit with the pre-approval policy.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S
Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schetks
See the Index to Financial Statements and FinaStéément Schedule in Part II, Item 8.
Exhibits Filed

The documents listed below are being filed or harewiously been filed on behalf of Pinnacle WesABS and are incorporated
herein by reference from the documents indicateddnaade a part hereof. Exhibits not identified es/jpusly filed are filed herewith.

Exhibit Date
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit; 2 Filed
3.1 Pinnacle West Articles of Incorporation, restated 3.1 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2008 8-7-08
as of May 21, 200 Form 1(-Q Report, File No.-8962
3.2 Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 3.1 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2010 8-3-10
Bylaws, amended as of May 19,  Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
2010
3.3 APS Articles of Incorporation, restated 4.2 to APS’s Form 18 Registration Nos. 33-9-29-93
as of May 25, 1988 33910 and 33-55248 by means of
September 24, 1993 Form 8-K Report, File
No. 1-4473
3.3.1 APS Amendment to the Articles of 3.1 to Pinnacle West/APS May 22, 2012  5-22-12
Incorporation of Arizona Public Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Service Company, amended 4473

May 16, 201z

3.4 APS Arizona Public Service Company 3.4 to Pinnacle West/APS December 31, 2-20-09
Bylaws, amended as of 2008 Form 10-K, File No. 1-4473
December 16, 20C
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Exhibit Date
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
4.1 Pinnacle West Specimen Certificate of 4.1 to Pinnacle West June 28, 2011 Form 86-28-11
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation K Report, File No. 1-8962
Common Stock, no par val
4.2 Pinnacle West Indenture dated as of January 1, 4.6 to APS’s Registration Statement Nos. 1-11-95
APS 1995 among APS and The Bank of 33-61228 and 33-55473 by means of
New York Mellon, as Truste January 1, 1995 Form 8-K Report, File
No. 1-4473
4.2a Pinnacle West First Supplemental Indenture dated 4.4 to APS’s Registration Statement Nos. 1-11-95
APS as of January 1, 1995 33-61228 and 33-55473 by means of
January 1, 1995 Form 8-K Report, File
No. 1-4473
4.3 Pinnacle West Indenture dated as of November 4.5 to APS’s Registration Statements Nos. 11-22-96
APS 1996 between APS and The Ban  33-61228, 33-55473, 33-64455 and 333-
New York, as Truste 15379 by means of November 19, 1996
Form &K Report, File No. -4473
4.3a Pinnacle West First Supplemental Indenture dated 4.6 to APS’s Registration Statements Nos. 11-22-96
APS as of November 15, 1996 33-61228, 33-55473, 33-64455 and 333-
15379 by means of November 19, 1996
Form &K Report, File No. -4473
4.3b Pinnacle West Second Supplemental Indenture  4.10 to APS’s Registration Statement Nos. 4-9-97
APS dated as of April 1, 1997 33-55473, 33-64455 and 333-15379 by
means of April 7, 1997 Form 8-K Report,
File No. -4473
4.3c Pinnacle West Third Supplemental Indenture da  10.2 to Pinnacle West's March 31, 2003  5-15-03

APS

as of November 1, 20( Form 1(-Q Report, File No.-8962
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Exhibit Date
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
4.4 Pinnacle West Indenture dated as of December 1, 4.1 to Pinnacle West's Registration 12-21-00
2000 between the Company and  Statement No. 333-52476
The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
relating to Senior Unsecured Debt
Securities
4.5 Pinnacle West Indenture dated as of December 1, 4.2 to Pinnacle West's Registration 12-21-00
2000 between the Company and  Statement No. 333-52476
The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
relating to Subordinated Unsecured
Debt Securitie!
4.6 Pinnacle West Indenture dated as of January 15, 4.10 to APS’s Registration Statement Nos. 1-16-98
APS 1998 between APS and The Ban 333-15379 and 333-27551 by means of
New York Mellon Trust Compan  January 13, 1998 Form 8-K Report, File
N.A. (successor to JPMorgan Ch  No. 1-4473
Bank, N.A., formerly known as Tt
Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trus
4.6¢ Pinnacle West Seventh Supplemental Indenture 4.1 to APS’s Registration Statement 5-9-03
APS dated as of May 1, 2003 No. 33390824 by means of May 7, 2003

Form &K Report, File No. -4473
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Exhibit Date
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
4.6d Pinnacle West Eighth Supplemental Indenture 4.1 to APS’s Registration Statement 6-28-04
APS dated as of June 15, 2004 No. 333106772 by means of June 24, 2004
Form &K Report, File No. -4473
4.6e Pinnacle West Ninth Supplemental Indenture da 4.1 to APS’s Registration Statements Nos. 8-22-05
APS as of August 15, 2005 333-106772 and 333-121512 by means of
August 17, 2005 Form 8-K Report, File
No. 1-4473
4.6f APS Tenth Supplemental Indenture de 4.1 to APS’s July 31, 2006 Form 8-K 8-3-06
as of August 1, 200 Report, File No. -4473
4.69 Pinnacle West Eleventh Supplemental Indenture 4.1 to Pinnacle West/APS February 23,2 2-25-09
APS dated as of February 26, 2009 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
4473
4.6h Pinnacle West Twelfth Supplemental Indenture 4.1 to Pinnacle West/APS August 22, 2011 8-24-11
APS dated as of August 25, 2011 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
4473
4.6i Pinnacle West Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture 4.1 to Pinnacle West/APS January 10, 20121-12-12
APS dated as of January 13, 2012 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
4473
4.7 Pinnacle West Second Amended and Restated 4.4 to Pinnacle West’s June 23, 2004 8-9-04

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
Investors Advantage Plan dated as
of June 23, 200
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Exhibit Date
No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
4.7a Pinnacle West Third Amended and Restated 4.1 to Pinnacle West's Form S-3 11-25-08
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation Registration Statement No. 3355641, Fil¢
Investors Advantage Plan dated as No. 1-8962
of November 25, 200
4.8 Pinnacle West Agreement, dated March 29, 1988, 4.1 to Pinnacle West’s 1987 Form 10-K 3-30-88
relating to the filing of instruments Report, File No. 1-8962
defining the rights of holders of
longterm debt not in excess of 1(
of the Compan's total asset
4.8a Pinnacle West Agreement, dated March 21, 1994, 4.1 to APS’s 1993 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-94
APS relating to the filing of instruments No. 1-4473
defining the rights of holders of
APS longterm debt not in excess
10% of AP¢s total asset
10.1.1 Pinnacle West Two separate Decommissioning  10.2 to APS’s September 30, 1991 Form 1011-14-91
APS Trust Agreements (relating to Q Report, File No. 1-4473
PVNGS Units 1 and 3,
respectively), each dated July 1,
1991, between APS and Mellon
Bank, N.A., as Decommissioning
Trustee
10.1.1a Pinnacle West Amendment No. 1 to 10.1 to APS’s 1994 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-95

APS

Decommissioning Trust Agreement No. 1-4473
(PVNGS Unit 1), dated as of
December 1, 199
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10.1.1b Pinnacle West Amendment No. 1 to 10.2 to APS’s 1994 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-95
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement No. 1-4473
(PVNGS Unit 3), dated as of
December 1, 199
10.1.1c Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2 to APS 10.4 to APS’s 1996 Form 10-K Report , File3-28-97
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement No. 1-4473
(PVNGS Unit 1) dated as of July 1,
1991
10.1.1d Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2 to APS 10.6 to APS’s 1996 Form 10-K Report, File 3-28-97
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement No. 1-4473
(PVNGS Unit 3) dated as of July 1,
1991
10.1.1e Pinnacle West Amendment No. 3 to the 10.2 to Pinnacle West's March 31, 2002  5-15-02
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
(PVNGS Unit 1), dated as of
March 18, 200:
10.1.1f Pinnacle West Amendment No. 3 to the 10.4 to Pinnacle West’'s March 2002 5-15-02
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
(PVNGS Unit 3), dated as of
March 18, 200:
10.1.1g Pinnacle West Amendment No. 4 to the 10.3 to Pinnacle West's 2003 Form 10-K  3-15-04
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Report, File No. 1-8962
(PVNGS Unit 1), dated as of
December 19, 20C
10.1.1h Pinnacle West Amendment No. 4 to the 10.5 to Pinnacle West’'s 2003 Form 10-K  3-15-04

APS

Decommissioning Trust Agreement Report, File No. 1-8962
(PVNGS Unit 3), dated as of
December 19, 20C
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10.1.1i Pinnacle West Amendment No. 5 to the 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 2007 5-9-07
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
(PVNGS Unit 1), dated as of 4473
May 1, 2007
10.1.1j Pinnacle West Amendment No. 5 to the 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 2007 5-9-07
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and
(PVNGS Unit 3), dated as of 104473
May 1, 2007
10.1.2 Pinnacle West Amended and Restated 10.1 to Pinnacle West's 1991 Form 10-K  3-26-92
APS Decommissioning Trust Agreement Report, File No. 1-8962
(PVNGS Unit 2) dated as of
January 31, 1992, among APS,
Mellon Bank, N.A., as
Decommissioning Trustee, and
State Street Bank and Trust
Company, as successor to The First
National Bank of Boston, as Owr
Trustee under two separate Trust
Agreements, each with a separate
Equity Participant, and as Lessor
under two separate Facility Leases,
each relating to an undivided
interest in PVNGS Unit
10.1.2a Pinnacle West First Amendment to Amended and 10.2 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS Restated Decommissioning Trust No. 1-4473

Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2), dated
as of November 1, 19¢
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10.1.2b Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2 to Amended and 10.3 to APS’s 1994 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-95
APS Restated Decommissioning Trust No. 1-4473
Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2), dated
as of November 1, 19¢
10.1.2c Pinnacle West Amendment No. 3 to Amended and 10.1 to APS’s June 30, 1996 Form 10-Q  8-9-96
APS Restated Decommissioning Trust Report, File No. 1-4473
Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2), dated
as of June 20, 19¢
10.1.2d Pinnacle West Amendment No. 4 to Amended and APS 10.5 to APS’s 1996 Form 10Report, 3-28-97
APS Restated Decommissioning Trust File No. 1-4473
Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2) dated
as of December 16, 19!
10.1.2e Pinnacle West Amendment No. 5 to the Amended 10.1 to Pinnacle West's March 31, 2002  5-15-02
APS and Restated Decommissioning  Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Trust Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2),
dated as of June 30, 20
10.1.2f Pinnacle West Amendment No. 6 to the Amended 10.3 to Pinnacle West's March 31, 2002  5-15-02
APS and Restated Decommissioning  Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Trust Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2),
dated as of March 18, 201
10.1.2¢g Pinnacle West Amendment No. 7 to the Amended 10.4 to Pinnacle West's 2003 Form 10-K  3-15-04

APS

and Restated Decommissioning
Trust Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2),
dated as of December 19, 2(

Report, File No. 1-8962
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10.1.2h Pinnacle West Amendment No. 8 to the Amended 10.1.2h to Pinnacle West's 2007 Form 10-K2-27-08
APS and Restated Decommissioning  Report, File No. 1-8962
Trust Agreement (PVNGS Unit 2),
dated as of April 1, 200
10.2.1° Pinnacle West Arizona Public Service Company 10.4 to APS’s 1988 Form 10-K Report, File 3-8-89
APS Deferred Compensation Plan, as  No. 1-4473
restated, effective January 1, 1984,
and the second and third
amendments thereto, dated
December 22, 1986, and
December 23, 1987, respectivi
10.2.1& Pinnacle West Third Amendment to the Arizona  10.3A to APS’s 1993 Form 10-K Report,  3-30-94
APS Public Service Company Deferred File No. 1-4473
Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 199
10.2.1kP Pinnacle West Fourth Amendment to the Arizona 10.2 to APS’s September 30, 1994 Form 1011-10-94
APS Public Service Company Deferred Q Report, File No. 1-4473
Compensation Plan effective as of
May 1, 199:
10.2.1c° Pinnacle West Fifth Amendment to the Arizona  10.3A to APS’s 1996 Form 10-K Report,  3-28-97

APS

Public Service Company Deferred File No. 1-4473
Compensation Plan effective
January 1, 199
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10.2.1d° Pinnacle West Sixth Amendment to the Arizona  10.8A to Pinnacle West’s 2000 Form 10-K 3-14-01
APS Public Service Company Deferred Report, File No. 1-8962
Compensation Plan effective
January 1, 200
10.2.2b Pinnacle West Arizona Public Service Company 10.1 to APS’s June 30, 1986 Form 10-Q  8-13-86
APS Directors’ Deferred Compensation Report, File No. 1-4473
Plan, as restated, effective
January 1, 198
10.2.2& Pinnacle West Second Amendment to the Arizona 10.2A to APS’s 1993 Form 10-K Report,  3-30-94
APS Public Service Company Directors’ File No. 1-4473
Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective as of January 1, 19
10.2.2kP Pinnacle West Third Amendment to the Arizona  10.1 to APS’s September 30, 1994 Form 1011-10-94
APS Public Service Company Directors’ Q Report, File No. 1-4473
Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective as of May 1, 19¢
10.2.2¢° Pinnacle West Fourth Amendment to the Arizona 10.8A to Pinnacle West's 1999 Form 10-K 3-30-00

APS

Public Service Company Directors Report, File No. 1-8962
Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective as of January 1, 19
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10.2.3° Pinnacle West Trust for the Pinnacle West Capital 10.14A to Pinnacle West's 1999 Form 10-K 3-30-00
APS Corporation, Arizona Public Servi Report, File No. 1-8962
Company and SunCor Developm
Company Deferred Compensation
Plans dated August 1, 19
10.2.3& Pinnacle West First Amendment dated 10.15A to Pinnacle West’'s 1999 Form 10-K 3-30-00
APS December 7, 1999 to the Trust for Report, File No. 1-8962
the Pinnacle West Capital
Corporation, Arizona Public Servi
Company and SunCor Developm
Company Deferred Compensation
Plans
10.2.4b Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, 10.10A to APS’s 1995 Form 10-K Report, 3-29-96

APS

Arizona Public Service Company,
SunCor Development Company ¢
El Dorado Investment Company
Deferred Compensation Plan as
amended and restated effective
January 1, 199
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10.2.4& Pinnacle West

APS

10.2.4b° Pinnacle West

APS

10.2.4c° Pinnacle West

APS

10.7A to Pinnacle West’'s 1999 Form 10-K 3-30-00
Report, File No. 1-8962

First Amendment effective as of
January 1, 1999, to the

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation,
Arizona Public Service Company,
SunCor Development Company ¢
El Dorado Investment Company
Deferred Compensation Pl

10.10A to Pinnacle West’s 1999 Form 10-K 3-30-00
Report, File No. 1-8962

Second Amendment effective
January 1, 2000 to the

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation,
Arizona Public Service Company,
SunCor Development Company ¢
El Dorado Investment Company
Deferred Compensation Pl

Third Amendment to the Pinnacle 10.3 to Pinnacle West's March 31, 2003 5-15-03
West Capital Corporation, Arizona Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962

Public Service Company, SunCor

Development Company and El

Dorado Investment Company

Deferred Compensation Plan,

effective as of January 1, 20
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10.2.4d° Pinnacle West Fourth Amendment to the Pinnacle 10.64 to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 Form 10-3-13-06
APS West Capital Corporation, Arizona K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Public Service Company, SunCor
Development Company and El
Dorado Investment Company
Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective January 1, 20(
10.2.5b Pinnacle West Deferred Compensation Plan of 10.2.6 to Pinnacle West/APS 2008 Form 102-20-09
APS 2005 for Employees of K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
and Affiliates
10.2.5&° Pinnacle West First Amendment to the Deferred 10.2.6a to Pinnacle West/APS 2009 2-19-10
APS Compensation Plan of 2005 for Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Employees of Pinnacle West 4473
Capital Corporation and Affiliate
10.2.5b° Pinnacle West Second Amendment to the Defer 10.2.5b to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 2-24-12
APS Compensation Plan of 2005 for Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Employees of Pinnacle West 4473
Capital Corporation and Affiliate
10.2.5¢° Pinnacle West Third Amendment to the Deferred

APS

Compensation Plan of 2005 for
Employees of Pinnacle West
Capital Corporation and Affiliate
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10.3.1° Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 10.7A to Pinnacle West's 2003 Form 10-K 3-15-04
APS Supplement Excess Benefit Report, File No. 1-8962
Retirement Plan, amended and
restated as of January 1, 2(
10.3.1&° Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 10.48b to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 3-13-06
APS Supplemental Excess Benefit Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Retirement Plan, as amended and 4473
restated, dated December 18, 2
10.3.2b Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 10.3.2 to Pinnacle West/APS 2008 Form 102-20-09
APS Supplemental Excess Benefit K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Retirement Plan of 20C
10.4.1° APS Letter Agreement dated 10.78 to Pinnacle West/APS 2006 Form 10-2-28-07
December 20, 2006 between APS K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
and Randall K. Edingto
10.4.2b APS Letter Agreement dated July 22,  10.3 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2008 8-07-08
2008 between APS and Randall K. Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-4473
Edington
10.4.3° Pinnacle West Letter Agreement dated June 17, 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2008 8-07-08
APS 2008 between Pinnacle West/APS Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
and James R. Hatfie 4473
10.4.4b APS Supplemental Agreement dated 10.4.10 to Pinnacle West/APS 2008 2-20-09

December 26, 2008 between APS

and Randall K. Edingto

192
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10.4.5b APS Description of 2010 Palo Verde 10.4.13 to Pinnacle West/APS 2009 2-19-10
Specific Compensation Opportun  Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
for Randall K. Edingto! 4473
10.4.6° Pinnacle West Letter Agreement dated May 21, 10.4 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20105-6-10
2009, between Pinnacle West and Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
David P. Falct
10.4.7° APS Supplemental Agreement dated 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2012 8-2-12
June 19, 2012 between APS and Form 10-Q Report File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Randall K. Edingtot 4473
10.4.8° APS Description of 2013 Palo Verde Pinnacle West/APS December 24, 2012  12-26-12
Specific Compensation Opportun  Form 8-K Report, File No. 1-4473
for Randall K. Edingtot
10.5.1bd Pinnacle West Key Executive Employmentand  10.77 to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 Form 10-3-13-06
APS Severance Agreement between K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Pinnacle West and certain execu
officers of Pinnacle West and its
subsidiarie
10.5.1epd Pinnacle West Form of Amended and Restated  10.4 to Pinnacle West/APS September 30, 11-6-07
APS Key Executive Employmentand 2007 Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962

Severance Agreement between
Pinnacle West and certain officers

of Pinnacle West and its
subsidiaries
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10.5.2bd Pinnacle West Form of Key Executive 10.3 to Pinnacle West/APS September 30, 11-6-07
APS Employment and Severance 2007 Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962
Agreement between Pinnacle West and 1-4473
and certain officers of Pinnacle
West and its subsidiarit
10.5.3vd Pinnacle West Form of Key Executive 10.5.3 to Pinnacle West/APS 2009 Form 102-19-10
APS Employment and Severance K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Agreement between Pinnacle West
and certain officers of Pinnacle
West and its subsidiaris
10.5.4vd Pinnacle West Form of Key Executive 10.5.4 to Pinnacle West/APS 2012 Form 102-22-13
APS Employment and Severance K, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Agreement between Pinnacle West
and certain officers of Pinnacle
West and its subsidiaris
10.6.1° Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 10.5A to Pinnacle West's 2002 Form 10-K 3-31-03
APS 2002 Lon¢-Term Incentive Pla Report
10.6.1abd Pinnacle West Performance Share Agreement 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS December 9, 12-15-05
APS under the Pinnacle West Capital 2005 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962
Corporation 2002 Long-Term and 1-4473
Incentive Plar
10.6.1bd Pinnacle West Performance Share Agreement 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS December 31, 2-1-06

APS

under the Pinnacle West Capital
Corporation 2002 Long-Term
Incentive Plar

2005 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962
and 1-4473
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10.6.1cd Pinnacle West Performance Accelerated Stock  10.98 to Pinnacle West/APS 2004 Form 10-3-16-05
APS Option Agreement under Pinnacle K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
West Capital Corporation 2002
Long-Term Incentive Plal
10.6.1d Pinnacle West Performance Share Agreement 10.91 to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 Form 10-3-13-06
APS under the Pinnacle West Capital K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
Corporation 2002 Long-Term
Incentive Plar
10.6.2b Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation Appendix B to the Proxy Statement for 4-20-07
2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan Pinnacle West's 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, File No-8962
10.6.2&° Pinnacle West First Amendment to the 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS April 18, 2007 4-20-07
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation Form 8-K Report, File No. 1-8962
2007 Lon¢Term Incentive Pla
10.6.20d Pinnacle West Performance Share Agreement 10.3 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20095-5-09
APS under the Pinnacle West Capital Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Corporation 2007 Long-Term 4473
Incentive Plar
10.6.2cd Pinnacle West Form of Performance Share 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2010 8-3-10
Agreement under the Pinnacle W Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Capital Corporation 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Pla
10.6.2d Pinnacle West Form of Restricted Stock Unit 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2010 8-3-10

Agreement under the Pinnacle W
Capital Corporation 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Pla

195
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10.6.2¢ Pinnacle West Form of Performance Share 10.4 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20114-29-11

Agreement under the Pinnacle W Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Capital Corporation 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Pla

10.6.2fbd Pinnacle West Form of Restricted Stock Unit 10.5 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20114-29-11
Agreement under the Pinnacle W Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Capital Corporation 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Pla

10.6.2¢gM Pinnacle West Form of Restricted Stock Unit 10.6 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20114-29-11
Agreement under the Pinnacle W Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962
Capital Corporation 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Plan (Supplemental

2010 Award)

10.6.3° Pinnacle West Description of Annual Stock Grar 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS September 30, 11-6-07
to Nor-Employee Director. 2007 Form 1-Q Report, File No.-8962

10.6.4° Pinnacle West Description of Stock Grantto W.  10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS September 30, 11-6-07
Douglas Parke 2007 Form 1-Q Report, File No. -8962

10.6.5° Pinnacle West Description of Annual Stock Grar 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2008 8-07-08
to Nor-Employee Director. Form 1(-Q Report, File No.-8962

10.6.6 Pinnacle West Summary of 2014 CEO Variable

APS Incentive Plan and Officer Variable

Incentive Plar
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10.6.7 Pinnacle West Description of Restricted Stock U  Pinnacle West/APS December 24, 2012  12-26-12
Grant to Donald E. Brant Form &K Report, File No. -8962
10.6.8° Pinnacle West Pinnacle West Capital Corporation Appendix A to the Proxy Statement for 3-29-12
APS 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan Pinnacle West's 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, File No-8962
10.6.8a Pinnacle West Form of Performance Share Award 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20125-3-12
Agreement under the Pinnacle W Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Capital Corporation 2012 Long- 4473
Term Incentive Pla
10.6.8b Pinnacle West Form of Restricted Stock Unit 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20125-3-12
Award Agreement under the Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 4473
2012 Lon¢Term Incentive Pla
10.6.8¢c Pinnacle West Form of Performance Share Award
Agreement under the Pinnacle W
Capital Corporation 2012 Long-
Term Incentive Pla
10.6.8d Pinnacle West Form of Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement under the
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
2012 Lon¢Term Incentive Pla
10.6.8¢M Pinnacle West Master Amendment to Performance10.3 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20125-3-12
Share Agreements Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
4473
10.6.8f0d Pinnacle West Master Amendment to Restricted 10.4 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20125-3-12
Stock Unit Agreements Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
4473
10.7.1 Pinnacle West Indenture of Lease with Navajo 5.01 to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 9-1-77

APS

Tribe of Indians, Four Corners Pli  Statement, File No.-59644
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10.7.1a Pinnacle West Supplemental and Additional 5.02 to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 9-1-77
APS Indenture of Lease, including Statement, File No. 2-59644

amendments and supplements to
original lease with Navajo Tribe of
Indians, Four Corners Pla

10.7.1b Pinnacle West Amendment and Supplement No. 1 10.36 to Pinnacle West’'s Registration 7-25-85
APS to Supplemental and Additional Statement on Form 8-B Report, File No. 1-
Indenture of Lease Four Corners, 8962
dated April 25, 198!

10.7.1c Pinnacle West Amendment and Supplement No. 2 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20114-29-11
APS to Supplemental and Additional Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Indenture of Lease with the Navajo 4473
Nation dated March 7, 20!

10.7.1d Pinnacle West Amendment and Supplement No. 3 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20114-29-11
APS to Supplemental and Additional Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Indenture of Lease with the Navajo 4473
Nation dated March 7, 20!

10.7.2 Pinnacle West Application and Grant of multi- 5.04 to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 9-1-77
APS party rights-of-way and easements, Statement, File No. 2-59644
Four Corners Plant Si
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10.7.2a Pinnacle West Application and Amendment No. 1 10.37 to Pinnacle West's Registration 7-25-85
APS to Grant of multi-party rights-of- Statement on Form 8-B, File No. 1-8962
way and easements, Four Corners
Site dated April 25, 198
10.7.3 Pinnacle West Application and Grant of APS 5.05 to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 9-1-77
APS rights- of-way and easements, Four Statement, File No. 2-59644
Corners Site
10.7.3a Pinnacle West Application and Amendment No. 1 10.38 to Pinnacle West's Registration 7-25-85
APS to Grant of APS rights-of-way and Statement on Form 8-B, File No. 1-8962
easements, Four Corners Site dated
April 25, 1985
10.7.4 Pinnacle West Four Corners Project Co-Tenancy 10.7 to Pinnacle West's 2000 Form 10-K  3-14-01
APS Agreement Amendment No. Report, File No. -8962
10.8.1 Pinnacle West Indenture of Lease, Navajo Units 1, 5(g) to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 3-23-70
APS 2,and ¢ Statement, File No.-36505
10.8.2 Pinnacle West Application of Grant of rights-of-  5(h) to APS Form S-7 Registration 3-23-70
APS way and easements, Navajo Pl Statement, File No.-36505
10.8.3 Pinnacle West Water Service Contract Assignme¢  5(1) to APS’s Form S-7 Registration 3-16-71

APS

with the United States Department Statement, File No. 2-394442
of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation,
Navajo Plan
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Pinnacle West
APS

10.8.4

Pinnacle West
APS

10.8.5

Navajo Project C-Tenancy
Agreement dated as of March 23,
1976, and Supplement No. 1 ther
dated as of October 18, 1976,
Amendment No. 1 dated as of
July 5, 1988, and Amendment Nc¢
dated as of June 14, 1996;
Amendment No. 3 dated as of
February 11, 1997; Amendment
No. 4 dated as of January 21, 19
Amendment No. 5 dated as of
January 23, 1998; Amendment
No. 6 dated as of July 31, 19

Navajo Project Participatic
Agreement dated as of
September 30, 1969, and

Amendment and Supplement No. 1

dated as of January 16, 1970, and
Coordinating Committee
Agreement No. 1 dated as of
September 30, 197

200

10.107 to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 3-13-06
Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-

4473

10.108 to Pinnacle West/APS 2005 3-13-06
Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-

4473
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10.9.1 Pinnacle West ANPP Participation Agreement, 10. 1 to APS’s 1988 Form 10-K Report, File3-8-89
APS dated August 23, 1973, among No. 1-4473

APS, SRP, SCE, Public Service
Company of New Mexico, El Paso,
Southern California Public Power
Authority, and Department of Wa
and Power of the City of Los
Angeles, and amendments 1-12

thereta
10.9.1a Pinnacle West Amendment No. 13, dated as of  10.1 to APS’s March 31, 1991 Form 10-Q 5-15-91
APS April 22, 1991, to ANPP Report, File No. 1-4473

Participation Agreement, dated
August 23, 1973, among APS, Si
SCE, Public Service Company of
New Mexico, El Paso, Southe
California Public Power Authority,
and Department of Water and
Power of the City of Los Angele

10.9.1b Pinnacle West Amendment No. 14 to ANPP 99.1 to Pinnacle West's June 30, 2000 8-14-00
APS Participation Agreement, dated Form 10-Q Report, File No. 1-8962

August 23, 1973, among APS, Si

SCE, Public Service Company of

New Mexico, El Paso, Southe

California Public Power Authority,

and Department of Water and

Power of the City of Los Angele
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10.9.1c Pinnacle West
APS

10.10.1 Pinnacle West
APS

10.10.2 Pinnacle West
APS

10.10.2a Pinnacle West
APS

Amendment No. 15, dated 10.9.1c to Pinnacle West/APS 2010 2-18-11
November 29, 2010, to ANF Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Participation Agreement, dated 4473

August 23, 1973, among APS, Si

SCE, Public Service Company of

New Mexico, El Paso, Southe

California Public Power Authority,

and Department of Water and

Power of the City of Los Angele

Asset Purchase and Power 10.1 to APS’s June 30, 1991 Form 10-Q  8-8-91
Exchange Agreement dated Report, File No. 1-4473

September 21, 1990 between APS

and PacifiCorp, as amended as of

October 11, 1990 and as of July 18,

1991

Long-Term Power Transaction 10.2 to APS’s June 30, 1991 Form 10-Q  8-8-91
Agreement dated September 21, Report, File No. 1-4473

1990 between APS and PacifiCorp,

as amended as of October 11, 1990,

and as of July 8, 19¢

Amendment No. 1 dated April 5, 10.3 to APS’s 1995 Form 10-K Report, File 3-29-96
1995 to the Long-Term Power No. 1-4473

Transaction Agreement and Asset

Purchase and Power Exchange

Agreement between PacifiCorp and

APS
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No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
10.10.3 Pinnacle West Restated Transmission Agreement 10.4 to APS’s 1995 Form 10-K Report, File 3-29-96
APS between PacifiCorp and APS dated No. 1-4473
April 5, 1995
10.10.4 Pinnacle West Contract among PacifiCorp, APS  10.5 to APS’s 1995 Form 10-K Report, File 3-29-96
APS and DOE Western Area Power No. 1-4473
Administration, Salt Lake Area
Integrated Projects for Firm
Transmission Service dated May 5,
1995
10.10.5 Pinnacle West Reciprocal Transmission Service 10.6 to APS’s 1995 Form 10-K Report, File 3-29-96
APS Agreement between APS and No. 1-4473
PacifiCorp dated as of March 2,
1994
10.11.1 Pinnacle West Five-Year Credit Agreement dated 10.11.1 to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 2-24-12
APS as of November 4, 2011 between Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
APS, as Borrower, Barclays Bank 4473
PLC, as Agent, and the lenders and
other parties therel
10.11.2 Pinnacle West Term Loan Agreement dated as of 10.11.2 to Pinnacle West/APS 2012 2-22-13
November 29, 2012 amot Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Pinnacle West, as Borrower, 4473

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Agent, and the lenders and other
parties theret
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10.11.3 Pinnacle West

10.11.4 APS

10.11.5 Pinnacle West
APS

Five-Year Credit Agreement dated 10.11.3 to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 2-24-12
as of November 4, 2011 among Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Pinnacle West, as Borrower, 4473

Barclays Bank PLC, as Agent, and

the lenders and other parties thel

$500,000,000 Four-Year Credit 10.11.4 to Pinnacle West/APS 2010 2-18-11
Agreement dated as of February  Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
2011 among APS as Borrower, 4473

Barclays Bank PLC, as Agent and

Issuing Bank, Credit Suisse

Securities (USA) LLC, as

Syndication Agent, Credit Suisse

AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as

Issuing Bank, Bank of America,

N.A. and Wells Fargo Banl

National Association, as (-

Documentation Agents and the

other parties therel

Reimbursement Agreement among 10.2 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20105-6-10
APS, the Banks party thereto, and Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 4473

Administrative Agent and Issuing

Bank, dated as of April 16, 20:
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10.11.5a Pinnacle West Amendment No. 1 to the 10.11.5a to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 2-24-12
APS Reimbursement Agreement among Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
APS, the Banks party thereto, and 4473
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and Issuing
Bank, dated December 22, 2C
10.11.6 Pinnacle West Reimbursement Agreement among 10.3 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20105-6-10
APS APS, the Banks party thereto, and Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 4473
Administrative Agent and Issuing
Bank, dated as of April 16, 20:
10.11.6a Pinnacle West Amendment No. 1 to the 10.11.6a to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 2-24-12
APS Reimbursement Agreement among Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
APS, the Banks party thereto, and 4473
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and Issuing
Bank, dated December 22, 2C
10.11.7 APS Five-Year Credit Agreement dated 10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20135-3-13

as of April 9, 2013 among APS, as Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8692 and 1-
Borrower, Barclays Bank PLC, as 4473

Agent and the lenders and other

parties theret
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10.12.1¢ Pinnacle West
APS

10.12.1& Pinnacle West
APS

10.12.1kF Pinnacle West
APS

Facility Lease, dated as of Augus 4.3 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 10-24-86
1986, between U.S. Bank National Statement, File No. 33-9480

Association, successor to State

Street Bank and Trust Company, as

successor to The First National

Bank of Boston, in its capacity as

Owner Trustee, as Lessor, and A

as Lesse

Amendment No. 1, dated as of 10.5 to APS’s September 30, 1986 Form 1012-4-86
November 1, 1986, to Facili Q Report by means of Amendment No. 1 on

Lease, dated as of August 1, 1986, December 3, 1986 Form 8, File No. 1-4473
between U.S. Bank National

Association, successor to State

Street Bank and Trust Company, as

successor to The First National

Bank of Boston, in its capacity as

Owner Trustee, as Lessor, and A

as Lesse

Amendment No. 2 dated as of 10.3 to APS’s 1988 Form 10-K Report, File 3-8-89
June 1, 1987 to Facility Lease da No. 1-4473

as of August 1, 1986 between U.S.

Bank National Association,

successor to State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as successor to

First National Bank of Boston, as

Lessor, and APS, as Less
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Pinnacle West
APS

10.12.1c¢

Pinnacle West
APS

10.12.2

Pinnacle West
APS

10.12.2a

Amendment No. 3, dated as of 10.3 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
March 17, 1993, to Facility Lease, No. 1-4473

dated as of August 1, 1986, betw

U.S. Bank National Association,

successor to State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as successor to

First National Bank of Boston, as

Lessor, and APS, as Les:

Facility Lease, dated as of 10.1 to APS’s November 18, 1986 FornK8- 1-20-87
December 15, 1986, between U.S. Report, File No. 1-4473

Bank National Association,

successor to State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as successor to

First National Bank of Boston, in

capacity as Owner Trustee, as

Lessor, and APS, as Les:

4.13 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 8-24-87
Statement No. 33-9480 by means of

August 1, 1987 Form 8-K Report, File

No. 1-4473

Amendment No. 1, dated as of
August 1, 1987, to Facility Lease,
dated as of December 15, 1986,
between U.S. Bank National
Association, successor to State
Street Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, as Lessor, and
APS, as Lesse
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10.12.2b Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2, dated as of 10.4 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS March 17, 1993, to Facility Lease, No. 1-4473
dated as of December 15, 1986,
between U.S. Bank National
Association, successor to State
Street Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, as Lessor, and
APS, as Lesse
10.13.1 Pinnacle West Agreement between Pinnacle West 10.102 to Pinnacle West/APS 2004 3-16-05
APS Energy Corporation and APS for ~ Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
Transportation and Treatment of =~ 4473
Effluent by and between Pinnacle
West Energy Corporation and APS
dated as of the 10  day of April,
2001
10.13.2 Pinnacle West Agreement for the Transfer and L 10.103 to Pinnacle West/APS 2004 3-16-05
APS of Wastewater and Effluent by and Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
between APS, SRP and PWE dated4473
June 1, 200
10.13.3 Pinnacle West Agreement for the Sale and 10.104 to Pinnacle West/APS 2004 3-16-05
APS Purchase of Wastewater Effluent Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-

dated November 13, 2000, by and 4473
between the City of Tolleson,
Arizona, APS and SR
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10.13.4 Pinnacle West Operating Agreement for the Co-  10.105 to Pinnacle West/APS 2004 3-16-05
APS Ownership of Wastewater Effluent Form 10-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-

dated November 16, 2000 by and 4473
between APS and SF

10.135 Pinnacle West Municipal Effluent Purchase and  10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS March 31, 20105-6-10
APS Sale Agreement dated April 29, Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
2010, by and between City of 4473

Phoenix, City of Mesa, City of
Tempe, City of Scottsdale, City of
Glendale, APS and SF

10.14.1 Pinnacle West Contract, dated July 21, 1984, with 10.31 to Pinnacle West's Form S-14 3-13-85
APS DOE providing for the disposal of Registration Statement, File No. 2-96386
nuclear fuel and/or high-level
radioactive waste, ANP

10.15.1 Pinnacle West Territorial Agreement between Al 10.1 to APS’s March 31, 1998 Form 10-Q 5-15-98
APS and SRF Report, File No. -4473

10.15.2 Pinnacle West Power Coordination Agreement 10.2 to APS’s March 31, 1998 Form 10-Q 5-15-98
APS between APS and SF Report, File No. -4473

10.15.3 Pinnacle West Memorandum of Agreement 10.3 to APS’s March 31, 1998 Form 10-Q 5-15-98
APS between APS and SF Report, File No. -4473

10.15.3a Pinnacle West Addendum to Memorandum of 10.2 to APS’s May 19, 1998 Form 8-K 6-26-98
APS Agreement between APS and SRP Report, File No. 1-4473

dated as of May 19, 19¢
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10.16 Pinnacle West Purchase and Sale Agreement di  10.1 to Pinnacle West/APS November 8, 11-8-10
APS November 8, 2010 by and betwe 2010 Form 8-K Report, File Nos. 1-8962
SCE and AP: and -4473
10.17 Pinnacle West Proposed Settlement Agreement  10.17 to Pinnacle West/APS 2011 Form 10-2-24-12
APS dated January 6, 2012 by and K Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-4473
among APS and certain parties tc
retail rate case (approved by ACC
Order No. 73183
12.1 Pinnacle Wes Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg
12.2 APS Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg
12.3 Pinnacle West Ratio of Earnings to Combined
Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock
Dividend Requirement
211 Pinnacle Wes Subsidiaries of Pinnacle We
23.1 Pinnacle Wes Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL
23.2 APS Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL
31.1 Pinnacle West Certificate of Donald E. Brandt,

Chief Executive Officer, pursuant
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
as amende
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31.2 Pinnacle West

31.3 APS

31.4 APS

32.1¢ Pinnacle West

32.2¢ APS

Certificate of James R. Hatfield,
Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
as amende

Certificate of Donald E. Brandt,
Chief Executive Officer, pursuant
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
as amende

Certificate of James R. Hatfield,
Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act,
as amende

Certification of Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Office
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13
as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Office
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13
as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 200z
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99.1 Pinnacle West Collateral Trust Indenture among 4.2 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS PVNGS Il Funding Corp., Inc., No. 1-4473
APS and Chemical Bank, as Trus
99.1a Pinnacle West Supplemental Indenture to 4.3 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS Collateral Trust Indenture among No. 1-4473
PVNGS Il Funding Corp., Inc.,
APS and Chemical Bank, as Trus
99.2¢ Pinnacle West Participation Agreement, dated as 28.1 to APS’s September 30, 1992 Form 1011-9-92

APS

of August 1, 1986, among PVNGS
Funding Corp., Inc., Bank of
America National Trust and Savir
Association, State Street Bank and
Trust Company, as successor to
First National Bank of Boston, in
individual capacity and as Owner
Trustee, Chemical Bank, in its
individual capacity and as Indenti
Trustee, APS, and the Equity
Participant named there

212
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99.2ac Pinnacle West
APS

99.2h° Pinnacle West
APS

Amendment No. 1 dated as of 10.8 to APS’s September 30, 1986 Form 1012-4-86
November 1, 1986, to Participati  Q Report by means of Amendment No. 1
Agreement, dated as of August 1, December 3, 1986 Form 8, File No. 1-4473
1986, among PVNGS Funding

Corp., Inc., Bank of America

National Trust and Savin(

Association, State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as successor to

First National Bank of Boston, in

individual capacity and as Owner

Trustee, Chemical Bank, in its

individual capacity and as Indent

Trustee, APS, and the Equity

Participant named there

Amendment No. 2, dated as of 28.4 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
March 17, 1993, to Participation ~ No. 1-4473
Agreement, dated as of August 1,

1986, among PVNGS Funding

Corp., Inc., PVNGS Il Funding

Corp., Inc., State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as successor to

First National Bank of Boston, in

individual capacity and as Owner

Trustee, Chemical Bank, in its

individual capacity and as Indenti

Trustee, APS, and the Equity

Participant named there
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99.3¢ Pinnacle West

APS

99.3a¢ Pinnacle West

APS

Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Secur
Agreement and Assignment of
Facility Lease, dated as of Augus
1986, between State Street Bank
and Trust Company, as successc
The First National Bank of Boston,
as Owner Trustee, and Chemical
Bank, as Indenture Trust

Supplemental Indenture No. 1,
dated as of November 1, 1986 to
Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Secut
Agreement and Assignment of
Facility Lease, dated as of Augus
1986, between State Street Bank
and Trust Company, as successc
The First National Bank of Boston,
as Owner Trustee, and Chemical
Bank, as Indenture Trust

214

4.5 to APS’s Form 18 Registration
Statement, File No. 33-9480

10-24-86

10.6 to APS’s September 30, 1986 Form 1012-4-86
Q Report by means of Amendment No. 1 on
December 3, 1986 Form 8, File No. 1-4473
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99.3be

99.4¢

99.4a¢

Pinnacle West
APS

Pinnacle West
APS

Pinnacle West
APS

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 to
Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Secur
Agreement and Assignment of

Facility Lease, dated as of Augus
1986, between State Street Bank
and Trust Company, as successc

The First National Bank of Boston,

as Owner Trustee, and Chemical
Bank, as Lease Indenture Trus

Assignment, Assumption and
Further Agreement, dated as of

August 1, 1986, between APS and

State Street Bank and Trust

4.4 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93

No. 1-4473

28.3 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 10-24-86
Statement, File No. 33-9480

Company, as successor to The First

National Bank of Boston, as Owr
Trustee

Amendment No. 1, dated as of
November 1, 1986, to Assignme
Assumption and Further
Agreement, dated as of August 1,
1986, between APS and State St
Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, as Owner Trust

215

10.10 to APS’s September 30, 1986 12-4-86
Form 10-Q Report by means of Amendment

No. | on December 3, 1986 Form 8, F

No. 1-4473
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99.4h¢ Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2, dated as of 28.6 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS March 17, 1993, to Assignment, No. 1-4473
Assumption and Further
Agreement, dated as of August 1,
1986, between APS and State St
Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, as Owner Trust
99.5 Pinnacle West Participation Agreement, dated as 28.2 to APS’s September 30, 1992 Form 1011-9-92
APS of December 15, 1986, among Q Report, File No. 1-4473

PVNGS Funding Report

Corp., Inc., State Street Bank and
Trust Company, as successor to
First National Bank of Boston, in
individual capacity and as Owner
Trustee, Chemical Bank, in its
individual capacity and as Indenti
Trustee under a Trust Indenture,
APS, and the Owner Participant
named thereil
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No. Registrant(s) Description Previously Filed as Exhibit: 2 Filed
99.5a Pinnacle West Amendment No. 1, dated as of 28.20 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 8-10-87
APS August 1, 1987, to Participation Statement No. 33-9480 by means of a
Agreement, dated as of November 6, 1986 Form-K Report, File
December 15, 1986, among PVN  No. 1-4473
Funding Corp., Inc. as Funding
Corporation, State Street Bank and
Trust Company, as successor to
First National Bank of Boston, as
Owner Trustee, Chemical Bank, as
Indenture Trustee, APS, and the
Owner Participant named there
99.5b Pinnacle West Amendment No. 2, dated as of 28.5to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS March 17, 1993, to Participation ~ No. 1-4473

Agreement, dated as of
December 15, 1986, among PVN
Funding Corp., Inc., PVNGS I
Funding Corp., Inc., State Street
Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, in its individual
capacity and as Owner Trustee,
Chemical Bank, in its individual
capacity and as Indenture Trustee,
APS, and the Owner Participant
named thereil
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99.6 Pinnacle West Trust Indenture, Mortgage Security 10.2 to APS’s November 18, 1986 Form 10-1-20-87
APS Agreement and Assignment of K Report, File No. 1-4473
Facility Lease, dated as of
December 15, 1986, between State
Street Bank and Trust Company, as
successor to The First National
Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,
and Chemical Bank, as Indenture
Trustee
99.6a Pinnacle West Supplemental Indenture No. 1, 4.13 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 8-24-87
APS dated as of August 1, 1987, to TrustStatement No. 33-9480 by means of

Indenture, Mortgage, Security August 1, 1987 Form 8-K Report, File
Agreement and Assignment of No. 1-4473

Facility Lease, dated as of

December 15, 1986, between State

Street Bank and Trust Company, as

successor to The First National

Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,

and Chemical Bank, as Indenture

Trustee
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99.6b Pinnacle West
APS

99.7 Pinnacle West
APS

99.7a Pinnacle West
APS

Supplemental Indenture No. 2to 4.5 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
Trust Indenture Mortgage, Security No. 1-4473

Agreement and Assignment of

Facility Lease, dated as of

December 15, 1986, between State

Street Bank and Trust Company, as

successor to The First National

Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,

and Chemical Bank, as Lease

Indenture Truste

Assignment, Assumption and 10.5 to APS’s November 18, 1986 Fornk8- 1-20-87
Further Agreement, dated as of Report, File No. 1-4473

December 15, 1986, between APS

and State Street Bank and Trust

Company, as successor to The First

National Bank of Boston, as Owr

Trustee

Amendment No. 1, dated as of 28.7 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
March 17, 1993, to Assignment, No. 1-4473

Assumption and Further

Agreement, dated as of

December 15, 1986, between APS

and State Street Bank and Trust

Company, as successor to The First

National Bank of Boston, as Owr

Trustee
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99.8¢ Pinnacle West Indemnity Agreement dated as of 28.3 to APS’s 1992 Form 10-K Report, File 3-30-93
APS March 17, 1993 by AP No. 1-4473
99.9 Pinnacle West Extension Letter, dated as of 28.20 to APS’s Form 18 Registration 8-10-87
APS August 13, 1987, from the Statement No. 33-9480 by means of a
signatories of the Participation November 6, 1986 Formr-K Report, File
Agreement to Chemical Bat No. 1-4473
99.10 Pinnacle West ACC Order, Decision No. 61969, 10.2 to APS’s September 30, 1999 Form 1011-15-99
APS dated September 29, 1999, Q Report, File No. 1-4473
including the Retail Electric
Competition Rule:
99.11 Pinnacle West Purchase Agreement by and among99.5 to Pinnacle West/APS June 30, 2005 8-9-05
Pinnacle West Energy Corporation Form 10-Q Report, File Nos. 1-8962 and 1-
and GenWest, L.L.C. and Nevada 4473
Power Company, dated June 21,
2005
101.INS Pinnacle West XBRL Instance Document
APS
101.SCH Pinnacle West XBRL Taxonomy Extension
APS Schema Documel
101.CAL Pinnacle West XBRL Taxonomy Extension
APS Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LAB Pinnacle West XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label

APS

Linkbase Documer
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101.PRE Pinnacle West XBRL Taxonomy Extension

APS Presentation Linkbase Docume
101.DEF Pinnacle West XBRL Taxonomy Definition

APS Linkbase Documer

aReports filed under File No. 1-4473 and 1-8962 wiee in the office of the Securities and Exchai@mmmission located in
Washington, D.C.

bManagement contract or compensatory plan or arraageto be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Itemb]l8f Form 10-K.

¢An additional document, substantially identicablhmaterial respects to this Exhibit, has beert into, relating to an additional
Equity Participant. Although such additional do@mhmay differ in other respects (such as dollanams, percentages, tax indemnity mati
and dates of execution), there are no materialldétawhich such document differs from this Exhibi

d Additional agreements, substantially identical limzaterial respects to this Exhibit have been extténto with additional persons.
Although such additional documents may differ inestrespects (such as dollar amounts and datesofigon), there are no material details in
which such agreements differ from this Exhibit.

eFurnished herewith as an Exhibit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedly authorized.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM
(Registrant

Date: February 21, 2014 /s/ Donald E. Branc
(Donald E. Brandt, Chairman of
the Board of Directors, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Power of Attorney

We, the undersigned directors and executive ofioéPinnacle West Capital Corporation, hereby isdlyeappoint James R. Hatfield
and David P. Falck, and each of them, our truelawéll attorneys with full power to them and eadhtem to sign for us, and in our names in
the capacities indicated below, any and all amemdsrte this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed wittetSecurities and Exchange
Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptie following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mnthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Donald E. Branc Principal Executive Officer February 21, 2014
(Donald E. Brandt, Chairme and Director

of the Board of Directors, Preside
and Chief Executive Officel

/s/ James R. Hatfiel Principal Financial Officer February 21, 2014
(James R. Hatfielc
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Denise R. Dannt Principal Accounting Officer February 21, 2014
(Denise R. Danne
Vice President, Controller ar
Chief Accounting Officer
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/s/ Susan Clar-Johnsor Director February 21, 2014
(Susan Clar-Johnson

/s/ Denis A. Cortese, M.L Director February 21, 2014
(Denis A. Cortese, M.D

/s/ Michael L. Gallaghe Director February 21, 2014
(Michael L. Gallagher

/sl Roy A. Herberger, Jr., Ph. Director February 21, 2014
(Roy A. Herberger, Jr., Ph.C

/s/ Dale E. Klein, Ph.C Director February 21, 2014
(Dale E. Klein, Ph.D.

/sl Humberto S. Lope Director February 21, 2014
(Humberto S. Lopez

/s/ Kathryn L. Munrc Director February 21, 2014
(Kathryn L. Munro)

/s/ Bruce J. Nordstrot Director February 21, 2014
(Bruce J. Nordstrorr

Director February 21, 201

(Richard P. Fox

Director February 21, 201

(David P. Wagenel
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
(Registrant

Date: February 21, 2014 /s/ Donald E. Branc
(Donald E. Brandt, Chairman of
the Board of Directors, President and Chief
Executive Officer]

Power of Attorney

We, the undersigned directors and executive officéArizona Public Service Company, hereby seleedpoint James R. Hatfield
and David P. Falck, and each of them, our truelawéll attorneys with full power to them and eadhtem to sign for us, and in our names in
the capacities indicated below, any and all amemdsnte this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed wittetSecurities and Exchange
Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Sighature Title Date
/s/ Donald E. Branc Principal Executive Officer February 21, 2014
(Donald E. Brandt, Chairme and Director

of the Board of Directors, President ¢
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ James R. Hatfiel Principal Financial Officer February 21, 2014
(James R. Hatfielc
Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Denise R. Danne Principal Accounting Officer February 21, 2014
(Denise R. Danne
Vice President, Controller ar
Chief Accounting Officer
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/s/ Susan ClarJohnsor

(Susan Clar-Johnson

/s/ Denis A. Cortese, M.L

(Denis A. Cortese, M.D

/s/ Michael L. Gallaghe

(Michael L. Gallagher

/sl Roy A. Herberger, Jr., Ph.

(Roy A. Herberger, Jr., Ph.C

/s/Dale E. Klein, Ph.D

(Dale E. Klein, Ph.D.

/sl Humberto S. Lope

(Humberto S. Lopez

/s/ Kathryn L. Munro

(Kathryn L. Munro)

/s/Bruce J. Nordstror

(Bruce J. Nordstrorr

(Richard P. Fox

(David P. Wagenel

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 10.2.5¢

THIRD AMENDMENT
TO THE
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN OF 2005 FOR EMPLOYEES OF
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION AND AFFILIATES

Effective as of January 1, 2005, Pinnacle West @h@iorporation (the “Company”) adopted the Defdr@mpensation Plan of 2005
for Employees of Pinnacle West Capital Corporatiod Affiliates (the “Plan”). The Plan has been adexl on two prior occasions. By this
instrument, the Company now desires to amend the t®l clarify the provisions of Section 5.1(a).

1. This Third Amendment amends onlyphavision of the Plan noted below. Those provisiaot expressly amended shal
considered in full force and effect. This Third Andment also supersedes the other provisions ¢ldreto the extent those provisions are
inconsistent with the provisions and intent of thisrd Amendment.

2. Section 5.1(a) ( Payment of TermoraBenefit— Lump Sum or Installmenisof the Plan shall be amended and restated i
its entirety to read as follows:

5.1 Payment of Termination Benefit

€) Lump Sum or InstallmentsA Participant may elect to receive his or hemfTieation Benefit in a lump
sum or in equal annual payments over a periodvef(®), ten (10) or fifteen (15) years (the lattetermined in
accordance with Section 3.7 above) by so electiraniElection Form. In the Election Form, the iegrant also
shall specify whether the lump sum payment wilpbél or the installment payments will begin witlBig days
following either (i) his or her Separation from @ee or (ii) the later of his or her attainmentaafe fifty-five (55) or
his or her Separation from Service. The Partidipagy change his or her election to an allowaltieraétive payout
date or period by submitting a new Election Fornth® Company in accordance with Section 3.6. Failo make a
election will result in the benefits being paidamump sum within 30 days after the Participangp&ation from
Service. Any election under this Section 5.1 shallrrevocable,




except to the extent provided in Section 3.6. Nibistanding the foregoing, payment of the TermmaBenefit
shall not be made or commence prior to the datetwisisix (6) months after the date of a ParticijsaBeparation
from Service in the case of a Participant who igifeined to be a Specified Employee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Pinnacle West Capital Corpanathas caused this Third Amendment to be execsted this 18th day of
December, 2013.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Donald R. Branc
Its: Chairman of the Board, President and C




Exhibit 10.6.€
Summary of 2014 Incentive Plans

On December 17, 2013, the Human Resources ComrtiitieéCommittee”) of the Pinnacle West Capital famation (“Pinnacle
West") Board of Directors (the “Board”) approve@tRinnacle West 2014 Annual Incentive Award Plae (PNW Plan”), which provides an
incentive award opportunity for Donald E. Brantie Chairman of the Board, President, and Chief &bz Officer of Pinnacle West and the
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeudi¥ficer of Arizona Public Service Company (“APSQn December 18, 2013, the Bos
acting on the recommendation of the Committee, amu the APS 2014 Annual Incentive Award Plan (#ieS Plan”), which includes an
incentive award opportunity for James R. Hatfi@ldecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Offie@nd David P. Falck, Executive Vice
President and General Counsel, and the APS 2014a\ihmcentive Award Plan for Palo Verde Employeés (‘Palo Verde Plan”), which
includes an incentive award opportunity for Ran#alEdington, Executive Vice President and Chietar Officer. The PNW Plan, the APS
Plan and the Palo Verde Plan are referred to doldg herein as the “2014 Plans.”

No incentive payments will be awarded under the PRIgh or the APS Plan unless Pinnacle West, witheet to Mr. Brandt, and
APS, with respect to Messrs. Hatfield and Falckheachieves a specified threshold earnings leMelincentive payment will be awarded
under the earnings portion of the Palo Verde Plih rgspect to Mr. Edington unless the Palo Verdeldar Generating Station (“Palo Verjle”
achieves specified business unit performance gddie. Committee will evaluate the impacts of unlisuaonrecurring adjustments to
earnings in determining whether any earnings lbaslbeen met for purposes of the 2014 Plans. daigorporation Commission rate-related
impacts are excluded.

The award opportunity for Mr. Brandt is based om dlchievement of specified 2014 Pinnacle West egsrievels. Mr. Brandt has an
award opportunity of up to 50% of his base salatlgé threshold earnings level is met, up to 100%i® base salary if a target earnings level i
met, and up to 200% of his base salary if a maxireamings level is met, before potential adjustmént business results and individual
performance; however, in no event may Mr. Brandtimrd exceed 200% of his base salary. In consigidfir. Brandt’s individual
performance, the Committee may also consider shitehvalue creation, customer service, finandi&rgth, operating performance, safety
performance, leadership effectiveness and othezrgeperformance objectives.

The award opportunities for Messrs. Hatfield anttliEander the APS Plan and for Mr. Edington undherPalo Verde Plan are based
on the achievement of specified 2014 APS earniegald and specified business unit performance gddéssrs. Hatfield and Falck have a
target award opportunity of up to 60% of their baakry. Messrs. Hatfield and Falck may earn tleas the target amount or more, up to a
maximum award opportunity of up to 120% of theiséaalary, depending on the




achievement of the earnings and business unit peafioce goals separately or in combination, andrbefdjustment for individual
performance. Mr. Edington has an award opporturfity2.5% of his base salary, a target of 50% sfizsise salary, and up to a maximum of
100% of his base salary, depending on the achieveafi¢he earnings and business unit performaneésgseparately or in combination, and
before adjustment for individual performance. tnavent may the award to each of Messrs. Hatfiedttk and Edington exceed two times his
target amount. The business unit performance atalis that will be considered for Messrs. Hatfighdl Falck are derived from the following
APS critical areas of focus as provided in its t8ga& Framework: employees, operational excell@mmkshareholder value. The business un
performance indicators for Mr. Edington are base@mployees, operational excellence, performanpedwement and shareholder value. In
considering each Officer’s individual performanttes Committee may also consider additional facsoich as shareholder value creation,
customer service, financial strength, operatindgoerance, safety, and the Chief Executive Officassessment of the Officer's performance
during the year.

In addition, consistent with Mr. Edington’s let@greement regarding his employment, the Board apgra separate compensation
opportunity for Mr. Edington of up to $125,000 uptihie achievement of specific performance measigddd Palo Verde operations
performance and regulatory evaluations.




Exhibit 10.6.8¢

PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD AGREEMENT

THIS AWARD AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of , (the * Date of Graht by and between
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation (the “* Companwand (“ Empke").
BACKGROUND

A.

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “ Boafdirectors”) has adopted, and the Company’s shareholders &ygp®ved, the
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 2012 Long-Teroehtive Plan (the “ Plaf), pursuant to which Performance Share Awards and
Dividend Equivalent Awards may be granted to emeésyof the Company and its Subsidiaries.

The Company desires to grant to Employee Perform&hares and Dividend Equivalents under the tefrtreed?lan.
Pursuant to the Plan, the Company and Employee agréollows:
AGREEMENT

Grant of Award . Pursuant to action of the Committee, which wasitieon the Date of Grant, the Company grants tol&yep
( ) Performance Shares ratated Dividend Equivalents. The Performance&hgranted under this Sectiomark
referred to in this Award Agreement as the “Basan&l

Award Subject to Plan. This Performance Share Award and the relateddeid Equivalent Award are granted under and are
expressly subject to all of the terms and provisiohthe Plan, which terms are incorporated hdrgireference, and this Award
Agreement. In the event of any conflict betweentérens and conditions of this Award Agreement dredRIlan, the provisions of the
Plan shall control.

Performance Period. The Performance Period for this Award begins dan(, , and ends December 31,

Payment and Vesting

(a) Performance Shares Payable In StockAs soon as practicable in the fiscal year immtetijgfollowing the end of the
Performance Period, the Company will determinéh@ Companys Total Shareholder Return (as defined hereinpagparec
to the Total Shareholder Return of the companigkarS&P 1500 Super Composite Electric Utility Indthe “Growth Inde»
") over the Performance Period and (ii) the Compa#yerage Performance with respect to the PerfacadVetrics (as
defined herein). The Company then will deliver tofifoyee one (1) share of the Company’s Stock foh ¢laen-outstanding
Performance Share under this Award Agreement, sttjeadjustment pursuant to Sectiohédow. The Stock payout, if any,
related to the Company’s Total Shareholder Retuliroe made on or before , . The Company
anticipates that the Stock payourt, if any, relatethe Performance Metrics will be made by , and in no
event will such Stock payout be made later thanebdser 31,

(b) Normal or Early Retirement, Death or Disability; Late Career Recipient.

(i) Provided that Employee either qualifies for tigaRetirement” or “Normal Retirement” under thenRacle West Capital
Corporation Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plaat)is a Late Career Recipient (as defined belowthe case of
Employee’s death or Disability, Employee shall kemied to have been employed by the Company thritxegénd of the
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Performance Period and Employee (or his or hetestdll receive the Stock, if any, to which Empémyis entitled at the tin
specified in Section 4(a)

(i) In the case of Employee’s termination of emyitent during the Performance Period which congtitan Early
Retirement or a Normal Retirement under the Regémrn®lan, Employee shall be deemed to have beelogeapby the
Company through the end of the Performance PenddEmployee (or his or her estate) will receive $theck, if any, to
which Employee is entitled at the time specifie@action 4(a)

(iii) If, at the time of Employee’s death, Disabjlior retirement Employee has reached sixty (6@yyef age and has been
credited with at least five (5) Years of Service dafined under the Retirement Plan, and doesthetwise meet the criteria
for Early Retirement or Normal Retirement under Retirement Plan, Employee shall be treated foppses of this
Agreement as a “Late Career Recipient”. Upon a Cateeer Recipiers’retirement during the Performance Period, Emp
will receive a straight prorated payout of the nemaf Performance Shares calculated in accordaitbeSgction Shased on
the number of days Employee was employed duringPgréormance Period. Upon a Late Career Recipiegtisement
following the end of the Performance Period, Empwill receive a payout of the number of PerforosaShares calculated
in accordance with Section. o fractional Stock shall be issued. If the Stpelyout results in a fractional share of one-half
or greater, such fraction will be increased to fevfor the issuance of a full share of Stock. Eogpé will receive the Stock,
if any, to which Employee is entitled at the tinpesified in_Section 4(a)

(c) Termination Without Cause . In the event Employee’s employment is termindtgdhe Company without cause, the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company may det@mmin his discretion if, to what extent, and wtety unvested portion
of the Performance Shares granted under this Agreeshould vest; provided, however, that (i) ansting of unvested
Performance Shares granted under this Agreemestiguir to this Section 4(c3hall be approved by the Committee, and
(i) nothing herein shall obligate the CEO to exsechis discretion to cause any unvested Perforen8hares to vest.

(d) Termination For Cause. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Sent#, in the event Employee is terminated for
Cause, then regardless of Employee’s retirememly B&tirement, Normal Retirement, death or DisahiEmployee shall
forfeit the right to receive any Stock hereundert tBmployee would otherwise be entitled to recédewing his or her date
of termination. For purposes only of this Secti¢d)4 “Cause” means (A) embezzlement, theft, fraudedend/or
dishonesty by the Employee involving the propédbtysiness or affairs of the Company or any of itssgtiaries, or (B) an act
of moral turpitude which in the sole judgment of tBEO reflects adversely on the business or rdpataf the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries or negatively affects ahthe Company’s or any of its Subsidiariesmployees or customers.

(e) Disability . “Disability” has the meaning set forth for suehrh in the Retirement Plan.
) Dividend Equivalents. In satisfaction of the Dividend Equivalents Awamdde pursuant to Section &t the time of the

Company’s delivery of Stock to Employee pursuarthte Section 4 the Company also will deliver to Employee fully
transferrable shares of Stock equal in value tatheunt of dividends, if any, that Employee woutdvéa received if
Employee had directly owned the Stock to whichReeformance Shares relate from the Date of Grathtet@ate of the Sto«
payout, plus interest on such amount at the ratepsrcent compounded quarterly, as determinedipatgo the Plan. The
number of shares of Stock distributed to Employékbs determined by dividing the amount of the diend Equivalents ar
interest by the Fair Market Value of one sharetotKas of the applicable date of the Stock payWatfractional Stock shall
be issued. If the Stock payout results in a fraetichare of one-half or greater, such fractiom belincreased to provide for
the issuance of a full share of Stock.




(9) Impact on Pension. The value of the shares of Stock distributed ypmyment for the Performance Shares and Dividend
Equivalents will be disregarded for purposes ofuialting the amount of Employee’s benefit under @oynpany retirement
plans.

Performance Criteria and Adjustments. Fifty percent (50%) of the Performance Sharesdegunder this Award Agreement will
be determined pursuant to Section 5 fifty percent (50%) of the Performance Shamearded under this Award Agreement will
be determined pursuant to Section 5(l) no event will Employee be entitled to receivaumber of Performance Shares pursuant to
this Award Agreement greater than 2.0 times theeBasant.

€) Adjustment of Base Grant for Total Shareholder Retun . Fifty percent (50%) of the Base Grant will incsear decrease
based upon the Company’s “Total Shareholder Retasrompared to the Total Shareholder Return ofdh@panies in the
Growth Index during the Performance Period, a®¥adl:

If the Company’s Total Shareholder Return Over The

Performance Period As Compared to the Total The Number of
Shareholder Return of the Companies in the Growth Performance Shares will
Index is: be:
90th Percentile or great 1.0 X Base Grar
75th Percentils .75 X Base Grar
50th Percentils 0.5 X Base Grar
25th Percentils 0.25 X Base Grar
Less than 25th Percent None

If intermediate percentiles are achieved, the nurob@erformance Shares awarded will be proratadigl shares
will be rounded down to the nearest whole sharervapplicable). For example, if the Company’s T&hhareholder Return
during the Performance Period places the Compagr®rmance in the 60th percentile, then the nurob@erformance
Shares would be increased to 0.60 (0.5 X 60/50jiptield by the Base Grant. In no event will Empleye entitled to recei
a number of Performance Shares pursuant to thiseé8tibn 5(a)greater than 1.0 times the Base Grant.

(b) Adjustment of Base Grant for Performance Metrics. Fifty percent (50%) of the Base Grant will incsear decrease ba:
upon the Company’s “Average Performance” with respethe “Performance Metrics,” as follows:

The Number of
Performance Shares will

If the Company's Average Performance is be:
90th Percentile or great 1.0 X Base Grar
75th Percentils .75 X Base Grar
50th Percentilt 0.5 X Base Grar
25th Percentils 0.25 X Base Grar
Less than 25th Percent None

If intermediate percentiles are achieved, the nurob@erformance Shares awarded pursuant to thiseéstion 5(b)
will be prorated (partial shares will be roundexvd to the nearest whole share when applicable)efample, if the
Company’s Average Performance during the Perform#@wriod places the Company’s performance in thie €rcentile,
then the number of Performance Shares would beased to .60 (0.5 X 60/50) multiplied by the Basar® In no event will
Employee be entitled to receive a number of Perforre Shares pursuant to this Subsectiorgfiepter than 1.0 times the
Base Grant.




6. Definitions .

(@)

Performance Metrics. The “Performance Metrics” for the Performanceidteare: (i) the JD Power Residential National
Large Segment Survey for investor-owned utiliti@the System Average Interruption Frequency fdajor Events
Excluded) (“_ SAIFI; (iii) Arizona Public Service Company’s custonmteremployee improvement ratio; (iv) the OSHA rate
(All' Incident Injury Rate); (v) nuclear capacityctar; and (vi) coal capacity factor.

(1) With respect to the Performance Metric describedanse (i) of this_Subsection 6(a)he JD Power Residential
National Large Segment Survey will provide dataeaorannual basis reflecting the Company’s percerdit&ing,
relative to other participating companies.

2 With respect to the Performance Metric describeclanse (ii) of this_ Subsection 6(a)xhe Edison Electric Institute (*
EEI™) will provide data on an annual basis regardingSA&-I result of the participating companies; then@any will
calculate its SAIFI result for the year in quest#rd determine its percentile ranking based ofnleemation
provided by EEI.

3) With respect to the Performance Metric describedanse (iii) of this_Subsection 6(a)SNL, an independent third
party data system, will provide data on an annaalsregarding the customer and employee courgsGémpany will
use its customer and employee counts for the yeguéstion and determine its percentile rankingtam the
information provided by SNL. Only those companidwge customers and employees were included inatae d
provided by SNL in each of the years of the Peréoroe Period will be considered.

(4) With respect to the Performance Metric describedanse (iv) of this Subsection 6(a)EEI will provide data on an
annual basis regarding the OSHA rate of the ppdtaig companies; the Company will calculate itdHBSate for the
year in question and determine its percentile ragnkiased on the information provided by EEI.

(5) With respect to the Performance Metric describeclanse (v)of this_Subsection 6(a)SNL will provide data on an
annual basis regarding the nuclear capacity factiotise participating nuclear plants; the Compaiiycalculate its
nuclear capacity factor for the year in questiod datermine its percentile ranking based on thermétion provided
by SNL. Only those plants that were included indaga provided by SNL in each of the years of tagdPmance
Period will be considered.

(6) With respect to the Performance Metric describedanse (vi) of this_Subsection 6(a)SNL will provide data on an
annual basis regarding the coal capacity factoteeparticipating coal plants; the Company wilccéate its coal
capacity factor for the year in question and deieents percentile ranking based on the informapoovided by SNL.
Only those plants that were included in the dateided by SNL in each of the years of the Perforcea®eriod will b
considered.

@) The Company'’s percentile ranking during the Perforoe Period for each Performance Metric will beaherage of
the Company'’s percentile ranking for each Perforreavietric during each of the three years of thédPerance
Period (each, an* Average Performance Mélriprovided, however, that if the third year oParformance Metric is
not calculable by December 15 of the following yehe Performance Metric shall consist of the thmeest recent
years for which such Performance Metric is calcl@labhe Company’s “Average Performance,” for pugsosf
determining any Base Grant adjustments pursugBtibsection 5(byabove will be the average of the Average
Performance Metrics. If only quartile, rather thmarcentile, rankings are available for a particBlarformance Metric
the Average Performance Metric for any such Peréorce Metric shall be expressed as a percentileeXample, if
the Performance Metric was in the top quartiletfos
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Performance Periods and in the lowest quartildénather Performance Period, the average of themilgs would be
3 (the average of 4, 4, and 1) and the AverageoRednce Metric would be the "5percentile (3 /4). The calculatio
in this Subsection 6(a)(Apill be verified by the Company’s internal audgor

(8) If either EEI or SNL discontinues providing the @apecified above, the Committee shall selecta statrce that, in
the Committee’s judgment, will provide data mosingarable to the data provided by EEI or SNL, ascds® may be.
If the JD Power Residential National Large Segn&nwey for investor-owned utilities (or a succesHorPower
survey) is not available during each of the yeéth® Performance Period, the Performance Metsociated with the
JD Power Residential Survey ( Subsection 6(g)(ti)l be disregarded and not included in the ConysAverage
Performance for purposes of determining any Bas@Gadjustments pursuant to Subsection 5(b)

(b) Total Shareholder Return. “Total Shareholder Return” for the Performanceidteis the measure of a company’s stock
price appreciation plus any dividends paid durimgPerformance Period. Only those companies tha imeluded in the
Growth Index in each of the years of the Perforrederiod will be considered. Total Shareholder Refior the Company
and the companies in the Growth Index will be dateed using the Daily Comparative Return as catedl&dy Bloomberg
(or other independent third party data systenthdfGrowth Index is discontinued, the Committed|stedect the most
comparable index then in use for the sector corapariln addition, if the sector comparison is nagler representative of the
Company’s industry or business, the Committee skalace the Growth Index with the most represamandex then in use.
Once the Total Shareholder Returns of the Compadyad relevant companies in the Growth Index hagen determined,
the member companies will be ranked from greatekast. Percentiles will be calculated (interpadatrom 0% to 100%)
based on a company’s relative ranking. Percentiléde carried out to one (1) decimal place. ¥ tGompany is not in the
Growth Index, then its percentile will be interpeld between the companies listed in the relatiaking. These calculations
will be verified by the Company’s internal auditors

Termination of Award . This Award Agreement will terminate and be offadher force or effect on the date that Employenad
longer employed by the Company or any of its Subsik, whether due to voluntary or involuntaryreration, death, retirement,
disability, or otherwise, except as specifically feeth in Section 4above or in Article 1®f the Plan. Employee will, however, be
entitled to receive any Stock and Dividend Equimtdepayable under Sectiorofithis Award Agreement if Employee’s employment
terminates after the end of the Performance Péxibdbefore Employee’s receipt of such Stock anddeind Equivalents.

Section 409A Compliance If the Company concludes, in the exercise oflisgretion, that this Award is subject to Secti@A of
the Code, the Plan and this Award Agreement skeadldministered in compliance with Section 409A aadh provision of this Award
Agreement and the Plan shall be interpreted to tpmiph Section 409A. If the Company concludesthie exercise of its discretion,
that this Award is not subject to Section 409A, lngtead, is eligible for the short-term defemateption to the requirements of
Section 409A, the Plan and this Award Agreemenli fleaadministered to comply with the requiremesftthe short-term deferral
exception to the requirements of Section 409A auherovision of this Award Agreement and the Blaall be interpreted to comply
with the requirements of such exception. In eithant, Employee does not have any right to makesagtion regarding the time or
form of any payment due under this Award Agreenathér than the tax withholding election describe&éction 9

Tax Withholding . Employee is responsible for any and all fedestalte, and local income, payroll or other tax ddtiigns or
withholdings (collectively, the * Taxée$ arising out of this Award. Employee shall payyand all Taxes due in connection with a
payout of Stock hereunder by check or by havingdbmpany withhold shares of Stock from such payWotlater than April 30,

, Employee must elect, on the election fattached hereto, how Employee will satisfy the tax
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10.

11.

12.

obligations upon a payout. In the absence of alyimlection by Employee, Employee’s tax withholdiolgligation will be satisfied
through the Company’s withholding of shares of &tas set forth above.

Continued Employment. Nothing in the Plan or this Award Agreement shallinterpreted to interfere with or limit in anyawthe
right of the Company or its Subsidiaries to terntenamployee’s employment or services at any timeddition, nothing in the Plan
or this Award Agreement shall be interpreted tofeonpon Employee the right to continue in the esgr service of the Company
its Subsidiaries.

Confidentiality . During Employee’s employment and after terminativereof for any reason, Employee agrees that &meplwill
not, directly or indirectly, in one or a seriesti@nsactions, disclose to any person, or use @rethe exploit for Employee’s own
benefit or for the benefit of anyone other than@wenpany or any of its Affiliates any Confidentiaformation (as hereinafter
defined), whether prepared by Employee or not; idkexy, however, that during the term of Employeemloyment, any Confidential
Information may be disclosed (i) to officers, reggptatives, employees and agents of the CompanigsaAffiliates who need to kno
such Confidential Information in order to perfornetservices or conduct the operations requiredpeaed of them in the business,
and (ii) in good faith by Employee in connectiorttwihe performance of Employee’s job duties to pessvho are authorized to
receive such information by the Company or its liffes. Employee shall have no obligation to keapfidential any Confidential
Information, if and to the extent disclosure of augh information is specifically required by lgevpvided, however, that in the event
disclosure is required by applicable law, Emplogkall provide the Company with prompt notice offsuequirement, prior to making
any disclosure, so that it may seek an approppiattective order.

Employee agrees that all Confidential Informatidéthe Company and its Affiliates (whether now ordwadter existing) conceived,
discovered or made by him during employment exeklgibelongs to the Company or its Affiliates (amat to Employee). Employee
will promptly disclose such Confidential Informatido the Company and perform all actions reasonagjyested by the Company to
establish and confirm such exclusive ownership.gtmposes of this Section ]11he term “Confidential Information” shall meandan
include any information disclosed to Employee ametduring Employee’s employment with the CompanitoAffiliates or
thereafter which is not generally known to the pyjbhcluding, but not limited to, information cagmming the Company’s or its
Affiliates’ assets and valuations, business plamthods of operation, management, information syst@rocedures, processes,
practices, policies, plans, programs, personnelaamedports or other information prepared by apgmes, consultants, advisors, banl
or attorneys.

Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Non-Competition . Employee agrees that for a period of 12 mondliewing any Termination of Employment voluntarily
by Employee (other than due to Disability), Emm@eyshall not, without the prior written consentred Company’s General
Counsel, participate, whether as a consultant, @yegl, contractor, partner, owner (ownership of feas 5% of the
outstanding stock of a publicly traded company wit be considered ownership under this provisiooipwner, or
otherwise, with any business, corporation, grompityeor individual that is or intends to be engdge the business activity
supplying electricity in any area of Arizona for iath the Company or its Affiliates is authorizedstapply electricity.

(b) Employee NonSolicitation . Employee agrees that for a period of 12 montlisviing Employee’s termination of
employment for any reason, Employee will not enager induce, or otherwise solicit, or actively sisany other person or
organization to encourage, induce or otherwiseiotliirectly or indirectly, any employee of the i@pany or any of its
Affiliates to terminate his or her employment witle Company or its Affiliates, or otherwise integfavith the advantageous
business relationship of Pinnacle West and itsliafés with their employees.
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13.

14,

15.

16.

(c) [ No Pledqing or Hedding. Employee agrees that during his or her term gfleyment and for a period of 90 days
thereafter, Employee will not pledge, margin, hyyeatate, hedge, or otherwise grant an economicesttér any shares of
Company stock received by Employee pursuant toAhiard (net of shares sold or surrendered to naeetvithholding or
exercise requirements). This restriction shall et the purchase or creation of any short sab¥s-cost collars, forward
sales contracts, puts, calls, options or othewvdtvie securities in respect of any shares of Cawpséock.]

(d) Remedies. If Employee fails to comply with Sections 11, 4(or] 12(b) [or 12(c)] in a material respect tBompany may
(i) cause any of Employee’s unvested PerformaneeeShand related Dividend Equivalents to be caadelhd forfeited,
(i) refuse to deliver shares of Stock or cashxoh@nge for vested Performance Shares or Dividepiv&lents, and/or
(iii) pursue any other rights and remedies the Camypmay have pursuant to this Award Agreement®iPlan at law or in
equity including, specifically, injunctive relief.

Non-Transferability . Neither this Award nor any rights under this Adi&greement may be assigned, transferred, or imzamyner
encumbered except as provided in the Plan.

Definitions: Copy of Plan and Plan Prospectus To the extent not specifically defined in this and Agreement, all capitalized
terms used in this Award Agreement will have thesaneanings ascribed to them in the Plan. By sigthiis Award Agreement,
Employee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Btahthe related Plan Prospectus.

Amendment. Except as provided below, any amendments toAWwiard Agreement must be made by a written agreemertuted b
the Company and Employee. The Company may amesd\ttard Agreement unilaterally, without the consenEmployee, if the
change (i) is required by law or regulation, (iDed not adversely affect in any material way thhts of Employee, or (iii) is required
to cause the benefits under the Plan to qualifyeaormancesased compensation within the meaning of Secti@gripof the Code «
to comply with the provisions of Section 409A oétBode and applicable regulations or other intéigeuthority. Additional

rules relating to amendments to the Plan or anyrAwa@reement to assure compliance with Section 46Bthe Code are set forth in
Section 17.15 of the Plan.

Performance-Based Award. This Award is intended to be a Performance-Basedrd if Employee is considered to be a Covered
Employee for the tax year of the Company for whied Company claims a related tax deduction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thisrduareement to be executed, as of the Date of {Gbgran authorized

representative of the Company and this Award Agesdrhas been executed by Employee.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONM

By:
Its:
Date:

EMPLOYEE

By:
Date:




Pinnacle West Capital Corporation

PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD
ELECTION FORM
(applies to Award Agreementdated [/ [/ )

INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

Last First Middle Initial Employee ID#

TAX WITHHOLDING ELECTION

| hereby elect to satisfy any tax withholding oblign associated with my receipt of Stock purstiamiy Performance Share Award in the
following form (place ar*X” in the“Checl’ column or in the‘ Stock’ column):

Check Stock
(I will write a check for my taxes that are due aladiver it to the Company (The Company should withhold shares
within one (1) day of the release of the Stc of my Stock to cover my taxe
O O

To the extent permitted by law, | hereby elect Faliax withholding of:

O minimum withholding rate in effect at the time efease (currently 25%);
O percent (within the range of 25% afd5%6): or

O maximum withholding rate in effect at the time afetease (currently 39.6%

PARTICIPANT NAME (PLEASE PRINT

DATE

PARTICIPANT SIGNATURE

IMPORTANT NOTE: Please complete and return this Election Form to Jaifer Mellegers at Mail Station 9996 by




Exhibit 10.6.8¢

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

THIS AWARD AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of (the “Date of Grant'hy and between Pinnau

West Capital Corporation (the “Company”), and (“Employeé").
BACKGROUND
A. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Boafdoectors”) has adopted, and the shareholdete@fCompany have

approved, the Pinnacle West Capital Corporatior220ing-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), pursuanttich Restricted
Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents may be grambeeimployees of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

B. The Company desires to grant to Employee Restrigtedk Units and Dividend Equivalents under thenteof the Plan.
C. Pursuant to the Plan, the Company and Employee agréollows:
AGREEMENT
1. Grant of Award . Pursuant to action of the Committee which was takethe Date of Grant, the Company grants to
Employee ( ) Regtrd Stock Units and related Dividend Equivalents.
2. Award Subject to Plan. This Restricted Stock Unit Award and the relatedifiénd Equivalent Award are granted under

and are expressly subject to all of the terms andigions of the Plan, which terms are incorpordterkin by reference, and
this Award Agreement. In the event of any conftietween the terms and conditions of this Awardeggrent and the Plan,
the provisions of the Plan shall control.

3. Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

€) Regular Vesting. The Restricted Stock Units granted pursuangiti&n 1will vest and no longer be subject to the
restrictions of and forfeiture under this Award Agment on the following dates (each a “Vesting Dated as
otherwise set forth in this Section 3

0] X,Xxx Restricted Stock Units will vest on , ;
(i) X,xxx Restricted Stock Units will vest on , 0"
(iii) X, xxx Restricted Stock Units will vest on , ;; and
(iv) The remaining x,xxx Restricted Stock Units will ves , "
(b) Normal or Early Retirement, Death or Disability .
0] Provided that Employee either qualifies for “EadRgtirement” or “Normal Retirement”, as defined lie t

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation Retirement Piaea {Retirement Plan”), or is a Late Career Recipie




(as defined below), the Restricted Stock Units fuilly vest and no longer be subject to the restnits of
and forfeiture under this Award Agreement upon Eaypk’s death or Disability.

(i) The Restricted Stock Units will fully vest and mmger be subject to the restrictions of and fanfeitunde
this Award Agreement upon Employee’s terminatioewiployment which constitutes an Early Retirement
or a Normal Retirement.

(c) Late Career Recipient. If, at the time of Employee’s death, Disabilityretirement, Employee has reached sixty
(60) years of age and has been credited with at fee@ (5) Years of Service, as defined underRe&rement Plan,
and does not otherwise meet the criteria for ERdtirement or Normal Retirement under the Retireridsmn,
Employee shall be treated for purposes of this Agrent as a “Late Career Recipient.” Upon the dhteLate
Career Recipient’s retirement (the “Effective Datel portion of Employee’s unvested Restricted [Stdnits that
would have vested on the next Vesting Date wilk wgsa straighpro-rata basishased on the number of days
elapsed between the last Vesting Date (or, if aifgPate has not yet occurred, the Date of Grand) the Effective
Date. Payment will be made on the next VestingeDaltowing the Effective Date in accordance witcon 4(a).
No fractional Stock shall be issued. If the Stpelout results in a fractional share of one-haljater, such
fraction will be increased to provide for the issca of a full share of Stock.

(d) Termination Without Cause . In the event Employee’s employment is termindtgdhe Company without cause,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the ‘@E may determine in his discretion if, to whatext, and
when, any unvested portion of the Restricted Stdciks granted pursuant to this Award should vesiyjoled,
however, that (i) any vesting of unvested RestiG&ck Units pursuant to this Section 3@Hall be approved by
the Chair of the Committee, and (ii) nothing herghall obligate the CEO to exercise his discretmoause any
unvested Restricted Stock Units to vest.

(e) Termination For Cause. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Sect3, in the event Employee’s
employment is terminated for Cause, then regardieEmployee’s retirement, Early Retirement, Normal
Retirement, death or Disability, Employee shalfddrthe right to receive any cash payment or Stoeteunder that
Employee would otherwise be entitled to receivéofeing his or her date of termination. For purmosely of this
Section 3(e) “Cause”’means (A) embezzlement, theft, fraud, deceit ardi&ironesty by the Employee involving
property, business or affairs of the Company or@friys Subsidiaries, or (B) an act of moral tuupi¢ which in the
sole judgment of the CEO reflects adversely orbtgness or reputation of the Company or any dditissidiaries
or negatively affects any of the Company’s or ahigoSubsidiaries employees or customers.

® Disability . “Disability” has the meaning set forth for sueinm in the Retirement Plan.
Payment.
(a) Time and Form of Payment. When a Restricted Stock Unit vests in accordavitie Section 3above, Employee

(or his or her estate) shall receive in exchange#&ah Restricted Stock Unit one unrestricted fuysferrable sha
of Stock. Employee may elect, pursuant to Sectitm, to receive payment for the Restricted Stock Upétgable
on any Vesting Date in the form of fully




(b)

(©)

(d)

transferrable shares of Stock or 50% cash and 50fly transferrable shares of Stock. Exceptravided in
Section 3(d)above following a termination of employment with@ause, if a Restricted Stock Unit vests priathte
applicable Vesting Date due to Employee’s status lagte Career Recipient or Employee’s death, OlisgtEarly
Retirement, or Normal Retirement, the payment béllmade on the Vesting Date applicable to suchriRiest Stock
Unit. Except as provided in Section 3(dpove following a termination of employment with@ause, any cash
payment will be based on the Fair Market Valuero# share of Stock determined as of the applicabking Date.
The payment shall be made within 30 days of thdieadple Vesting Date, provided that any paymentafdtestricte
Stock Unit that vests prior to the applicable ViegtDate due to the death or Disability of Employaedue to the
retirement of a Late Career Recipient, shall beamaallater than March 15 of the year following ylear in which
Employee dies, becomes Disabled, or, in the casd.ate Career Recipient, retires. If Employees difter acquirin
a vested interest in the Restricted Stock Unitsbiefiire receiving payment for the Restricted Stdoks, the
payment will be made to Employee’s designated heiaef in accordance with the elections previousigde by
Employee.

Election of Form of Payment. No later than April 30, , Employee mekgct to receive payment for
Employee’s vested Restricted Stock Units and DividEquivalents in fully transferable shares of 8toc50% in
cash and 50% in fully transferrable shares of Stpckompleting and returning to the Company theteda form
attached to this Agreement. In the absence ohelyielection by Employee, Employee will receivempant for the
vested Restricted Stock Units and Dividend Equivalén fully transferable shares of Stock.

Dividend Equivalents. In satisfaction of the Dividend Equivalents Adanade pursuant to Section at the time
of the Company’s delivery of payment pursuant toti®a 3or Section 4(a) the Company also will deliver to
Employee a payment equal to the amount of dividefidsy, that Employee would have received if Eayele had
directly owned the Stock to which the RestricteocBtUnits relate from the Date of Grant to the agaile Vesting
Date, plus interest on such amount at the ratepafréent compounded quarterly. Pursuant to tretietefiled by the
Employee pursuant to Section 4(lgayment for the Dividend Equivalents and intevaitbe made in fully
transferrable shares of Stock, or 50% in cash &6 i fully transferrable shares of Stock. The bemof shares of
Stock distributed to Employee will be determineddiyiding the amount of the Dividend Equivalentslanterest by
the Fair Market Value of one share of Stock asefapplicable date of vesting. No fractional Stekéll be issued.
If the Stock payout results in a fractional shareree-half or greater, such fraction will be increasegtovide for th
issuance of a full share of Stock.

Impact on Pension Plans The value of the shares of Stock distributed upayment for the Restricted Stock Units
and Dividend Equivalents will be disregarded forgmses of calculating the amount of Emplogdeénefit under ar
Company retirement plans.

Termination of Award . Except as otherwise provided_in Sectioab®ve or in Article 1%f the Plan, in the event of the

termination of Employee’s employment with the Compar any of its Subsidiaries, whether due to vtdwnor involuntary
termination, retirement, death, disability or othise, Employee’s right to vest in any additionakRieted Stock Units or
Dividend Equivalents under the Plan or this Awagrdement, if any, will terminate. Any unvested Riettd Stock Units
and the related Dividend Equivalents will




be forfeited effective as of the date that Emplolgeminates active employment with the Companynyraf its Subsidiaries.

Section 409A Compliance If the Company concludes, in the exercise oflissretion, that this Award is subject to
Section 409A of the Code, the Plan and this AwagdeAment shall be administered in compliance witttisn 409A and
each provision of this Award Agreement and the RBlaall be interpreted to comply with Section 409Athe Company
concludes, in the exercise of its discretion, thet Award is not subject to Section 409A, butjéasl, is eligible for the short-
term deferral exception to the requirements of iBret09A, the Plan and this Award Agreement shalatministered to
comply with the requirements of the short-term defleexception to the requirements of Section 4894 each provision of
this Award Agreement and the Plan shall be inteégoiéo comply with the requirements of such exaaptiln either event,
Employee does not have any right to make any electgarding the time or form of any payment dudeurthis Award
Agreement other than the election described iniG@edtb).

Tax Withholding . Employee is responsible for any and all fedestalte, and local income, payroll or other tax gitiions
or withholdings (collectively, the “Taxes”) arisiroyt of this Award. Employee shall pay any andratkes due prior to the
payout of Stock or cash hereunder by check or @trangement acceptable to the Company. Empldyakpay any and all
Taxes due in connection with a payout of Stockamhchereunder by check or by having the Comparhhwitl cash or shar
of Stock from such payout. No later than April 30, , Employee must elect, on the electiomfdiescribed in Section 4(b)
how Employee will satisfy the tax obligations upppayout. In the absence of a timely election mpByee, Employee’s
tax withholding obligation upon a payout will betistied through the Comparg/withholding of cash or shares of Stock a:
forth above.

Continued Employment. Nothing in the Plan or this Award Agreement shallitterpreted to interfere with or limit in any
way the right of the Company or its Subsidiarietetoninate Employee’s employment or services attemg. In addition,
nothing in the Plan or this Award Agreement shalitterpreted to confer upon Employee the rigttdietinue in the employ
or service of the Company or its Subsidiaries.

Confidentiality . During Employee’s employment and after termimathereof for any reason, Employee agrees that
Employee will not, directly or indirectly, in one a series of transactions, disclose to any pexsonse or otherwise exploit
for Employee’s own benefit or for the benefit ofyane other than the Company or any of its Affilsatay Confidential
Information (as hereinafter defined), whether preddy Employee or not; provided, however, thairduthe term of
Employee’s employment, any Confidential Informatioay be disclosed (i) to officers, representatiessployees and agents
of the Company and its Affiliates who need to kreweh Confidential Information in order to perfornetservices or conduct
the operations required or expected of them irbtigness, and (ii) in good faith by Employee inroaetion with the
performance of Employee’s job duties to persons adecauthorized to receive such information byGoenpany or its
Affiliates. Employee shall have no obligation ®ep confidential any Confidential Information, ifdato the extent disclost
of any such information is specifically requiredlbw; provided, however, that in the event disctess required by
applicable law, Employee shall provide the Compaitit prompt notice of such requirement, prior toking any disclosure,
so that it may seek an appropriate protective order

Employee agrees that all Confidential Informatidéth® Company and its Affiliates (whether now orduadter existing)
conceived, discovered or made by him during emphaynexclusively belongs to the Company or its Adfiés (and not to
Employee). Employee will promptly disclose such fiadential Information to the Company and
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10.

11.

12.

perform all actions reasonably requested by the 2o to establish and confirm such exclusive owriprsFor purposes of
this Section 9 the term “Confidential Information” shall meandainclude any information disclosed to Employee time
during Employee’s employment with the Company siffiliates or thereafter which is not generallydwn to the public,
including, but not limited to, information concemgithe Company'’s or its Affiliates’ assets and agilons, business plans,
methods of operation, management, information syst@rocedures, processes, practices, policiess pieograms, personi
and/or reports or other information prepared byrajsprs, consultants, advisors, bankers or attstney

Restrictive Covenants.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Non-Competition . Employee agrees that for a period of 12 momnthieving any Termination of Employment
voluntarily by Employee (other than due to Disap)li Employee shall not, without the prior writteansent of the
Companys General Counsel, participate, whether as a campyemployee, contractor, partner, owner (ownprsf
less than 5% of the outstanding stock of a pubticged company will not be considered ownershieurthis
provision), co-owner, or otherwise, with any bustsiecorporation, group, entity or individual th&br intends to be
engaged in the business activity of supplying telgty in any area of Arizona for which the Conmyeor its
Affiliates is authorized to supply electricity.

Employee NonrSolicitation . Employee agrees that for a period of 12 mordhewing Employee’s termination of
employment for any reason, Employee will not enaget induce, or otherwise solicit, or actively sisany other
person or organization to encourage, induce omaike solicit, directly or indirectly, any employeéthe Company
or any of its Affiliates to terminate his or her gimyment with the Company or its Affiliates, or etiwise interfere
with the advantageous business relationship o€tirapany and its Affiliates with their employees.

[ No Pledqing or Hedding. Employee agrees that during his or her term of egmpent and for a period of 90 days
thereafter, Employee will not pledge, margin, hyygatate, hedge, or otherwise grant an economicesttar any
shares of Company stock received by Employee patsaahis Award (net of shares sold or surrendéoeteet tax
withholding or exercise requirements). This ressh shall extend to the purchase or creatiomgfshort sales,
zero-cost collars, forward sales contracts, puatds,coptions or other derivative securities inpexs of any shares of
Company stock.]

Remedies. If Employee fails to comply with Sections 9, 49([or] 10(b) [or 10(c)]n a material respect, the
Company may (i) cause any of Employee’s unvestesdriReed Stock Units and related Dividend Equividdn be
cancelled and forfeited, (ii) refuse to deliver gsaof Stock or cash in exchange for vested Réstrigtock Units or
Dividend Equivalents, and/or (iii) pursue any othghts and remedies the Company may have pursodhis
Award Agreement or the Plan at law or in equityuding, specifically, injunctive relief.

Non-Transferability . Neither this Award nor any rights under this Ad/&greement may be assigned, transferred, or in

any manner encumbered except as provided in the Pla

Definitions: Copy of Plan and Plan Prospectus To the extent not specifically defined in this &wd Agreement, all

capitalized terms used in this Award Agreement alve
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the same meanings ascribed to them in the Plarsigdyng this Award Agreement, Employee acknowledgeeipt of a cog
of the Plan and the related Plan Prospectus.

13. Amendment. Except as provided below, any amendments toAwisrd Agreement must be made by a written agreémen
executed by the Company and Employee. The Comparyyamend this Award Agreement unilaterally, withithve consent
of Employee, if the change (i) is required by lamregulation, (i) does not adversely affect in angterial way the rights of
Employee, or (iii) is required to cause the besafitder the Plan to qualify as performance-basatgpeasation within the
meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code or to comyith the provisions of Section 409A of the Code apglicable
regulations or other interpretive authority. Adtalital rules relating to amendments to the PlamgrAward Agreement to
assure compliance with Section 409A of the Codesatdorth in Section 17.15 of the Plan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thisrldw@reement to be executed, as of the Date of {Gbgran
authorized representative of the Company and thiard Agreement has been executed by Employee.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOMN
By:

Its:
Date:

EMPLOYEE

By:
Date:




Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD
ELECTION FORM
(applies to Award Agreement dated [ 1)

INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

Last First Middle Initial Employee ID#

1. PAYMENT ELECTION

In accordance with the terms of the Pinnacle Westit&l Corporation 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plad anrsuant to Section 4(jf the
Award Agreement, | hereby elect to receive payni@nthe Restricted Stock Units and Dividend Equéves that vest on the dates set forth
below in the following form (place an “X” in the t&k” column or in the “50% Cash/50% Stock” colufoneach of the years and types of
Awards set forth below’

Restricted Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents

50% Cash/
Vesting Date Stock 50% Stock
/I O O
1 O O
/I O O
[ O O

2. TAXWITHHOLDING ELECTION

| hereby elect to satisfy any tax withholding oblign associated with my receipt of Stock or Stan#l cash in exchange for my Restricted
Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents in the follagiform (place a“X” in the“Chec}’ column or in theé*Withholding” column):

Check Withholding
(I will write a check for my taxes that are due alsdiver it to the Company (The Company should withhold
within one (1) day of the release date of my Stockash paymen shares of my Stock or cash paym
to cover my taxes
O
O
To the extent permitted by law, | hereby elect Fabiax withholding of:
O minimum withholding rate in effect at the time efaase (currently 25%);
O percent (within the range of 25% afd%6); or
O maximum withholding rate in effect at the time afetease (currently 39.6%
PARTICIPANT NAME (PLEASE PRINT
DATE
PARTICIPANT SIGNATURE

IMPORTANT NOTE: Please complete and return this Election Form to Jaifer Mellegers at Mail Station 9996 by ,




PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
common shareholde
Income taxe:
Fixed charges
Total earnings

Fixed Charges
Interest expens
Estimated interest portion of annual rents
Total fixed charges

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (rounded down)

(dollars in thousands)

Exhibit 12.1

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
406,07- 387,38( 328,11( 324,68t 236,83!
230,59: 237,31 183,60« 160,86¢ 138,55:
206,08 219,43 246,46: 248,66 241,80
842,75 844,13 758,17t 734,22! 617,19
201,88t 214,61t 241,99! 244,17: 237,761

4,201 4,821 4,461 4,49( 4,041
206,08 219,43 246,46: 248,66 241,80
4.0¢ 3.84 3.07 2.9¢ 2.5¢




Exhibit 12.2

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(dollars in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Earnings:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
common shareholde $ 424,96¢ $ 395,49 $ 336,24¢ $ 335,66. $ 251,22!
Income taxe! 245,09! 244,39¢ 192,54: 170,46" 152,57-
Fixed charges 202,45 214,22 238,28t 234,18: 227,27
Total earnings $ 872,52, $ 854,12( $ 767,07 $ 740,31: $ 631,07.
Fixed Charges
Interest charge $ 19461t $ 205,53! $ 229,32t $ 225,26¢ $ 218,96!
Amortization of debt discour 4,04¢ 4,21 4,61¢ 4,55¢ 4,67¢
Estimated interest portion of annual rents 3,79¢ 4,47¢ 4,34 4,35¢ 3,63(
Total fixed charges $ 202,45 $ 21422 3 238,28t $ 234,18: $ 227,27:

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (rounded down) 4.3C 3.9¢ 3.21 3.1€ 2.71




Exhibit 12.3

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PRE FERRED
STOCK DIVIDEND REQUIREMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Earnings:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
common shareholde $ 406,07 $ 387,380 $ 328,110 $ 324,68t $ 236,83
Income taxe: 230,59: 237,31 183,60« 160,86¢ 138,55:
Fixed charges 206,08¢ 219,43 246,46. 248,66 241,80
Total earnings $ 842,75: $ 844,13 $ 758,17¢ $ 734,22, $ 617,19
Fixed Charges
Interest expens $ 201,88t $ 214,61t $ 241,99 $ 24417 $ 237,761
Estimated interest portion of annual rents 4,201 4,821 4,46 4,49( 4,041
Total fixed charges $ 206,08¢ $ 219,43 $ 246,46. $ 248,66: $ 241,80
Preferred Stock Dividend Requiremer
Income before income taxes attributable to comnr
shareholder $ 636,66! $ 624,69° $ 511,71 $ 48555 $ 375,39
Net income from continuing operations attributatiol
common shareholde 406,07 387,38( 328,11( 324,68t 236,83!
Ratio of income before income taxes to net incorn 1.57 1.61 1.5€ 1.5C 1.5¢
Preferred stock dividends — — — — —
Preferred stock dividend requirements — ratio
(above) times preferred stock divider $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividend
Requirements
Fixed charge $ 206,08¢ $ 219,43 $ 246,46: $ 248,66: $ 241,80°
Preferred stock dividend requirements — — — — —
Total $ 206,08¢ $ 219,43 $ 246,46. $ 248,66: $ 241,80°

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (rounded down) 4.0¢ 3.84 3.07 2.95 2.5




Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES LIST - 2014
Arizona Public Service Company

*All other subsidiaries of Pinnacle West Capitalr@aration and all subsidiaries of Arizona Public\&&e Company have been omitted as they
do not constitute significant subsidiaries withie imeaning of Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-180897 and 333-178h9B0orm S-3; and in Registration
Statement Nos. 333-143432, 333-182427 and 333-15@4%orm S-8 of our report dated February 21, 2€dlating to the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdieedxf Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, and ffecéveness of Pinnacle West Capital
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@fPinnacle West Capital Corporation for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 21, 2014




Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement No. 333-180897-01 on Form 8r8; in Registration Statement Nos.
333-46161 and 333-158774 on Form S-8 of our regetteed February 21, 2014, relating to the consaifihancial statements and financial
statement schedule of Arizona Public Service Comgeml the effectiveness of Arizona Public ServioenPany’s internal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Repmr Form 10-K of Arizona Public Service Companyttee year ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 21, 2014




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Donald E. Brandt, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KPafnacle West Capital Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgt or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sloiésire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$santernal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the




Date:

audit committee of the registrant’s board of dioest(or persons performing the equivalent funcfions

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

February 21, 2014

/s/ Donald E. Branc

Donald E. Brand
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi

2




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, James R. Hatfield, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KPafnacle West Capital Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgt or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sloiésire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$santernal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the




Date:

audit committee of the registrant’s board of dioest(or persons performing the equivalent funcfions

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

February 21, 2014

/s/ James R. Hatfiel

James R. Hatfiel
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office

2




Exhibit 31.3
CERTIFICATION
I, Donald E. Brandt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KAdzona Public Service Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgt or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sloiésire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$santernal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the




audit committee of the registrant’s board of dioest(or persons performing the equivalent funcfions

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date:  February 21, 2014

/s/ Donald E. Branc

Donald E. Brand
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi

2




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION

I, James R. Hatfield, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KAdkona Public Service Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgt or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sloiésire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regi$santernal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the




Date:

audit committee of the registrant’s board of dioest(or persons performing the equivalent funcfions

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

February 21, 2014

/s/ James R. Hatfiel

James R. Hatfiel
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office

2




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
OF

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Donald E. Brandt, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBasOxley Act of 2002, that tt
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pinnacle West Capitatporation for the year ended December 31, 2008 ¢omplies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 and that information contained ints@mnual Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of Pinnacle \Wsgtital Corporation.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Donald E. Branc
Donald E. Brand
Chairman, President ai
Chief Executive Office

I, James R. Hatfield, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SL850, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dneaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pinnacle Westi@horporation for the year ended December 31320lly complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SdesrExchange Act of 1934 and that informationtadgmed in such Annual Report on
Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respethe financial condition and results of operatioh®innacle West Capital Corporation.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ James R. Hatfiel

James R. Hatfiel
Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
OF

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Donald E. Brandt, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBasOxley Act of 2002, that tt
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Arizona Public Seevicompany for the year ended December 31, 2018dalplies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 and that information contained ints@mnual Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of Arizona PuBervice Company.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Donald E. Branc
Donald E. Brand
Chairman, President ai
Chief Executive Office

I, James R. Hatfield, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SL850, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dneaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Arizona Publia\Bee Company for the year ended December 31, a@lh8complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SdesrExchange Act of 1934 and that informationtaedgmed in such Annual Report on
Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respethe financial condition and results of operatioh#rizona Public Service Company.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ James R. Hatfiel

James R. Hatfiel
Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial Office




